
PLANNING AND BUILDING 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 29TH FEBRUARY, 2016

A MEETING of the PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held in the 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS 

TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 29TH FEBRUARY, 2016 at 10.00 AM

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

22 February 2016

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute. (Pages 1 - 10)

Minute of Meeting of 1 February 2016 to be approved and signed by the Chairman.  (Copy 
attached.) 

5. Applications. 

Consider the following application for planning permission:-
(a)  15/01155/FUL and 15/01156/FUL - Land North of 24 Sergeants Park, Newtown 

St Boswells (Pages 11 - 36)
1. Erection of 39 dwellinghousse, 2 flats and associated infrastructure (Phase1)
2. Erection of 10 dwellinghouses, 2 flats and associated infrastructure (Phase2) 

6. Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan (Pages 37 - 266)

Consider report by Service Director Regulatory Services.  (Copy attached.)
7. Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance: Hendersyde, Kelso (Pages 267 - 292)

Consider report by Service Director Regulatory Services.  (Copy attached.)
8. Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance: East Maxton, Maxton Mini Planning Brief 

(Pages 293 - 316)

Consider report by Service Director Regulatory Services.  (Copy attached.) 
9. Appeals and Reviews. (Pages 317 - 320)

Public Document Pack



Consider report by Service Director Regulatory Services.  (Copy attached.) 
10. Any Other Items Previously Circulated. 

11. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

12. Items Likely to be Taken in Private 

Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion should be approved:-

“That under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 the public be excluded
from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to 
the aforementioned Act.”

13. Minute (Pages 321 - 322)

Private Minute of 1 February 2016 to be approved and signed by the Chairman.  (Copy 
attached.) 

14. Dangerous Chimney and Masonry and Defective Roof covering, Rainwater Goods 
and Dry Rot at 2 High Street and 12 Market Place, Jedburgh (Pages 323 - 328)

Consider report by Chief Planning Officer.  ( Copy attached.)

NOTE
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting.

Members are reminded that any decisions taken by the Planning and Building Standards 
Committee are quasi judicial in nature. Legislation , case law and the Councillors Code of 
Conduct  require  that Members :
 Need to ensure a fair proper hearing 
 Must avoid any impression of bias in relation to the statutory decision making process
 Must take no account of irrelevant matters
 Must not prejudge an application, 
 Must not formulate a final view on an application until all available information is to 

hand and has been duly considered at the relevant meeting
 Must avoid any occasion for suspicion and any appearance of improper conduct
 Must not come with a pre prepared statement which already has a conclusion

Membership of Committee:- Councillors R. Smith (Chairman), J. Brown (Vice-Chairman), 
M. Ballantyne, D. Moffat, I. Gillespie, J. Campbell, J. A. Fullarton, S. Mountford and B White

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson 01835 826502
fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MINUTE of MEETING of the PLANNING AND 
BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE held 
in the Council Headquarters, Newtown St. 
Boswells on 1 February 2016 at 10.00 a.m.

------------------

Present: - Councillors R. Smith (Chairman), M. Ballantyne, J. Brown, J. Campbell, J. 
Fullarton, I. Gillespie, D. Moffat, S. Mountford.

Apology:-    Councillor B. White.
In Attendance:- Chief Planning Officer, Development Standards Manager, Principal Roads 

Planning Officer, Solicitor (G Nelson), Environmental Health Officer (M R 
Fitzgerald), Democratic Services Team Leader, Democratic Services Officer (F 
Henderson). 

   

1.      MINUTE
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting held on 11 January 2016.

   DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

2. APPLICATIONS
There had been circulated copies of reports by the Service Director Regulatory Services on 
applications for planning permission requiring consideration by the Committee. Following 
consideration of the applications the Chairman advised that Mary Rose Fitzgerald was 
leaving the Council to move to a new post and thanked her for advice to the Committee.

DECISION
   DEALT with the applications as detailed in Appendix I to this Minute.

3. APPEALS AND REVIEWS
There had been circulated copies of a report by the Service Director Regulatory Services on 
Appeals to the Scottish Ministers and Local Reviews.  

3.1 The Chairman requested an update from Mr Nelson with regard to Wind Farm Development 
appeals and Mr Nelson advised that the situation was very fluid and reported as follows:-

 Hag Law, Romanno Bridge and Cloich, Peebles -  expected that the Reporters 
report would  be sent to Scottish Ministers by mid February 2016 and that a decision 
from Scottish Ministers could be made within approximately 3 months thereafter (mid 
May 2016);

 Land West of Muircleugh Farmhouse, Lauder - expected to be completed mid 
February 2016 and a decision within 3 months;

        Aikengall 2A – decision expected May 2016 

 Kilrubie, Eddleston, Peebles – Appeal just received and at an early stage.  

The Chairman then asked that Members of the Committee receive a note giving a brief 
overview of the position in respect of all wind farm applications and potential applications, 
including a location map.

1Page 1

Agenda Item 4



DECISION
(a) NOTED that:-

(i)   an appeal had been received in respect of the erection of windfarm 
comprising 7 No wind turbines up to 115m high to tip, access tracks, sub-
station and ancillary works on Land North of Upper Stewarton, (Kilrubie 
Wind Farm Development), Eddleston, Peebles. 

(ii) A review request had been received in respect of the Erection of a 
dwellinghouse  on Land West of Craigerne Coachhouse, Edderston Road, 
Peebles – 15/01034/FUL 

(iii) there remained two appeals outstanding in respect of: 

 Land South East of Halmyre Mains Farmhouse (Hag Law), Romanno 
Bridge 

 Land North East and North West of Farmhouse Braidlie (Windy Edge), 
Hawick.

(b) AGREED  that a briefing paper be prepared and circulated to Committee  
   Members, detailing Wind Farm Development applications received, those in the    

process of scoping together with a map pinpointing proposed sites referred to in 
the applications and identifying wind farm developments already approved.

PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS PROTOCOL 
4. There had been circulated copies of the Public Speaking at meetings Protocol with 

recommended amendments in terms of the content of the presentation which allowed 
speakers to make reference to a maximum of two visual aids (photomontages, photographs, 
maps, plans, etc) that had been lodged properly with the Council in respect of the application 
being considered and a minimum of 8 days in advance of the Committee.

* DECISION
AGREED TO RECOMMEND that the suggested amendments be incorporated into the 
Public Speaking at meeting Protocol as detailed in Appendix II to this Minute.

5. SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN: EXAMINATION REPORT  
With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of 11 January 2016, there had been circulated 
copies of the reply received from the Chief Reporter.  The Chairman proposed that the 
discussion of this matter be taken in private and this was unanimously agreed.   

    DECISION
AGREED. 

PRIVATE BUSINESS
6. DECISION

AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 
exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business detailed in 
the Appendix III to this Minute on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the 
aforementioned Act.

2Page 2



SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS

1. SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN: EXAMINATION REPORT 
The Committee considered a reply from the Chief Reporter and agreed that the matter be 
considered at the next meeting, once all responses had been received.  

The meeting concluded at 12.15 p.m. 

3Page 3



APPENDIX I

APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 

Reference Nature of Development Location
15/01173/FUL Erection of poultry building Hutton Hall Barns

and associated works Hutton

DECISION: Approved subject to the following conditions and informatives:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 
date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as 
amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.

2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Planning Authority, in unless agreed 
in writing by the Planning Authority.   
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details

3 Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises shall not exceed Noise Rating 
Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 – 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured 
within the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise 
emanating from any plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible 
tonal component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2
The Unit shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions so as 
to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits. 
Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties

4 No development shall commence until a Badger Protection Plan, to include measures as set out 
in Informative 1 of this consent, shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Planning 
Authority.  Thereafter, the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
Reason: In the interests of preserving biodiversity

5  No clearance/disturbance of habitats which could be used by breeding birds, such as arable 
field, field margins and boundary features, shall be carried out during the breeding bird season 
(March-August) without the express written permission of the Planning Authority.  Supplementary 
checking surveys and appropriate mitigation for breeding birds will be required if any habitat 
clearance is to commence during the breeding bird season.
Reason: In the interests of preserving biodiversity

6 No development shall commence until the full details of the finalised drainage scheme shall be 
submitted for the written approval of the planning authority, in consultation with SEPA, and all work 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.
Reason:  To ensure adequate protection of the water environment from surface water runoff

7 A sample of all materials to be used on all exterior surfaces of the development  hereby 
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority before 
development.
Reason: The materials to be used require further consideration to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development, which contributes appropriately to its setting.

8 No development shall commence until the new access is formed at the location detailed in Site 
Plan Drawing 001E 15/12/2015 to the dimensions and specifications detailed in Informative No4 of 
this permission.
Reason: In the interest of road safety.

4Page 4



9 Prior to the development becoming operational at least two new passing places shall be provided 
at agreed locations between the application site and the B6460 in accordance with a scheme of 
details that shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason: In the interest of road safety.

10 All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping Drawing 001E 
15/12/2015 shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the operation of 
the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and shall be 
maintained thereafter and replaced as may be necessary for a period of two years from the date of 
completion of the planting, seeding or turfing.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed landscaping is carried out as approved.

11 The development shall be operated and managed in accordance with the MacLean Eggs Ltd 
Operational Plan 18/12/2015 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties. 

Informatives 

1 In line with the requirements of Condition No 4, the Badger Protection Plan should detail the 
measures to protect badgers foraging and commuting across the site (including covering trenches 
and open pipes overnight/ providing a means of escape, safe storage of chemicals and oils, timing 
of works and sensitive security lighting away from woodland).

2 In line with the requirements of Condition No 6, the design of this SUDS scheme should include 
measures to protect badger (including appropriate fencing).

3 There is a low potential for encountering buried archaeology during excavations.   Should buried 
features (e.g. walls, pits, post-holes) or artefacts (e.g. pottery, ironwork, bronze objects, beads) of 
potential antiquity be discovered, please contact the planner or Council’s Archaeology Officer for 
further discussions. Further investigation secured by the development may be required if significant 
archaeology is discovered per PAN2(2011) paragraph 31. In the event that human remains or 
artefacts are discovered, these should remain in situ pending investigation by the Archaeology 
Officer. Human Remains must be reported immediately to the police. Artefacts may require 
reporting to Treasure Trove Scotland.

4  In line with the requirements of Condition No 8, the new access shall be sited and formed to the 
following dimensions and specifications:

 The new access to be located where the existing passing place is.
 The new access to have 5.5m throat width with minimum 8m radii.
 Visibility splays of 2.4m by 90m to be provided in either direction
 The first 5m of the new access to be surfaced to the specification:

40mm of 14mm size close graded bituminous surface course to BS 4987 laid on 60mm of 
20mm size dense binder course (basecourse) to the same BS laid on 350mm of 100mm 
broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-base, type 1.

It should be borne in mind that only contractors first approved by the Council may work within the 
public road boundary. There should be no unauthorised advertising signing, and the lay-by must be 
kept tidy and litter free.

5 Details of SEPA regulatory requirements and good practice advice for the applicant can be found 
on the Regulations section of the SEPA website. For further advice for a specific regulatory matter, 
contact a member of the operations team in the local SEPA office (tel: 01896 754797).

5Page 5



6 The site is not at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 in 200 years.  The applicant 
should be made aware that flooding can occur from other sources including run off from 
surrounding land.

NOTE: Site visit held on Monday, 25 January 2016.
 
VOTE
Councillor Brown, seconded by Councillor Mountford, moved that the application be approved on 
the terms recommended by the officer and with an amendment to condition 9.

Councillor Fullarton, seconded by Councillor Gillespie, moved as an amendment that the 
application be refused in terms of Policies NE5, NE3 and R1.

On a show of hands Members voted as follows:-
Motion - 5 Votes
Amendment  - 3 Votes

The Motion was accordingly carried.

Reference Nature of Development Location
15/01395/FUL Erection of Dwellinghouse Land West of 

123 Forest Road,
 Selkirk

DECISION: Approved subject to a legal agreement addressing contributions (towards Education & 
Lifelong Learning and Waverley), and the following conditions and informatives:

Conditions

1. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development shall be 
commenced until precise details of the materials to be used in the construction of the external 
walls and roofs of the buildings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and thereafter no development shall take place except in strict accordance 
with those details.
Reason: The materials require further consideration to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development, which contributes appropriately to its setting.

2. The finished floor levels of the building(s) hereby permitted shall be consistent with those 
indicated on a scheme of details which shall first have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To retain effective control over the development which is on a sloping site.  

3. No development shall commence until precise details of water supply have been submitted to 
and approved in writing, in consultation with Scottish Water, by the Planning Authority.  
Thereafter no development shall take place except in strict accordance with those details.
Reason: To ensure an adequate supply of water is available to serve the site and to ensure 
that existing users are not compromised.

4. No development shall commence until a scheme for sustainable urban drainage (SUDS) for 
surface water treatment and foul water drainage has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority, in consultation with SEPA.  Thereafter no development shall 
take place except in strict accordance with the approved scheme. 
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory arrangements are made for the disposal of surface and 
foul water.

6Page 6



5. The external section of the flue above the roof slope to be painted a matt black colour before 
the flue is installed and thereafter so retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the surrounding area.

6.  No development shall take place until a Construction Method Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Thereafter, construction of the development 
hereby approved shall only take place in strict accordance with the Method Plan so approved.
Reason: To ensure that the construction of the development takes place with minimum off-site 
disruption, particularly in relation to the use of the public road and footpath adjacent to the site.

Informatives

1. The Environmental Health Service of the Council advises, with regards the proposed flue, as 
follows:  

These installations can cause smoke and odour complaints and any Building and Planning 
Consents for the installation do not indemnify the applicant in respect of Nuisance action. In the 
event of nuisance action being taken there is no guarantee that remedial work will be granted 
building/planning permission. Accordingly this advice can assist you to avoid future problems: 
 The location of the flue should take into account other properties that may be 

downwind.
 The discharge point for the flue should be located as high as possible to allow for 

maximum dispersion of the flue gasses.
 The flue should be terminated with a cap that encourages a high gas efflux velocity.
 The flue and appliance should be checked and serviced at regular intervals to ensure 

that they continue to operate efficiently and cleanly.
 The appliance should only burn fuel of a type and grade that is recommended by the 

manufacturer.
 If you live in a Smoke Control Area you must only use an Exempt Appliance  

http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/appliances.php?country=s and the fuel that is 
Approved for use in it http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/fuels.php?country=s . 

 In wood burning stoves you should only burn dry, seasoned timber. Guidance is 
available on - http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-
woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf

 Treated timber, waste wood, manufactured timber and laminates etc. should not be 
used as fuel. 

 The use of waste wood requires and Exemption to be granted by the Scottish 
Environmental Pollution Agency.

 Paper and kindling can be used for lighting, but purpose made firelighters can cause 
fewer odour problems.

2. As noted above, flues can give rise to smoke and odour complaints which may be 
actionable under Environmental Health legislation.  Appropriate precautions should 
therefore be taken to avoid problems arising in this case. Any adjustments to the flue in 
terms of location, height or size (from that approved under this consent) that may be 
needed to address potential nuisance issues may require a fresh planning application. Prior 
to considering any changes, the applicant should consult the Planning Authority.

NOTE
Mr S Davidson, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

7Page 7

http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/appliances.php?country=s
http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/fuels.php?country=s
http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf
http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf


APPENDIX II 

Public Speaking at Meetings Protocol

Planning and Building Standards Committee 

Introduction

Scottish Borders Council will permit public presentations on planning applications in 
the circumstances and subject to the limitations set out below. 

The opportunity to make a verbal presentation applies only to applications that are 
determined by the Planning and Building Standards Committee.  Separate 
arrangements apply to applications that are determined by Council and applications 
that are subject to review by the Local Review Body.      

1. Speakers 

Public speaking at the Planning and Building Standards Committee is at the 
discretion of the Chairman of the Committee. However, under normal circumstances 
the following Groups will be allowed to make verbal representations in respect of 
each planning application: 

 Up to 3 objectors, who have already provided written representations during 
the course of the application process (Group 1) 

 Up to 3 supporters, including the applicant or his/her agent who have already 
provided written representations during the course of the application process 
(Group 2). 

 Any Member of the Council representing the Ward within which the application 
lies (Group 3). 

Only one speaker per household will be permitted.

2. Registration 

Parties will be advised of the opportunity to speak through acknowledgement of 
application and acknowledgement of representation letters.  

Any supporter or objector who may wish to speak at Committee is required to 
register that interest in writing with the Planning case officer.  Anyone registering 
such an interest will subsequently be notified when a particular application is due to 
be considered by Committee.  Notification will normally be given one week before 
the date of the meeting. Parties will then be asked to re-affirm their wish to speak at 
the meeting to the Committee Clerk no later than 12.00 noon on the working day 
preceding the meeting. 

Any Member, who is not a member of the Committee, wishing to speak at the 
Committee should register that request with the Committee Clerk no later than 
12.00 noon on the working day preceding the meeting. 

Where more than the permitted number of speakers have expressed an interest in 
speaking it is for parties to decide in advance of the Committee meeting who should 

8Page 8



speak.  If agreement cannot be reached it shall be at the sole discretion of the 
Chairman to decide who should speak.  

3. Time Allocation 

Each Group of speakers (Group 1, Group 2 and Group 3) will be allowed up to six 
minutes in which to make their representations. Groups will be encouraged to 
nominate one speaker.  Where this is not possible it will be for each group of 
speakers to decide in advance how the permitted time is allocated between 
individual speakers.  

The allocation of time should be notified to the Committee Clerk prior to the 
commencement of the meeting.  The allocation of time will be monitored by the 
Committee Clerk, and will be strictly enforced. 

4. Content of Presentations 

Presentations should focus on matters that have already been raised in writing.  
Presentations should not introduce new matters.  Speakers should ensure that their 
statement relates only to relevant planning policies and material considerations 
directly related to the application under consideration.  Speakers will give their 
presentations to the Committee from a lectern in the Council Chamber.  During 
presentations reference can be made to a maximum of 2 visual aids 
(photomontages, photographs, maps, plans, etc) that have been lodged properly 
with the Council in respect of the application being considered and a minimum of 8 
days in advance of the Committee.  No other audio visual material or handouts will 
be permitted.

Guidance on what does and does not constitute a material planning consideration is 
available at the undernoted link.

http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2009/07/03153034/11

The Chairman may intervene to curb irrelevant or inappropriate comments, 
repetition of points made by an earlier speaker, or deviation from the matter being 
discussed. Direct comments or criticisms of a personal nature against any individual 
involved in the planning process will not be permitted.   

5. Questions

There shall be no questioning or cross examination of any parties other than by the 
Committee Chairman who may question a speaker in order to clarify points he/she 
has made.  At the conclusion of their presentation parties shall return to the public 
gallery and shall take no further part in the Committee proceedings.  

6. Order of Speakers

Following a brief introduction of the item by the Chairman of Committee the order of 
speaking shall be as follows:

 Elected Member(s) who are not members of the Committee.
 Parties objecting to the application.
 Parties supporting the application.

9Page 9



Officers will present the item and their recommendation at the conclusion of the oral 
presentations following which the Members of the Committee will debate and 
determine the application.  

7. Deferred Items 

If an item has been deferred for a site visit or other reason, parties will not normally 
be invited to make further presentations unless the proposed development has 
changed significantly, and a further round of consultation has taken place. 

8. Behaviour at Planning and Building Standards Committee Meetings 

All those in attendance at Committee meetings must be aware that the purpose of 
the meeting is for Members of the Committee to make decisions on planning 
applications. Public Speaking procedures are intended solely to assist this process 
within the guidance set out above. 

Any unreasonable or disruptive behaviour will lead to the removal of those persons 
from the Chamber and/or the suspension of the meeting. 

10Page 10



Planning and Building Standards Committee

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29 FEBRUARY 2016

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

ITEM: REFERENCE NUMBER:  1. 15/01155/FUL
2. 15/01156/FUL

OFFICER: Julie Hayward
WARD: Selkirkshire
PROPOSAL: 1. Erection of 39 dwellinghouses, 2 flats and  

associated infrastructure (Phase 1)
2. Erection of 10 dwellinghouses, 2 flats and 

associated infrastructure (Phase 2)
SITE: Land North of 24 Sergeants Park Newtown St Boswells
APPLICANT: Queensberry Properties Ltd
AGENT: Aitken Turnbull Architects Ltd

SITE DESCRIPTION

This is a combined report for two full planning applications for residential 
development within Newtown St Boswells.  The combined site is 1.74 hectares in 
size and located on the north western edge of Newtown St Boswells.  The site 
comprises of two overgrown agricultural fields.  The land slopes down west to east 
towards the King George V playing field, bowling green and primary school.  and 
Glenburnie and Sprouston Burns and associated woodland lie to the north and north 
east and there are fields to the west.  The residential area of Sergeant’s Park is to 
the south comprising of two-storey, semi-detached houses.  The access to the site is 
between nos 20 and 22 Sergeant’s Park.  The site is within the Eildon and Leaderfoot 
National Scenic Area.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Two applications proposing, in effect, a single housing development are considered 
in this report: Application 15/01155/FUL is for the erection of 39 dwellinghouses and 
2 flats (Phase 1) and application 15/01156/FUL is for 10 dwellinghouses and 2 flats 
(Phase 2) making a total of 53 units.

The existing access on to Sergeant’s Park would be upgraded to serve the site.  The 
proposal is for semi-detached and terraced, single, one-and-three quarter and two 
storey dwellinghouses with two and three bedrooms.  Seven house types are 
proposed arranged around the access road, with four units in the centre of the site.  
The walls would be blockwork with a dry dash render finish, some with timber 
boarding and porches, and there would be cast stone surrounds to the doors and 
windows.  The roofs would be grey concrete tiles.  

A SUDS pond and car parking are proposed at the entrance of the site, with a 
parking courtyard screened by units 1 to 3.  The existing footpath along the southern 
boundary of the site with the rear of the properties in Sergeant’s Park would be 
retained and upgraded and a footpath link would be provided on the eastern 

1Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



Planning and Building Standards Committee

boundary to the playing field and on the western boundary to the field and expansion 
area.  A 10m buffer zone along the eastern boundary of the site and a 5 – 10m zone 
along the northern boundary would be kept free of development to protect the 
existing mature trees.  A turning area would be located in the north west corner of the 
site, with a possible future link through to the expansion site, and a total of 76 car 
parking spaces in Phase 1 and 20 in phase 2 are proposed

The housing would be affordable housing built by the applicant and managed by 
Eildon Housing Association.

Foul water drainage would be to the main Scottish Water sewer.  A SUDS scheme 
would deal with the surface water drainage.

PLANNING HISTORY

07/00002/FUL: Erection of 36 dwellinghouses and associated parking.  Approved by 
Planning and Building Standards Committee 9th March 2009.  Awaiting completion of 
Section 75 Legal Agreement.

REPRESENTATION SUMMARY

Twelve representations have been received in respect of both applications.  These 
are available to view in full on the Public Access system and the following planning 
issues have been raised:

 The existing foul water system is inadequate and overloaded and the 
proposed development would put more pressure on this system.

 Inadequate surface water drainage and flood risk.

 Increased traffic will cause congestion in an already busy street causing road 
safety issues, especially adjacent the school and play area.  On-street 
parking already causes problems and the road and inadequate junction 
cannot cater with additional traffic.  Sergeant’s Park is on a steep incline and 
may become a danger to pedestrians and children during the winter.

 The proposed access to the site is not wide enough.

 The new road may be extended towards Green Wells creating a rat run to 
avoid the village.

 A roundabout should be constructed at the junction of Sprouston Road and 
Sergeant’s Park adjacent to the Primary School.  This junction is too narrow 
for the existing volume of traffic, with on-street parking.  Sprouston Road is a 
20 mph zone, showing this is a vulnerable area for pedestrians.  Additional 
crossings or traffic control would be required.

 The roads are not wide enough for construction traffic, affecting the health 
and safety of residents.

 Noise nuisance from additional traffic.

2Page 12



Planning and Building Standards Committee

 Inadequate parking is proposed within the site which will cause parking to 
overflow into Sergeant’s Park, which is already under pressure from people 
parking on the road.

 Smell nuisance from the SUDS pond.

 No play facilities are proposed, adding pressure to the existing play area. 

 The right of way to the rear of Sergeant’s Park should be accommodated 
within the development.

 Impact on water supply.

 Detrimental to residential amenity.

 The site will be enhanced with uninterrupted views of the Eildons.

 Access to the site should be considered within the context of the village 
expansion land, within the same ownership, keeping a safer village structure.

APPLICANTS’ SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

 Drainage Report October 2015
 Design and Access Statement
 Transport Technical Note January 2016
 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 2015
 Landscape and Visual Impact Statement February 2016

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

Scottish Borders Council Consultees

Roads Planning Service: When considering the overall impact of both these current 
applications on the surrounding road network, there are three aspects to consider:

 The immediate impact at the junctions between the site and the junction of the 
B6398 and the A68.  

 Transport Scotland has not requested any alterations to the two junctions 
onto the A68 in respect of the current planning applications.  However, when 
considering the overall development of Newtown St. Boswells as per the 
Council’s Local Development Plan (LDP), a new roundabout will be required 
to replace the existing junction arrangement at the southerly end of the 
village.  All development within Newtown St. Boswells will benefit and should 
therefore be included when considering whether or not any contributions are 
required towards the cost of this roundabout.  It would seem fair and 
reasonable that the extent of any such contribution be proportional to the 
extent of traffic generation for the various proposals compared with the overall 
traffic generation for the expansion of the village as a whole.  While a 
contribution towards any roundabout at the southerly A68 junction is strongly 
desirable and although it is referred to in the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance for the Development Framework for the village, there is no policy 

3Page 13



Planning and Building Standards Committee

requiring the roundabout provision and there is no funding mechanism or 
timescale for funding and provision in place.

 The effect of the traffic from these proposals on the Central Borders road 
network in line with the Central Borders Traffic Model.  Following on from the 
Reporter’s decision on the Meigle Row site in Clovenfords, the requirement 
and extent of contributions in respect of the Central Borders Traffic Model is 
currently under review and it would be inappropriate to seek any contributions 
at this time.  That said, after some consideration, it is deemed the impact will 
be fairly minimal in respect of these proposals.

The following matters must be addressed to the Council’s satisfaction via the 
planning process:

1. The roads within the development shall require road construction consent 
(RCC) including the proposed servicing routes.

2. Appropriate SUDS must be provided and details of these must be submitted 
for approval and approved prior to works commencing on site.

3. Where any SUDS are outwith the public road boundary and are to be the 
maintenance responsibility of SBC, an appropriate legal agreement must be 
in place to ensure satisfactory access is available.

4. Confirmation must be provided that the applicant can provide the access off 
Sergeant’s Park, including any associated embankments, within land they 
control. This is due to the apparent overlap of the site with the garden 
ground of no. 20 and the level differences in the vicinity.

5. Traffic figures for the junction of Sergeants Park, Sprouston Road and 
Glenburn Avenue are required.  These will determine what improvements 
are required at this location, as highlighted within the development brief for 
the site.  

6. The parking levels for this section of the site are inadequate; 96 spaces are 
required for the overall development.

7. The existing path along the south east boundary of the site (1st Phase), and 
towards the school/play area, should be upgraded.

8. The existing road gully on Sergeant’s Park must be relocated outwith the 
entrance bellmouth.

Re-consultation: Whilst I welcome the provision of the 4 additional parking spaces, I 
have concerns regarding the loss of the pedestrian link adjacent to plot 21. Whilst 
this link may not appear to go anywhere at the moment, it will be critical for a link 
through to the next field as and when it is developed.   If the link is not provided for in 
this phase, it will be lost in the future.  It also results in the swept path for the roundel 
area being very close to the gable of the wall.  As well as providing pedestrian routes, 
the footway will also provide some form of protection for the building.  The applicant 
should be asked to reconsider how to accommodate the additional parking.

Re-consultation: Whilst I am pleased the footpath link has now been provided, there 
are still issues regarding the parking within both phases of the development. In 
particular this relates to disabled bays. 

Re-consultation: There are still issues with the parking levels.  Whilst I welcome the 
provision of dedicated disabled parking for the relevant properties, there will still be a 
requirement for disabled parking for visitors.  As such, we shall still require the 
provision of at least 4 disabled bays throughout the development which will be 
adopted as public. 

Director of Education and Lifelong Learning: No response.

4Page 14



Planning and Building Standards Committee

Housing Strategy: The development of this allocated housing site for affordable 
housing has been identified for future anticipated action for some years.  This has 
been identified and prioritised as an affordable housing site in several Strategic 
Housing Investment Plans and is included as such within the current SBC SHIP 
2015/20, which was signed off by Council in October 2014 prior to submission to the 
Scottish Government.  The development of this site is also reflected in the current 
Strategic Local Programme Agreement 2016/20 between SG/RSLs/SBC for the 
purposes of programming Scottish Government Affordable Housing Investment 
Programme [grant] funding.  The Scottish Government are aware of the emergence 
of this project following years of uncertainty and have indicated willingness to be 
flexible in provision of grants to enable timeous development of the site. 

It is anticipated that the Joint Venture Company, Queensberry, would develop the 
site, with Eildon HA proposing to enter into a design and build contract with the 
developer and that the homes built would be let at social housing rent levels.
In addition, Eildon HA has also provided Bridge Homes the opportunity to acquire 4 
of the 53 units for mid-market rent, subject to costs being clarified and acceptable 
and viable for Bridge Homes.  Houses provided for mid-market rents are considered 
as being "affordable housing" for the purposes of the Councils Affordable Housing 
Policy.  

Environmental Health: This application has the potential to affect nearby occupiers.  
A condition requiring the submission of a Construction Method Statement and an 
informative on hours of working during construction are requested.

Development Negotiator: This application comprises housing units which fully 
comply with Scottish Borders Council Affordable Housing Policy and would generate 
the following Development Contribution requirements: a commuted sum towards the 
provision and maintenance of additional play equipment and supporting ancillary 
infrastructures at a play facility outwith the site would be sought at a rate of £500 per 
dwelling unit.  If an alternative facility is not identified for expansion, then it will be 
necessary for an appropriate infrastructure to be provided on-site, the factoring costs 
being conferred to incoming residents.

Landscape Architect: The site is currently made up of two agricultural fields on the 
north west edge of Newtown St Boswells.  Immediately to the north is the wooded 
Glenburnie Burn valley which provides a strong woodland backdrop and sense of 
enclosure to the fields immediately to the south.  The eastern boundary lies adjacent 
to King George V playing field and wider open space.  The southern boundary is 
delineated by a mixture of native and non-native hedging on the outside of timber 
fencing to the adjacent houses.  There is a mixed native hedge along the western 
boundary, the hedge following the original boundary of the northernmost field.  The 
site slopes from the western boundary to the east (132m AOD towards the north west 
corner while approximately 117m AOD) towards the south east corner.

The site lies within the Eildon and Leaderfoot National Scenic Area that wraps 
around the west, north and east sides of Newtown St Boswells.  The site lies within a 
River valley Landscape type described in the Borders Landscape Assessment (BLA) 
as 29 (Lower Tweed): Lowland valley with farmland and is located on the outer edge 
of this broad lowland valley type landscape.

 A Planning Brief for the whole (bigger) site was approved in February 2006.  The 
approved development vision for this site is: “A high quality residential environment is 
to be created within the site, with attention to the appropriate design and scale of 

5Page 15



Planning and Building Standards Committee

buildings and landscape fit including edge treatment, befitting its location as an edge 
of settlement development within the National Scenic Area.  Suitable pedestrian 
connections should be provided linking the site to the centre of the settlement and to 
the wider path network”’  Among Urban Design/Conservation/Cultural Heritage 
issues it requires “Careful attention to be given to the edge treatment of the site 
including appropriate planting, hedging and pedestrian access linkages”.

The site is relatively well screened from immediate surrounding areas, the line of 
mature trees at the top of the playing field embankment providing valuable structure 
and screening from the playing fields, school and bowling green to the east, while the 
mature woodland along the Glenburnie Burn provides a backdrop and containment to 
the northern end of the development when viewed from elevated locations to the 
north, such as from Eildon North Hill.

A basic Landscape and Visual Impact Statement (LVIS) was recently submitted.  
Ideally the LVIS should inform the site layout identifying issues that require 
mitigation.  The photos are not of good quality however it does demonstrate that from 
the chosen viewpoints the site is not highly visible.  Eildon North Hill is one of the 
potentially sensitive receptors but visibility of the site from successively more 
elevated points on the footpath up the north eastern flank is limited with the mature 
woodland strip along Glenburnie Burn providing significant screening of the site.  The 
southern section of the western boundary will be visible but the visual impact of the 
houses along this boundary will be no greater than of the existing houses to the 
south which already form a very abrupt edge to the village. 

The density of residential units on the site means that there is virtually no ability to 
integrate the development into the wider landscape; any landscape screening to the 
western and northern boundaries relies on off-site trees and hedgerows and should 
these die or be removed there will be significant associated visual impacts.  While I 
acknowledge that the land immediately to the west is zoned for expansion, I would 
suggest that this scheme, with no planting proposed whatsoever along the western 
edge, makes no attempt at a “landscape fit”.  Within the development, apart from the 
area devoted to the SUDS, there is virtually no planting proposed with only a total of 
9 trees contributing to the streetscape and a further 25 within back gardens, not 
enough to achieve “a high quality residential environment”.  If the number of units 
were reduced to more closely reflect the proposed and surrounding house densities, 
as detailed in the Planning Brief, there would undoubtedly be more room for a quality 
streetscape to be achieved.  This could include a central ‘green’ in place of units 38, 
39, 44 and 45 which would be beneficial to all the units that overlook this area or are 
accessed through it.  

The proposal lacks information about how level changes along the western boundary 
will be treated.  The 11 car parking spaces in the south western corner of the site, 
which are right on the boundary, will be as much as 2.8m lower than the existing 
ground level, while the parking court and turning area to the north of Units 20 and 21 
is as much as 3m lower than existing ground level along this boundary.  No sections 
have been produced to illustrate and analyse proposed level changes and how they 
will be achieved.  This is particularly relevant along this western boundary as the 
development is tight up against this boundary and the existing hedge which is shown 
outwith the site forms an important screen locally between the site and the adjacent 
land.  The significant level changes along this western boundary will affect the water 
table to the extent that the existing hedge may not survive.   The lack of any space 
for a replacement hedge or any edge treatment to this boundary is a real concern.

6Page 16



Planning and Building Standards Committee

Despite the SUDS detention basin potentially providing some green space at the 
entrance to the site, I have concerns about how this area will be treated, as it should 
be part of the public open space.  A design statement and strategy for the detention 
basin should be developed, including proposed levels and a detailed planting 
scheme that could be used to enhance the basin as a local amenity.

Given that there is substantial screening, in the form of mature woodland belts, to the 
northern and eastern edges of the site, I do not think that a development in this 
location will have a significant detrimental impact on the character of the wider 
landscape or on quality of the NSA.

However I do not consider that any attempt has been made to integrate the 
development into its immediate landscape.   While there will, in the longer term, need 
to be a very much more robust landscape structure to the proposed western edge to 
the village, in the short term the western boundary of this site will be very exposed.  
No attempt has been made to address the issue of “landscape fit” required in the 
Planning Brief for this site.  At the proposed unit density there is no opportunity for 
any hierarchy of open space which is regarded as central to creating the character of 
a neighbourhood.  A fundamental rethink of the density would allow "placemaking" to 
be central to any amended site layout considerations. 

In addition to the above, as a condition of any consent, we will require detail on how 
proposed changes of level will be achieved, detail of how hard landscaping will be 
utilised to create a surfaces hierarchy and a detailed planting scheme to help reduce 
the impact of the walls and timber fencing in the streetscape.

This proposal sacrifices the principle of a public/ private hierarchy of open space to 
maximise the number of units, and this reduces the ability to create a development 
with a clear sense of character and identity.  The new road layout creates real 
possibilities for public open space but this has been sacrificed for increased numbers 
of units.  A reduction in the number of units as suggested above would allow all my 
concerns to be addressed.

Rights of Way Officer: There is one claimed right of way/core path on this area of 
land, namely BE180/CP209.  This passes along the south-west side of the 
development; currently a gap of 1m width shown on the plan which is insufficient 
width to accommodate a path.  A gap of 3m should be left to accommodate the path, 
which should be made up and surfaced to a width of 2m and the gate at the south-
west corner of the site should be replaced with a multi-use metal gate.

A contribution is required (a nominal sum of £16,400 which is £400 per dwelling) from 
the developer for the development, continued maintenance and promotion of a path 
network around Newtown St Boswells and linkages to neighbouring villages and 
places of interest. This contribution would be used to fund the production of 
promotional literature as well as drainage works, bridge maintenance, path surfacing 
and annual maintenance work on the wider Core and Promoted Paths Network, 
which would thus be strengthened through such a contribution from this 
development. 

Flood Protection Officer: In terms of information that this Council has concerning 
flood risk to this site, I would state that The Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal 
Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third generation flood mapping” prepared by 
SEPA indicates that the site is not at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 
in 200 years.  That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any one year.

7Page 17



Planning and Building Standards Committee

As this site is not indicated to lie within the 1 in 200 year flood extent, I would have no 
objections to this proposal on the grounds of flood risk.  I would, however, require the 
detailed design of the SUDS system to be submitted for approval by Scottish Borders 
Council.

Ecology Officer: I am satisfied with the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) 
carried out by Tweed Ecology.  The site consists of poor semi-improved grassland.  
Hedgerows on the western boundary are species-poor; there is a line of mature lime 
trees along the eastern boundary with scattered hawthorn and hairy dog-rose.  Along 
the northern field (15/01156/FUL) is an overgrown hedge on the eastern boundary 
with recent broad-leaved woodland planting.  This plantation also includes an open 
area of species-rich unimproved neutral grassland.  On the northern boundary is an 
area of mixed woodland plantation including beech, oak and sitka spruce.  To the 
north-east of the site is an area of semi-natural woodland associated with the 
Sprouston Burn and Glenburnie Burn.  The burns drain directly into the River Tweed 
SAC/SSSI.

Protected species interest identified includes badger activity along the northern 
boundary and an outlier sett (located beyond potential disturbance distance from the 
development).  Badger activity is likely to occur across the site and measures will be 
required to safeguard badgers during construction.  Supplementary surveys for 
badger will also be required 3 months prior to construction.

Three mature trees were identified as having moderate-high potential to support bat 
roosts.  My understanding is that these trees are to be retained.  If they are to be 
felled or managed, they will require a bat survey prior to any activity being carried 
out.  The report also identifies mitigation to protect bat and badger interest through a 
sensitive lighting scheme during construction.

The site includes habitats capable of supporting a range of farmland birds.  Mitigation 
measures are identified in the PEA.  Mitigation will be required for badger breeding 
birds and to address any potential impacts on the River Tweed SAC.

Recommendations are made in the PEA to protect and enhance hedgerow and 
woodland boundary features.  These features should be included in a Landscape and 
Habitat Management Plan.  This should also include habitat measures associated 
with the SUDS feature, compensatory planting and enhancement of hedgerows 
along the western and eastern boundaries and also reinforcement of the northern 
boundary through a native broadleaf planting scheme.  I note the recommendation 
for a 15m buffer area (from semi-natural broad-leaved woodland).

Statutory Consultees 

Transport Scotland: The Director does not propose to advise against the granting of 
permission.

Scottish Natural Heritage: Both of the proposed applications lie within the Eildon 
and Leaderfoot National Scenic Area, which is an area designated as one of 
Scotland’s finest landscapes.  The sites form part of a wider proposed extension to 
Newtown St Boswells as set out in Scottish Border Council’s Proposed Development 
Plan.

We consider the applications are lacking in information with regards to their role in 
maintaining or enhancing the qualities of the NSA and their role in addressing the 

8Page 18



Planning and Building Standards Committee

aims of the Newtown St Boswells Settlement statement and the approved Planning 
Brief for the site.  

Given their position on the current edge of the settlement, and in areas that may be 
visible from the popular peaks of the Eildon Hills, we would advise that further 
information is sought from the applicant with regards: 

 the siting and design principles of the development and; 
 the existing landscape features to be retained on the site and the detail of any 

proposed landscaping and night time lighting. 

In particular we would highlight the importance of achieving a co-ordinated and well-
designed urban edge that integrates built form with its surrounding rural context. 
However, due the specific location of the proposed developments within the NSA, 
and within a wider yet to be developed allocation as set out in the Proposed Plan, 
SNH does not wish to object to this application on the grounds of this lack of 
information or the likelihood that it would affect the objectives or overall integrity of 
the NSA. 

Nonetheless, we would advise that the Council secures appropriate information 
regarding the standards of detailed aspects of siting and design, landscaping, night-
time lighting and settlement edge design, in order to allow full understanding of the 
effects arising from this proposal.  

We would also advise that the development proposals submitted should be 
considered in relation to the role they may play in providing connections to existing 
public paths and future green network development, for example along the Sprouston 
Burn, which is likely to be important to supporting a larger population in the area and 
providing an appropriate setting for the future phases of settlement expansion 
allocated in the proposed Local Development Plan.  We note that the 
pedestrian/cycle link that is set out in the Planning Brief is not proposed within either 
of these two applications.

The proposals could affect the qualifying features of the River Tweed Special Area of 
Conservation.  In our view, it is unlikely that the proposals will have a significant 
effect on any qualifying interests either directly or indirectly.  An appropriate 
assessment is therefore not required. 

SEPA:

15/01155/FUL: We request that a condition is attached to the consent requiring a 
finalised scheme for sustainable drainage (SUDS) surface water treatment to be 
submitted.  If this is not attached, then please consider this representation as an 
objection.  A well designed SUDS scheme can form part of a wider green network, 
contribute to the amenity of the site and promote biodiversity.  

The SUDS treatment train should be followed which uses a logical sequence of 
SUDS facilities in series allowing run-off to pass through several different SUDS 
before reaching the receiving waterbody.  We note that the Site Plan details that two 
levels of SUDS are proposed for the development.  We welcome this as the 
development forms part of a larger two phase development (>50 units) and as such 
will require two levels of treatment. 

9Page 19



Planning and Building Standards Committee

We note that the proposed development will be utilising the public sewer for foul 
drainage. Therefore, we have no further comment to make on this issue and Scottish 
Water should be consulted to ensure there is sufficient capacity. 

15/01156/FUL:  We object to this planning application on the grounds of a lack of 
information relating to flood risk.  We have reviewed the information provided and this 
shows the site lies adjacent to the 0.5% annual probability (1:200) flood extent of the 
Glenburnie Burn and as such is potentially at medium to high risk of flooding.  This 
section of the watercourse is at the upper limit of the modelled extent and is also 
within a wooded area where topographical information may be less accurate leading 
to greater uncertainty within the flood map. 

Information should be provided to show the site to be sufficiently higher than the 
watercourse to be free from flood risk.  This should include topographical information 
with existing and proposed site levels and cross sections of the watercourse.  
Photographs may also be useful and any other information on historic flood levels if 
available. 

Re-consultation: Following provision of topographic information showing the 
existing site to be over 3m above the Sprouston Burn and proposed site levels and 
finished floor levels to be raised further still, we are now in a position to remove our 
objection to this application on flood risk grounds. 

We are aware of flooding issues downstream on the Sprouston Burn and as such 
surface water runoff should be restricted to pre-development rates.  Greenfield rates 
and method of attenuation should be agreed with Scottish Borders Council. 

Newtown and Eildon Community Council: 

 The increased volumes of car movements are likely to create a safety hazard 
at the bottom junction and at the narrow entrance to the site.  Currently the 
road width is often reduced by street parking and the additional traffic 
movements will aggravate the situation.  Additional traffic control measures 
should be provided to ensure safety at the busy junction to the school, 
bowling club, Glenfield Avenue and Sprouston Road and the existing road 
congestion caused by parked cars could be alleviated by the provision of an 
additional off-street car parking space nearby.

 There is a history of serious flooding onto the football pitch, bowling green 
and school playground from this site.  It is therefore critical that the SUDS 
pond capacity is adequate to prevent overflow.  Safety around the perimeter 
of the SUDS pond and smells are issues.

 Blockages/overflows occur when heavy rain occurs suggesting that the sewer 
drainage could be working at maximum capacity.

 The proposed fence to the rear of Sergeant’s Park along the footpath should 
have foliage planted to soften the appearance and a small number of car 
parking spaces are required for walkers.

 Access from the school to the new development is required and onto the right 
of way.  Improvements to the right of way where it enters the Glen to the west 
of the development and on the path going down into the Glen and the steps 
leading out of the Glen the other side are required.  

 It would be preferred that no separate play facilities be provided but for the 

10Page 20



Planning and Building Standards Committee

funds to be used to enhance the existing children's play area adjacent to the 
bowling club where there is space available to do this.

 With the increasing ageing population the village will need more sheltered 
housing in the future and it is disappointing to see none in this proposed 
development.

 The examples of the house designs show external staircases leading up to 
first floor properties with no shelter from the weather.

 The impact on the available view of the Eildons from existing properties.

 There is a need to mitigate the impact of construction traffic on residents and 
roads.

Scottish Water: No response.

Other Consultees

None.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES:

SES Plan Strategic Development Plan 2013

Policy 1B: The Spatial Strategy: Development Principles

Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan Adopted 2011 

Principle 1 – Sustainability
G1: Quality Standards for New Development
G4: Flooding
G5: Developer Contributions
G6: Developer Contributions related to Railway Reinstatement
NE1: International Nature Conservation Sites
NE3: Local Biodiversity
NE4: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
EP1: National Scenic Areas
H1: Affordable Housing
H2: Protection of Residential Amenity
H3: Land Use Allocations
Inf3: Road Adoption Standards
Inf4: Parking Provisions and Standards
Inf5: Waste Water Treatment Standards
Inf6: Sustainable Urban Drainage
Inf11: Developments that Generate Travel Demand

Proposed Local Development Plan 2013

PMD1: Sustainability
PMD2: Quality Standards
PMD3: Land Use Allocations
HD1: Affordable and Special Housing Needs
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity

11Page 21



Planning and Building Standards Committee

EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species
EP3: Local Biodiversity
EP4: National Scenic Areas
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
IS2: Developer Contributions
IS3: Developer Contributions Related to the Borders Railway
IS6: Road Adoption Standards
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards
IS8: Flooding
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage

OTHER PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Placemaking and Design January 2010
Guidance on Householder Development July 2006
Landscape and Development March 2008
Newtown St Boswells Development Framework February 2012
Affordable Housing January 2015
Developer Contributions April 2015
Biodiversity December 2005
Planning Brief Sergeants Park II Newtown St Boswells February 2006

KEY PLANNING ISSUES:

The principal planning issues with this application can be summarised as follows:

 Whether the proposal would have an adverse impact on the National Scenic 
Area, landscape or visual amenities of the area.

 Whether the proposal would harm the residential amenity of neighbouring 
dwellings or conflict with the established land use of the area.

 Whether the proposals are acceptable in terms of parking, access and impacts 
on road safety.  

 Whether adequate drainage and servicing can be achieved and whether the site 
is prone to flooding.

ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION:

Planning Policy

The site is situated within the development boundary for Newtown St Boswells within 
the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan Adopted 2011 and is allocated for 
housing (ENT15B: Sergeants Park II) with an indicative capacity of 30 units on a 2 
hectare site.  Policy H3 of the Local Plan applies, which states that development will 
be approved in principle for the land uses allocated on the Land Use Proposals 
tables and maps in accordance with any approved planning brief.  This allocation is 
also included within the Proposed Local Development Plan 2013 (policy PMD3 
applies).

The Planning Brief for the site was approved in 2006 and sets out the main 
opportunities and constraints relating to the site and creates an outline framework for 
its future development.

12Page 22



Planning and Building Standards Committee

The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance: Newtown St Boswells 
Development Framework February 2012 sets out the Council’s approach to the 
successful development and regeneration of Newtown St Boswells with particular 
consideration to the relationship between the new development areas and the 
existing village centre.  Figure 1 shows the main proposed areas for development and 
shows the site as an Adopted Local Plan housing site.  The proposal would not 
conflict with the aims of the SPG.

Layout and Design

Policy G1 of the Local Plan requires all development to be of high quality in 
accordance with sustainability principles, designed to fit in with Borders townscapes 
and to integrate with its landscape surroundings.  The aims and criteria of this policy 
are reiterated and expanded upon in policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan.

The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance: Placemaking and Design January 
2010 contains advice on developments of 50 or more houses on or near the 
settlement edge.  The Planning Brief for the site requires issues such as planting, 
lighting, retention of existing vegetation, services and levels be considered in an 
integrative manner.  A high quality of design and materials are required.

A Design Statement has been submitted as part of the application.

This site is located in a sensitive location at the edge of Newtown St Boswells within 
the Eildon and Leaderfoot National Scenic Area and would represent a significant 
addition to the village.  This development also represents one of the first detailed 
proposals for housing development within Newtown St Boswells and the site is 
adjacent to the western expansion area and so would set a precedent for future 
developments within this allocation.  It is therefore vital that a high level of design is 
achieved and a development that integrates well into the landscape that allows a 
sensitive transition between the built environment and rural area.

Discussions have taken place with the agent regarding the layout and the revised 
proposal is now considered to be acceptable.  It is accepted that this is a difficult site 
to develop due to its shape, topography and existing trees/vegetation and the easy 
option would be to have a linear form of development similar to that previously 
approved in 2009.  The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking 
and Design and the Newtown St Boswells Development Framework have been 
adopted since then and so it was considered that a higher standard of layout and 
design were now required.  

The access to the site is narrow, between two existing properties in Sergeants Park.  
This opens out to a bungalow and pair of semi-detached, one-and-three quarter 
storey houses on the western side and an area of open space incorporating the 
SUDS detention basin on the eastern side.   A pair of semi-detached houses and a 
two storey building containing two flats front this open space and this provides an 
attractive arrival point.  

A row of houses would be situated adjacent to the western boundary.  The estate 
road would loop around four houses within the centre of the site, which breaks up the 
long vista and avoids a linear development.  The majority of the houses front the 
public realm providing a street through the development.  There would be ten houses 
on the northern edge of the site and two flats.  Parking would either be within 
curtilages or in parking courtyards and these have been designed to be screened by 
the houses so that parking does not form a dominant feature within the development.  

13Page 23



Planning and Building Standards Committee

The buildings fronting onto the road would be linked by walls rather than high timber 
fences.

It is considered that the houses would relate to the public realm, fronting the road and 
framing the street, whilst varied building lines would add interest to the development.  
The layout of the road provides a variety of views and vistas throughout the site as 
well as providing natural traffic calming.  

The allocation for this site is 30 units but the proposal is for a total of 49 houses and 
4 flats.  Normally a lower density development would be appropriate for an edge of 
settlement site such as this.  However, the higher density has resulted in an 
improved design and layout over the approved scheme, which is more consistent 
with Designing Streets and, as the development would be for affordable housing to 
be managed by a housing association, a higher density is considered to be 
acceptable.  A condition would ensure that the housing is restricted to affordable 
housing that meets the Council’s definition.

The existing public right of way along the southern boundary of the site would be 
retained and upgraded and pedestrian links are proposed to the playing fields to the 
east and to the future housing development to the west.  It is considered that 
proposed layout provides a logical sequence of streets and courtyards, creating a 
permeable development and the proposed number of houses and flats can be 
adequately accommodated within the site without it constituting overdevelopment.

Newtown St Boswells is characterised by a mix of housing types.  The village core 
and Sprouston Road has traditional stone and slate properties whereas the 
surrounding streets are predominantly two storey, modern, rendered houses.  

The proposal is for seven house types of single, one-and-three-quarter and two 
storey.  The houses would have dry dash render and vertical timber boarding for the 
walls and grey roof tiles.  The designs include vertically proportioned timber windows, 
front wings, timber porches and pitched roofed dormer windows.  

The designs are considered to be acceptable for the locality.  The various designs, 
heights and building lines would add interest to the development.  The wall-to-roof 
and wall-to-window ratios are adequate.  The designs are considered to be simple in 
form and appropriate in scale, without the development appearing too cluttered, and 
would provide variety throughout the development.  

No play area is shown on the proposed layout.  The nearest play park is in Sprouston 
Road adjacent to the primary school and within walking distance of the development, 
accessed by the upgraded right of way.  A developer contribution towards the 
upgrading of the play area would be secured by a Section 69 Agreement. 

The layout has been designed so that the houses will front onto the road with minimal 
front gardens.  Walls are proposed for the front boundaries of properties and for 
garden boundaries adjacent to the road rather than high fences.  These would be 
1.8m high and rendered and would provide an attractive and continuous frontage to 
the development.  Rear gardens would be enclosed by 1.8m high timber fences to 
provide private garden ground.  Planting will be required along the site boundaries to 
soften the impact of the development when viewed from outwith the site.

A 1.8m fence was originally proposed around the detention basin but this was 
thought to result in an unattractive entrance to the site and so the fence has been 
removed.  The agent has advised that the basin would normally be dry but less 

14Page 24



Planning and Building Standards Committee

obtrusive fencing could be erected if necessary on safety grounds and the 
surrounding open space would be landscaped.

It is considered that the layout, design and materials are now acceptable and the 
application can be supported.

Impact on the National Scenic Area, Landscape and Visual Amenities

Policy G1 of the Local Plan requires appropriate boundary treatments and hard and 
soft landscaping works to help integration with the development’s surroundings.  
Policy EP4 of the Proposed Local Development Plan 2013 states that development 
that may affect National Scenic Areas will only be permitted where the objectives of 
the designation and overall landscape value of the site and its surroundings will not 
be compromised and any significant adverse effects on the qualities for which the 
site or its surrounds have been designated are clearly outweighed by social or 
economic benefits of national importance.  Policy NE4 of the Local Plan seeks to 
protect trees, woodlands and hedgerows from development.

The Planning Brief requires careful attention to the edge treatment of the site 
including appropriate planting, hedging and pedestrian linkages.  Buffers are required 
along the northern (20m) and eastern (10m) boundaries to protect the existing tree 
belts and landscaping is required within these buffers, with a tree belt within the 
northern buffer to supplement existing screening within the National Scenic Area.  
Existing hedges should be retained and supplemented.

The site plan includes the two buffers, based on the root protection areas of the 
existing trees, though part of the northern buffer is within residential curtilages and is 
referred to as a “no-build zone”.  No detailed planting scheme has been provided, 
though existing trees would be retained.

Scottish Natural Heritage has not objected to the proposal on grounds of their likely 
impact on the Eildon and Leaderfoot NSA, but requested further information to 
ensure the delivery of appropriate standards of design and landscape integration of 
this development within the National Scenic Area.   

Additional information has been requested from the agent regarding the siting and 
design principles of the development, the existing landscape features to be retained 
on the site and the detail of any proposed landscaping and night time lighting to 
demonstrate that the development would achieve a co-ordinated and well-designed 
urban edge that integrates built form with its surrounding rural context, to satisfy the 
concerns of Scottish Natural Heritage.  A brief Landscape and Visual Assessment 
has now been submitted.  This concludes that near and mid distance views of the 
site are limited due to vegetation and the intervening landform; the tree belt along 
Sprouston and Glenburnie Burns provides a backdrop and the trees on the eastern 
boundary  largely screen the site.  Long distance views include the Eildon Hills and 
the site is some distance away and is read in the context of the settlement and so 
there is little impact on the landscape.

Although the site is located in a sensitive location within the National Scenic Area it 
does read as a natural extension of the village, especially when considered in 
conjunction with the expansion area adjacent to it.  It is an allocated housing site. 
The site would be visible from the Eildon Hills at a distance, with the mature 
woodland strip along Glenburnie Burn providing significant screening of the site.  
Visibility from the adjacent public road network is limited as it is well screened by 
existing mature trees, vegetation, topography and housing.  The southern section of 

15Page 25



Planning and Building Standards Committee

the western boundary will be visible but the visual impact of the proposed houses 
along this boundary would be no greater than of the existing houses to the south.  
The site is not therefore, prominent in the landscape.

It is vital that the existing trees are protected, retained and managed and this would 
be controlled by a planning condition.  The buffer zones provide protection for these 
trees from development and also land within the site for appropriate planting to soften 
the impact of the development and help it to integrate into the landscape.  A condition 
will require the submission of a planting scheme to achieve this, and also appropriate 
hedge enhancement and supplementary tree planting on the western boundary; this 
may require the reduction in the size of the rear gardens.

It is accepted that the density of the development does not allow for large areas of 
public open space or landscaping within the development, though the buffer zones 
and area around the detention basin do provide opportunities for planting.

It is considered that with appropriate planting and its long term maintenance the 
proposal would not harm the special qualities of the National Scenic Area, be 
prominent within the landscape or harm the visual amenities of the area.

Any impact on the views of the Eildon Hills from existing properties caused by the 
development is not a planning issue that can be taken into account in determining 
these applications.

Residential Amenity

Policy H2 of the Local Plan states that development that is judged to have an 
adverse impact on the amenity of residential areas will not be permitted.  This is 
replicated in policy HD3 of the Local Development Plan.  Advice on light and privacy 
is contained within the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Guidance on Householder 
Developments July 2006.

The houses within Sergeant’s Park back onto the southern boundary of the site and 
the rear elevations of these properties are between 6 and 10m from the site 
boundary.  The unit on plot 1 would be the closest to the southern boundary (5m); 
this would be a bungalow and sited at an angle to the site boundary so that no direct 
overlooking occurs and sited approximately 17m from the rear elevation of no.26 
Sergeant’s Park.  Plots 2 and 3 would be two storey houses also sited at an angle to 
the site boundary and between 18 and 30m from the boundary.  It is considered that 
the proposal would not harm the light or privacy of occupants of the houses within 
Sergeant’s Park.  

Within the site the layout has resulted in dwellings being sited in close proximity, 
though there would be no direct window-to-window overlooking and adequate 
daylighting standards could be achieved.  It is considered that an adequate 
residential environment can be achieved for future residents of the development.

Environmental Health has requested that a Construction Method Statement is 
submitted prior to the development commencing.  This would provide the operational 
parameters under which the development would be operated and managed and 
would include hours of operation, vehicle movement, the protection and monitoring of 
private water supplies, noise and dust mitigation and management and a complaints 
procedure to protect the amenity of nearby residential properties during construction.  
This would be secured by a condition.

16Page 26



Planning and Building Standards Committee

Access and Parking

Policy Inf3 of the Local Plan advises that new roads, footpaths and cycleways to be 
adopted by the Council will require Road Construction Consent and must be 
constructed to the Council’s adopted standards.  Policy Inf4 requires development 
proposals to provide for car parking in accordance with the Council’s adopted 
standards.  Policy Inf11 states that the Council is committed to guiding development 
to locations which are accessible to bus corridors and train stations and which 
maximise the opportunities for walking and cycling.  

The access to the site would be from Sergeant’s Park, between nos. 20 and 22, and 
96 car parking spaces are proposed, both in-curtilage and within courtyards.  The 
existing right of way on the southern boundary would be upgraded and pedestrian 
links are proposed to the playing fields to the east and to the expansion area to the 
west.  Provision has been made for a future vehicular link to the expansion area to 
the west.

In terms of policy Inf11, the site is accessible by a range of transport options, being 
within walking distance of the bus stops on the main road through the village (the 
B6398) and accessible by cars and pedestrians.  In addition, the site is close to the 
school and play area.

Concerns have been raised by local residents regarding the increase in traffic 
generated by the development and the adequacy of the junction of Sergeants Park, 
Sprouston Road and Glenburn Avenue and the access to the site to cope with this 
increase in traffic.  Concerns have also been expressed regarding the level of 
parking provided within the site exacerbating car parking problems on the existing 
streets causing congestion and road safety issues.

Transport Scotland has no objections to the proposal and does not require any 
upgrading works at the two junctions from the B6398 onto the A68 or a roundabout 
on the A68 to accommodate this development.

The Roads Planning Service has raised a number of concerns regarding whether the 
access from Sergeant’s Park can be provided on land owned by the applicant, the 
SUDS scheme for the site, parking levels and traffic figures for the junction of 
Sergeants Park, Sprouston Road and Glenburn Avenue to determine what 
improvements are required at this junction.

The agent has submitted a Technical Note containing the results of a vehicle, parking 
and pedestrian survey.  The report concludes that the Sprouston Road/Glenburn 
Road/Sergeants Park priority junction is provided to an appropriate standard with 
significant remaining capacity and that no modifications are required.  The Roads 
Planning Service has accepted the findings of this report and has not requested any 
improvement works to this junction.

The agent has confirmed that the applicant owns all the land required to form the 
vehicular access to the site.  An amended site plan has been submitted by the agent 
to address the parking requirements of the Roads Planning Service within the site.

No developer contribution towards the upgrading, maintenance and promotion of the 
path network around Newtown St Boswells and linkages to neighbouring villages and 
places of interest can be sought as the proposal is for affordable housing.  The site 
plan has been amended to include the upgrading of the right of way on the southern 
boundary of the site as required by the Council’s Access Officer.  The site layout also 

17Page 27



Planning and Building Standards Committee

includes links to the playing field to the east and fields to the west, part of the future 
expansion area.  It would still be possible to access the footpath network from the 
site.  

There is no requirement to provide parking within the site for walkers using the 
footpath network in the surrounding area as no existing public parking would be lost 
as a result of the development, though on-street parking is available for visitors to the 
site.

Natural Heritage

Policy NE3 of the Local Plan states that the Council will seek to safeguard the 
integrity of habitats within and outwith settlements which are of importance for the 
maintenance and enhancement of local biodiversity.  Policy EP3 of the Local 
Development Plan states that development that would have an unacceptable 
adverse effect on Borders Notable Species and Habitats of Conservation Concern 
will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the public benefits of the 
development outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity conservation.

The Planning Brief requires the submission of an Ecological Impact Assessment.  
The agent has submitted A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and this concludes that 
there are no protected species within the site and the habitat within the site is only of 
local nature conservation value.  Mitigation measures are proposed to minimise the 
ecological impact of the development and recommendations on the future 
management of hedgerows.

Scottish Natural Heritage advises that the development is unlikely to have a 
significant effect on any qualifying interests of the River Tweed Special Area of 
Conservation.

The Council’s Ecology Officer requires mitigation measures for badger, breeding 
birds and to address any potential impacts on the River Tweed SAC.  A Landscape 
and Habitat Management Plan is also required with measures to protect and 
enhance hedgerow and woodland boundary features, habitat measures associated 
with the SUDS feature, compensatory planting and enhancement of hedgerows 
along the western and eastern boundaries and also reinforcement of the northern 
boundary through a native broadleaf planting scheme.  These requirements would be 
secured through conditions.

Flooding

Policy G4 of the Local Plan refers to developments where there is an identified flood 
risk; developments will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding or 
would materially increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.  

Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan advises that as a general principle, new 
development should be located in areas free from significant flood risk and 
developments will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding or 
would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere.  The ability of flood 
plains to convey and store flood water should be protected.

SEPA objected to the application for Phase 2 as the site lies adjacent to the 0.5% 
annual probability (1:200) flood extent of the Glenburnie Burn and as such is 
potentially at medium to high risk of flooding.  The agent provided additional 
topographic information showing the existing site to be over 3m above the Sprouston 

18Page 28



Planning and Building Standards Committee

Burn and proposed site levels and finished floor levels and SEPA has removed their 
our objection to the application.  They are aware of flooding issues downstream on 
the Sprouston Burn and advise that surface water runoff should be restricted to pre-
development rates.  

Drainage

Policy Inf5 of the Local Plan requires direct connection to the public sewerage 
system for foul water drainage and policy Inf6 requires a Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System for surface water drainage.

The Community Council has expressed concern regarding the serious flooding of the 
playing field and bowling green from this site and request that the SUDS pond is 
adequate to prevent run-off onto adjacent land and flooding.

A Drainage Report has been submitted with the application.  Foul water would 
connect to the Scottish Water sewer on Sergeant’s Park and would be designed to 
be adopted by Scottish Water.

Surface water drainage would be via a SUDS system, draining to the south of the site 
where it will be attenuated before discharging into the Scottish Water surface water 
network.  Attenuation will take the form of a detention basin at the entrance to the 
site.   

No specific design has been submitted but the report acknowledges that the SUDS 
must be designed in accordance with Council and SEPA requirements and, as the 
site is undeveloped, it is necessary to match any developed runoff from the site to the 
appropriate greenfield pre-development flows (a requirement of SEPA).  The SUDS 
would then be adopted and maintained by Scottish Water.

Scottish Water has confirmed in a letter to the agent that there is sufficient capacity in 
the Newtown St Boswells Waste Water Treatment Works and the local network to 
service the demands of the development.  They require that surface water should 
discharge to the nearby surface water mains in Sergeant’s Park, which eventually 
discharges to the Sprouston Burn, and this should be attenuated to greenfield rates 
and SUDS treatment applied accordingly.

The water supply would be from the Scottish Water mains supply.

A condition will require the submission of a detailed SUDS scheme and details of the 
long term maintenance for approval in consultation with SEPA and the Roads 
Planning Service.  Provided the SUDS scheme is operated and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details, the detention basin should not result in any 
smell nuisance to local residents.

Developer Contributions

Policy G5 of Local Plan states that where a site is acceptable but cannot proceed 
due to deficiencies in infrastructure or due to environmental impacts the Council will 
require developers to make contributions towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.  Policy G6 requires a financial contribution towards the reinstatement of 
the Borders railway.

19Page 29



Planning and Building Standards Committee

The proposal is for affordable housing managed by Eildon Housing Association and 
so no contributions are required towards Earlston High School, Newtown St Boswells 
Primary School or the Borders Railway.  A commuted sum, however, is required 
towards the provision and maintenance of additional play equipment and supporting 
ancillary infrastructures at a play facility outwith the site and this will be secured 
through a Section 69 Legal Agreement.

A condition would ensure that the development complies with the Council’s definition 
of affordable housing.

CONCLUSION

The proposed residential development, subject to the imposition of planning 
conditions, is considered acceptable and in compliance with policies G1, H2, H3 and 
Inf4 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan Adopted 2011.  The proposed 
use is appropriate for this part of Newtown St Boswells.  The layout of the site and 
design and external materials of the proposed buildings are considered to be 
acceptable and it is not considered that the proposal would negatively impact upon 
the character of the area, residential amenities, the special qualities of the National 
Scenic Area or the visual amenities of the area.   Adequate on-site parking, access, 
drainage and servicing can be achieved.  The proposal also complies with the 
relevant policies within the Proposed Local Development Plan 2013.

RECOMMENDATION BY SERVICE DIRECTOR (REGULATORY SERVICES):

I recommend the applications 15/01155/FUL and 15/01156/FUL are approved 
subject to a legal agreement addressing contribution towards play facilities and the 
following conditions:

1. The proposed residential units shall meet the definition of "affordable 
housing" as set out in the adopted Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 
Adopted 2011 and any accompanying supplementary planning guidance and 
shall only be occupied in accordance with arrangements (to include details of 
terms of occupation and period of availability) which shall first have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.
Reason: The permission has been granted for affordable housing, and 
development of the site for unrestricted market housing would not comply with 
development plan policies and guidance with respect to contributions to 
infrastructure and services, including local schools.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
complete accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the 
Planning Authority, unless otherwise approved by the Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

3. The development hereby approved shall only be carried out in strict 
accordance with a programme of phasing which has first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. This to include the 
provision of footpath links to the land to the east and west of the site.
Reason: To ensure that the development proceeds in an orderly manner.

4. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no 
development shall be commenced until a sample of all materials to be used 
on all exterior surfaces of the development hereby permitted (including walls, 

20Page 30



Planning and Building Standards Committee

roofs, window frames, external doors, boundary walls and fences) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and thereafter 
no development shall take place except in strict accordance with those 
samples.
 Reason: The materials require further consideration to ensure a satisfactory 
form of development, which contributes appropriately to its setting.

5. Details of the lighting within the site to be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority before the development commences.  The lighting 
then to be installed as per the approved details.
Reason: Reason: In the interests of road and pedestrian safety and to 
safeguard residential amenities and limit light pollution.

6. No development shall commence until a Construction Method Statement has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.  As a 
minimum this should outline how the site will comply with the British Standard 
5228:2009 Code of Practice for noise and vibration control on construction 
and open sites and should include the hours of construction, vehicle 
movements, protection and monitoring of private water supplies, noise 
mitigation, equipment maintenance, dust mitigation and management and a 
complaints procedure/communication of noisy works to receptors.  The 
development then to be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Construction Method Statement.
Reason: To safeguard residential amenities.

7. No development to commence until a scheme detailing proposals for 
sustainable drainage (SUDS) surface water treatment has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA.  
The development to be completed in accordance with the approved scheme.  
The scheme shall be developed in accordance with the technical guidance 
contained in The SUDS Manual (C753) and should incorporate source 
control.
Reason: To ensure adequate protection of the water environment from 
surface water run-off.

8. No development shall take place except in strict accordance with a scheme of 
soft landscaping works, which shall first have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority, and shall include:

i. indication of existing trees, shrubs and hedges to be removed, those 
to be retained and, in the case of damage, proposals for their 
restoration;

ii. location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas;

iii. schedule of plants to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/density;

iv. programme for completion and subsequent maintenance.

Reason: To enable the proper form and layout of the development and the 
effective assimilation of the development into its wider surroundings.

21Page 31

http://www.ciria.org/service/AM/ContentManagerNet/favicon.ico


Planning and Building Standards Committee

9. No trees within the application site shall be felled, lopped, lifted or disturbed in 
any way without the prior consent of the Planning Authority.
Reason: The existing trees represent an important visual feature which the 
Planning Authority considered should be substantially maintained.

10. Before any part of the permitted development is commenced, the trees to be 
retained on the site shall be protected by a heras or similar fence 1.5 metres 
high, placed at a minimum radius of one metre beyond the crown spread of 
each tree, and the fencing shall be removed only when the development has 
been completed.  During the period of construction of the development:

(a) No excavations, site works, trenches or channels shall be cut, or pipes 
or services laid in such a way as to cause damage or injury to the trees by 
interference with their root structure;
(b) No fires shall be lit within the spread of the branches of the trees; 
(c) No materials or equipment shall be stored within the spread of the 
branches of the trees;
(d) Any accidental damage to the trees shall be cleared back to 
undamaged wood and be treated with a preservative if appropriate;
(e) Ground levels within the spread of the branches of the trees shall not 
be raised or lowered in relation to the existing ground level, or trenches 
excavated except in accordance with details shown on the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of preserving the health and vitality of existing trees 
on the development site, the loss of which would have an adverse effect on 
the visual amenity of the area.

11. No hedges within or on the boundaries of the application site shall be 
removed, damaged or disturbed in any way without the prior consent of the 
Planning Authority.
Reason: The existing hedges represent an important visual feature which the 
Planning Authority considered should be substantially retained and 
maintained.

12. Before any part of the permitted development is commenced, the hedges to 
be retained on the site shall be protected by a heras or similar fence 1.5 
metres high placed at a minimum distance of 2.0 metres from the edge of the 
hedge, and the fencing shall be removed only when the development has 
been completed. During the period of construction of the development the 
existing soil levels around the boles of the hedges so retained shall not be 
altered.
Reason: In the interests of preserving the hedges which contribute to the 
visual amenity of the area.

13. A design statement and strategy for the detention basin to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority before the development 
commences.  This to include proposed levels and a detailed planting scheme 
(including a timescale for completion and details of future maintenance).  The 
development then to be completed in accordance with the approved scheme.
Reason: To enhance the basin as a local amenity.

14. Detailed drawings showing how the proposed changes of level within the site 
will be achieved, including sections, existing and proposed ground levels, any 
retaining walls and how the ground around trees and hedges will be treated, 
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority before 

22Page 32



Planning and Building Standards Committee

the development commences.  The development then to be completed in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To safeguard trees and hedges within the site.

15. The existing hedges on the site boundaries to be outwith the garden ground 
of the dwellinghouses hereby approved, unless otherwise agreed with the 
Planning Authority, and to be separated from the garden ground of the 
dwellinghouses by a post and wire fence or similar, erected prior to the 
occupation of the dwellinghouses, the details of which are to be submitted to 
and approved by the Planning Authority before the development commences.  
Reason: In the interests of preserving the hedges which contribute to the 
visual amenity of the area.

16. No development of any sort to take place within the buffer zones at any time.  
Where proposed fence posts are to be erected beneath tree canopies, the 
developer shall carry out all excavation by hand digging where necessary, 
taking such further precautions as may be necessary to prevent any damage 
to any tree or its root system.
Reason: To safeguard the buffer zones from development to protect the 
existing mature trees within and adjacent to the site.    

17. Prior to the commencement of works on the site a Species Mitigation and 
Management Plan (including a Badger Protection Plan and measures for bats 
and breeding birds) to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority.  All works shall thereafter be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plan.
Reason: To protect protected species within and adjacent to the site.
.

18. Prior to the commencement of works on-site a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority.  This to include measures to prevent pollution, as identified in the 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 2015 and the consultation responses from 
Scottish Natural Heritage and SEPA.  All works shall thereafter be carried out 
in accordance with the approved plan.
Reason: To control drainage and pollution to protect the interest of the River 
Tweed SAC/SSSI.

19. Prior to the commencement of works on-site a Landscape and Habitat 
Management Plan to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority.  This to include measures to protect and enhance hedgerow and 
woodland boundary features, as identified in the Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal 2015, and measures associated with the SUDS feature.  All works 
shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved plan.
Reason: To protect and enhance hedgerow and woodland boundary features.

20. The surfacing for the proposed roads, footpaths and parking spaces shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority before the 
development commences.  The development then to be completed in 
accordance with the approved details.  
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is laid out in a proper 
manner with adequate provision for traffic and in a manner which enhances 
the character and visual appearance of the development.

21. The proposed roads, footpaths and parking spaces/areas indicated on the 
approved drawings shall be constructed to ensure that each 

23Page 33



Planning and Building Standards Committee

dwellinghouse/flat, before it is occupied, shall be served by a properly 
consolidated and surfaced carriageway, parking area and footpath/shared 
surface.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is laid out in a proper 
manner with adequate provision for traffic and pedestrians.

22. The right of way along the southern boundary of the site to be upgraded, as 
per Drawing Number PL1-01D, before the first dwellinghouse is occupied.  
The right of way then to be kept open and free from obstruction or 
encroachment during the construction of the dwellinghouses and thereafter.  
Reason: To ensure the right of way remains open and free from obstruction.

Informatives 

In respect of condition 6, the Control of Pollution Act 1974 allows the Council to set 
times during which work may be carried out and the methods used.  The following 
are the recommended hours for noisy work:

Monday – Friday 0700 – 1900
Saturday      0700 – 1300
Sunday (Public Holidays) – no permitted work (except by prior notification to Scottish 
Borders Council.        

Contractors will be expected to adhere to the noise control measures contained in 
British Standard 5228:2009 Code of practice for noise and vibration control on 
construction and open sites.  For more information or to make a request to carry out 
works outside the above hours please contact an Environmental Health Officer.

The consultation response from SEPA, Scottish Natural Heritage and the Council’s 
Ecology Officer and Landscape Architect are attached for the information of the 
applicant.

DRAWING NUMBERS

15/01155/FUL:

L(01)101 Site Location Plan
EX-01 Existing Levels
PL1-01D Site Plan Phase 1
PP1-A House Type A Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-B House Type B Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-B2 House Type B2 Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-BC House Type B-C Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-C House Type C Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-D House Type D Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-E House Type E Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-F House Type F Floor Plans and Elevations
PP1-G House Type G Floor Plans and Elevations
P1&2-V1B Visuals Phase 1 & 2 Visuals 1 of 2
P1&2-V2 Visuals Phase 1 & 2 Visuals 2 of 2
PPBT-01C Boundary Treatments

15/01156/FUL: 

L(01)102 Site Location Plan

24Page 34



Planning and Building Standards Committee

EX-01 Existing Levels
PL2-01D Site Plan Phase 2
PP2-BC House Type B-C Floor Plans and Elevations
PP2-G House Type G Floor Plans and Elevations
P1&2-V1B Visuals Phase 1 & 2 Visuals 1 of 2
P1&2-V2 Visuals Phase 1 & 2 Visuals 2 of 2
PPBT-01C Boundary Treatments

Approved by
Name Designation Signature 
Ian Aikman Chief Planning Officer

The original version of this report has been signed by the Service Director 
(Regulatory Services) and the signed copy has been retained by the Council.

Author(s)
Name Designation
Julie Hayward Lead Planning Officer

25Page 35



Planning and Building Standards Committee 26Page 36



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE: GLENTRESS MASTERPLAN

Report by Service Director Regulatory Services

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29 February 2016

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report seeks approval of the Supplementary Guidance: 
Glentress Masterplan (Appendix A).

1.2 The purpose of the Supplementary Guidance (SG) is to guide the future 
sustainable development of the Glentress forest visitor attraction located 
in the Tweed valley between Peebles and Innerleithen.  The Masterplan 
presents a strategic context for this part of the valley and sets out 
proposals for development to enhance the visitor attraction.  The 
Masterplan includes indicative proposals for an enhanced centre, a new 
site for cabins and parking.  The SG has been developed in partnership 
with Forest Enterprise Scotland and is set out in Appendix A.

1.3 In summary, this report brings forward the revised SG: Glentress 
Masterplan following public consultation.  A summary of the consultation 
responses are set out in Appendix B along with associated minor 
amendments and updates to the SG.  The key changes to the finalised SG 
as a result of the public consultation relate to additional wording in 
respect to landscape planting, ensuring an acceptable access is 
maintained in the event that development takes place ‘out of phase’, 
consideration of secure bike storage/parking, additional text in relation to 
flood risk, provision for a rendezvous point, and ensuring minimal 
potential for overlooking of neighbouring residential properties.

1.4 A new Local Development Plan is in the process of being adopted; as a 
result the Glentress Masterplan will initially be Supplementary Planning 
Guidance in determination of planning applications.  Once the Local 
Development Plan is adopted the Masterplan will be formal Supplementary 
Guidance and part of the Local Development Plan.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Planning and Building Standards 
Committee:

a) approves the Glentress Masterplan as Supplementary 
Guidance 

b) notes the Updated Environmental Report and Updated 
Habitats Regulations Appraisal set out in Appendices D and E.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

3 BACKGROUND OF SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE

3.1 Glentress Forest is one of eight forests within the Tweed Valley Forest 
Park and is recognised as a high quality environment for outdoor 
activities.  The forest currently forms a key attraction for tourism in the 
Scottish Borders and attracts over 300,000 visitors per year.  
Furthermore, over the last 15 years, Glentress has grown to become one 
of the UK’s premier mountain biking destinations, acting as the flagship 
7stanes venue.  Glentress, in addition to continuing as an operational 
forest, also provides the setting for other activities such as: walking, 
horse riding, sightseeing, tree top adventures, wildlife and nature 
observation; as well as education and learning.

3.2 The Supplementary Guidance: (SG) Glentress Masterplan (as set out in 
Appendix A) has come about through partnership working between 
officers of the Council and Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES).  The 
Masterplan has been guided by earlier work carried out by FES in 
association with Barton Willmore – Planning and Design Consultants.  That 
work focused on the area surrounding Glentress and included public 
consultation.

3.3 Whilst the area covered by the Glentress Masterplan is not allocated 
within the Proposed Local Development Plan as a development site; the 
Proposed Plan sets out, within both the Cardrona and the Peebles 
Settlement Profiles, that the Council will support the development of a 
Masterplan as SG in partnership with the Forestry Commission.

4 OUTCOME FROM PUBLIC CONSULTATION

4.1 Following this public consultation period, a total of 22 consultation 
responses were received, eight from individuals and fourteen of which 
came from agencies/groups; this included one late response from Visit 
Scotland.  Whilst late responses are usually not accepted, given the 
importance of Visit Scotland’s view in respect to this significant proposal, 
it was considered that the consultation response should be accepted. 

4.2 From the consultation responses received, it is evident that there is strong 
support for the proposals contained within the Masterplan, including 
support from Visit Scotland, Scottish Enterprise, Forest Enterprise 
Scotland, Scottish Cycling, Tweed Valley Trail Association, Tweed Valley 
Bike Patrol and AIMUp Ltd; with many contributors offering their views on 
how to improve the Masterplan.  Nevertheless, there are also a number of 
contributors who do not support the proposals contained within the 
Masterplan and consider that money would be best spent on repairing 
existing trails and creating new trails.  Many of those who do not support 
the Masterplan also consider that the potential cabin site will only result in 
the loss of some high quality trails whilst also resulting in competition for 
existing accommodation providers within the area.

4.3 The main elements of each of the consultation responses are detailed in 
Appendix B along with a response, and officer recommendation. 
Appendix B also sets out a number of updates to the document.  It should 
be noted that a full version of the consultation responses received in 
relation to the Glentress Masterplan have been made available in the 
Members Library.  Following comments received the main changes to the 

Page 38



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

Masterplan consist of:
 Additional wording in relation to landscape planting on page 16.
 Ensuring an acceptable access is maintained for forest users in the 

event that development takes place ‘out of phase’ (page 19, section 
6.3).

 Consideration of secure bike storage and/or parking within the 
cabin development (page 25, section 7.31).

 Additional wording to ensure that the proposed development will 
not be at flood risk and will not increase flood risk elsewhere (page 
29, section 8.11).

 Ensuring that the development allows for a rendezvous point for 
emergency vehicles with associated parking.

 Additional wording to ensure minimal potential for overlooking of 
neighbouring residential properties (page 13).

 Reconsideration of the trailhead, access and egress to routes and 
trails (page 15, Figure 14 and page 16). 

4.4 A number of minor changes to the SG have also come about as a result of 
the public consultation, these are: 

 Amendment of text in section 8.10 replacing “Environmentally 
Protected Species” with “European Protected Species and Protected 
Species”.

 Replacement of “Historic Scotland” to “Historic Environment 
Scotland” in section 8.7.

 Additional text in relation to Figure 16 to read that the cabins 
should be dispersed through the forest and that consideration is 
given to neighbouring uses in their design and layout.

4.5 A number of updates have also been incorporated into the finalised SG 
these relate to a number of corrections: page 15 in relation to Figure 14 
and the inclusion of an additional no.6 on the diagram; page 16 in 
reference to Figures 8 and 9, where previously Figures 7 and 8 had been 
referenced; page 19 in relation to the omission of text in respect to 
Development Parcel C; page 29 in relation to paragraph 8.14 Eco-Homes 
where now this has been replaced with a BREEAM paragraph, and the 
inclusion of an additional submission requirement in relation to water 
quality on page 31.

4.6 This report seeks the approval of the SG which will provide an important 
element of the Council’s tourism delivery strategy.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial
There are no substantive cost implications arising for the Council from the 
recommendations included in this report.  

5.2 Risk and Mitigations

The key risks are considered to be:

Risk of not providing guidance
(i)    The lack of guidance would cause uncertainty to the developers and 

the public and be a barrier to effective decision making by the 
Council.  This could result in an ad hoc and inconsistent decision 
making with the policies in the Local Plan not being taken fully into 
account.

 

Page 39



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

(ii)   Failure to produce the SG would reflect badly on the Council’s 
commitment to improve the design of new development through a 
placemaking approach.

(iii)   It is considered that the failure to approve the finalised SG would 
have resource impacts in the Development Management Section, 
potentially resulting in delays processing planning applications.  In 
addition, it may ultimately have both a negative impact on the 
development and on the thorough assessment of the environmental 
impact of development.

Risk of providing guidance

(i)    There are no perceived risks related to the adoption of the guidance 
by the Council.

5.3 Equalities

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this proposal 
and it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications.

5.4 Acting Sustainably

The Glentress Masterplan process has been subject to environmental 
appraisal under the terms of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) 
Act 2005.  An Environmental Report (ER) (refer to Appendix D) was 
prepared alongside the Masterplan, and has been updated following public 
consultation.  The Environmental Report sets out a detailed assessment of 
the potential impacts of the proposals within the Masterplan, and puts 
forward any necessary mitigation requirements.

5.5 Under Part IVA (regulations 85A-85E) of The Conservation (Natural 
Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as amended, the Glentress Masterplan 
has also been subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). That 
report set out in Appendix E has concluded that the adoption of the 
Masterplan will result in no adverse impacts upon the integrity of any 
Natura site.  The consultation responses to both the ER and HRA are set 
out in Appendix C. Due to the size of the report, a paper version of 
Appendices C, D and E has been made available in the Members Library. 
 

5.6 Carbon Management – Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009

It is not considered the Report brings any impact on the Council’s carbon 
emissions.

5.7 Rural Proofing

It is anticipated there will be a neutral impact on the rural environment 
from the Supplementary Guidance.

5.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes to be made.

Page 40



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, 
the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Chief Officer Human Resources and 
the Clerk to the Council are being consulted and any comments received 
have been incorporated in the final report.

6.2 The Chief Officer Economic Development has also been consulted.

Approved by

Brian Frater 
Service Director Regulatory Services   Signature ………………………………….

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Trish Connolly Planning Officer (Plans and Research)

Background Papers:  None

Previous Minute Reference: Planning and Building Standards, 3 August 2015

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below. Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Environment and Infrastructure, Scottish Borders 
Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 
825431, Fax 01835 825071, email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A: Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan

P
age 43



Scottish Borders
Local Development Plan

Supplementary Guidance

Glentress Masterplan
February 2016

Page 44



This page is inten� onally blank.

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 45



Contents

1.0 Introduc� on

2.0 Policy Framework

3.0 Context

4.0 Opportuni� es, Constraints and Development Principles

5.0 Development Vision

6.0 Phasing

7.0 Design and Development Guidance

8.0 Submission Requirements

Appendix 1: List of Policy Documents and Policies

Appendix 2: Early Consulta� on 

Appendix 3: Key Themes from Valley Strategy

Appendix 4: Concepts from Valley Strategy

Contacts

Alterna� ve Format/Language Paragraph

Annex A: Developer Guidance

List of Figures
Figure 1: Aerial Photograph

Figure 2: Assets in the vicinity of Glentress
Figure 3: The Spine

Figure 4: The Cores

Figure 5: Development Framework Concept

Figure 6: Poten� al Cabin Site - Landscape and Visual Capacity
Figure 7: The Masterplan
Figure 8: Development Blocks - Glentress Peel & Ac� vity Areas
Figure 9: Glentress Peel in Detail
Figure 10: Glentress Peel Plan
Figure 11: Arrival Building
Figure 12: Main Building
Figure 13: Ac� vity Building
Figure 14: Indica� ve Detailed Masterplan
Figure 15: Poten� al Cabin Accommoda� on
Figure 16: Poten� al Cabin Site
Figure 17: Indica� ve Phasing of Proposed Development

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 46



1.0 Introduc� on

1.1 This Masterplan is one of a series of

Supplementary Guidance (SG) on
development sites and sets out the main
opportuni� es and constraints for the 
development within the Glentress Forest.
The site is shown in Figure 1.

1.2 The Masterplan includes the development
vision for the site and aims to lead to a high
quality development. As the site is located
within high quality landscape and
countryside on the renowned river Tweed
between the se� lements of Peebles and 
Cardrona it is important that the
development fits into its surroundings. 

1.3 The Masterplan document should be read in
conjunc� on with the developer guidance in 
Annex A.

Background

1.4 Glentress Forest is one of eight forests in
the Tweed Valley Forest Park (TVFP). The
TVFP is recognised as a high quality
environment for outdoor ac� vi� es, with 
Glentress at the forefront of the Forest
Enterprise Scotland’s (FES) ambi� ous plans 
to ensure that important forest resources
con� nue to be accessible to the public and 
offer a range of ac� vi� es from the simple 
enjoyment of the landscape, to embracing
ac� vi� es such as walking, mountain biking, 

1

Glentress Masterplan

horse-riding, wildlife and habitat
conserva� on and management.

1.5 Glentress Forest is at the heart of the Tweed
Valley and forms a key component in Sco� sh 
Borders’ tourism offer, a� rac� ng over 
300,000 visitors per year. Over the last 15
years Glentress has grown to become one of
the UK’s premier mountain biking
des� na� ons, ac� ng as the flagship 7stanes 
venue. However, the Sco� sh Borders 
con� nues to suffer from a low average stay 
by visitors, at 2.2 days.

1.6 In addi� on to providing approximately 50 
miles of world class mountain bike trails,
many other ac� vi� es take place within this 
opera� onal forest. These include the 
following:

• Forestry opera� ons / ac� vi� es
• Walking (approximately 25 miles of walking

routes)
• Horse riding
• Sightseeing
• Tree top adventures
• Wildlife and nature observa� on
• Educa� on and learning.

‘Glentress Peel’ is a high quality mixed use
development which incorporates a cafe/
restaurant, bike shop, showers and changing
rooms, interpreta� on and informa� on 
gateway and car parking.

1.7 This Masterplan has been guided by previous
work carried out by Forest Enterprise
Scotland in associa� on with Barton Willmore 
- Planning and Design Consultants. Earlier
work focused on the area surrounding
Glentress and included an element of public
consulta� on, and resulted in the produc� on 
of a Valley Strategy and a Development
Framework.

P
age 47



Figure 1: Aerial photograph showing the Glentress Area

2

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 48



2.0 Policy Framework

2.1 The Strategic Development Plan for
Edinburgh and South East of Scotland
(SESplan) was approved by Sco� sh Ministers 
in June 2013. The Glentress Forest site which
sits between Peebles and Cardrona is located
within the Western Strategic Development
Area as set out in SESplan.

2.2 The Masterplan site subject to this brief sits
outwith any of the defined se� lements set 
out in the Sco� sh Borders Local 
Development Plan (LDP). However, the site
is located within the Strategic Green Network
(refer to LDP Policy EP12: Green Networks)
as set out in the LDP. The Masterplan site is
located wholly within Glentress Forest - part
of Scotland’s Na� onal Forest Estate and is 
managed on an integrated landuse basis
including mul� -purpose forests producing
� mber, hos� ng wildlife and serving as an 
outdoor ac� vity a� rac� on which includes 
walking and mountain biking trails, a tree top
adventure course, wildlife viewing and a
range of visitor services facili� es. Glentress 
Forest also contributes to the wider
landscape including making a significant 
contribu� on to the Borders Strategic Green 
Network.

2.3 The Glentress Forest allows the opportunity
for a range of outdoor recrea� on linked to 
the surrounding high quality environment;
and the Local Development Plan supports,

3

protects and encourages the enhancement of
this recrea� on facility.

2.4 Local Development Plan policy ED7: Business,
Tourism and Leisure Development in the
Countryside supports development
associated with tourism, leisure, and
recrea� on; in this respect the enhancement 
of facili� es at the Glentress Forest is       
supported. Policy ED7 also requires uses:
“appropriate to the rural character of the
area”. In that respect, it should be noted that
the masterplan site is located close to the
town of Peebles – a town which has a good
range of services to support it and the
neighbouring area. Policies ED3: Town
Centres and Shopping Development and ED5:
Regenera� on provide the primary policies in 
rela� on to the considera� on of any retail 
proposals. Therefore, cau� on is required to 
ensure that any new suppor� ng services for 
example retail at Glentress should only
accommodate the immediate demand of the
visitors to the Glentress Forest and should
not be seen as an a� rac� on in itself.

2.5 Policy ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites
support proposals for new caravan and
camping sites in loca� ons that can support 
the local economy and the regenera� on of 
towns and are in accordance with the
Sco� sh Borders Tourism Strategy and Ac� on 
Plan.

2.6 Whilst the policies noted above are
significant in the determina� on of any 

planning applica� on within the Glentress 
Forest, other polices will also be applicable
and these are noted in Appendix 1.

Glentress Masterplan

Looking over the Tweed Valley
(Image courtesy of Forest Enterprise Scotland)

P
age 49



3.0 Context

3.1 Glentress sits within the valley of the River
Tweed and almost midway between the
se� lements of Peebles and Cardrona.

3.2 The Glentress area benefits from extensive 
views par� cularly to the south but also to the 
west. The area itself and its hinterland is of
high amenity value with significant mature 
woodland. However, it is important to note
that much of the Glentress area is a working
forest which has provided the opportunity
for a successful outdoor facility to be
created; this facility offers opportuni� es for 
walking, mountain-biking, horse riding and
orienteering.

3.3 The wider area benefits from a range of 
services and facili� es including hotels, bars, 
shops, restaurants and cafés. The
neighbouring town of Peebles is considered
to be one of the healthier and vibrant town
centres within the Sco� sh Borders.

3.4 As noted above the Glentress Area is
considered to be of high amenity value and
almost the en� re Glentress Forest sits within 
the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area. On
the opposite side of the Valley is the Upper
Tweeddale Na� onal Scenic Area. Within the 
immediate vicinity of Glentress are also a
number of Scheduled Monuments. In
addi� on, the neighbouring historic town of 
Peebles also benefits from Conserva� on Area 
status and has a high concentra� on of listed 

4

buildings. There are also a large number of
areas where it is known that archaeology
exists. All this illustrates the dis� nc� veness 
of not only the immediate Glentress area but
also its wider surroundings.

3.5 The Glentress site is situated to the north of
the River Tweed which is designated a Site of
Special Scien� fic Interest as well as a Special 
Area of Conserva� on.

3.6 The site also benefits from direct access off 
the A72 - the main road that connects
Peebles to Galashiels.

Image of Peebles

Glentress Masterplan

Figure 2: Assets in the vicinity of Glentress

P
age 50



Figure 3: The Spine3.7 As noted within Sec� on 1: Introduc� on, 
other documents have been produced in
advance of this masterplan, including a Valley
Strategy.  In prepara� on of the Valley 
Strategy and in order to understand the
exis� ng issues and opportuni� es, the early 
consulta� on undertaken by the Forest 
Enterprise Scotland in associa� on with      
Barton Willmore (refer to Appendix 2: Early
Consulta� on) used the following key themes 
as a basis of discussion to develop concepts
(refer to Appendix 3: Key Themes from Valley
Strategy):

• Environment and Landscape

• Cultural Heritage

• A� rac� ons and Des� na� ons

• Access and Movement.

3.8 The clear focus of the Valley Strategy centres
on the river route, and importantly, the
Mul� -Use Path (MUP) (refer to Appendix 4:
Concepts from Valley Strategy for further
informa� on). Added to this are the northern
and southern road routes (the A72 and the
B7062) which combine to form a spine to the
valley. The concept of the spine (see Figure
3) is key to developing the Valley Strategy.

3.9 For wider benefits there is a need to ac� vate 
the spine with nodes and ensure that lateral
links or ribs connect to ac� vi� es located 
away from the spine, as well as core areas for
sustainable development (see Figure 4). It
was considered that the core areas could
poten� ally accommodate the requirement 

5

for:

• new ac� vi� es / a� rac� ons (visible ac� vi� es 
and a� rac� ons for the whole family);

• appropriate commercial ac� vity; and 

• accommoda� on.

Glentress Masterplan

Figure 4: The Cores

P
age 51



6

4.0 Opportuni� es, Constraints and 
Development Principles

4.1 The Glentress Forest is a working forest
which has provided the opportunity for a
successful outdoor recrea� on visitor 
a� rac� on which makes a significant 
contribu� on to the visitor economy.  As 
noted previously, the site a� racts over 
300,000 visits a year, and over the last 15
years Glentress has grown to become one of
the UK’s premier mountain biking
des� na� ons.  However it is considered that 
there is scope to improve on the average stay
by visitors to the Sco� sh Borders.

4.2 With that in mind, this Masterplan document
considers a wider programme of
diversifica� on and development that could 
be delivered, whilst protec� ng and 
enhancing the forest park se� ng.  The 
Forest Enterprise Scotland’s recent
acquisi� ons of both the Castlehill and Nether 
Horsburgh areas also afford the opportunity 
to improve site access, car parking as well as
the poten� al to separate the harves� ng and 
� mber haulage opera� ons from recrea� onal 
uses.

4.3 Glentress forest and the Masterplan
coverage comprise an area of 1600 hectares.
It is intended that built development will only
involve a small percentage of that area and
that the developments are integrated within
the woodland cover. It is also the case that
developments will be guided by a number of

opportuni� es and constraints comprising 
physical landform, ground condi� ons and a 
series of natural and cultural heritage
features and assets.

4.4 In considering the future development of

Opportuni� es

• Take advantage of the natural and historic features / assets on site

• Poten� al to expand the recrea� onal facility including the provision of tourist accommoda� on

• Reinforce linkages between Glentress and neighbouring a� rac� on/facili� es

• Scope to improve interpreta� on of archaeological assets both on and off site

• Extend the path network through and beyond the site, maximising connec� on opportuni� es to

exis� ng network

• Improve provision of car parking on site

• Opportunity to maximise solar gain from a south facing loca� on

• Poten� al to maximise views out from the site

• Opportunity for discreet development within a secluded loca� on

• Poten� al to conserve and enhance the exis� ng con� nuous forest cover

• Poten� al to review, reconfigure, relocate, expand and improve the current recrea� onal facili� es.

Constraints

• Steep slopes limit the developable area

• Designa� ons on site and off the site restrict where development can take place

• Current and poten� al for biodiversity on site

• Poten� al for archaeology on site

• As a working forest, poten� al for areas of conflict

• Risk of visual spolia� on on highly elevated and visible parts of the site

• Difficulty in accessing and servicing remoter parts of the site. 

Glentress, the Council and the Forest
Enterprise Scotland wish to ensure that any
new uses and development that take place
will enhance the Glentress site as well as the
Tweed Valley. Sustainable management
and responsible promo� on of these heritage 

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 52



Access to Glentress
4.11 Recent investment in the construc� on of the

Mul�  Use Path (MUP) has resulted in greater 
access to the area around Glentress, and the
route between the MUP and the A72, close
to the main vehicular access point to
Glentress. Development proposals at
Glentress should recognise the importance
of this connec� on from the Glentress node /
MUP and where possible support signage,
wayfinding,  informa� on and interpreta� on 
in rela� on to the remains of Horsburgh  
Castle, St Leonards Hospital and Eshiels
Roman Camp (this should be in line with the
Tweed Valley Forest Park Interpreta� on 
Strategy and any successor visitor experience
plan).

Safety
4.12 A72 Crossing - Currently, there are safety

issues rela� ng to the access to Glentress 
from the A72 for pedestrians, cyclists and
other non road users. Although some signage
is provided to warn motorists that it is a busy
crossing point, vehicles can travel past at up
to 60 mph (the na� onal speed limit).  Any  
development proposals at Glentress should
consider this issue and seek to remedy the
problems where possible, while also
suppor� ng this point as a key gateway and 
arrival point to Glentress.

4.13 Buzzard’s Nest Forest Road - This is a forest
road which is primarily used for forestry
opera� ons but is also open to private 
vehicles and forms a key route within the
forest for walking and mountain biking.

assets within Glentress Forest as well as
those located within the Tweed Valley will be
key to the future success of Glentress.

4.5 To achieve a successful development the
opportuni� es and constraints set out in the 
previous page should be considered.

Development Principles
4.6 This sec� on sets out the broad principles

for development through which the
Masterplan for Glentress can both support
the wider area but also direct and shape
more detailed proposals at a more site
specific scale within Glentress.  

4.7 The quality of the landscape and forest
se� ng is the key considera� on and is 
reflected within the Masterplan and in the 
associated Development Principles. To help
draw these out and provide guidance for the
strategic development at Glentress, the
following principal considera� ons have been 
iden� fied:

• Gateways / points of arrival

• Access to Glentress

• Safety

• Key routes

• Glentress Peel

• Buzzards Nest

• Parking

• Opera� onal Forest Access

7

4.8 The Development Principles were iden� fied 
within the Development Framework
document.

Gateways / Points of Arrival
4.9 There are several access points into

Glentress. Largely these consist of the
following:

• Mul� -Use-Path (MUP)

• Main access from A72

• Janet’s Brae path

• Sco� sh Outdoor Access Code - means that
access can be taken to the forest from
anywhere, giving rise to numerous informal
gateways.

4.10 Development proposals at Glentress should
seek to strengthen the iden� fied gateways in 
rela� on to their importance, providing 
appropriate informa� on, signage, wayfinding 
and ensuring safety.

Glentress Masterplan

Figure 5: Development
Framework Concept

P
age 53



Therefore, the coming together of these
ac� vi� es has given rise to safety concerns. 
Any development proposal at Glentress
should consider either restric� ng access to 
Buzzard’s Nest for private vehicles and/or
separa� ng forestry opera� on vehicles. 
General public access by vehicle would
however need to remain in place to allow
access to the car parking which serves the
tree top adventure facili� es.

Key Routes
4.14 The key routes refer to the connec� ons 

within the Tweed Valley to and from other
a� rac� ons , such as Peebles Hydro, St 
Ronans Wells and Traquair House to name a
few; as well as routes connec� ng through 
and across the whole Glentress area. To
assist users in keeping to designated routes,
the treatment of the key routes within the
site, in order to make them recognisable and
legible is a key considera� on as well as 
ensuring that key routes link to gateways.
Any development proposals at Glentress
should support key routes for use by mul� ple 
users and where appropriate include
informa� on, signage and wayfinding.

Glentress Peel
4.15 The Glentress Peel development has resulted

from comprehensive consulta� on and 
carefully balances the required quantum of
development. Its loca� on relates to the 
 findings of a 2010 report  commissioned by 
the Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES). The
loca� on of the recrea� on centre was 
iden� fied following an assessment of the 

landscape, access to services and u� li� es as 
well as through early community
consulta� on (refer to Appendix 2: Early 
Consulta� on). Through the assessment and 
early consulta� on it was agreed that any 
development proposals must respect their
forest se� ng as well as its func� on as the 
trailhead for walking routes and mountain
bike trails. In addi� on, the Masterplan should 
make posi� ve steps to draw the forest into 
the Glentress Peel development.

4.16 The Glentress Peel recrea� on centre, 
could include:

• Built form - consis� ng of  food / drink 
provision, retail provision (associated with
outdoor  ac� vi� es),  other business / 
commercial ac� vity, accommoda� on, and  
opportunity for indoor ac� vity;

• Areas for outdoor sea� ng and congrega� on

• General open space

• New walking routes and mountain bike
trails

• Access to vantage / view points.

Parking
4.17 Glentress currently provides car parking

across a number of areas which include
overflow facili� es. There are approximately 
400 exis� ng spaces. The approximate 
capaci� es are as follows:
• Glentress Peel - 150 spaces
• Fella Brae - 30 spaces
• Buzzards Nest - 100 spaces

• Overflow lower - 70 spaces
 • Overflow upper - 50 spaces 

4.18 With current visitor numbers (300,000 per
annum), all of Glentress’ car parks reach
capacity on busy spring / summer weekends.

4.19 Any development proposals at Glentress
must consider the need for addi� onal car 
parking as well as the impact that its
provision might have on the visitor
experience. Car parking must be handled
sensi� vely, with due considera� on given to 
pedestrian movement and should be
provided within a landscaped environment to
reduce its visual impact as well as support
the forest se� ng of Glentress.

Opera� onal Forest Access
4.20 Glentress’ main forest opera� ons route 

shares its access from the A72 with that of
Glentress Peel. It has been iden� fied that 
there are safety / management concerns
with this as well as the shared Buzzards Nest
forest Road. Any development proposals at
Glentress should consider the possibility of
restric� ng vehicle access to Buzzards Nest 
and the resul� ng implica� ons in terms of the 
provision of facili� es, ac� vi� es and car 
parking across other parts of the Glentress
site. However, simply restric� ng private 
vehicles on this route may not provide
enough scope and capacity for con� nued 
forest opera� ons. As a result of this an 
alterna� ve main forest opera� ons access is 
proposed to the south-west of Nether

8

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 54



9

Horsburgh Farmhouse.

4.21 The alterna� ve FES access route would 
need to be taken through FES land and from
the A72. This is likely to be to the east of the
exis� ng access and provide access to 
Glentress Forest to the east of Castlehill. Any
development proposals at Glentress must
consider the relevance and need for this
addi� onal and separate FES access.

Landscape and Visual Capacity of Poten� al 
Cabin Loca� on 

4.22 In the prepara� on of this Masterplan and in 
the undertaking of the associated
environmental assessment process, it was
realised that addi� onal survey work was 
necessary to consider the landscape and
visual capacity of the poten� al cabin site at 
Glentress.

4.23 The work undertaken is summarised in the
Figure 6 (on the following page), the exis� ng 
car park at the Buzzards Nest is also
iden� fied on the plan to assist in se� ng its 
context, and the long term aspira� on to 
restore the quarry site has also been
iden� fied. 

4.24 Through the survey work undertaken, the
importance of retaining the forest se� ng, 
the need for screening, and maintenance of
the exis� ng forest character was emphasised, 
and so these have been highlighted within
the figure. Figure 6 also shows the areas of 

high visual sensi� vity which were noted from 
the survey work, and within these areas built
development must not take place.
Furthermore, areas for landscape
enhancement in the form of addi� onal areas 
of supplementary plan� ng and an area which 
requires further enhancement of plan� ng 
have also been iden� fied. 

4.25 Below are a number of development
principles that stem from the landscape and
visual capacity survey work undertaken. It is
considered that these principles will assist in
integra� ng the poten� al cabin site into the 
landscape. The principles are:

 Cabins should be placed singly or in loose
clusters

 Dispersal of cabins to be randomly located
taking advantage of exis� ng spaces and 
clearings that are designed to retain a
wooded se� ng

 It is expected that the majority of cabins
would not be more than 5.5m in height

 Where it can be demonstrated that the
cabins are not visible from external
viewpoints, then the height of a cabin may
be increased to 7.5m to the eaves.

 Cabins would be built on pile structures

 Cabins would be finished in FSC accredited 
� mber cladding and clay or similar natural 
� le roofing, finish to be agreed with the 
planning authority

 The central recep� on facility would be 
expected to use the same materials

 New access tracks to be constructed with
waterbound surfacing, strengthened in
agreed loca� ons to allow access to the forest 
for con� nuous cover forest (CCF) 
management

 Development of the site should take into
account the Sco� sh Outdoors Access Code.

4.26 Although, an element of survey work has
already been undertaken, it will be expected
that any developer for the poten� al cabin 
site will undertake a Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (LVIA) to iden� fy the 
exact areas where woodland enhancement is
required, and to assess the visual impacts of
any development and layout of proposals
from key viewpoints to be agreed with the
Council.

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 55



10

Glentress Masterplan

Figure 6: Poten� al Cabin Site - Landscape and Visual Capacity

P
age 56



11

5.0 Development Vision

As a working forest, Glentress will be a well
integrated, mul� -user des� na� on which
specialises in mountain biking and offers a 
world-class visitor experience for all visitors.

5.1 The Development Vision for Glentress
is well rooted in its environs, clearly
respec� ng its loca� on / forest se� ng and 
making posi� ve efforts to provide wider 
benefits to the Tweed Valley. It is intended 
that this vision and Masterplan will provide
guidance over a 20 year period.

The Masterplan
5.2 The masterplan sets out the development

principles and guidance for future proposals
at Glentress. The loca� on of development, 
close to Glentress Peel has resulted from
landscape / land form assessment, access
to services and early consulta� on. It has a 
par� cular focus on improving, extending 
and diversifying the ac� vity and associated 
commercial offer, with the overarching 
requirement of ensuring a high quality
environment and visitor experience.

5.3 The detail of the masterplan proposals
themselves are indica� ve and seek to 
sa� sfy the outcomes of extensive 
stakeholder and community engagement as
well as the development economics of
delivering a project of this nature.

5.4 The masterplan provides a graphical
representa� on of what scale and form          
development at Glentress might take (tested
at a high level regarding the business case
and development costs), albeit the
masterplan will provide a robust base from
which more detailed proposals can be
developed in the future, most likely through
one or more planning applica� ons in a 
phased manner.

5.5 The masterplan is designed to be flexible 
but it illustrates a sensi� ve interpreta� on 
of the proposed development.

5.6 The indica� ve masterplan provides a robust 
development envelope suited to the
proposed loca� on, scale and form of future 
development at Glentress. It also
demonstrates that development is broadly
deliverable.

5.7 It should be noted that the landscape /
forest se� ng of the masterplan is cri� cal 
to a successful visitor experience. Therefore,
any development proposals coming forward
must integrate, incorporate and evolve the
landscape se� ng. 

5.8 While masterplans are ‘people-driven’, the
effec� ve use of the forest to provide the 
highest quality visitor experience means that
an equally ‘landscape-driven’ approach is
required. Indeed, moving forwards,

landscape proposals through the masterplan
and any subsequent development proposals
should consider Forestry Commission
Scotland: Land Management Plan for
Glentress and Castlehill / Nether Horsburgh
and work with it to provide the best design /
landscape solu� on.

Image: Café at Glentress

Image: Horsburgh Castle adjacent to site

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 57



Figure 7: The Masterplan

12

Glentress Masterplan

Not to Scale

P
age 58



13

Ac� vity Area 1 - Peel Green
Area provides the se� ng for the Peel and backdrop to the new    
development. Poten� al loca� on for public art and short, circular  
informal walks through meadow and open woodland.

Ac� vity Area 2 - Skills Area
Stand alone mountain bike skills area and pump park for novice
mountain bikers.

Ac� vity Area 3 - Free Ride Area
Stand alone area for free ride mountain bike skills area for more
advanced mountain bikers. The area around the Castle Hill
Scheduled Monument will require safeguarding.

Plan� ng
Addi� onal plan� ng will be required to provide se� ng for skills area 
and to assist in so� ening edges of the development.

Figure 8: Development Blocks - Glentress Peel & Ac� vity Areas

Development Block A - Glentress Peel
Loca� on of new development at Glentress to support the exis� ng Glentress Peel and 
create an enhanced recrea� on centre. The recrea� on centre should also allow for a          
rendezvous point for emergency services with associated emergency vehicle parking

Development Block B - Car Park
Consolidated car parking, to be broken up by structural plan� ng

Development Block C - Poten� al Car Park Extension
Area provided for low engineered overflow car park solu� on. Structural plan� ng required to 
reduce visual impact and minimize poten� al for overlooking of neighbouring residen� al 
proper� es.

Glentress Masterplan

Figure 9: Glentress Peel in Detail

P
age 59



14

Indica� ve Development Block A

32

1

1

2

3

Figure 11: Arrival Building

Figure 12: Main Building

Figure 10: Glentress Peel Plan
Figure 13: Ac� vity Building

Glentress Masterplan

1 Arrival Building

2 Main Building

3 Ac� vity Building

P
age 60



15

The Detail of the Masterplan

1 Gateway
The Glentress Peel Gateway and Parking Areas
should
 create a sense of welcome

 respect the forest se� ng

 priori� se pedestrian and cycle access and  
movement

 reflect and consider the exis� ng built form

 consider wider visual impact.

2 Roads
All proposed roads within the masterplan area
should give priority to pedestrians and cycles.
Roads should reflect their rural se� ng and should 
not be urban in nature.

The Buzzards Nest - should the forest road be
restricted to vehicles at a point beyond the treetop
adventure facili� es there is an opportunity for a 
private operated vehicular upli�  service to allow 
visitors including poten� al cabin residents to more 
readily access the recrea� onal facili� es at the   
higher eleva� ons in the forest.

3 Crossing
The masterplan must address the safety issues
rela� ng to the access between the main Glentress 
site and the Mul� -Use-Path, across the A72. Means
to achieve this could include one or a combina� on 
of the following:

 Toucan crossing

Figure 14: Indica� ve Detailed Masterplan

 Full Signalisa� on (incorpora� ng pedestrian / 
cycle stage

 Localised speed limit

 User ac� vated warning-signs.

1

1

2

2

4

5

5

5
6

7

7

7

7

8

8

6

6

1

3

Glentress Masterplan

9

P
age 61



Parking for buses/coaches should also be
incorporated into the overall parking
arrangements. This should also include bus-turning
as well as passenger drop-off arrangements. 

It should be noted that on occasions when events
are planned at Glentress that a� ract a large      
number of visitors, temporary overflow parking 
also takes place to the south of the car parking
block (iden� fied as ’B’ on Figures 8 and 9).  

7 New Ac� vity areas - Mountain Biking and
Walking

The slopes that enclose Glentress and stretch up
Castlehill provide the opportunity to introduce
walking and mountain biking ac� vi� es in close 
proximity to the trailhead and Glentress Peel. A
mixture of Mul� -Use (green) routes, blue trails,
‘event space’ and poten� al nursery / skills area 
mean that Castlehill can come alive with visible
ac� vity. How these routes and trails are accessed 
from the trailhead / Glentress Peel and how users
arrive back at them is key. Single points of access
and egress will provide legibility as well as
anima� ng the scene and providing interest for  
people congrega� ng at the trailhead / Glentress 
Peel.

8 Landscape
Development proposals should be within a forest
se� ng. The forest should stretch into and around 
the areas of car parking (crea� ng pockets) and 
Glentress Peel, where appropriate. Proposed
plan� ng should reflect the landscape character at 
this loca� on and its transi� onal nature from the 
upland landscape that is dominated by large-scale

predominantly conifer woodland commercial
forestry to the River Tweed corridor with its
predominately broadleaf riparian woodland, field 
boundary trees and hedgerows.

9 The Trailhead - Access and Egress to Routes
and Trails

At present the trailhead is located at the exis� ng 
Gateway Building, although it may remain at that
loca� on it is considered that further inves� ga� on 
and design work should be undertaken to confirm 
its exact future loca� on. That work should also  
consider access and egress to routes and trails. It
will also be necessary to ensure that conflict with 
neighbouring uses is avoided.

Currently the main access and egress points are
along the Buzzards Nest forest road and sit on the
western side of the Glentress Burn and are behind
where ac� vity takes place. 

16

Glentress Masterplan

4 Glentress Peel - Development Areas / sites
Proposed development is to:
 support the investment at Glentress Peel

(Gateway building, bike shop and cafe);

 be appropriately screened and provide a
development pla� orm suitable to               
accommodate the indica� ve quantum of  
development (set out on pages 11-12); and

 provide viewpoints towards ac� vi� es on  
Castlehill

5 Building Types
The built form of the proposed development should
reflect that of Glentress Peel. Buildings should be 
one and half / two storey. For further informa� on 
please see sec� on on Materials Pale� e. 

6 Parking
Given that exis� ng parking provision at Glentress is 
400 (including overflow, Falla Brae), the               
requirement will be to provide this and
approximately 300 addi� onal spaces, at least. Given 
restricted access to Falla Brae and Buzzards nest,
the net car parking requirement around the
trailhead is 750. Falla Brae and Buzzard’s Nest can
provide overflow parking when required and will 
therefore contribute to an overall parking capacity
of c. 880 spaces.

New car parking provisions should be
accommodated within the western development
site (exis� ng upper and lower overflow areas) as 
well as where possible around Glentress Peel and
the new development.

P
age 62



17

Poten� al Cabin site Ki� legairy - 25.1 Ha

 Approx. 65 cabins

 Forest se� ng with valley views

 Road infrastructure in part

 Services required

1 POTENTIAL CABIN SITE
Any future proposal for cabin accommoda� on will need to be supported by technical studies that include 
landscape and visual impact assessment. A cabin site has been iden� fied as poten� ally capable of 
accommoda� ng forest cabins. A site has been iden� fied at Ki� legairy which allows for individual and 
clusters of cabins due to its varying character.

1

Figure 15: Poten� al Cabin Accommoda� on

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 63



18

POTENTIAL CABIN SITE ‘KITTLEGAIRY’

 Approx. 65 cabins

 Cabins should be dispersed through the
forest

 Forest should be managed as con� nuous  
cover forestry to maintain the character of
the mature woodland

 Cabins orientated to take advantage of
discreet forest se� ng, south and westerly 
aspect, and where possible views across the
valley

 Cabins should be located where they are not
detrimental to the scenic quali� es and visual 
amenity of the Tweed Valley

 Addi� onal plan� ng to provide landscape   
enhancement and to secure visual screen

 Restora� on of quarry in the longer term

 The design and layout of any poten� al cabin 
development should take account of
landscape and visual capacity findings set out 
in Figure 6: Poten� al Cabin Site - Landscape
and Visual Capacity.

Figure 16: Poten� al Cabin Site

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 64



6.0 Phasing

6.1 The indica� ve Masterplan is designed to be 
flexible. It can also be considered in 
‘development parcels’ rather than dis� nct 
and separate phases. This is because the
delivery of certain development parcels and
pieces of infrastructure are likely to be
dependent on demand.

6.2 Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES) do not
consider that they will build out this
masterplan themselves.

6.3 It would be desirable for the proposed
development to start with the Arrival
Building (Parcel B1 - close to the exis� ng Peel 
bike shop) and move east. However, it may
be likely that as a result of demand, other
 parcels may come forwards first. The  
indica� ve Masterplan allows for this. In the 
event that development takes place ‘out of
phase’, it will be important to ensure that an
acceptable access is maintained for users of
the forest.

Development Parcel A - Car Parking
6.4 As the Glentress Peel development is located

on the exis� ng Peel car park (approx. 150
spaces) any first phase of development will 
require the provision of part of the new main
car parking area - Development parcels A1 to
A5. Indeed, given that the main car parking
site (A1 to A5) already provides important
and well used overflow facili� es, it may be 
that the majority of the main car park needs

to be provided alongside the delivery of the
first parcel of development, with the exis� ng 
Peel car park closed at the outset. Should the
Peel car park be closed it would allow site
material to be moved from the new main car
park area to the Development Parcel B and
used to grade the development parcel sites.

Development Parcel B - Three Development
Parcels

6.5 Development Parcel B can be subdivided into
three development parcels associated with
the three proposed buildings, namely:

 B1 - Arrival Building Parcel
 B2 - Main Building Parcel
 B3 - Indoor Ac� vity Building Parcel

Development Parcel C - Poten� al Car Park 
Extension

6.6 It is an� cipated that should addi� onal car 
parking be required, development parcel C -
the poten� al car park extension can come 
forward at any � me.

Other
Road Infrastructure

6.7 The exis� ng roads infrastructure should be 
 able to accommodate a first phase of  
development, be it development parcel B1,
B2 or B3. The delivery of these parcels should
not affect the usability of the exis� ng Peel 
cafe, bike shop or Gateway building. The
current access arrangements to Peel Tower
may be affected but alterna� ve                   
arrangements could be made if necessary.

Landscaping and Public Realm
6.8 Areas of hard and so�  landscaping will be 

delivered on a parcel by parcel basis.
However, FES is likely to carry out ground
works in terms of moving on site material
and se� ng levels during the first / early 
phases of development.

Ac� vity Areas
6.9 The three ac� vity areas iden� fied can be 

delivered independently of the development
parcels as required.

6.10 Ac� vity Area A1 is proposed as an area for 
the loca� on of public art and short circular 
informal walks . Although this area provides
the se� ng for the Peel and the backdrop to 
the recrea� on centre, this area can come      
forward at any phase of development and is
not dependent on the delivery of certain
development parcels.

6.11 Ac� vity Area A2 is proposed as an area for 
stand alone bike skills area and pump park
for novice mountain bikers. It is considered
that the delivery of this area may be driven
by the demand of poten� al operators. 

6.12 Ac� vity Area A3 is proposed as a free ride 
area, and will be a stand alone area for free
ride and mountain bike ac� vi� es and 
specialist mountain bike ac� vi� es area for 
more advanced mountain bikers. It is
considered that the delivery of this area will
be driven by the demand of poten� al 
operators. The design and layout of the free
ride area will require to ensure that there is

19

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 65



 no conflict with the Castle Hill Scheduled 
Monument.

Forest Cabins
6.13 The forest cabin site can be delivered

independently of the Glentress Peel
development, however, this will be demand
driven and any issues with regard to service
infrastructure resolved (energy, water and
access). The forest cabins may require a
recep� on area based at Glentress Peel. It 
should be noted that the car parking
currently provided at the Buzzards Nest will
require to be relocated as part of any cabin
proposals.

20

Figure 17: Indica� ve Phasing of Proposed Development

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 66



7.0 Design and Development
Guidance

7.1 The aim of this guidance is to ensure that
high quality in the design, si� ng and layout is 
achieved.

Design of the Glentress Peel
Development

7.2 While many masterplans are understandably
people-led, development at Glentress is as
much about landscape driven experiences.
Therefore, the materials of any proposed
buildings on the site must respect its
landscape se� ng in terms of the forest and 
the hills.

7.3 To achieve this any new development at
Glentress Peel will require to adhere to a
family of forms, propor� ons and materials. 
These must respond posi� vely to the 
landscape and seek to link inside to outside
spaces.

7.4 To an extent, this should also take
cognisance of the materiality of the Peel
development. While all of these buildings use
locally sourced Douglas Fir from the
Glentress Forest, the cafe and bike shop, in
par� cular, use a high propor� on of glazing in 
order to bring the outside in and allow
people using the buildings to connect with
their outdoor environments. This is integral
to the visitor experience at Glentress.

7.5 A simple pale� e of materials should be used 
to achieve a quality design:

 Where alterna� ve materials are used, these 
should either harmonise or provide a striking
contrast.

 Keep the number of materials on new
development to a minimum.

 Detail buildings to ensure they have a good
visual appearance that lasts over � me.

 Protect and enhance biodiversity by
incorpora� ng habitat structures into the   
detailing of buildings.

Walls
7.6 Simple forms and well propor� oned 

openings. Reinforced by simple detailing to
achieve clean lines at all corners, openings,
wallheads and junc� ons with the roof and 
ground. Limited pale� e of natural materials 
(� mber, stone, zinc, slate, aluminium, 
smooth render) to compliment and
emphasise the quality of the surrounding
landscape environment.

Roof
7.7 Simple forms, all to be carefully detailed as

they are visible from surrounding areas.
Natural materials such as zinc, quality
aluminium standing seam or slate. All
accessories, verges, gu� ers to be equivalent 
quality in aluminium or galvanised to achieve
simple clean detailing.

Windows
7.8 Well propor� oned openings with simple 

clean frames (or frameless) in aluminium,
� mber or aluminium clad � mber, 
ironmongery to be brushed stainless steel.

Services
7.9 All service penetra� ons to be carefully 

considered and located discretely and/or
using quality specifica� ons.

Ground Materials
7.10 Where possible porous materials should be

used. In areas of car parking grassed
reinforced mesh will be required.

Si� ng of Forest Cabin Development

7.11 This proposed development is located within
a mature predominantly conifer woodland
which forms part a large forest. The following
guidance is intended to ensure that, by
respec� ng local landform, pa� ern of
vegeta� on, and where appropriate groupings
of exis� ng buildings; the development is in
harmony with its immediate and wider
surroundings.

 The si� ng of the forest cabin development
should not be detrimental to the visual
amenity and quality of either the landscape,
or the forest environment. The scenic
quali� es of the Tweed valley area and the rich
diversity of its natural and cultural heritage
are important assets, which the new
development must respect.

 The development should be compa� ble with
the neighbouring land uses.

 All buildings should be sited in unobtrusive

21

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 67



loca� ons, and should avoid skylines,
prominent hillsides, the external forest edge
and visually exposed sites.

 The development should be sited in such a
way as to be integrated into the surrounding
landscape which is predominantly woodland:

 Si� ng the buildings against a backdrop of
trees or within woodland se� ngs can
assist in achieving integra� on with the
surrounding landscape. However, in si� ng
developments within these se� ngs, there
is a need to ensure that the trees and
vegeta� on which create the se� ng are
safeguarded and managed as a dynamic
and sustainable ecosystem.

 Sites which require extensive screening
with new plan� ng will not generally be
appropriate.

 The layout of forest cabins and the
associated infrastructure should respect
the topography of the site. Cabins should
be located on naturally occurring terraces
or shallow gradients. Excessive earth
moving should be avoided. Exis� ng access 
routes should be used wherever possible.
New access routes should be located on
flat or gently graded slopes and avoid   
excessive cut and fill 

 The new cabins development should
respect and complement the exis� ng
vernacular of buildings at Glentress Peel.

 The perimeter boundary between the
development site and the adjacent forest

should integrate seamlessly with the
surrounding landscape and it will not be
necessary to mark the perimeter
boundary.

 The access road leading to the forest cabin
development and roadways within the
development should be of a similar
unsealed pavement design and
construc� on to the forest road and track 
network.

 Addi� onal plan� ng will be required to   
enrich and strengthen visual screening
along the external edge of the forest and
on the skylines as well as to reinforce the
se� ng of cabins and other buildings on 
the site.

Sustainable Management of the
Woodland Site

7.12 All woods and forests on Scotland’s Na� onal 
Forest Estate are required to meet the UK
Forest Standard and the provisions of the UK
Woodland Assurance Scheme which allows
them and products derived from them to be
accredited under the FSC and PEFC labels.

7.13 The Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES) will
expect the developer to manage the
woodlands on the cabin development site to
the same standards. FES will also promote
the use of accredited materials especially
wood products together with other green
prac� ces. This will allow the operator of the 
site to promote the development and the
holiday experience as sustainable.

7.14 The planning and prac� ce of responsible 
woodland management by the site developer
and operator will be underpinned by FES
requiring as a condi� on of the lease that a 
woodland management plan be drawn up
and implemented by a suitably experienced
and competent woodland manager who is a
Chartered Forester.

7.15 The cabin site at Glentress comprises part of
a larger area of forest managed under a
con� nuous cover forest (CCF) management 
regime. This area serves as a demonstra� on 
and trial area which has been managed as
such for a considerable period having been
established by Professor Mark Anderson of
Edinburgh University in collabora� on with 
FES in the 1950s. FES is commi� ed to         
ensuring that the integrity of the CCF area is
retained and progressed in accordance with
the wider CCF plan at Glentress. This will be
reflected in the cabin site lease.  

7.16 The masterplan sets out to segregate
ac� vi� es through the zona� on of forest     
recrea� onal ac� vity whilst integra� ng with 
the woodland environment and forest
management – and the wider property at
Glentress as part of a more extensive land
management plan. This will include the
development of the Netherhorsburgh and
Castlehill areas and provide for a new � mber 
haul route to reduce � mber traffic from the 
Glentress Peel area.

22

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 68



Design of the Glentress Forest Cabin
Development

7.17 Many forest cabin types are of a non-
tradi� onal design, and are o� en imported
from either Scandinavia or North America.
The materials, colours and the form and
propor� on of the buildings, do not tend to
reflect tradi� onal rural Sco� sh architecture.
The aim of this sec� on of the design guidance
is therefore to encourage high quality
building designs which fit be� er into the rural
Sco� sh context.

7.18 The following guidance does not however
preclude innova� ve design of buildings.
Where proposals do come forward for high
quality, innova� vely designed cabins in
appropriate loca� ons, these will be
considered on their merits. This will include
cabins which incorporate the use of
sustainable materials, and are designed to
maximise energy efficiency. 

7.19 The following design criteria will encourage
be� er design and integra� on.

Buildings
7.20 Form and mass: Mul� -aspect buildings which

use form to create simple outlines and break
up the mass of the building will be
encouraged. This style of building is most
appropriate to the mul� -level layering of
vegeta� on in a forest se� ng. While simple 
asymmetrical designs are likely to be
appropriate, ‘A’ frame style cabin designs,
characterised by steep pitched roofs which
start from the ground floor level and        

dominate the building, should be avoided.
The symmetrical form and single aspect
layout of these buildings limits layout op� ons 
and is therefore o� en difficult to integrate 
sa� sfactorily into the landscape. While it is
important to demonstrate unity across the
site by crea� ng common design materials, 
propor� ons and features, some varia� on in 
size and design of structures will be
encouraged.

7.21 Construc� on of founda� ons: Cabins should
be constructed using a ‘floa� ng’ floor         
construc� on method supported by piles. This 
is to limit the groundworks and excava� on 
required to site cabins in this woodland site,
and minimize disrup� on to roots and natural 
site drainage within the forest area.

7.22 Height, scale and propor� on of buildings: It
is recognised that there is a need to provide a
range of sizes of accommoda� on. However,
the height of the majority of buildings will be
restricted to single and 1 ½ storeys, where
the roof pitch commences at ground floor 
ceiling level. Where it can be demonstrated
that a 2 storey building can be
accommodated within the forest se� ng  
without adverse visual impact, this will be
considered as a minority component of the
development.

7.23 Roof pitch: The roof pitch of tradi� onal
domes� c architecture in Scotland ranges
from 40 to 45 degrees. Flat and low roof
pitches are not appropriate as they will
appear out of propor� on to the height of the 

cabin. Cabins should be designed with roof
pitches which are appropriate to the design of
building, the roof eaves should provide for a
generous overhang, both to ensure that the
buildings are well propor� oned and to      
reduce the impact of any flare on windows 
catching the light.

7.24 Materials: All building walls should be � mber 
clad. The buildings across the site should be
unified by consistent use of materials and 
common detailing. All roof � les should be 
slate or clay � les, the la� er to be dark grey or 
dark grey-green in colour.

7.25 Windows: Cabins should have a ver� cal
emphasis to windows, and subdivision of
windows should retain or reinforce this
ver� cal emphasis. Pa� o doors are a common
feature in the design of cabins and are not
precluded by this guidance. Windows should
be angled or shaded by overhanging eaves to
reduce ‘flare’ from the sun – light glancing off 
large windows is likely to be the most visually
distrac� ng aspect of the development when 
viewed from a distance.

 The propor� on of solid to void space
should also be considered, with the solid
element being dominant. A large
propor� on of glazing on a single eleva� on
would be appropriate, accommoda� ng
innova� ve design proposals, if it could be
demonstrated that the poten� al
contribu� on to light pollu� on was        
acceptable under a dark skies policy for
the development.

23

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 69



 Where the roof space is required for
accommoda� on, the preference is for the
use of roof lights. However these should
also have a ver� cal emphasis, should not
take up more than one third of the roof
space, and should be of a design which
minimises projec� on above the roof
plane. Dormers are not appropriate for
this type of development.

7.26 Decking, Terraces and Verandahs: These
should generally be accommodated within
the main form of the building, which would
provide the addi� onal benefits of shelter. 
Verandahs and balconies should be restricted
to the ground floor level and should be     
integrated with the building, in terms of
detail design, structural compa� bility and 
materials.

7.27 Materials and Colour:

 The preference will be, as far as possible,
for materials to be obtained from a
demonstrably accredited sustainable
source.

 All buildings will be � mber clad with a 
close boarded � mber texture and
profile finish. Imita� on � mber
material will not be acceptable.

 Roofing materials should be non-
reflec� ve and have a ma�  finish.    
Suitable materials would include
slates, clay � les shingles, or shee� ng.
The configura� on, type and size of
� les should reflect the scale of the 
building. Not all shee� ng material will

be appropriate, but that which is ma�
and textured or finely profiled in finish 
could be considered.

 Cabin buildings made of � mber are
normally permi� ed to age, or ‘silver’, 
naturally where this is a characteris� c 
of the � mber, or should be stained 
brown in colour. Orange or reddish
brown and yellowish pine stain is
inappropriate. Mid to darker browns
are more appropriate, and will assist in
integra� ng buildings into the forest
landscape.

 Roof colour should be darker than the
colour of the external walls.

Ancillary Buildings
7.28 The guidance set out above is applicable

to all buildings within a development,
including any recep� on, communal and 
service buildings.

 Energy Efficiency
7.29 Cabins should be designed and

constructed to a high standards, which
incorporates measures to promote
energy efficiency. The choice of materials 
can also assist in promo� ng energy      
efficiency. 

Disabled Access
7.30 The needs of disabled people must be taken

into considera� on in the design of the cabin
developments, and developers will be
encouraged to provide some units which are
designed to be accessible to a range of

disabled people, including wheelchair users.

Layout of Buildings and Landscape
Design

7.31 Layout
 Within a cabin development, the buildings

and access routes should be laid out in a
manner which respects the topography of the
site, and avoids building on steep slopes. The
development should take advantage of
natural terracing and earth moving to create
pla� orms for building will not be acceptable.

 Cabins should be sited so that they sit back
into the forest where they can take
advantage of views but be largely hidden by
topography and established woodland from
public viewpoints across the floor of the 
Tweed valley.

 Cabin developments should be irregularly
spaced in a low density, dispersed pa� ern 
with sufficient separa� on space between
buildings to provide some openness, ensure
that woodland cover can be sustainably
managed, and creates a well scaled se� ng 
for each cabin that also provides adequate
privacy for individual cabins.

 Cabin density can be varied and made more
irregular by the inclusion of dispersed single
cabins sites and small, loose ‘groupings’ of
cabins.

 Cabin orienta� on should vary to ensure that 
an informal layout dominates the pa� ern of 
the development. Cabins should be located to
take advantage of the intermi� ent views,  
aspect and the mature woodland se� ng.

 The woodland se� ng, and access for its    

24

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 70



con� nued management, should dominate 
over the density of the built development.

 Where cabins are to be located adjacent to
exis� ng groups of buildings, (for example in a
phased development) then the density and
layout should respect that of the exis� ng
grouping.

 Cabins should not have their own formally
defined cur� lage, but should sit within a high
quality forest se� ng that blends with the 
surrounding forest.

 The access road and internal road layout
should be designed to be appropriate to the
forest se� ng. This should comprise of a
design similar to forest roads and tracks with
a water bound surface. Developers will be
required to consider the requirements of
access by emergency vehicles, in designing
the road layout. The developers should
discuss the internal layout with the Roads
Planning Sec� on of the Council and the
Forest Enterprise Scotland as land manager
to ensure segrega� on of recrea� on users, 
cabin residents and forest management
traffic. 

 Exis� ng public recrea� on facili� es within the 
development site should be retained and
relocated to a new more appropriate site as
envisaged in the Glentress masterplan
complete with appropriate pedestrian and
cycle route connec� ons to the cabin           
development site. The through route for
public access from Glentress forest to Peebles
(‘Janet’s Brae’) must be retained.

 Car parking should be suitably located within
the development, where spaces are provided

for each cabin these should be sensi� vely 
located, ideally to either the side or the rear
of the building, and away from the main
eleva� on. Large communal car parking areas
to serve cabins should be avoided, although
small, well sited, communal car parking areas
may be appropriate in some circumstances.

 Secure bike storage and/or parking should be
considered within the cabin development.

7.32 Landscape Design
 The landscape design should assist integrate

the development into the wider forest
landscape by ensuring that any earthworks
reflect natural landform gradients and shape, 
by crea� ng an informal layout of paths and 
reinforcing woodland character by addi� onal 
plan� ng where necessary. 

 New plan� ng should aim to reinforce the 
‘large conifer’ woodland character of this site
and species selected should be appropriate
to the aims of the con� nuous cover forest 
management system.

 Landscape design and visual screening of the
development is expected to maximise the use
of exis� ng woodland and mature trees and 
not rely on the establishment of new
woodland.

 Landscape design proposals, including details
of any proposed earthworks, new plan� ng, 
path works and other access routes, ligh� ng 
and addi� onal infrastructure and details of 
external hard works and structures will
complement the forest management plan.
The landscape proposals will be required to
be designed as an integral part of the overall

development, and developers will be
required to submit a landscape design plan as
part of any planning applica� on.

 Both hard and so�  landscape works should 
be of a high quality materials and
appropriate low tech specifica� on to be 
agreed with Forest Enterprise Scotland.

Ligh� ng
7.33 Given the forest se� ng and loca� on of the 

site together with the need to fulfil              
sustainable design principles, adop� on of a 
dark sky ligh� ng policy should be ac� vely  
pursued which would include:-

 Exterior ligh� ng on all buildings should be
kept to a minimum, and should be designed
in such a way as to minimise light pollu� on.
All ligh� ng should be directed downwards, 
with shielding to avoid cas� ng light upwards 
or beyond where it is required. for security
and safety purposes.

 Ligh� ng of roads and footpaths will not be
required within the cabin developments.
Sufficient illumina� on will o� en be given
from exterior ligh� ng on the buildings. Where
addi� onal ligh� ng is required, it should be
kept to a minimum and be shielded and
directed downwards in such a way as to
minimise light pollu� on. Ligh� ng on access
routes should be kept to a low level and not
erected on high free standing columns.

Infrastructure Requirements
7.34 Developers will be required to demonstrate

that proposed cabins can be suitably accessed

25

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 71



and serviced:-
 The main forest road access to the site

should be of a suitable standard which is
capable of accommoda� ng, in safety, the
level of traffic which will be generated both 
for construc� on purposes and subsequent 
use by visitors, service and emergency
vehicles.

 The site is located within the catchment of
the River Tweed which is a Special Area of
Conserva� on. The provision of adequate
water supply, drainage and sewage disposal
facili� es will need to meet the requirements
of Sco� sh Natural Heritage, Sco� sh          
Environment Protec� on Agency, Building
Standards and Sco� sh Water standards. The
Tweed Commissioners will also need to be
consulted.

 Electricity and other u� lity way leaves will 
need to be sensi� vely routed to ensure that 
visual aesthe� cs, the ecological integrity and 
physical stability of the forest are not
compromised. Where possible these should
coincide with access tracks and paths leading
to the buildings whilst not compromising the
ability to maintain these and also manage
woodland cover in accordance with the
woodland management plan.

Occupancy Restric� ons
7.35 The cabins will be designed to be used as self-

catering holiday accommoda� on. Therefore, 
occupancy restric� ons will be required and 
this will be considered through means of a
Planning Condi� on or a Sec� on 75 Legal 
Agreement. An example of a suitable
occupancy condi� on could be set to run in 4 x 

13 week cycles, allowing the same person/
household/group of persons occupancy for
four weeks within each 13 week cycle.

Legal Agreements
7.36 A Sec� on 75 agreement will be necessary to

ensure that occupancy restric� ons are
properly enforced. It is understood that this
will be reinforced by the lease granted by
Forest Enterprise Scotland to the developer.
The lease will also set out other provisions
including the requirement for responsible
forest management both within the site and
also within the adjacent forest in close
proximity to the site so as to maintain a
favourable experience for visitors.

Planning Condi� ons
7.37 Cabin proposals o� en raise similar ma� ers

that need to be addressed and confirmed 
through condi� ons of the planning consent.
Most of the informa� on below will have been
obtained by the applicant in preparing the
proposal or provided while the applica� on is
processed. The following checklist will be
considered in assessing proposals for the
cabin development:

 The use of the buildings is for holiday le� ng
purposes only and does not extend to
permanent residen� al use.

 The maximum period of let or occupa� on of
buildings within the development to the
same individual, or any individual within a
group of people, will be restricted to a set
period within a calendar year.

 A layout plan for the cabins indica� ng the 
loca� ons by cabin type and including         

ancillary buildings, infrastructure, road
access, car parking, ligh� ng and services will 
be provided.

 Plans and eleva� ons illustra� ng the range of 
cabin types to be used on the site.

 A schedule of materials and finishes for  
buildings; fences or other structures; parking,
access roads and footpaths; and details of
external ligh� ng. Samples to be provided on 
request.

 A woodland management plan which
includes measures for the protec� on of
exis� ng trees to be retained and details of
any engineering opera� ons which may affect 
their longevity; details of tree surgery and
felling opera� ons; a detailed specifica� on for 
the future con� nuous cover management of 
the exis� ng and proposed woodland; the  
loca� on, density and species composi� on of 
proposed tree and shrub plan� ng and a
specifica� on to ensure the establishment and
maintenance of any new plan� ng or           
regenera� on of trees.

 A landscape design plan that will include
details of exis� ng and proposed ground    
levels, new plan� ng and path layouts, all  
vehicular access routes, car parking and
turning areas, the loca� on of ligh� ng and 
other structures and services.

 Provision for the maintenance of the exterior
of the buildings (including materials and the
colour of finishes); parking and circula� on
surfaces; refuse and other storage; boundary
treatment; and any communal facili� es.

26

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 72



Images courtesy of Barton Willmore
& Forest Enterprise Scotland

27

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 73



8.0 Submission Requirements

8.1  Any planning proposal should reflect the
guidance set out in this Masterplan
document and also the developer guidance
set out in Annex A. The following paragraphs
describe where suppor� ng informa� on 
should be submi� ed alongside any planning  
applica� on. If possible these should be 
submi� ed to the Council at an early stage to 
achieve an effec� ve development 
management process.

Pre-Applica� on Consulta� on Report

8.2 Any development proposals for a site of 2
hectares or more will require pre-applica� on
consulta� on to be carried out. A report
should be prepared to evidence that
consulta� on has taken place in line with
the statutory requirements for major
development as set out in the Planning
etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 (sec� on 35C) and
Part 2 of The Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regula� ons 2008. Consulta� on
should also follow guidance on Community
Engagement contained in Planning Advice
Note 3/2010 and Planning Advice Note
3/2013 - Development Management
Procedures.

Design & Access Statement

8.3 A Design and Access Statement must
demonstrate how the proposed
development design meets the development

vision and principles set out in this
masterplan document. This should include a
thorough site and contextual analysis.

8.4 The following can be used as suitable

headings to structure the statement:

• Landscape Character

• Views

• Infrastructure and Access

• Built Character

• Si� ng of development

• Sustainable development

• Density and Use

• Open space and recrea� on

• Layout and legibility

• Energy efficient design 

• Rela� onship to site and landform

• Materials

• Boundary treatments

and the following key issues for proposed

buildings:

• Scale/propor� on/materials/colour/ 

Ar� cula� on

• Details

• Rela� onship to site

• Rela� onship to adjacent buildings/
Structures

• Dis� nc� veness

28

Landscape Assessment

8.5 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA) to iden� fy the exact areas where 
woodland enhancement is required, and to
assess the visual impacts of any development
and layout of proposals from key viewpoints
to be agreed with the Council. The
assessment must address issues such as:

• Landform

• Site features and characteris� cs

• Site arrangement

 Views into, through and out of site

 Vegeta� on pa� ern

Landscaping & Structure Plan� ng

Statement

8.6 Any applica� on should include a statement

on future maintenance of the proposed and

exis� ng plan� ng.

Archaeological Assessment and Mi� ga� on 
Strategy

8.7 A detailed archaeological assessment
complete with mi� ga� on strategy will be 
required for any applica� on submi� ed within 
the area covered by this masterplan. This
will require to be agreed with the Council’s
Archaeologist as well as Historic Environment
Scotland (where it relates to a Scheduled
Monument) and may include the
requirement for a monitoring strategy. Early
consulta� on with the Councils Archaeology 
Officer and Historic Environment Scotland is 
advised.

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 74



Transport Assessment

8.8 A Transport Assessment (TA) should be
submi� ed demonstra� ng how the              
development will func� on in transport terms 
with emphasis on sustainable travel pa� erns. 
The TA will have to take account of any local
area transport study. The TA will require to
take account of all proposed developments
at Glentress regardless of phasing.

Retail / Commercial Jus� fica� on Report

8.9 With any applica� on submi� ed a report 
detailing the jus� fica� on for any retail / 
commercial development on the site will be
required.

Biodiversity & Phase 1 Habitat Survey

8.10 A Phase 1 Habitat Survey should be included
in any submission and iden� fy semi-natural 
vegeta� on and other wildlife habitats.       
Developers will also be required to
demonstrate that there will be no significant 
adverse effects on the River Tweed SSSI / 
SAC, as well as ensuring that the ancient and
community woodlands are protected. An
European Protected Species and Protected
Species survey may be required and it should
be noted that any site clearance required
should be undertaken outside the bird
breeding season.

Flood Risk Assessment

8.11  A number of small watercourses flow within 
the site.  Therefore, further informa� on must 
be provided showing that the proposals will

not be at flood risk and will not increase 
flood risk elsewhere. This informa� on may be 
in the form of a Flood Risk Assessment.

Drainage Impact Assessment

8.12 A Drainage Impact Assessment should be
included in any submission and address
issues such as the development’s impact on
the catchment area and waste and surface
water drainage solu� ons, including details of 
proposed SUDS.

 Energy Efficiency 

8.13 Developers must submit a statement for the
Council’s approval detailing how energy
efficiency measures and low and zero carbon 
technologies will be incorporated into the
development, and the level of CO2 reduc� on 
that these will achieve.

BREEAM

8.14 A BREEAM (Building Research
Establishment’s Environmental Assessment
Method) statement should demonstrate how
advice has been sought from a licensed
assessor at an early stage in the project to
ensure that the es� mated ra� ng will be    
obtained. A full list of licensed assessors can
be found by contac� ng the BREEAM office.  
http://www.breeam.com/

Refuse Vehicle Access Strategy

8.15 This strategy should include details of
suitable turning areas for refuse vehicles,

29

swept path analysis and details of bin
loca� ons.

Waste Management

8.16 Details of a waste management scheme
should be discussed at an early stage with
the Council’s Waste Management team.

Water Quality

8.17 Sco� sh Water has confirmed that the       
proposed development is located upstream
of Borehole assets located near Innerlethen.
The proposed development will require
appropriate water quality and quan� ty     
protec� on measures.

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 75



Appendix 1: List of Policy Documents
and Policies

Na� onal Planning Framework 

Sco� sh Planning Policy 

Designing Streets – A Policy Statement pu� ng 
street design at the centre of placemaking.

Crea� ng Places - A Policy Statement on

architecture and place.

Planning Advice Notes (PAN):

• PAN 44: Fi� ng New Housing Development into 
the Landscape

• PAN 61: Planning and SUDS

• PAN 65: Planning and Open Space

• PAN 67: Quality Housing

• PAN 77: Designing Safer Places

• PAN 78: Inclusive Design

• PAN 83: Masterplanning

SESPlan Strategic Development Plan
• Policy 11: Delivering the Green Network

Sco� sh Borders Local Development Plan Polices:
• Policy PMD1: Sustainability

• Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

• Policy ED3: Town Centres and Shopping
Development

• Policy ED5: Regenera� on

• Policy ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure
Development in the Countryside

• Policy ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites

• Policy HD3: Protec� on of Residen� al Amenity

Policy EP1: Interna� onal Nature Conserva� on and 
Protected Species

• Policy EP2: Na� onal Nature Conserva� on and  
Protected Species

• Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity

• Policy EP4: Na� onal Scenic Areas

• Policy EP5: Special Landscape Areas

• Policy EP8: Archaeology

• Policy EP12: Green Networks

• Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

• Policy IS1: Public Infrastructure and Local Service
Provision

• Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards

• Policy IS8: Flooding

• Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and
Sustainable Urban Drainage.

30

Supplementary Planning Guidance:

• Biodiversity

• Designing out Crime in the Sco� sh Borders 

• Green Space

• Landscape and Development

• Local Landscape Designa� ons 

• Placemaking and Design

• Trees and Development

• Use of Timber in Sustainable Construc� on

Supplementary Guidance/

Proposed Supplementary Guidance

• Biodiversity
• Development Contribu� ons
• Flooding

• Green Networks
• Greenspace

• Landscape and Development

• Placemaking and Design

• Sustainable Urban Drainage

• Trees and Development

• Use of Timber in Sustainable Construc� on

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 76



Appendix 2: Early Consulta� on

Early consulta� on was undertaken leading up to 
the crea� on of this document.  That consulta� on 
consisted of:

 Stakeholder workshops
 Community workshops
 Ques� onnaire

The consulta� on events considered how new 
development at Glentress might complement other
neighbouring a� rac� ons located within the Tweed 
Valley.

The key points that were drawn from both the
stakeholder and community workshops were:

• Build on Exis� ng Assets and Strengths
• Connec� ons and Links
• Where Future Development should Be Focused
• Filling the Accommoda� on Gap
• Providing for Families
• Visibility of A� rac� ons
• Cycle Tourism
• Market, Branding and Communica� on
• Signage, Wayfi nding and Interpreta� on
• Diversity / Proximity / Accessibility

31

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 77



Appendix 3: Key Themes from Valley
Strategy

In order to understand the exis� ng issues and     
opportuni� es the engagement approach used the 
following topics, or key themes, as a basis for
discussion and to develop concepts:

 Environment and Landscape

 Cultural Heritage

 A� rac� ons and Des� na� ons 

 Access and Movement

32

Glentress Masterplan

Access and Movement

Cultural Heritage

A� rac� ons and Des� na� ons

Environment and Landscape

P
age 78



The Ribs are:
 lateral routes from the Spine;

 of varying quality;

 essen� al to the wider movement network; 
and

 essen� al to maximising the poten� al of the 
Spine.

Sensi� ve and sustainable development could then 
be considered in Core areas. Logically, these could
be focused around areas of exis� ng development 
and comprise of:
 Peebles;

 Innerleithen; and

 Glentress / Cardrona.

Interes� ngly, the Glentress / Cardrona Core forms a 

centre point on the Spine and already contains a

number of established a� rac� ons such as Glentress 

Peel, Go-Ape and the Cardrona Hotel.

Set along the Spine are Nodes (generally defined as 
‘areas of ac� vity’), located at either path 
intersec� ons, points of ac� vity, gateways or     
viewpoints.

The Nodes punctuate the Spine and include, but are
not necessarily limited to, the following:
 Peebles Town;

 Peebles Hydro;

 Glentress;

 Cardrona Hotel;

 Cardrona Village; and

 Innerleithen Town.

Adding a third and very important dimension to the
concept of the Spine and Nodes is that of the Ribs.

Appendix 4: Concepts from Valley
Strategy

The Valley Strategy iden� fies the most significant 
nodes of ac� vity, links / connec� ons and areas of 
opportunity across the part of the Tweed Valley in
which Glentress sits. The Valley Strategy iden� fies 
the following concepts:

 The Spine

 The Nodes

 The Ribs

 The Cores.

The Spine represents the most significant         
opportunity to promote movement and connec� on 
within the valley. The spine consists of:
 The River Tweed;

 Mul� -Use-Path (MUP);

 A72; and

 B7062.

The poten� al of the Spine should be maximise 

wherever possible.

33

Glentress Masterplan

The Cores

The Ribs

The Nodes

The Spine

P
age 79



Contacts:

Regulatory Services

John Hayward (Development Standards Manager)

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 825068 Email: JHayward@scotborders.gov.uk

Craig Miller (Lead Officer - Development Management ) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 825029 Email: CMiller@scotborders.gov.uk

Mar� n Wanless (Planning Policy & Access Manager)

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 825063 Email: MWanless@scotborders.gov.uk

Trish Connolly (Planning Officer - Plans and Research) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 825255 Email: TConnolly@scotborders.gov.uk

Jon Bowie (Developer Nego� ator)

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 824000 Email: JBowie@scotborders.gov.uk

Andy Tharme (Ecology Officer) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 826514 Email: ATharme@scotborders.gov.uk

Paul Grigor (Roads Planning Officer) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 826663 Email: PGrigor@scotborders.gov.uk

Chris Bowles (Archaeology Officer) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 826622 Email: Christopher.Bowles@scotborders.gov.uk

Jim Knight (Lead Officer Landscape) 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 824000 Email: JKnight@scotborders.gov.uk

Engineering and Infrastructure

Duncan Morrison (Flood Protec� on Programme Manager)

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 826701 Email: DMorrison@scotborders.gov.uk

Neighbourhood Services

Jason Hedley (SB Local Area Manager)

Reiver Complex, Bowden Road, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA

Tel: 01835 825117 Email: JHedley@scotborders.gov.uk

Julie Rankine (Waste Strategy Manager)

Council Headquarters - Sco�  House (A), Sprouston Road, Newtown St 

Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0QD

Tel: 01835 825180 Email: JCRankine@scotborders.gov.uk

34

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 80



35

Alterna� ve Format/Language

You can get this document on audio CD, in large
print, and various other formats by contac� ng us at 
the address below. In addi� on, contact the address 
below for informa� on on language transla� ons, 
addi� onal copies, or to arrange for an officer to 
meet with you to explain any areas of the
publica� on that you would like clarified. 

其他格式／外文譯本 

這份資料冊另備有錄音帶、大字體版本以及多

種其他格式。你可以透過以下地 

址與我們聯絡，索取不同版本。此外，你也可

以聯絡以下地址索取本資料的中 

文和其他外文譯本或索取更多拷貝。亦可要求

我們做出安排，由我們的工作人 

員當面為你解釋你對這份出版物中的不明確之

處。 

[Alternatywny format/język] 
Aby uzyskać kopię niniejszego dokumentu w 
formacie audio, dużą czcionką, oraz innych 
formatach prosimy o kontakt na poniższy adres. 
Uzykać tam można również informacje o 
tłumaczeniach na języki obce, otrzymaniu 
dodatkowych kopii oraz  zaaranżowaniu spotkania 
z urzędnikiem, który wyjaśni wątpliwości i 
zapytania związane z  treścią niniejszej publikacji. 

Parágrafo de formato/língua alterna� vos
Pode obter este documento em cassete audio,
impressão aumentada e vários outros formatos
contactando a morada indicada em baixo. Pode
ainda contactar a morada indicada em baixo para
obter informações sobre traduções noutras
línguas, cópias adicionais ou para solicitar uma
reunião com um funcionário para lhe explicar
quaisquer áreas desta publicação que deseje ver
esclarecidas.

Параграф об альтернативном формате/
языковой версии 
Чтобы получить данный документ в записи 
на пленке, в крупношрифтовой распечатке и 
в других различных форматах, вы можете 
обратиться к нам по приведенному ниже 
адресу. Кроме того, по данному адресу 
можно обращаться за информацией о 
переводе на различные языки, получении 
дополнительных копий а также с тем, чтобы 
организовать встречу с сотрудником, 
который сможет редставить объяснения по 
тем разделам публикации, которые вам 
хотелось бы прояснить.   

Contact:
Planning Policy & Access
Place,
Sco� sh Borders Council, 
Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells,
TD6 0SA.
Telephone: 0300 100 1800.
E-mail: localplan@scotborders.gov.uk

Glentress Masterplan

P
age 81



1

A nnex A –D eveloperGu id anc e

Introd u c tion

The main aim and princ iple of the S c ottis h B ord ers L oc alD evelopmentP lan (L D P )is to s u pportand enc ou rage s u s tainable and high q u ality
d evelopment. The C ou nc ilprod u c e planning briefs thats etou tthe d evelopmentvis ion and the main s trengths , weaknes s es , opportu nities and
c ons traints on s ites alloc ated in the L D P to ac hieve this .

The C ou nc ilhas als o prod u c ed d etailed gu id anc e in the form ofS u pplementary P lanning Gu id anc e (S P G)/S u pplementary Gu id anc e (S G)on a
nu mber of topic s . The C ou nc ilis c ontinu ally ad d ing to the lis tof S P Gs /S Gs thatneed s to be c ons id ered when d eveloping d evelopment
propos als . The fu lllis tofS P Gs /S Gs and d raftS Gs is available on the C ou nc il’ s webs ite.

The aim ofthis s u pporting d oc u mentto planningbriefs is to s etou tgu id anc e to d evelopers thatapply to allormos talloc ated hou s ing s ites . A s
alls ites are d ifferentin c harac terand land form they als o have d ifferents trengths and potentialc ons traints to ad d res s to be able to ac hieve a
s u s tainable plac e throu gh the u s e ofenergy effic ientd esign, c reation ofsu stainable bu ild ings, land sc ape enhanc em ents and c reation of
streets and spac es . C ons id eration s hou ld be given to ‘ D es igning ou tC rime’ , ‘ Trees and D evelopment’ and ‘ L and s c ape and D evelopment’ .

This d oc u mentwilld irec td evelopers to exis ting S P Gs /S Gs and the main S trategic D evelopmentP lan (S ES plan)and the L D P polic ies and
otherpolic y d oc u ments whic h need to be c ons id ered when working u p d evelopmentpropos als . The lis tofpolic ies is notexhau s tive and the
d oc u mentwillevolve over time and be amend ed to inc lu d e u p to d ate polic ies and rec ommend ations . C ou nc ild epartments and s ec tions
referred to in this d oc u mentc an be c ontac ted on 0 30 0 10 0 1 8 0 0 ors ee d etailed c ontac tlis tin planning briefs .

Energy Effic ientD esign

S u s tainable d es ign
The C ou nc ilis c ommitted to improving the s u s tainability of the bu iltenvironmentof the B ord ers . The B u ild ing Res earc h Es tablis hment’ s
EnvironmentalA s s es s mentM ethod (B REEA M )is a s u s tainability ratings c heme forthe bu iltenvironment. Itevalu ates the proc u rement, d es ign,
c ons tru c tion and operation ofd evelopmentagains ttargets and benc hmarks . A s s es s ments are c arried ou tby ind epend ent, lic ens ed as s es s ors
and d evelopments rated and c ertified on a s c ale ofP as s , Good , Very Good , Exc ellentand O u ts tand ing.

The c ategories c overed are:

P
age 82



2

 M anagement
 H ealthand wellbeing
 Energy
 Trans port
 W ater
 M aterials
 W as te
 L and u s e
 P ollu tion
 Innovation

D evelopments willbe expec ted to ac hieve the rating of“Exc ellent”. The Exc ellents tand ard c an be ac hieved throu gh c reative d es ign s u c h as
making bes tu s e ofnatu rald aylightand c hoos ing c ons tru c tion materials thatare appropriate to the c limate c ond itions ofthe d evelopments ite.
This means thateven s tarterhomes whic h are very pric e s ens itive c an be bu iltto thes e s tand ard s (where the inc orporation of tec hnologies
s u c has s olarpanels and wind tu rbines may notbe financ ially viable).

The s tand ard inc lu d es makingfu llu s e ofenergy c ons ervation tec hniq u es , inc lu d ing:

 Red u c tion of primary energy u s e and red u c tion of C O ² emis s ions throu gh, for example, the s iting, form , orientation and layou tof
bu ild ings whic h maximis e the benefits ofheatrec yc ling, s olarenergy, pas s ive s olargain and the effic ientu s e of natu rallight; and the
u s e ofplantingto optimis e the balanc e between s u mmers had ingand winterheatd aylightgain

 Red u c tion ofwaterc ons u mption throu gh forexample u s e ofwaterbu tts forgard en u s e, low-waterc ons u mption white good s , s howers
and W C ’ s , grey waterrec yc lingforinternalu s e

 Green s pec ific ation ofmaterials inc lu d ingthos e forbas ic bu ild ing elements and finis hing elements
 Red u c tion ofc ons tru c tion was te throu ghforexample s orting and rec yc lingc ons tru c tion was te on-s ite
 D es igningforlife-c yc le ad aptability.

A d vic e s hou ld be s ou ghtfrom a lic ens ed as s es s oratan early s tage in the projec tto ens u re thatthe es timated rating willbe obtained . A fu lllis t
oflic ens ed as s es s ors c an be fou nd by c ontac tingthe B REEA M offic e. http: //www. breeam . c om/

P
age 83



3

C ons tru c tion method s s hou ld allow forbu ild ing d ec ons tru c tion whic henables fittings and materials to be re-u s ed and /orrec yc led atthe end of
the bu ild ing’ s life.

Renewable energy & energy effic ienc y

D evelopmentpropos als s hou ld c omply with allrelevantnationalpolic y to red u c e c arbon emis s ions from d evelopment, to ac hieve high
s tand ard s ofenergy c ons ervation and to provid e on-s ite renewable energy prod u c tion where appropriate. Thes e provis ions are highlighted in
L D P P olic y P M D 2 : ‘ Q u ality S tand ard s ’ and in the S P G/S G on Renewable Energy. D evelopers mu s tc omply with thes e polic ies and provid e
evid enc e ofhow they have ad d res s ed them . O ns ite energy generation s hou ld be inc orporated into the d evelopmentwhereverpos s ible as well
as s u s tainable bu ild ing c ons tru c tion and d es ign.

The L D P P olic y ED 9: ‘ Renewable Energy D evelopment’ s tates :

“… Small scale or domestic renewable energy developments including community schemes, single turbines and micro-scale
photovoltaic/solar panels will be encouraged where they can be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings in accordance with
the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural environment. … ”

L D P P olic y P M D 1 : ‘ S u s tainability’ als o s tates :

“In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have regard to the following sustainability
principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) The long term sustainable use and management of land
b) The preservation of air and water quality
c) The protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) The protection of built and cultural resources
e) The efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) The minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its sustainable management
g) The encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the private car
h) The minimisation of light pollution … ”.

The L D P P olic y P M D 2 : ‘ Q u ality S tand ard s ’ id entifies the s tand ard s whic hwillapply to alld evelopment, inc lu d ingthat:

P
age 84



4

“… In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has demonstrated that appropriate measures have
been taken to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, … ”

The planning s ys tem s u pports low and zero c arbon d evelopmentthrou gh the u s e ofenergy effic ienc y, mic ro-generation and renewable energy
s ys tems . The C ou nc il’ s approved S P G/S G: Renewable Energy req u ires allfu tu re d evelopments with a totalc u mu lative floors pac e of50 0 m²or
more to red u c e c arbon d ioxid e (C O 2) emis s ions by 15% beyond the 20 0 7 B u ild ing Regu lation C O 2 emis s ions levels . This 15% red u c tion
s hou ld be c ons id ered a minimu m req u irement.

The S P G on Renewable Energy s tates :

(1) The Council now requires all future developments with a total cumulative floorspace of 500m²or more to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions (CO2) by 15% beyond the 2007 Building Regulations carbon dioxide emission levels

(2) To achieve this reduction, consideration should first be given to energy efficiency and building design measures

(3) Where the 15% reduction cannot be met through energy efficiency and design measures then on-site low or zero carbon
technologies (LZCT) including renewable energy systems should be used

(4) Developments under 500m²are also strongly encouraged to achieve an additional 15% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
through these measures

(5) All applications for planning permission will also now require a statement on how energy efficiency measures and low and zero
carbon technologies have been incorporated into the development proposal.

To ac hieve the req u ired red u c tion in C O 2 emis s ions the d evelopments hou ld firs tgive c ons id eration to energy c ons ervation meas u res and
s u s tainable d es ign and c ons tru c tion tec hniq u es to red u c e the energy d emand ofthe d evelopment. O nc e energy d emand has been minimis ed
c ons id eration s hou ld then be given to the u s e of low and zero c arbon tec hnologies (L ZC T)foron-s ite heatand /orpowergeneration. L ZC T
inc lu d es c ommu nity heating s c hemes and c ombined heatand powers c hemes whic hwou ld s erve the d evelopmentas whole.

P
age 85



5

D evelopers mu s t s u bmit a s tatement for the C ou nc il’ s approvald etailing how energy effic ienc y meas u res and low and zero c arbon
tec hnologies willbe inc orporated into the d evelopmentpropos al, and the levelofC O 2 red u c tion thatwillbe ac hieved .

B road gu id anc e on the C O 2 emis s ions red u c tions ac hievable from a range ofs u s tainable energy tec hnologies is provid ed in the table below:

(S ou rc e: Entec reportforS c ottis h B ord ers C ou nc il(A pril20 0 8 ))

This table is forind ic ative pu rpos es only. The Energy S aving Tru s tand s pec ialis ts u ppliers and c ontrac tors willbe able to provid e u p-to-d ate
information and ad vic e whic hmay be ofu s e to d evelopers in formu lating propos als .

S c ale oftec hnology N ame oftec hnology P otential
C O 2
emis s ions
red u c tion

S ite-wid e /c ommu nal B iomas s d is tric theating Upto 7 0 %
Gas c ombined heatand power(C H P ) Upto 50 %
B iomas s c ombined heatand power(C H P ) Upto 50 %
W ind tu rbine(s ) Upto 50 %

Ind ivid u ald welling B iomas s boiler Upto 65%
S olarphotovoltaic c ells /panels Upto 35%
Grou nd s ou rc e heatpu mp Upto 35%
A d vanc ed improvements to the bu ild ingfabric Upto 30 %
S olarthermalhotwater Upto 25%
A irs ou rc e heatpu mp Upto 20 %
Intermed iate improvements to the bu ild ingfabric Upto 20 %

M ic ro wind tu rbine Upto 5%
M ic ro c ombined heatand power Upto 5%

P
age 86



6

W aterand was tewaterc apac ity and S u s tainable Urban D rainage S ys tems (S UD S )

L D P P olic y IS 9: W as te W aterTreatmentS tand ard s and S u s tainable Urban D rainage ou tlines the C ou nc il’ s view ofthe preferred way ofd ealing
with was te water and S UD S . In terms of water and was te water c apac ity and network is s u es , early c ontac t with S c ottis h W ater is
rec ommend ed .

P rovis ion forS UD S thateffec tively manage the flow ofrain waterru noffby treating itwithin the s ite and ac c ord s with c u rrentd es ign princ iples
are req u ired in alld evelopments . Fu rthergu id anc e c an be fou nd in P A N 61 ‘ P lanning and S u s tainable Urban D rainage S ys tem ’ . S c ottis h
W aterand S EP A c an provid e more d etailed ad vic e.

S u stainable B u ild ings

D es ign and plac emaking

The C ou nc ilhas prod u c ed a S P G on ‘ P lac emaking and D es ign’ . The d oc u ments ets ou tthe key s u s tainable plac emaking objec tives thatany
new d evelopmentin the S c ottis hB ord ers s hou ld s trive to ac hieve.

Key c ons id erations thatneed to be c ons id ered to ac hieve highq u ality bu ild ings and plac es are s u mmaris ed in the figu re below:

P
age 87



7

N ationalgu id anc e is available in a nu mberof d oc u ments inc lu d ing ‘ S c ottis h P lanning P olic y’ (S P P ), ‘ C reating P lac es : A polic y s tatementon
arc hitec tu re and plac e forS c otland ’ , P A N 67 ‘ H ou s ingQ u ality’ and P A N 7 7 ‘ D es igningS aferP lac es ’ .

D es igningou tc rime

The C ou nc ilhas an approved S P G on ‘ D es igning ou tC rime in the S c ottis h B ord ers ’ thataims to improve awarenes s amongs tthe d evelopment
ind u s try and hou s ehold ers , and inc lu d es prac tic algu id anc e to ens u re the following topic s are c ons id ered to c reate an attrac tive and s afer
environment:

P
age 88



8

 P lanning ofs ites (inc lu d ingphas ing)
 L ayou tofs ites (road s and footpaths )
 L ayou tofd evelopment(c as u als u rveillanc e)
 L and s c aping(loc ation and type ofplanting and maintenanc e)
 L ighting
 D es ign (s ite and hou s e d es ign)

N ationalgu id anc e is available in P A N 7 7 ‘ D es igningS aferP lac es ’ .

A fford able hou s ing

The req u irementforafford able hou s ing s hou ld be metin line with L D P P olic y H D 1 ‘ A fford able H ou s ing and S pec ialN eed s H ou s ing’ and the
S P G/S G on A fford able H ou s ing. The proportion ofafford able hou s ingto be provid ed willbe in ac c ord anc e withthe pres entpolic y and d epend s
on whathou s ing marketarea a s pec ific s ite is inc lu d ed in. A fford able hou s ing u nits are likely to be req u ired on s ite and s hou ld be d es igned to
integrate withotherhou s es on the s ite.

The c u rrentlevels ofc ontribu tions are inc lu d ed in the table below.
H ou s ing M arketA rea A fford able H ou s ingRequ irement(% )
B erwic ks hire 25
C entralB ord ers 25
N orthern 25
S ou thern 25

S ome s ites in the L D P willbe loc ated c los e to orin C ons ervation A reas or c los e to L is ted B u ild ings . Fornew d evelopmentnotto have a
negative impac ton the bu iltheritage, the C ou nc ilhas ou tlined its polic ies in EP 7 ‘ L is ted B u ild ings ’ and EP 9 ‘ C ons ervation A reas ’ . O ther
relevantpolic y d oc u ments are H is toric S c otland ’ s S c ottis h H is toric EnvironmentP olic y (S H EP ) and the gu id anc e notes s eries – ‘ M anaging
C hange in the H is toric Environment’ .

L D P P olic y EP 8 ‘ A rc haeology’ req u ires d etailed inves tigation where a d evelopmentpropos alimpac ts on a S c hed u led M onu ments , other
nationally importants ites , or any other arc haeologic alor his toric alas s et. N ationalgu id anc e is available S P P and S H EP . The C ou nc il’ s
A rc haeology O ffic erc an provid e more d etailed ad vic e.

P
age 89



9

L and sc ape Enhanc em ents

O pen s pac e, green s pac e and play areas

L D P P olic ies P M D 2 ‘ Q u ality S tand ard s ’ , E P 1 1 ‘ P rotec tion of Greens pac e’ and EP 12 ‘ Green N etworks c overs the provis ion, protec tion and
promotion of greens pac e. The S P G on Green S pac e/S G on Greens pac e is als o req u ired to be c ons id ered when preparing d evelopment
propos als .

The S P G on Green S pac e s tates thatthe C ou nc ilmay req u ire d evelopers :
 “To provid e orfu nd ad d itionalprovis ion where there are id entified q u antitative d efic ienc ies in provis ion within the appropriate d is tanc e

thres hold s ofa propos ed d evelopment, orwhere the d evelopmentwillres u ltin q u antitative d efic ienc ies
 To c ontribu te to the enhanc ementof exis ting provis ion when there is a id entified q u alitative d efic ienc y in provis ion when there is an

id entified q u alitative d efic ienc y in provis ion within the appropriate d is tanc e thres hold s ofa propos ed d evelopmentand one effec tofthe
d evelopmentwillbe to inc reas e the d emand pres s u re on thes e s pac es and fac ilities . ”

The req u irementford evelopments c an be very d ifferentand the C ou nc ilwillu s e q u antity s tand ard s s etou tin the S P G orpropos ed S G to
d etermine the s c ale of c ontribu tions req u ired toward s new off-s ite provis ion orthe enhanc ementof exis ting off-s ite provis ion. D etails of the
s tand ard s are inc lu d ed in the S P G/S G and itals o enc ou rages pre-applic ation d is c u s s ions withthe P lanningO ffic ers .

A d vic e atnationallevelis available in S P P and P A N 65 ‘ P lanning and O pen S pac e’ .

E c ology, habitats and trees

L D P P olic ies EP 3 ‘ L oc alB iod ivers ity’ , E P 13 ‘ Trees , W ood land s and H ed gerows ’ and the S P Gs /S Gs on ‘ Trees and D evelopment’ , ‘ L and s c ape
and D evelopment’ and ‘ B iod ivers ity’ provid e gu id anc e on thes e is s u es and lis twhatis req u ired ford evelopments .

The main princ iple forprotec tion ofbiod ivers ity is to promote d evelopmentthatis s u s tainable and protec tbiod ivers ity s o there is no netlos s of
biod ivers ity. The d egree ofprotec tion ofa s ite d epend s on its pos ition within the hierarc hy ofd es ignations to protec ts pec ies and habitats .
The key c ons id erations in terms ofland s c ape are:

 L and s c ape implic ations ofplanningapplic ations in terms ofs ite c ontext, propos ed layou t, fu tu re u s e and maintenanc e
 M inimis e impac tby retaining exis tingtrees , s hru bs , bou nd ary featu res etc . whereverpos s ible.

P
age 90



10

In res pec tof the Ec ologic alImpac t A s s es s ment, fu rther gu id anc e is available in the C ou nc il’ s S u pplementary P lanning Gu id anc e for
biod ivers ity: http: //www. s c otbord ers . gov. u k/d ownload s /file/31 8 /biod ivers ity S ec tion 4. 2 (Ecological Impact Assessment), S ec tion 4. 3. 1
(Demolition or change of use etc).

In terms oftrees and d evelopment, d evelopers s hou ld :
 Ens u re d evelopments c hemes inc lu d e meas u res to s afegu ard trees and where appropriate to s u pplementan area’ s tree c over
 P rovid e d etailed tree and land s u rvey forapplic ation s ites in c los e proximity to trees , oron s ite whic htrees are growing.

D etailed arrangements forfu tu re maintenanc e ofland s c aping on a s ite willbe req u es ted as partofany planning applic ation. Early c ontac twith
the C ou nc ilto d is c u s s biod ivers ity, trees and land s c apingis s u es is rec ommend ed .

L and s c ape d es ignations

A nu mberofalloc ated s ites are loc ated in the proximity ofland s c ape d es ignations , forexample Gard ens and D es igned L and s c apes , N ational
S c enic A reas , S pec ialL and s c ape A reas , S pec ialA rea of C ons ervation and S ite of S pec ialS c ientific Interes t. Thes e d es ignations are
protec ted agains tad vers e impac tfrom d evelopmentthrou gh L D P P olic ies EP 1 0 ‘ Gard ens and D es igned L and s c apes ’ , E P 1 ‘ International
C ons ervation S ites and P rotec ted S pec ies ’ , E P 2 ‘ N ationalN atu re C ons ervation and P rotec ted S pec ies ’ , E P 4 ‘ N ationalS c enic A reas ’ and EP 5
‘ S pec ialL and s c ape A reas ’ and nationalpolic ies . P lanning propos als fors ites in c los e proximity s hou ld d etailthe impac ton thes e areas and
how to mitigate the ad vers e impac t.

C reation ofS treets and S pac es

Road s and ac c es s

Road d es ign s hou ld notbe c onc eived in is olation, bu tas an elementin the overalld es ign of the d evelopment. The C ou nc il’ s ‘ S tand ard s for
D evelopmentRoad s ’ s hou ld s erve as a gu id e forthe form of d evelopmenton the s ite, bu ts hou ld be flexible enou gh s o as notto inhibitthe
d es ign ofan innovative les s c ard ominantlayou twhic hres pec ts the land form and c harac terofthe area.

IS 5 ‘ P rotec tion ofA c c es s Rou tes ’ , IS 6 ‘ Road A d option S tand ard s ’ and the C ou nc il’ s Trans portation S tand ard s (L D P A ppend ix 3)and S c ottis h
Government’ s ‘ D es igning S treets : A P olic y S tatementforS c otland ’ . The nationald oc u mentpromotes an informals ys tem of wellc onnec ted

P
age 91



11

s treets withnatu raltraffic c alming(bu ild ing lines , s q u ares , s hared road s u rfac es etc )bu iltin and eq u alpriority given to alltrans portmod es s u c h
as pas s engertrans port, walkingand c yc ling. D evelopers are ad vis ed to c ontac tthe C ou nc il’ s Road s P lanning S ervic e forfu rtherad vic e.

P arking

In a d evelopmentwhere c arparking s pac es are alloc ated to ind ivid u alproperties the provis ionalreq u irementwillbe two parking s pac es per
d welling u nit(d is c ou nting garages ). There willbe a 25% req u irementforvis itorparking to be provid ed in grou ps oftwo s pac es ormore. For
c ommu nalc ar parking the provis ionalreq u irements , whic h inc lu d e vis itor parking, is 1 . 5-1 . 7 5 s pac es per d welling u nit. M ore d etails are
available in L D P IS 7 ‘ P arking P rovis ion and S tand ard s ’ and the C ou nc il’ s Trans portation S tand ard s (L D P A ppend ix 3). D evelopers are ad vis ed
to c ontac tthe C ou nc il’ s Road s P lanning S ervic e forfu rtherad vic e.

The d evelopers hou ld c ons id era range ofs olu tions to red u c e the impac tofc arparking on the res id entialenvironment. Thes e mightinc lu d e a
c ombination of:

 A void ingfrontgard en s pac e beingentirely given overto parking
 Us ingtrad itionalfrontgard en walls and hed ges to s tru c tu re the s treetappearanc e
 D es igningin s hared s malls c ale s emi-private c ou rtyard parking
 P lac ing largerparkingc ou rtyard s behind perimeterbloc ks
 B u ild ing s hared s u rfac es in trad itionalmaterials ratherthan u s ing c olou red c onc rete bloc k s u rfac es – forexample in parking zones ,

s u bjec tto ad option req u irements , and d omes tic d riveways .

P
age 92



Appendix B Matrix of Consultation Responses Received on Draft Masterplan

Note: Consultation responses have been summarised, however a full copy of each response has been made available in the Members Library.
          This document does not include comments in relation to the Environmental Report or the Habitats Regulations Appraisal. 

Consultee Comment Response Recommendation
Architecture 
& Design 
Scotland

We are not currently able to respond routinely to 
consultations on supplementary guidance, however 
we would be very happy to discuss with you how we 
might help in developing policy into delivery. 

Comments noted. No change.

sportScotland sportscotland recognises the role of Glentress Forest 
as one of 8 forests in the Tweed Valley Forest Park; 
with Glentress forming a key component in the 
Scottish Borders’ tourism offer, and being one of the 
UK’s premier mountain biking venues. We note that 
early consultation was undertaken leading the 
creation of the draft masterplan. We would expect 
further consultation as design progresses of the 
various elements, and we would strongly encourage 
any such consultation to include communities of 
interest (e.g. sports groups, relevant Governing 
Bodies etc.) as well as geographic communities – 
with this being in accord with the definition of 
‘community’ as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. In 
relation to any new mountain bike trails; sportscotland 
would draw attention to and encourage the following 
of recently published guidance including design 
guidance, which is available at: 
http://www.sportscotland.org.uk/resources/facilities/ou
tdoors/guide-to-project-development-for-mountain-
bike-trails-and-training-facilities/ sportscotland notified 
the SSA (Scottish Sport Association) of the draft 

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
further consultation will be undertaken by 
Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES) at the 
detailed design stage. In addition, 
consultation would also take place as part of 
the planning application process.
It should be noted that the Forestry 
Commission were instrumental in the 
initiation and development of the initial draft 
of the guidance and are therefore fully 
engaged in the implementation of best 
practice. Moving forward and as more detail 
designs progress for the mountain bike 
trails, regard will be paid to the 
Sportscotland Guide. FES intend to retain 
the wider 7stanes mountain bike trail 
network in the current locations although 
there will be alterations to trails, including 
access/egress in and around the Buzzard’s 
Nest car park and the proposed cabin site. 
In addition, it should be noted that the 
Masterplan already attempts to 

No change.

1

P
age 93

http://www.sportscotland.org.uk/resources/facilities/outdoors/guide-to-project-development-for-mountain-bike-trails-and-training-facilities/
http://www.sportscotland.org.uk/resources/facilities/outdoors/guide-to-project-development-for-mountain-bike-trails-and-training-facilities/
http://www.sportscotland.org.uk/resources/facilities/outdoors/guide-to-project-development-for-mountain-bike-trails-and-training-facilities/
http://www.sportscotland.org.uk/resources/facilities/outdoors/guide-to-project-development-for-mountain-bike-trails-and-training-facilities/


masterplan. Feedback from this exercise is 
summarised below: Redevelopment would provide an 
ideal opportunity to establish a permanent 
orienteering course and it is recommended that this is 
considered. There isn’t much attention of access 
relative to outdoor sports; it may be helpful to draw 
out more reference to the Outdoor Access Code for 
all users. Related to this; consideration may need to 
be given at a later stage to potential conflicts between 
mountain biking and holiday-makers (e.g. from 
proposed cabins) on paths. It is assumed that all 
existing mountain biking routes and descents will stay 
intact – can this be confirmed?

prevent/reduce areas of conflict between all 
users such as bikers, pedestrians and 
vehicles. 

Scottish 
Natural 
Heritage

We welcome the inclusion of natural features in 
‘Opportunities’; this recognises the positive role which 
natural heritage assets can play in development as 
well as the constraints that may apply. The draft 
supplementary guidance states at paragraph 4.12 
that proposals should consider the issue of safety, 
remedying this while also supporting the access from 
the A72 as a key gateway.

We agree with the development principles set out at 
paragraph 4.25 but suggest that further consideration 
should be given to “Where it can be demonstrated 
that the cabins are not visible from external 
viewpoints, then the height of a cabin may be 
increased to 7.5m to the eaves”. It is not clear 
whether this external visibility is dependent on 
landform or intervening tree cover and therefore likely 
to change due to harvesting or other events.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
the Glentress Forest is a Continuous Cover 
Forest. In addition it should also be noted 
that paragraph 4.26 states that “it will be 
expected that any developer for the 
potential cabin site will undertake a 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
(LVIA) to identify the exact areas where 
woodland enhancement is required, and to 
assess the visual impacts of any 

No change.

No change.

2

P
age 94



Development vision - Existing and proposed 
development at Glentress is clearly directed by the 
natural characteristics of the site; we welcome this 
approach and agree that the creation of a high quality 
place is more likely as a result. While the masterplan 
must be iterative, we agree that it should provide a 
robust basis from which detailed proposals can be 
developed.

The detail provided in ‘Figure 9: Glentress Peel in 
Detail’ includes additional planting which is identified 
as a requirement to soften the edges of the 
development. In this area, the site occupies a position 
which moves from an upland landscape, currently 
dominated by commercial forestry to the more settled 
River Tweed corridor with its riparian woodland and 
field boundary trees and hedgerows. The 
requirements for additional planting in this area 
should reflect the transitional nature of the existing 
woodland. Therefore, while we agree with item 8 
(page 16) of the masterplan for Glentress Peel, we 
recommend that the nature of the “forest setting” 
referred to here is clarified.

development and layout proposals from key 
viewpoints to be agreed with the Council”. 
This is also confirmed within the section on 
Submission Requirements.

Comments noted.

Comment accepted. It is considered that 
additional text could be inserted within the 
Masterplan to deal with this issue.

No change.

Amend text in relation 
to Landscape on page 
16 to include: 
“Proposed planting 
should reflect the 
landscape character at 
this location and its 
transitional nature from 
the upland landscape 
that is dominated by 
large-scale 
predominantly conifer 
woodland commercial 
forestry to the River 
Tweed corridor with its 
predominately broadleaf 
riparian woodland, field 
boundary trees and 

3

P
age 95



The cabin site masterplan on page 18 includes two 
points which may be contradictory –
“Cabins orientated to take advantage of discreet 
forest setting, south and westerly aspect, and where 
possible views across the valley” and “Cabins should 
be located where they are not detrimental to the 
scenic qualities and visual amenity of the Tweed 
Valley”. Our understanding is that visibility of the 
cabin site is more likely from points to the south of the
River Tweed, including the B7062 and paths within 
the nearby Cardrona forest. These issues may be 
addressed by the Layout requirements set out in 
paragraph 7.31 and, as required by the masterplan, 
this detailed design should be informed by further 
LVIA.

Phasing - This section of the masterplan notes that 
while it is desirable for the proposed development to 
start with the arrival building and move east, demand 
may lead to other parcels coming forward first. As the 
site involves a significant amount of movement by 
people on bikes and on foot, any development ‘out of 
phase’ which may affect these uses should ensure 
that suitable, convenient alternatives are in place. 
Provision of recreational activity within a working 
forest means this type of measure may be implicit in 
the management of the existing development but we 
nevertheless recommend it is clearly set out in the 
supplementary guidance.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
Figure 16 provides a suggestion of how the 
potential cabin site could be developed. Due 
to the expanse of the potential site – in 
excess of 25 ha, there is the possibility of 
locating cabins in various parts of the site 
where they could benefit from quite different 
outlooks/aspects. It should also be noted 
that the detailed design and layout of the 
cabins will require to be informed by a 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
and as noted above this is confirmed within 
the Submission Requirements.

Comment accepted. It is considered that 
this is potentially an acceptable issue to be 
included within the Masterplan.

hedgerows.”

No change.

Amend text in 
paragraph 6.3 to 
include: “In the event 
that development takes 
place ‘out of phase’, it 
will be important to 
ensure that an 
acceptable access is 
maintained for users of 
the forest.”

4

P
age 96



Layout of buildings and landscape design - This 
section of the supplementary guidance includes some 
discussion of car parking and how this should be 
delivered at the cabin site (page 25). As the cabins 
are likely to be used for cycle tourism, it would be 
useful for the supplementary guidance to set 
principles for secure bicycle storage/parking at the 
cabin site. 

Submission requirements - Paragraph 8.10, which 
deals with biodiversity survey requirements, includes 
reference to surveys for “Environmentally Protected 
Species”. We recommend that this is changed to 
align with terms used in policies EP1 and EP2 of the 
Scottish Borders proposed LDP which refer to 
European protected species (EPS) and protected 
species respectively.

Comment noted. It is considered acceptable 
to include the requirement for bike 
storage/parking to be considered within the 
potential cabin site.

Comment accepted. Amend relevant 
submission requirement.

Amend text in section 
7.31 to include an 
additional bullet point: 
“Secure bike storage 
and/or parking should 
be considered within 
the cabin development.” 
 

Amend text in section 
8.10, replace 
“Environmentally 
Protected Species” with 
“European Protected 
Species and Protected 
Species”.

Gregor 
Brearley, 
Dawn 
Derbyshire, 
Mark Lister,
Stephen 
Davies

The contributor comments on the content of the 
Masterplan in respect to its purpose and its proposals 
and its outcomes. (Mark Lister)

The contributor disbelieves the numbers of visitors 
stated within the document. (Gregor Brearley)

Comments noted. The document notes that 
the Masterplan has been guided by 
previous work carried out by Forest 
Enterprise Scotland and Barton Wilmore 
which focused on Glentress and the areas 
surrounding Glentress, along with the 
production of a Valley Strategy and a 
Development Framework. The Masterplan 
however deals only with Glentress and how 
it can work towards achieving some of the 
issues raised within the Valley Strategy and 
the Development Framework. 

Comment noted. However, it should be 
noted that Forest Enterprise Scotland 

No change.

No change.

5

P
age 97



The contributors do not support the proposed new 
Glentress Recreation Centre, they consider the trails 
and the development of new ones to be more 
important. The proposals will dumb down Glentress 
as a mountain bike centre. It is no longer the No.1 
destination in the UK due to the state of the trails and 
lack of maintenance. Certain sections of trails have 
been closed and never re-opened. There is no need 
for a welcome centre, an indoor centre, or even 
shops as this will discourage visitors to visiting retail 
outlets in Peebles or Innerleithen. It is considered that 
the existing buildings have not been particularly well 
planned or used. However, the space behind the 
toilets/shower block could be better utilised. It is 
considered that the proposed development at the 
bottom of the hill will create a totally different feel. A 
skills area and free ride area might encourage more 
families to visit but it should not do so at the expense 
of what is currently available at the buzzards nest. If 
we do not look at the bigger picture the Borders 
economy will suffer. Is there no way that funding can 
be harnessed to provide more of what is wanted? The 
lack of upkeep has resulted in some visitors choosing 
to ride in other areas of the Tweed Valley. (Dawn 
Derbyshire, Gregor Brearley)

regularly has visitor numbers monitored 
independently, and the numbers included in 
the document have come from these 
surveys.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
the proposed development is supported by 
a number of agencies and groups including 
Scottish Cycling who consider Glentress to 
be the UK’s premiere centre for mountain 
biking. In addition, the Masterplan is a high 
level document, and whilst the proposals 
and layout contained within the document 
are indicative, it is considered that the 
proposed new buildings will assist in 
strengthening the Glentress visitor 
proposition. In addition, it should be noted 
that it is intended that any retail facility at 
Glentress would complement the tourist 
offering. Section 8.9 of the Masterplan notes 
that any application will be required to 
provide justification for any retail / 
commercial development on the site, in 
addition planning conditions could be used 
to limit any further type of retail which would 
take away from neighbouring towns. 
Furthermore it is considered that the 
relocation of the skills and free ride areas 
will act as a benefit to Glentress, in that 
respect it is noted that Scottish Cycling 
consider that with the ability to create a 
‘scene’ around the recreation centre would 

No change.

6

P
age 98



The contributors do not consider that there is a 
shortage of accommodation and question where is 
the market research and question if this shortage of 
accommodation is really why people do not stay 
longer. It is considered that the area has some of the 
lowest occupancy rates in Scotland with exception on 
a few weekends when events are occurring. The 
shortage of beds is not a limiting factor at present. 
Rather it will increase competition between new and 
existing providers which will result in driving down the 
REVPAR [Revenue per available room] and put the 
Forestry Commission in competition with existing 
providers.  (Mark Lister, Stephen Davies)
Two other contributors state that they do not support 
the development of the proposed cabin site as it will 
impact on other local providers and due to their 
location it is more likely that visitors will not venture 

also see the sport continue to grow. It is 
acknowledged that there is a need to 
ensure in respect to maintenance of trails 
that sustainable funding sources are 
available. As a public sector agency, Forest 
Enterprise Scotland is continually under 
increased pressure in relation to funding. In 
that respect the proposed development will 
attract private investment that will support 
the development and maintenance of trails 
at Glentress. Paragraph 5.2 of the 
Masterplan notes that there will be a 
“particular focus on improving, extending 
and diversifying the activity…”

Comments noted. Firstly it is noted that Visit 
Scotland, Scottish Enterprise and Cycling 
Scotland supports the Glentress 
Masterplan. A Visitor Survey 2011/12 
undertaken by Visit Scotland identified that 
an investment opportunity exists around 
investing in new accommodation provision 
including quality self-catering 
accommodation, which could attract new 
visitors to Scotland. It should be noted that 
Visit Scotland have also published the first 
‘Tourism Development Framework for 
Scotland…role of the planning system in 
delivering the visitor economy’. That 
document and its associated report – 
‘Ambitions and Aspirations: Our 
Development Opportunities’ identifies that 

No change.

7

P
age 99



into our towns. Furthermore, it appears that the 
Masterplan is targeting a minority group of people 
who are likely to reduce in numbers as there is not 
enough investment in the upkeep of the trail network. 
The cabin site would also result in the loss of a 
number of trail sections, the skills area and the free 
ride area. Rebuilding at the bottom of the hill is a 
waste of money. People like the facility to drive up the 
hill if the wish and coaches use this as a starting 
point. It is suggested that a new access road could be 
built for lorries on recently purchased land. What 
about access to the cabin site and the potential 
disruption to the forest.(Dawn Derbyshire, Gregor 
Brearley) 
People come on activity holidays primarily for the 
activity and so the activity i.e. mountain biking and its 
quality is paramount. Therefore the proposed cabin 
site is not a good location as it will result in the loss of 
a number of trails, therefore the contributor does not 
believe that this will encourage visitors from 
elsewhere. It appears that the trails as both an 
opportunity and constraint, have not been properly 
understood. They are the resource that attracts a lot 
of visitors, and therefore must be maintained and 
developed. There appears to be no provision for this 
in the masterplan. The trails to be closed by the 
development of cabins are not isolated trails that can 
simply be moved elsewhere. They are part of a well-
designed, integral network of trails, offering different 
options for people to plan their ride. A major part of 
the attraction of the Glentress trails is that one can 
string together different sections in a variety of ways. 

there are development priorities in relation 
to accommodation in the Scottish Borders 
and that there are opportunities for the 
provision of new self-catering 
accommodation, in addition there are 
ongoing opportunities for investment in 
accommodation which promotes forest 
tourism and supports the wider activities 
market. The Tweed Valley Forest Park is 
identified as the main opportunity. It should 
be noted that the Masterplan is a high level 
document, and whilst the proposals and 
layout contained within the document are 
indicative further detailed work is required to 
determine the exact location of each of the 
cabins and the implications on the existing 
bike trails. It is noted that Forest Enterprise 
Scotland (FES) intend to retain the wider 
7stanes mountain bike trail network in the 
current locations although there will be 
alterations to trails, including access/egress 
in and around the Buzzard’s Nest car park 
and the proposed cabin site. It is considered 
that the relocation of the skills and free ride 
areas and the proposed new trails will act 
as a benefit to Glentress. It is the intention 
that the proposed development will attract 
private investment that will support the 
development and maintenance of trails at 
Glentress. As a public sector agency, FES 
is continually under increased pressure in 
relation to funding. In that respect the 

8

P
age 100



This marks it out from most other trail centres, and 
makes it a much more interesting and varied place to 
ride. Focus should be placed on creating new trails to 
attract more people to the area. (Mark Lister)

proposed development will attract private 
investment that will support the 
development and maintenance of trails at 
Glentress. Paragraph 5.2 of the Masterplan 
notes that there will be a “particular focus on 
improving, extending and diversifying the 
activity…” It should be noted that the 
Masterplan notes in paragraph 4.20 that an 
alternative main forestry operations access 
is proposed south west of Nether Horsburgh 
Farmhouse. It is therefore considered that 
the proposed new cabin accommodation 
can be supported.

Chris and 
Kate Ball

The contributors express concern at the lack of 
consultation and information to neighbouring 
residents.

Comments noted. In respect to public 
consultation, it should be noted that Forest 
Enterprise Scotland (FES) carried out a 
separate consultation in advance of the 
preparation of the Masterplan. That 
consultation included stakeholder and 
community workshops, questionnaire as 
well as public events at Glentress Peel. 
Appendix 2 of the Masterplan document 
provides additional information. It is also the 
intention of FES to undertake further 
consultation at the detailed design stage in 
advance of the submission of any 
application. The Glentress Masterplan itself 
was also subject to a 12 week consultation 
period. It is also noted that any planning 
application submitted in respect to the 
proposed development would also provide 
the opportunity for the public to input their 

No change.

9

P
age 101



There is uncertainty in terms of the business case for 
the new development. Has the development so far, 
such as the café seen a justified increase in visitor 
numbers or improved the visitor experience. 
Glentress is seen as a dated venue with little or no 
trail development and maintenance in the last 
decade. Investment should be in the mountain riding 
and hill walking routes and trails.

The contributor notes a number of issues/problems in 
respect to Glentress as it is currently set out and 
considers that these issues should be dealt with in 
advance of any new development. 

views. However, it is the intention of FES to 
carry out further consultation in respect to 
the detailed design and layout in advance of 
the submission of an application.

Comments noted. Visit Scotland supports 
the Glentress Masterplan. It is noted that 
the Glentress proposal has been included 
within the ‘Aspirations and Ambitions – Our 
Development Opportunities’ produced by 
Visit Scotland. In addition the proposed 
development will attract private investment 
that will support the development and 
maintenance of trails at Glentress.

Comments noted. It is considered that the 
Masterplan will assist in re-arranging the 
layout of Glentress and will therefore assist 
in overcoming many of the issues raised by 
the contributor. Furthermore, investment 
from the new proposals will assist in 
improving signage and interpretation for 
visitors to Glentress. FES intend to retain 
the wider 7stanes mountain bike trail 
network in the current locations although 
there will be alterations to trails, including 
access / egress in and around the 
Buzzard’s Nest car park and the proposed 
cabin site. New routes will also be created, 
and will include a mixture of Multi-Use 
(green) routes and blue trails in the vicinity 
of Castlehill, thereby reducing the need for 

No change.

No change.

10

P
age 102



The contributor makes a number of comments in 
relation to the Draft Masterplan, these relate to:

 Existing buildings – café and Peel Tower
 Car parking including overflow, previous 

investment and potential future impact on 
neighbours

 Trails, routes, free ride area and safety 
 Location of trail head
 Presence of wildlife 
 Lack of central hub
 New buildings and impact on neighbouring 

residents.

beginners to travel up the hill.

Comments noted. The Masterplan is 
indicative, and additional detailed design 
along with further work such as ecology 
studies will be required before the final 
layout can come forward in the form of a 
planning application. However it is 
considered that the indicative layout does 
represent a significant improvement in the 
flow and workings of the site incorporating 
the existing buildings including the café so 
as to bring about a reconfiguration of 
Glentress Peel as a recreation centre. It 
should be noted that section 4.15 of the 
Masterplan states that the location of the 
recreation centre was identified following an 
assessment of the landscape, access to 
services and utilities as well as through 
early consultation. That said; further 
improvements may come forward as a 
result of the additional work yet to be carried 
out. It should be noted that Local 
Development Plan Policy EP3 Local 
Biodiversity would also apply in the 
consideration of any planning application. In 
addition, many of the proposed new 
buildings at the recreation centre will sit at a 
lower level than the Peel Tower Building, 
new planting will also be undertaken onsite 
to assist in screening. In respect to issues 
regarding residential amenity, Local 

Additional wording to be 
inserted in relation to 
Figure 8: Development 
Blocks – Development 
Block C Potential Car 
Park Extension – “Area 
provided for low 
engineered overflow car 
park solution. Structural 
planting required to 
reduce visual impact 
and minimise potential 
for overlooking of 
neighbouring residential 
properties”.

Remove 2 x no.9 from 
Figure 14, and place a 
no.9 in the vicinity of the 
existing gateway 
building. 
Replace the first 
paragraph in relation to 
the Trailhead on page 
16 to read:
“At present the trailhead 
is located at the existing 
Gateway Building, 
although it may remain 
at that location it is 

11

P
age 103



Development Plan policy HD3 Protection of 
Residential Amenity would apply in relation 
to any application that would be located 
adjacent to residential properties. However, 
it is considered that it would be appropriate 
to amend the Masterplan specifically as it 
relates to Figure 8 and the requirement for 
additional structural planting. In respect to 
comments regarding the trailhead, it should 
be noted that it was intended that the 
trailhead would be located at the existing 
gateway building, and that a new egress 
point would be located to the south east of 
the recreation centre. However, in light of 
comments submitted by the contributor it is 
now considered that the Masterplan should 
allow for a more flexible approach in this 
matter, allowing for further design and 
investigation work to be undertaken. As 
noted above it is the intention of Forest 
Enterprise Scotland to carry out further 
consultation in respect to the detailed 
design and layout in advance of the 
submission of an application.

considered that further 
investigation and design 
work should be 
undertaken to confirm 
its exact future location. 
That work should also 
consider access and 
egress to routes and 
trails. It will also be 
necessary to ensure 
that conflict with 
neighbouring uses is 
avoided.”
 

Historic 
Environment 
Scotland
(Scottish 
Government)

For information, the reference to Historic Scotland at 
paragraph 8.7 should be removed, and replaced with 
Historic Environment Scotland. 

There are a number of scheduled monuments both 
within and adjacent to the masterplan boundary. Of 

Comment accepted. Reference to Historic 
Scotland replaced with Historic Environment 
Scotland.

Comments noted. Historic Environment 
Scotland and the Council’s Archaeologist 

Amend text: Within 
section 8.7 replace 
Historic Scotland to 
Historic Environment 
Scotland.

No change.

12

P
age 104



those listed in the minute Historic Environment 
Scotland is content that only two may be affected by 
the proposals as laid out in the masterplan. These are 
Horsburgh Castle Farm, settlement 930m NNW of, 
Castle Hill (index no. 2681) and Eshiels, Roman 
camps 90m SSW of No 4 Eshiels (index no. 3667). 
Horsburgh Castle Farm, settlement 930m NNW of, 
Castle Hill (index no. 2681) 
The contributor also makes some detailed comments 
in relation to each of the monuments noted above.

would be consulted as part of any planning 
application as it relates to a Scheduled 
Monument.

Scottish 
Environment 
Protection 
Agency

We are generally supportive of the Glentress 
Masterplan Supplementary Guidance (SG), however 
we consider that there are issues that could affect the 
proposals, depending on further information being 
submitted, in particular issues related to flood risk and 
drainage.  

Flood risk Assessment
o We strongly advise that the requirement in 

Section 8 is changed to read: ‘further information 
must be provided showing that the proposals will 
not be at flood risk and will not increase flood risk 
elsewhere. This information may be in the form of 
a Flood Risk Assessment’.  At the moment this 
section only says ‘FRA may be required’. We 
may object to this development at development 
management stage depending on the submission 
of this information. In addition please note that 
the finding of the assessment/information may 
prove that development is not possible in this 
area.  

Support noted.

Comment accepted. Amend text.
It should also be noted that this matter has 
also been raised by SEPA in their 
consultation response to the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment.

No change.

Amend text to read: “A 
number of small 
watercourses flow 
within the site. 
Therefore, further 
information must be 
provided showing that 
the proposals will not be 
at flood risk and will not 
increase flood risk 
elsewhere. This 
information may be in 
the form of a Flood Risk 
Assessment.”

13

P
age 105



o Further guidance could be added on both surface 
and waste water drainage.

Protection of the water environment
o We support the requirement for the provision of a 

Drainage Impact Assessment (DIA) in Section 8.  
This should cover foul drainage (sewage 
disposal) and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDS) in sufficient detail.

o Additional detail in relation to SUDS and sewage 
included in submission.

Sustainable waste management
o Waste management should follow the waste 

hierarchy. We would welcome the submission of 
a report in this regard.

o We understand that forest clearing may be 
needed for the cabin area. Please refer to the 
guidance in the SEPA website for advice on 
waste arising from forestry. 

Additional information in relation to flood risk and 
surface water drainage along with web links where 
further advice and guidance can be obtained was 
also included in the submission.

Comment noted. Section 8.12 states that a 
Drainage Impact Assessment should be 
included within any submission.

Support noted.

Comments noted. Additional detail on the 
development would come forward at 
planning application stage.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
section 8 of the Masterplan states that 
details of a waste management scheme 
should be discussed with the Council’s 
waste management scheme.

Comments noted. It should also be noted 
that any subsequent planning application in 
relation to the Glentress Masterplan will 
include additional detail. 

No change.

No change.

No change.

No change.

No change.

Tweed Valley 
Trail 
Association

Tweed Valley’s network of mountain bike trails are a 
major economic and cultural asset for our local 
community. This network is a major factor in why 
many people make the valley their home and have 

Comments noted. No change.

14

P
age 106

http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/land/planning/


put our community on the world map of mountain bike 
destinations. The Tweed Valley cannot afford to fall 
behind other parts of the UK. At community 
consultation events seeking views on the Glentress 
Masterplan, new and better trails consistently top 
individual users’ feedback. 

Insofar as the proposed Glentress Masterplan aims to 
bring new investment to the area it should be 
welcomed. We recognise that - as local and 
international race/event organisers do - new 
investment will only come if private enterprises 
consider the valley a worthwhile business proposition. 
However, unless a portion of that investment is 
channelled into the maintenance and development of 
the trails themselves, then our valued asset will 
decline, with the inevitable result of a drop in visitor 
numbers. The TVTA's priority is to make sure that 
these facilities are anchored by quality trails, rather 
than the other way around.  We believe that the 
Masterplan can and should be strengthened to:
1. Achieve the aim of enhancing the 7Stanes 
reputation and make the Tweed Valley the UK’s 
leading mountain bike destination.
2. Prioritise expansion and improvement of the trail 
network and maintenance of the existing resources 
as the key factor in achieving that aim.
3. Commit to promote the Tweed Valley as a 
destination which encourages multi-day stays by 
visiting mountain bikers, by linking up the wider trail 
network and thereby spreading the benefits beyond 
Glentress.

Support noted. It should also be noted that 
section 1.7 of the Masterplan states that the 
Masterplan has been guided by previous 
work carried out by Forest Enterprise 
Scotland and Barton Wilmore. Whilst the 
Masterplan complements the Valley 
Strategy and Development Framework 
which focused on the area surrounding 
Glentress, the Masterplan focuses only on 
the proposed development of Glentress. 
Furthermore it is the intention at Glentress, 
that the proposed development will attract 
private investment that will support the 
development and maintenance of trails at 
Glentress. Paragraph 5.2 of the Masterplan 
notes that there will be a “particular focus on 
improving, extending and diversifying the 
activity…”

No change.

15

P
age 107



4. Require ongoing contributions from the developers 
of the businesses envisaged by the Masterplan into 
the Tweed Valley trail network. This should be tied to 
planning consents or a contractual obligation 
contained in leases.
5. Build a strategy into the Masterplan which 
recognises the need to develop this area into a UK 
centre of excellence for mountain biking, with specific 
facilities for this being prioritised. This should include 
the building of trails and amenities suitable to attract 
UK and international events of various MTB 
disciplines.

Tweed Valley 
Bike Patrol 
(TVBP),
Tweed Valley 
Mountain 
Rescue Team 
(TVMRT)

As a group committed to supporting mountain biking 
in the Tweed Valley we have a particular interest in 
the Glentress Masterplan, and in principle we are 
supportive of the aims and objectives that it seeks to 
achieve. (TVBP)

We particularly note that Safety plays a prominent 
role in the stated Development Principles outlined in 
para. 4.7 and would therefore be supportive of any 
design proposals emerging from the masterplan that 
make a positive contribution to safety for all forest 
users. (TVBP)

We note the commitment to address the issue of the 
crossing of the A72 serving the Multi-user path (MUP) 
outside the main entrance to Glentress as outlined in 
para 4.12. We believe it is essential that design 
proposals are brought forward urgently to improve 
safety for all road users at this point. A combination of 
reduced vehicle speed limits on the A72 with 

Support noted

Support noted

Support and comment noted. The 
Development Vision on page 15 notes a 
way to address the safety issues at this 
location could be in one or a combination of 
ways which could include a localised speed 
limit and user activated warning-signs along 
with other methods. 

No change.

No change.

No change.

16

P
age 108



improved road crossings and warning signage should 
be actively considered. (TVBP)

We note the reference to avoiding conflict between 
recreational forest users and forestry operations. In 
principle, we would support proposals to create an 
alternative access from Nether Horsburgh via 
Castlehill as noted in para 4.21 as a means of 
reducing, and if possible eliminating the risk of conflict 
between recreational forest users and forestry 
operations. (TVBP)

We believe that significant problems exist with the 
current layout of the Glentress Peel. These include 
poor access into and around the car parking areas, 
deficient and non-compliant disabled parking, and a 
lack of direct and clearly defined pedestrian routes as 
well as poor waymarking. We would support design 
proposals emerging from the masterplan that 
significantly improve these measures, paying 
particular attention to safety for pedestrians and 
cyclists, access for disabled users, and safe 
manoeuvrability of cars within and around car parks. 
(TVBP)

Development of new buildings and facilities at 
Glentress Peel should consider provision of a 
dedicated and more accessible first aid room with 
access for both TVMRT and TVBP as well as a 
rendezvous point for emergency services attending 
incidents in the forest. TVBP would particularly 
welcome the opportunity for a secure and fully 

Support noted. Forestry Enterprise Scotland 
is currently working towards achieving an 
alternative access in due course.

Support noted. The Glentress Masterplan 
seeks to address many of these issues.

Comment noted. It should be noted that the 
issue of the First Aid room is not a planning 
matter. However it should be acknowledged 
that a First Aid room is already available at 
Glentress; although it is noted that it is only 
available during the opening hours of 
Glentress Peel. 

No change.

No change.

Additional text 
associated with Figure 
8: Development Blocks 
– “The recreation centre 
should also allow for a 
rendezvous point for 
emergency services 

17

P
age 109



serviced (water, heating, power, lighting) base room 
to be made available for use between patrol rides and 
for storage of equipment and spares. Ideally we 
would like to garage one of our land rover 
ambulances at the main centre and have a room 
there where our team could RV.  This could be 
shared between TVBP and TVMRT. (TVBP, TVMRT)

We would strongly encourage the masterplan to take 
cognisance of the requirements of emergency 
services access to the forest for dealing with 
incidents, particularly cycle related injuries and for 
casualty evacuation. A clearly defined network of 
access points should be provided for emergency 
service vehicles. This should include where possible, 
suitable landing sites for air ambulance and search & 
rescue helicopters, and a designated helicopter 
landing area at the Peel Centre. We feel any 
development or future plans should consider forest 
evacuation plans in the event that people were 
needed to be cleared either for emergency, weather 
event, forest fire etc (TVBP, TVMRT)

In relation to the rendezvous point, it is 
considered acceptable that the recreation 
centre should allow for a rendezvous point 
for emergency services. Additional text to 
be incorporated on page 13 within the 
Development Block A. 
With regards to the issue of a garage, it is 
noted that the Masterplan indicates possible 
locations of buildings and their uses. At this 
stage, it is not the intention of Forest 
Enterprise Scotland (FES) to pay for 
construction of these new buildings or extra 
facilities for interested stakeholders. FES 
will consider approaches from other public 
and third sector organisations for 
development sites on the Estate.

Comment noted. Health and safety 
concerns are clearly of concern to 
communities but are not matters for the 
planning system. However, it should be 
noted that Forest Enterprise Scotland 
considers evacuation plans for all their 
premises and facilities and includes them in 
their operating plans.

with associated 
emergency vehicle 
parking”.

No change.

18

P
age 110



We believe significant improvements are required to 
the existing trailhead access (item 9 on masterplan) 
where currently the trailhead leads directly onto the 
main forest road. Where possible the trailhead should 
lead directly to mountain bike trail and should avoid 
the need for cyclists to use the main forest road 
where vehicle conflict can arise; As part of a 
reconfiguration of the trailhead, we would support any 
opportunities to reconsider the current configuration 
of the outward and return mountain bike trails with a 
view to creating a clockwise configuration above and 
around the existing forest access road. This would 
remove the need for cyclists to use the forest road, 
further reducing the risk of cycle and vehicle conflicts; 
We note that new trail development forms part of the 
masterplan, particularly including options for free ride 
and skills areas adjacent to the Glentress Peel site. 
Any new trails should cater for a broad range of cycle 
abilities and should be safely accessible to all users; 
The contributer comments on the condition of a 
number of trails and subsequent issues noting that 
trail maintenance is essential in helping provide a 
variety of trails that people want to ride. (TVBP)

The masterplan should also consider radio and 
telecommunications within Glentress Forest which 
can often be impaired due to local terrain, affecting 
incident management and casualty evacuation. 
Communications at the main facility, base room and 
first aid room should be improved. Opportunities to 
enhance telecommunications, radio and internet 
reception in the forest should be promoted wherever 

Comment noted. It should be noted that the 
Masterplan is a high level document and 
whilst the Masterplan proposes the 
relocation of some elements such as the 
skills areas, it does not provide the detail of 
the trail development. It should be noted 
that Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES) are 
currently working up plans on trail 
development and this will be done in 
consultation with stakeholders. In addition, 
Glentress Forest is a managed forest with 
multiple objectives delivering a range of 
benefits. Roads are required for 
access/egress in order for the working 
forest to be managed effectively. When 
planning recreational trail networks in 
Glentress, it has been FES’s intention to 
avoid combining trails with forest roads but 
due to the topographic constraints and 
existing investment in infrastructure it is 
inevitable that there will have to be some 
trails crossing or aligned with sections of 
roads.

Comment noted. Local Development Plan 
Policy IS15 aims to reflect the Council’s 
wish to support the expansion and 
diversification of the telecommunications 
industry. In addition, FES have stated that 
although it is not their intention to invest in 
improved mobile communication in 
Glentress, they would support and facilitate 

No change.

No change.

19

P
age 111



possible. (TVBP, TVMRT) any investment to investigate this matter 
further so as to secure and improve 
communications.

Paul Shand 
and Shirley 
Clark

Our house is situated in the area immediately behind 
the proposed site for the development of new 
buildings as outlined in the planning document. The 
proposed development area is currently used as a 
carpark, over which we enjoy clear views of the 
Glentress forest from our property. The erection of 
these 'one and a half story' buildings would 
completely block these views and dominate the 
landscape to the North facing aspect of our property. 
We are also extremely concerned that these buildings 
would overlook our property and impinge on our 
privacy. As such, we are extremely surprised that 
none of the residents of this area were ever 
approached as part of the consultation process. The 
development plans where only just brought to our 
attention by an equally concerned neighbour. We 
understand the need to develop the forest for leisure 
use and to continue to attract visitors to the area. 
However, we feel very strongly that parts of the 
development plan are extremely unsympathetic to the 
residents of the immediately adjacent properties. The 
proposed trail development on Castle Hill would also 
greatly affect the wildlife we regularly see using that 
area. As such we will submit our objections to the 
planning application. We would very much appreciate 
if somebody could contact us to discuss these plans 
and give us the opportunity to demonstrate what an 
impact these buildings would have on our 
environment.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
the Masterplan is a high level document and 
only provides an indication of the proposed 
development. It is not the intention of the 
Masterplan to provide specific details at this 
stage. Further work and background studies 
will be required to inform the detail. In 
respect to public consultation, it should be 
noted that Forest Enterprise Scotland 
carried out a separate consultation in 
advance of the preparation of the 
Masterplan. That consultation included 
stakeholder and community workshops, 
questionnaire as well as public events at 
Glentress Peel. Appendix 2 of the 
Masterplan document provides additional 
information. The Glentress Masterplan itself 
was also subject to a 12 week consultation 
period. As more detailed proposals are 
progressed there will be opportunities for 
the community and key stakeholders to get 
involved either as part of the formal pre 
application notification procedures or as part 
of a less formal consultation. It is also noted 
that any planning application submitted in 
respect to the proposed development would 
also provide the opportunity for the public to 
input their views. In respect to issues 
regarding residential amenity, Local 

No change.

20

P
age 112



Development Plan policy HD3 Protection of 
Residential Amenity would apply in relation 
to any application that would be located 
adjacent to residential properties or 
proposed residential properties; in addition 
Policy EP3 Local Biodiversity would also 
apply.

AIMUp Ltd AIMUp welcomes new investments into the Tweed 
Valley. They recognise that individual investors will 
assess the viability and attractiveness of the 
investment opportunities presented. Considering an 
investment in accommodation provision, they feel that 
the key to its viability is ensuring sufficient attraction 
to draw visitors to the area to utilise the 
accommodation. 

For Glentress and the Tweed Valley as an outdoor 
activities destination, we believe the leading key 
attraction to be mountain biking. To ensure the 
Tweed Valley remains attractive to mountain bike 
tourists and able to attract significant events, we 
strongly believe that investment and focus needs to 
be centred on the maintenance and development of 
the trail network. We also believe consideration 
needs to be given to the existing accommodation 
sector, which has occupancy rates significantly below 
the national average. Investment in new 
accommodation at Glentress may only shift 
employment and occupancy from existing providers 
rather than creating new job opportunities and 
visitors. Investing in the attractions that bring 
additional visitors may help to avoid this scenario.

Support and comments noted.

Comments noted. Visit Scotland notes that 
a development of this nature would add 
critically important high quality bedstock to 
the region and could result in a higher level 
of occupancy, the extension of season and 
in turn an increase in the overall visitor 
spend which will add to GVA [Gross Value 
Added] for the Scottish Borders economy 
and Scotland as a whole. Furthermore it is 
the intention at Glentress, that the proposed 
development will attract private investment 
that will support the development and 
maintenance of trails at Glentress. 
Paragraph 5.2 of the Masterplan notes that 
there will be a “particular focus on 
improving, extending and diversifying the 

No change.

No change.

21

P
age 113



We believe the Masterplan provides a great 
development opportunity for the Tweed Valley and 
not just Glentress however, this can be improved by 
ensuring that the whole network of trails between Yair 
to the East and Cademuir to the West, are at the 
heart of the development and any investment. We 
urge the public agencies to ensure and share at the 
earliest opportunity its Tweed Valley trail 
development plan, or we will continue to experience 
the decline in mountain bike tourists and status of the 
Tweed Valley as a destination.

activity…”

Comments noted. It should be noted that it 
is the intention of Forest Enterprise 
Scotland (FES) to produce a land 
management plan for the Tweed Valley 
Forest Park. This will cover a whole 
spectrum of interests FES need to manage 
in an integrated way including access, 
recreation and tourism. The key focus is 
securing the sustainable future of existing 
facilities, ensuring that there are sufficient 
resources available, hence the desire to 
develop new income streams through 
diversification.  

No change.

Forest 
Enterprise 
Scotland

Forest Enterprise Scotland (FES) welcomes and 
notes thanks for the opportunity to respond to the 
Draft Supplementary Guidance. FES Supports the 
Draft Supplementary Guidance (SG) which will 
ensure the following:-

The developments outlined will contribute to the 
policies and priorities set out in national policy and 
the proposed local development plan. In particular the 
Supplementary Guidance meets the terms of
• National Planning Framework (NPF) 3 which aims to 
create high quality, diverse, and sustainable places 
that promotes well being and attracts investment to 
rural Scotland. NPF3 recognises that rural Scotland 
provides significant opportunities for tourism, outdoor 
sports and recreation. This is also reflected in 
VisitScotlands National Tourism Development 

Comments and support noted.

Comment noted. It is noted that the 
Masterplan is in line with both national and 
local policy and will assist in attracting 
investment.

No change.

No change.

22

P
age 114



Framework.
• Proposed Local Development Plan: Policy ED7: 
'Businesses, Tourism and Leisure Development' 
which aims to allow employment generating 
development in the countryside to ensure that 
business, tourism and leisure related developments 
are in appropriate locations. As well as protecting and 
enhancement of recreational facilities

Underpin Existing and Encourage New 
Investment:-
• Its envisaged that the guidance will build on the 
existing successful investments made by FES and 
facilitate the further development of leisure, recreation 
and tourism infrastructure in the Tweed Valley 
corridor in response to specific market opportunities
and local needs.

Realise Economic, Social and Environmental 
Benefits:-
• Recreation and tourism business opportunities are 
facilitated which will deliver local and regional of 
economic benefits together with added value to the 
visitor economy.
• Realising sustainable economic growth. The 
developments will support sports activities including 
events and more active lifestyles thus realising health 
and wellbeing benefits for local people and visitors;
• Sympathetic developments that are integrated within 
the forest environment and landscape

Sustainable, Responsible and Orderly 

Comments noted.

Comments noted.

No change.

No change.

23

P
age 115



Development:-
• The developments envisaged have the potential to 
define new standards and thus be an exemplar of 
planning methodology and sustainable development 
within a woodland setting;
• The guidance sets a longer term vision and a 
framework which will ease future decision making 
both for FESand Scottish Borders Council.
• The development will come forward in a more 
considered, sustainable and co-ordinate manner.

Comments noted. No change.

Hedley 
Phillips

I believe that the Masterplan can and should be 
strengthened to prioritise expansion and improvement 
of the trail network and maintenance of the existing 
resources as the key factor in achieving that aim and 
linking up the wider trail network and thereby 
spreading the benefits beyond Glentress.

Comment noted. The proposal brought 
forward through the Masterplan aims to 
enhance the trail network. Paragraph 5.2 of 
the Masterplan notes that there will be a 
“particular focus on improving, extending 
and diversifying the activity…” The 
Glentress Masterplan also notes that 
previous work has been carried out by 
Forest Enterprise Scotland which focused 
on the area surrounding Glentress. In 
addition that work acknowledged that there 
are opportunities within the wider Tweed 
Valley area.

No change.

Scottish 
Cycling

We believe that Glentress is the UK’s premiere centre 
for mountain biking. Its location is close to Central 
belt helps to connect Glentress with good road 
transport links from main carriageways and 
international airports. However the destination has a 
real feel of remoteness and beauty, especially when 
immersed within the forest. This unique set of 
circumstances offers fantastic opportunities to 
increase participation, be the focal part of a Scottish 

Support and comments noted. No change.

24

P
age 116



mountain bike tourism strategy and help the sport of 
mountain biking grow – helping to provide a platform 
for Scottish mountain bikers to enjoy success on the 
world stage. We believe that the Glentress 
Masterplan (the masterplan) is a fantastic opportunity 
to create a national centre of excellence for mountain 
biking. We are encouraged by early stages of 
proposals and we would commit our support to future 
partnership working to ensure that the trails proposed 
will grow participation, be in the world’s top 3 
mountain biking destinations and help local clubs and 
Scottish Cycling create athletes who can excel on the 
world stage.

The relocation of the skills area and freeride area 
would help provide a visual introduction to mountain 
biking. We are excited by the opportunity this would 
provide for Scottish Cycling clubs to develop 
mountain bikers and the opportunity for mountain 
biking to become more of a coach led outdoor 
experience similar to other outdoor activities such as 
skiing, snowboarding or surfing. The informal 
opportunities to ride and the ability to create a ‘scene’ 
around these areas would also see the sport continue 
to grow.

We understand the need and demand for the 
proposed cabin development and the impact it would 
have on the freeride area and skills area. We agree 
that these two areas would benefit from relocation to 
the Peel area however we would like to see that the 
wider existing trail network is preserved or upgraded 

Support and comments noted.

Support and comments noted. Forest 
Enterprise Scotland (FES) intend to retain 
the wider 7stanes mountain bike trail 
network in the current locations although 
there will be alterations to trails, including 
access/egress in and around the Buzzard’s 

No change.

No change.

25

P
age 117



in this area. Indeed we believe that it would be one of 
the major selling points of the cabin development to 
be able to ‘ride in & ride out’ with a network of quality 
trails surrounding the cabins. Upgrading of the 
facilities at the main centre to improve the visitor 
experience and provide a more visual tourism 
experience. We believe that the mountain bike trail 
network and the experience offered to mountain 
bikers will be the main attraction to the site. 

Main & Activity Buildings - We believe the functions of 
the ‘main’ building and ‘activity’ should be combined 
to a double storey building located to either the north 
or south of the existing Peel Tower. This building 
would have the key advantages of a stunning view to 
the west, sunshine to the South and great viewing of 
the mountain biking skills area and freeride areas to 
the East & North. This would be the best possible 
location for visitors to experience the unique selling 
points of the Tweed Valley and position Glentress as 
the UK’s premiere mountain bike destination.
We believe that the building should contain a safe 
bike storage, bike shop, hire, café, restaurant, 
wildlife/environmental awareness centre and 
mountain bike museum. If the main visitor centre 
were to be located to the south of the Peel Tower, we 
believe that the existing wildlife building has the 
potential to be converted to a mountain bike coaching 
facility which would have direct access to a non-
technical skills area in the existing car park to the 

Nest car park and the proposed cabin site. 
However it should also be noted that it is 
intended that the wider trail network in this 
area will be retained and upgraded where 
possible. Paragraph 5.2 of the Masterplan 
notes that there will be a “particular focus on 
improving, extending and diversifying the 
activity…”  FES are currently working on the 
detail of the trail development and will be 
doing this in consultation with interested 
groups.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
the Masterplan provides an indication of 
how the proposed development will be set 
out. Additional work is required to finalise 
the details of the proposal. These details will 
come forward as part of the detailed 
planning application stage. However, it 
should be noted that the siting and design of 
proposed buildings will require to consider 
the proximity of neighbouring residents as 
well as the existing landscape and other 
issues. 

No change.

26

P
age 118



east of the building. This non-technical skills area 
should then link into the easiest sections of the skills 
area. The toilets and showers should remain as they 
are at present. The interpretation boards should 
provide information on the site and should encourage 
visitors to walk the short distance to the main 
building. The contributor also makes comments on 
other non planning matters in relation to a Scotland’s 
visitor centre and accreditation of the centre.

Existing Buildings - We believe the existing café and 
bike shop could be converted to a ‘Kidz Zone’ with a 
soft play, a climbing wall centre, safe bike storage 
and café. Although there should be safe bike storage 
around the facilities these should be accessed only 
on foot. The ‘Kidz Zone’ should be linked to the new 
main building up the hill with a buggy friendly walking 
trail with an adventure play trail alongside. There 
should also be interpretation boards at this location.

The main visitor site should be traffic free with all 
main car parking allocated to the west of the main 
site. Additional parking could be located on the 
‘events’ fields at Nether Horsburgh. This events field 
should be linked to the main site by a new multi-
directional easy (green) graded trail. This route could 
also link with the Peebles to Innerleithen cycle path 
creating a link to the spine of the Tweed Valley.

Comments noted. The detail plans for the 
Glentress Recreation Centre have yet to be 
worked up however; at this time it is not 
considered that the café and bike shop will 
be re-located. It is proposed that new 
interpretation and wayfinding will be 
included within the proposed new 
development. 

Comments noted. The Masterplan states 
that there is the requirement for additional 
car parking at Glentress.  Page 16 states 
that new parking provisions should be 
accommodated within the western 
development site and it is noted that on 
occasions temporary overflow parking also 
takes place south of the block identified as 
‘B’ on Figures 8 and 9. However, it is noted 
that should it be required there is the 
possibility for a potential car park extension 
within Development Block C. In respect to 

No change.

No change.

27

P
age 119



It is essential that the skills area and freeride area is 
visible from the main visitor centre providing a clear 
indication of the level of difficulty of trails, inspiration 
and a reason to dwell longer in the main visitor 
centre. The contributor sets out a number of 
recommendations in relation to the detailed design of 
the proposed skills and free ride areas. 

Events Village - We believe that the fields at Nether 
Horsburgh would be an ideal location to host 
international, national (UK) and domestic races. 
To achieve this ambitious aim a small network of 
trails would need to be created into the event village. 
We understand that a new timber haulage route is 
being created to redirect heavy vehicles from using 
the same forest roads as vast numbers of 
recreational users. 

Opening ‘Enduro’ Trails - We wonder if this process 
may be an opportunity to review the current official 
mapped routes at Glentress Forest. There may be 
opportunities to introduce some ‘enduro’ trails into the 
mapped network. We understand that it is not 
sustainable for the trail network to grow beyond the 
capabilities to maintain it to a reasonable level and 
there may be a need for some less popular existing 

other comments, it is noted that the detailed 
proposals for Glentress have yet to be 
worked up.

Support noted. The Council is aware that 
Scottish Cycling will continue to be involved 
in the detail design of Glentress.

Comment noted. Forest Enterprise Scotland 
have stated that they have already granted 
permission for the use of this area for the 
Peebles Show for the past two years and 
the next three. This has proved to be a 
successful venue to date and they 
anticipate that this requirement will persist. 
They are happy to support this use of the 
fields for events and will facilitate any 
development works required but are unlikely 
to provide funding.

Comments noted. The Masterplan is a high 
level document and does not go in to the 
detail of trail design or opening of trails. This 
is an issue that would be considered within 
the detailed design of trails and its 
associated consultation undertaken by 
Forest Enterprise Scotland.

No change.

No change.

No change.

28

P
age 120



routes to be taken from the map. These routes would 
still be able to be cycled on under the Scottish 
Outdoor Access Code (SOAC) however the level of 
‘duty of care’ towards these routes from FCS would 
be reduced. 

The contributor makes comments regarding other 
issues not relating to the Glentress Masterplan, these 
relate to:
 The wider trail network
 Raising Glentress profile in Scotland and the UK
 Promotion of Glentress as a base for Scottish 

mountain biking as well as part of the 7stanes
 Partnership working on the formation of a 

Development Plan for mountain biking
 AimUp project and Innerleithen and its attractions 

and potential 
 Scottish Cycling’s and others responsibility for 

running events
 Harnessing of volunteer support
 Importance of strong engagement with all users
 Links to Borders railway.

Comments noted. No change.

Dorothy 
Thomson
(Submitted by 
Alan Couper)

The aim of the Glentress Masterplan to develop the 
existing facilities is to be welcomed and the idea of 
encouraging walkers and mountain bikers to stay 
longer within the area when visiting the forest and to 
make a holiday is supported. 

The detail proposals need much more work to 
address where best to site the cabins in relation to 
Glenbield sheep farm so as not to exacerbate existing 
problems especially at lambing season associated 

Support noted.

Comments noted. The Glentress 
Masterplan shows a ‘potential cabin site’ at 
Kittlegairy. The locations of the cabins are 
indicative and it is noted that additional work 

No change.

Amendment of second 
bullet point in relation to 
Figure 16 – to read: 
“Cabins should be 

29

P
age 121



with public access through farmland. In addition, the 
Masterplan does not detail where or how the new 
trails will be incorporated. The contributor considers 
that this should be a starting point, which should then 
be followed by where the complementary 
components might fit in, and then do a test of impact 
on commercial operations and the landscape.
The idea of developing the existing centre at the Peel 
is logical as the prime entry point into the forest for all 
users. However the idea of having a very large 
grouping of forest cabins remotely from that centre 
does not seem to be logical, and is unsustainable. It 
almost appears to be set there because that was a 
site where the landscape impact would be less but 
that flies in the face of the fact there are no services 
of any kind at that location. If the scale development 
at Kittlegairy was reduced and it was satellite to say 
to two medium sized groups at the Peel it might work, 
however the significant cost of bringing services into 
this remote location will mean any development is 
likely to be uneconomic and unattractive because of 
that to a private developer. 

will be required to finalise the detailed 
layout. The area identified for the cabins is 
in excess of 25 hectares; it is therefore 
considered that the potential cabins would 
be dispersed throughout the site. The 
potential landscape impact on the area has 
been a key factor in selecting an 
appropriate site given the sites location 
within the Special Landscape Area. In 
addition, consideration early on in the 
masterplanning process included the 
potential for two smaller sites elsewhere 
within the forest; however, following 
consideration and advice a decision was 
made that economies of scale would be 
better achieved when looking at a single 
potential cabin site, in addition it would also 
assist in the ease of management of the 
site. In respect to neighbouring uses, that 
has and continues to be an important factor 
in the design and layout of the site. It should 
be noted that paragraph 7.11 states that 
“The development should be compatible 
with the neighbouring land uses”. Given the 
importance of this issue it is considered 
acceptable to note that requirement at 
Figure 16: Potential Cabin Site. In respect to 
public access, the Land Reform (Scotland) 
Act 2003 establishes a statutory right of 
responsible access to land and inland 
waters for outdoor access, crossing land 
and some educational and commercial 

dispersed through the 
forest and consideration 
of neighbouring uses in 
their design and layout”.
 

30

P
age 122



purposes. Whilst it is considered that there 
is the potential for additional people to be 
present within the forest as a result of the 
new cabins; paragraph 4.10 sets out that 
the proposals at Glentress should seek to 
strengthen the identified gateways in 
relation to their importance, providing 
appropriate information, signage, wayfinding 
and ensuring safety. 

Scottish 
Water

Scottish Water broadly welcomes the diversification 
and development proposals for the Glentress area.

Support noted. No change.

Scottish 
Enterprise

The mountain biking tourism market is becoming 
increasingly competitive with a number of centres 
being developed across the UK and Europe, all 
aspiring to attract non-domestic visitors. Without the 
prospects of future investment, the risk is that 
Glentress falls behind its international competitors 
and as a result non-domestic visitor numbers will 
decline. The masterplan envisages a number of 
elements; all of which are broadly supported by SE.

Scotland is already receiving recognition for the 
innovative approach being taken at Glentress – the 
Masterplan presents a real opportunity to capitalise 
and grow that reputation internationally and 
significantly grow impact. It is anticipated that the 
Tweed Valley and Glentress in particular will be better 
placed to;
1. Drive increased domestic and international tourism 

numbers to Scotland to experience our mountain 
bike product.

2. Drive exports of knowledge and products and raise 

Support and comments noted.

Support and comments noted.

No change.

No change.

31

P
age 123



awareness overseas of the tourism product. 
3. Increase the opportunity for inward investment 

from major international brands.  
FCS’s 20 year Vision that ... “as a working forest, 
Glentress will be a well, integrated, multi user 
destination which specialises in mountain biking and 
offers a world class visitor experience for all 
visitors…” is warmly applauded by SE.  In policy 
terms, the Glentress Masterplan is firmly aligned with 
SE’s core principles of Innovation, 
Internationalisation, Investment & Inclusive Growth. 

Visit Scotland The contributor supports the proposal to develop the 
Forest Tourism offering at Glentress Peel.

The analysis of visitors’ wants and needs from 
VisitScotland’s 2011/12 Visitor Survey  highlights that, 
investment opportunities and requirements exist 
around:
 Improving the quality of existing accommodation 

which will help to drive up occupancy levels and 
provide higher yields for tourism businesses; and

 Investing in new accommodation provision from 
quality budget hotels, quality self-catering to high 
end luxury resorts, which could attract new 
visitors to Scotland.

Ongoing investment in Scotland’s tourist 
accommodation product from the private sector is 
therefore imperative.

A National Strategic Framework (The Sustainable 
Development of Mountain Biking in Scotland 2009) 
has been produced by a number of agencies with an 

Support noted.

Comment noted.

Comments noted.

No change.

No change.

No change.

32

P
age 124



interest in mountain biking. This Strategic Framework 
is seeking to create a series of five local mountain 
bike development clusters and 7stanes is an example 
of a development cluster. These development 
clusters will be broad geographic areas with greatest 
potential to safeguard and improve existing provision 
and identify opportunities which deliver future needs 
at an optimum economic return in terms of visitor 
numbers. Further potential exists to support both the 
international appeal of Scotland to the mountain 
biking community. As well as continued investment in 
track provision and maintenance, there are 
investment opportunities around supporting 
infrastructure such as visitor centres, specialist retail, 
catering and accommodation. 

The Glentress Masterplan has been identified within 
the Local Development Strategy as a key economic 
development project which could offer significant 
opportunities to improve the overall tourism economy 
in the Scottish Borders. In that respect, we would 
welcome an additional development of the Glentress 
Peel and wider Tweedvalley Forest Park and in 
particular attracting additional private sector operators 
to invest in the accommodation offering to Glentress 
Peel as part of the masterplanning process for the 
site and the wider Tweedvalley region. A 
development of this nature would add critically 
important high quality bedstock to the region and 
could result in a higher level of occupancy, the 
extension of season and in turn an increase in the 
overall visitor spend which will add to GVA [Gross 

Comments noted. No change.

33

P
age 125



Value Added] for the Scottish Borders economy and 
Scotland as a whole.

It is particularly pleasing to see the attention to detail 
which has been given to the proposed “cabin 
development” opportunities as outlined in the Local 
Development Plan Strategy Document as part of the 
supplementary guidance for Glentress Masterplan. 
There is no doubt that any private investor will be 
given the maximum opportunity to develop a high 
quality offering set sympathetically within the 
landscape. Visitor trends indicate that where 
investment is made to a high standard coupled 
together with a strong private sector operator who 
generates effective marketing strategies the wider 
visitor economy benefits

Comments noted. No change.

UPDATES Correction: Page 15, Figure 14 – inclusion of an 
additional no.6 on diagram.

Correction: Page 16 – reference to Figures 7 and 8 
should read Figures 8 and 9.

Correction: Page 19 – Omission of text in relation to 
Development Parcel C

Correction: Page 29 – Update from Eco-Homes 
paragraph to BREEAM paragraph

As a result of the Strategic Environmental 
Assessment Process, an additional site requirement 

Inclusion of an 
additional no.6 on 
Figure 14.

Replace reference to 
Figures 7 and 8 to 8 
and 9.

Inclusion of a new 
paragraph 6.6.

Replacement paragraph 
8.14 on BREEAM

Include an additional 
Submission 

34

P
age 126



to be included in relation to Water Quality. Requirement in relation 
to Water Quality.

35

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C:  Matrix of Consultation Responses Received on Habitats Regulations Assessment and Strategic 
Environmental Assessment

Consultee Comment Response/Notes Change to 
Habitats 
Regulation 
Assessment / 
Environmental 
Report

Habitats Regulations Appraisal:
Scottish 
Natural 
Heritage

The HRA report which is very well written and easy to 
follow.  However there is a one paragraph (4.3) which 
could be improved, currently it states: 
“It should be noted that although watercourses such as 
the Eshiels Burns run through the proposed site and 
issue into the Tweed, none are included within the SAC 
designation.”
While this is true, it might be better explained by a 
paragraph similar to the below so that it is clear there is 
a connection between the burn and the SAC but with 
design and methodology there will be no LSE: 
“It should be noted that although there is a pathway to 
the SAC via the Eshiels Burn which runs through the 
site and issues into the Tweed, appropriate design and 
construction methods agreed with SNH and SEPA, as 
detailed in Appendix 4 of this HRA Record will avoid 
LSE.”

Comments noted and accepted. Amend paragraph 4.3 
of report as detailed by 
contributor.

Strategic Environment Assessment:
Historic On 1 October 2015, Historic Scotland and The Royal Comments noted. No change.

1

P
age 129



Environment 
Scotland

Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments 
of Scotland (RCAHMS) ceased to operate and have 
been replaced by a new organisation, Historic 
Environment Scotland (HES). This new organisation 
(which is a Non Departmental Public Body) was 
established by the Historic Environment Scotland Act 
2014.

Consultations received by Historic Scotland before 1 
October require a response direct from Scottish 
Ministers. Ministers have sought the advice of Historic 
Environment Scotland on the Environmental Report. On 
the basis of this advice, Ministers are content with the 
adequacy of the assessment in relation to the historic 
environment. Simply for information, the reference to 
Historic Scotland in Table 8: Measures Envisaged to 
Prevent, Reduce and Offset any Significant Adverse 
Effects should be removed, and replaced with Historic 
Environment Scotland.

Comments noted and accepted. Amend text: Replace 
“Historic Scotland” 
within “Historic 
Environment Scotland.

Scottish 
Natural 
Heritage

Table 4: Key local environmental factors: 
This table includes issues which are identified as 
relating to Special Areas of Conservation
(SAC), however, only the ‘Diversity of Habitats and 
Species’ issue explicitly identifies a need for the 
masterplan to adhere to HRA findings. While we agree 
with the findings of the draft HRA Record, for a robust 
audit trail the reference to the HRA should be more 
clearly set out wherever it is relevant.
We welcome the inclusion of the Scottish Borders 
Strategic Green Network as an issue.

Assessment results of Glentress masterplan: 

Comment accepted. Reference to the 
findings of the HRA to be included within 
the table.

Comments noted.

Amend table 4 to 
include:
“The findings of the 
HRA to be taken on 
board in taking the 
Masterplan forward.”

No change.

2

P
age 130



We agree with the assessment findings presented in 
Table 6 and Appendix 5 of the Environmental Report.

Table 7: Mitigation measures identified in the SEA and 
implemented into the masterplan:
We note that several of the issues are to be addressed 
through a requirement that construction of buildings 
uses a piled ‘floating’ floor and that platforms and cut 
and fill for buildings and access routes will not be 
acceptable. In the context of the nearby SAC and 
potential pathways to that site, measures which reduce 
the likelihood of ground disturbance will play an 
important role in avoiding likely significant effect. We 
welcome the inclusion of these requirements in the 
masterplan and agree with the assessment of the 
mitigation measures. The work undertaken to assess 
views into the study area from the Upper Tweeddale
National Scenic Area (NSA) and the resulting 
identification of sensitive areas and areas for landscape 
enhancement is welcome. It appears likely that this part 
of the assessment will contribute towards the creation 
of a higher quality development.

Monitoring:
We agree that, in general, monitoring undertaken for 
the LDP and other plans, programmes and strategies 
will incorporate many of the monitoring needs arising 
from this SEA. However, there are some detailed 
measures which appear to be specific to this site which 
will require monitoring in their own right. The degree of 
monitoring required will depend on the extent to which 
mitigation measures set out in this Environmental 

Comments noted.

Comments noted.

No change.

No change.

3

P
age 131



Report are included in these other plans.

Appendix 2 – Relevant plans, programmes and 
strategies:
We recommend that ‘Let’s Get Scotland Walking’, the 
'Cycling Action Plan for Scotland 2013' and ‘A Long-
Term Vision for Active Travel in Scotland 2030’ are 
added to relevant PPS under the Access topic.

Comments accepted. Inclusion of 
documents within Updated Appendix 2.

Amend Appendix 2 to 
include reference to 
'Cycling Action Plan for 
Scotland 2013' and ‘A 
Long-Term Vision for 
Active Travel in 
Scotland 2030’.

Scottish 
Environment 
Protection 
Agency

We are satisfied that the Environmental Report (ER) 
provides a satisfactory assessment of the potential 
significant environmental effects arising from the 
Glentress Masterplan Supplementary Guidance (SG). 
We are content that most of SEPA comments at the 
Scoping Report consultation stage have been taken into 
consideration in this ER.

Alternatives:
Although alternatives have been presented in the Draft 
SG, the reference in the ER could have been clearer.  
In addition there seems to be no evidence that all 
alternatives have been assessed. We would have 
welcomed an assessment which compared the different 
alternatives. 

Flood risk:
We consider that the effects on the water environment 
have been underestimated, as the assessment shows a 
neutral score, while the Council has identified adverse 
impact on the River Tweed SAC and it is clear that 
there is flood risk from watercourses which could be 
exacerbated by the development. We would therefore 

Comments noted.

Comments noted. It should be noted that 
at Scoping Stage, a potential two cabin 
sites were being considered, however 
through further preparatory work a 
decision was made to focus on one 
potential cabin site. 

Comments accepted. It should be noted 
that paragraph 3.19 already states: 
“It is considered that if there are any 
adverse effects either alone or 
cumulative then they can be mitigated in 
a straight forward manner through Local 
Development Plan Policy, through HRA 

No change.

No change.

Amend text within 
Environmental Report 
and make subsequent 
changes to tables.
Confirm within the 
Supplementary 
Guidance the 

4

P
age 132



consider that a possible negative effect should be 
recorded, with FRA as a potential mitigation measure.  
Avoidance of flood risk is however the best form of 
mitigation.
The ER states: SEPA flood risk maps identify a number 
of areas at flood risk within the study area, whilst it is 
not intended that built development will take place 
within areas at risk of flooding, the Masterplan is a 
strategic document and the exact location of potential 
development will be dealt with through the Planning 
Application Process. The Masterplan sets out a 
requirement for a flood risk assessment and a drainage 
impact assessment to be undertaken.  We are in 
agreement with this but consider that the assessment 
scoring may mislead to think that there are no effects. If 
the effects reported were residual effects, the 
assessment could have been clearer.  In addition, the 
findings of a FRA could result in the development not 
being appropriate for this area.  
Please also note the detailed comments that we have 
provided on our separate response to the Draft 
Glentress Masterplan SG (our ref:  PCS/142087).

In terms of baseline information we are generally 
content with the information provided.  We note 
however that Table 6 of Appendix 4 – SEA Baseline 
Data provides data for municipal waste for the Scottish 
Borders, with a 2009 reference.  Please note that more 
up-to-date information is available on waste and in 
particular the definition of municipal waste has changed 
since 2009.   Please note that information about waste 
is available in the waste data section of the SEPA 

which will be completed before adoption 
of the Masterplan, and through 
subsequent Flood Risk Assessment 
and/or  Drainage Impact Assessment 
required at planning application stage.”

Comments noted. Appendix 4 Baseline 
Report to be updated.

requirement for a Flood 
Risk Assessment.

Amend Table 6 within 
Appendix 4.

5

P
age 133



website, including the interactive Discover Data Tool.
http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/waste/waste-
data/waste-data-reporting/waste-data-for-scotland/ 

We welcome the reference to the ‘quality of the water 
environment’ and welcome the reference to the 
Scotland’s Environment website.  Please note the new 
River Basin Management Plans will be published soon.

We are generally satisfied with the mitigation measures 
proposed in Table 7 and the use of the policies as 
mitigation in Table 8.  Please see our comments above 
about protection of the water environment and flood 
risk.

On a small note, please note that the title of link in the 
website reads Supplementary Guidance, rather than 
Environmental Report.

Comments noted.

Comments noted.

Comment noted.

No change.

No change.

No change.

Scottish Water It is noted that there is no mention of Drinking Water 
Protected Areas (DWPA) within this report.
There is a DWPA close to the development area 
boundary. Waters used for the abstraction of drinking 
water have to comply with the requirements of Article 7 
of the Water Framework Directive. The general 
objective of this Article is: To protect bodies of water
used for the abstraction of water intended for human 
consumption avoiding deterioration in quality in order to 
reduce the level of purification treatment required (This 
has been interpreted to mean avoiding additional 
requirement for treatment and not the removal of 
treatment systems). Please contact Scottish Water for a 
list of precautions to take if an activity falls within or 

Comments noted. It is noted that Table 8 
sets out that appropriate mitigation would 
be consultation with Scottish Water at 
Planning Application stage.
It is considered however that a further 
sentence could be added in relation to 
Table 7 of the Baseline Data in relation to 
Drinking Water Asset Status – “It is noted 
that there are Scottish Water borehole 
assets located near to Innerleithen, 
downstream from the proposed 
development.”
In addition, it is also considered that an 
additional submission requirement could 

Amend Environmental 
Report – a further 
sentence to be added in 
relation to Table 7 of 
the Baseline Data in 
relation to Drinking 
Water Asset Status – “It 
is noted that there are 
Scottish Water borehole 
assets located near to 
Innerleithen, 
downstream from the 
proposed 
development.”

6

P
age 134

http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/waste/waste-data/waste-data-reporting/waste-data-for-scotland/
http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/waste/waste-data/waste-data-reporting/waste-data-for-scotland/
http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/waste/waste-data/waste-data-reporting/waste-data-for-scotland/
http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/waste/waste-data/waste-data-reporting/waste-data-for-scotland/


comes within close proximity to a Drinking Water 
Protected Area.
Table 8: Measures Envisaged to Prevent, Reduce and 
Offset and Significant Adverse Affects: 
Water – Consultation with Scottish Water
Scottish Water has determined that the proposed 65 
Cabin and associated visitor development proposals is 
located upstream of Borehole assets located near 
Innerleithen. Any potential impact on these assets from 
this development will require appropriate water quality 
and quantity protection measures.

be included within the Glentress 
Masterplan.

An additional 
Submission 
Requirement also to be 
added to the Glentress 
Masterplan.

7

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D Updated Environmental Report

Page 137



1

Supplementary Guidance
Glentress Masterplan

Updated Strategic Environmental Assessment: Environmental Report

February 2016

Page 138



2

Contents

Non-technical Summary 3

1 Introduction 14

Purpose of this Environmental Report and Key Facts 14

SEA Activities to date 15

2 Context 17

Outline and Objectives of the Draft Supplementary Guidance:

Glentress Masterplan 17

Environmental Perspectives and SEA Objectives 18

Current State of the Environment 19

Environmental Factors 20

Likely Evolution of the Environment without the Glentress Masterplan 22

3 Assessment of Environmental Effects and Measures for Mitigation 22

Alternatives Considered 22

Assessment Methods 23

Spatial Assessment 23

Matrix Assessment 24

Assessment Results of Glentress Masterplan 24

Summary of Findings 25

Monitoring 33

4 Next Steps 34

Appendix 1: Draft Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan

Appendix 2: Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies

Appendix 3: Consultation Authorities Scoping Responses

Appendix 4: SEA Baseline Data – Glentress Masterplan

Appendix 5: Environmental Assessment

Page 139



3

Non-technical Summary

Glentress Masterplan and the SEA Process
i Scottish Borders Council in association with the Forest Enterprise Scotland has prepared

the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan, which was out for Public

Consultation for a period of 12 weeks from 10 August 2015 to 02 November 2015.

ii A Strategic Environmental Assessment is a statutory protective measure to ensure that

the full environmental implications of any plan or programme are identified, assessed,

mitigated, monitored and communicated to decision-makers and the public with

opportunities for their involvement. In Scotland the SEA is required under the terms of

the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005.

iii The Glentress Masterplan has undergone two stages of examination in the SEA process:

 A Scoping Report was submitted 5 February 2014 via the SEA Gateway, setting out

the proposed method by which to examine the Glentress Masterplan and assess its

impacts on a range of environmental issues. This process confirmed that the final

report would focus on all nine of the identified SEA perspectives: Air; Biodiversity,

Flora and Fauna; Climatic Factors; Cultural Heritage; Landscape and Townscape;

Material Assets; Population and Human Health; Soil and Water

 The present Environmental Report contains the final assessment of the Glentress

Masterplan following the method set out in the Scoping Report and will be

submitted to the SEA Gateway for distribution to the three Consultation Authorities

– Scottish Environment Protection Agency, Historic Scotland and Scottish Natural

Heritage in August 2015.

Context
iv The Draft SG consists of a Masterplan that has been developed to help consolidate the

Glentress visitor attraction as a successful international destination and to help further

develop the economy of the surrounding parts of the Tweed Valley. The document sets

out the main opportunities and constraints for the development of Glentress.

v The Masterplan first sets the policy and locational context of Glentress to provide the

strategic context of the surrounds of the attraction. There is then discussion of

development principles to help balance how Glentress could be diversified and

developed, whilst protecting the forest park setting; and then detailed proposals of what

development may be promoted including consideration of siting options, materials and

submission requirements.

Environmental Factors
vi The baseline information sets out the relevant environmental information for the area.

This is addressed in detail by the baseline report in Appendix 4. However, the key local

environmental factors that provide the context for the area and have been identified

through analysis of the baseline data are set out in Table 4 below:

Page 140



4

Table 4: Key Local Environmental Factors

Issue Supporting Data Implications for

Masterplan

The River Tweed
incorporating the Soonhope
Burn is designated a Site of
Special Scientific Interest.

SSSI Although not located
immediately within the
Glentress study area, the
Masterplan will require to
consider impacts on the SSSI
designation. It is also noted
however, that the Glentress
Burn, Cramb Burn and
Eshiels Burn all flow into the
River Tweed SSSI.

The Masterplan will require
to consider and mitigate any
impacts on the SSSI
designation.

The River Tweed and Nut
Wood (located in the south
east) are both designated
Special Areas of
Conservation.

SAC The Glentress Burn, Cramb
Burn and Eshiels Burn all
flow to the River Tweed SAC.
In addition and although not
located within the Glentress
study area, the Soonhope
Burn also flows to the River
Tweed SAC.

The Nut Wood is also
designated a SAC.

The Masterplan will require
to consider and mitigate any
impacts on the SAC
designations.

The findings of the HRA to be
taken on board in taking the
Masterplan forward.

Diversity of Habitats and
Species

SAC, SSSI, SLA Local biodiversity is
significant. The study area
contains a wide range of
species and habitats related
to the environment. The
Masterplan should seek to
minimise any loss.

Adhere to the HRA findings.

Castle Hill, Horsburgh Castle
Farm (located within the
Glentress study area)

Scheduled Monuments The Masterplan will require
to ensure that the
appearance, fabric and
setting of the Scheduled

Page 141



5

Eshiels Roman Camp
(located outwith the
Glentress study area)

Monuments are safeguarded.

Various archaeological
features on and off site e.g.
Cardie Hill Fort (onsite)

Archaeological features
(Historic Environment
Record)

The Masterplan will require
to safeguard and protect
archaeological features
onsite.

The Glentress Study Area
sits adjacent to the Upper
Tweeddale National Scenic
Area (NSA)

NSA special qualities The Masterplan should seek
to effectively mitigate the
visual effects of future
development in the study
area.

The Glentress Study Area
sits within the Tweed Valley
Special Landscape Area
(SLA)

Tweed Valley SLA
Designation Statement

The Masterplan should seek
to effectively mitigate the
landscape and visual effects
of future development
within the study area.

Scottish Borders Strategic
Green Network

Strategic Green Network
(SBC)

The Masterplan proposals
should seek to protect,
promote and enhance the
Green Network.

Parts of the Glentress Burn,
Cramb Burn and the Eshiels
Burn are at risk of flooding

SEPA Floodrisk Mapping The Masterplan should
highlight the need to avoid
areas that are at risk of
flooding

Core Paths Core Path Plan The Masterplan should seek
to ensure public access to
the core path.

Assessment Results
Air
vii The potential proposals identified within the Masterplan have not identified a negative

or significantly negative impact on air quality. This is because there are a number of
measures present within the vicinity of the study area that will help reduce the number
of car journeys required. The location of the Masterplan study area means that services
and facilities are located nearby primarily within the settlements of Peebles, Cardrona
and Innerleithen. In addition, the study area is immediately accessible via public
transport with a bus stop conveniently located adjacent to the entrance into Glentress,
furthermore the popular Peebles to Innerleithen multi use path is also located adjacent
to the entrance. All of this provides alternatives to using the private car and in turn they
will help to lower emissions. The Masterplan also promotes that any development that
does take place is constructed to a high standard and incorporates measure to promote
energy efficiency.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna
Viii The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for Biodiversity, Flora

and Fauna. This is because it is considered that some elements of the Masterplan will

Page 142



6

assist in enhancing the Scottish Borders Strategic Green Network in which the
Masterplan study area is located within; this is by way of landscape improvements in the
form of additional planting. In addition, it is considered that positive effects to
biodiversity can also be delivered through the on-going protection of the forest
environment and its Continued Forest Cover. It is also considered that the creation of
new active travel/recreation routes would also provide the potential for natural
heritage improvements such as habitat creation.

Climatic Factors
ix The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for Climatic Factors.

Whilst it is acknowledged that development can result in emissions, the potential
proposals identified within the Masterplan provide measures to lessen or eliminate
adverse impacts. In addition, there are a number of measures present within the vicinity
that will assist in reducing the volume of car journeys and the level of emissions they
generate as discussed within the Air section above. In addition, with increased planting
proposed, this would have an effect on absorbing CO2. In addition, the southerly aspect
of the site provides excellent opportunity for solar gain benefits.

Cultural Heritage
x The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for Cultural Heritage. It

is considered that positive elements however will result from the potential proposals,
these relate to the introduction of interpretation on the site which should result in an
increased awareness, understanding and appreciation of the cultural heritage. In
addition, the Masterplan also seeks the additional safeguarding of some of the historic
features on site such as the Castle Hill Scheduled Monument. Furthermore, it is
considered that the promotion of environmental improvements of the Glentress study
area would in turn also bring potential improvements to the cultural heritage resource.

Landscape and Townscape
xi It is considered that the potential proposals will bring a neutral impact for Landscape

and Townscape. However, it is also considered that some of the potential proposals may
help to improve the landscape. Areas of enhanced planting, as well as areas noted for
their sensitivity have been identified within Masterplan. Linked to these would be the
continued protection of the Glentress Forest and its Continued Forest Cover.

Material Assets
xii The potential proposals are considered to have a positive impact on Material Assets. The

assessment finds that there would be positive effects from the promotion and extension
of the cycle/path network. In addition, a positive effect would also result in the
encouragement of the use of sustainable transport. The Masterplan also notes the
importance of early discussion with the Council’s Waste Management Team so as to
encourage recycling of waste within the development and to ensure appropriate waste
collection locations.

Population and Human Health
xiii The assessment finds that there are significant positive impacts on Population and

Human Health. The Glentress study area is located within the Scottish Borders Strategic
Green Network, and the potential proposals contained within the Masterplan generally
assist in enhancing the Green Network asset. The potential proposals will bring positive
impacts because they give rise to the potential for positive quality of life changes
through easier access to the Green Network, in addition the potential proposals at
Glentress could result in significant positive environmental effect because there is
promotion of an area were the population can enjoy recreation, relaxation and physical
exercise.

Page 143



7

Soil
xiv The assessment finds that there are no significant impacts on Soil. It is considered that

the additional guidance included within the Masterplan will assist in minimising soil
disturbance during construction phase, as well as minimising the disruption to the tree
roots within the areas identified for potential development, this will then assist in
protecting the natural drainage within the study area.

Water
xv It is considered that as with soil, the minimisation of disturbance of soil and the use of

porous materials where possible will assist in protecting the natural drainage of the site.
In addition, it is also considered that the promotion of the green network at Glentress
could assist in mitigating the current and future flood risk within the area, as well as
being linked to the enhancement of the green network and the creation of linked
habitats. However, it is acknowledged that there is potential for adverse impacts on the
River Tweed SAC and on the water quality of the River Tweed. In addition, there is also
the potential for increased flood risk.

Assessment Findings
xvi The assessment found that the Masterplan has addressed the relevant environmental

issues, resulting in broadly neutral or positive effects. It is considered that if there are
any adverse effects either alone or cumulative then they can be mitigated in a straight
forward manner through Local Development Plan Policy, through HRA which will be
completed before adoption of the Masterplan, and through subsequent Flood Risk
Assessment and/or Drainage Impact Assessment required at planning application stage.

xvii It is also considered that there is the potential for significant positive cumulative
effects as a result of the Glentress Masterplan, and these relate to Population and Human
Health. The combination of the Glentress study area being located within the Scottish
Borders Strategic Green Network, and the potential for the creation of new paths and
with them subsequent enhanced biodiversity, the introduction of interpretation on the
site to assist in the awareness, understanding and appreciation of the sites cultural
assets; it is considered that there is a positive cumulative effect on Population and
Human Health due to the benefits to quality of life for residents and visitors to the area.

Mitigation
xviii A number of mitigation measures were identified by the assessment process and

these are set out in Table 7. Table 8 also sets out the measures envisaged to prevent,
reduce and as fully as possible offset any significant adverse effects on the environment
of implementing the Masterplan.

Page 144



8

Table 7: Mitigation Measures identified by the SEA and Implemented into the

Masterplan

SEA Topic Mitigation Measure

Air The Masterplan confirms the need for bus/coach parking, bus

turning and passenger drop-off point.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Additional Guidance has been incorporated in to the

Masterplan, this guidance includes requirements on

proposed landscape design which will be necessary to be

taken on board in any subsequent application.

In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from

the potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

now included requires any new cabin development uses a

‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles. This

is to limit the ground works and excavation required within

this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots and the

natural drainage within the forest area.

Climatic Factors Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to encourage energy efficiency particularly of the potential

cabins.

Cultural Heritage The Masterplan (refer to Figure 7) identifies the Scheduled

Monument on the site. To assist in protecting and

safeguarding the Monument the Council’s Archaeologist has

sought for the Masterplan to include a buffer area around the

monument.

Figure 6 of the Masterplan also identifies areas where

information and interpretation are proposed to assist in

improving the visitor experience.

The Masterplan now seeks that any application on the site

includes a detailed archaeological assessment with a

mitigation strategy. The Masterplan also notes that a

monitoring strategy may also be necessary. As the study area

of Glentress is already a recreation area which is already well

visited, the potential requirement for a monitoring strategy

will assist in the protection of the historic environment of

Glentress.

Landscape and Townscape Additional Guidance has been incorporated in to the

Masterplan, this guidance includes requirements on

proposed landscape design which will be necessary to take

Page 145



9

on board in any subsequent application.

In addition, to assist in the minimisation of soil disturbance

from the potential new cabin development, the additional

guidance now included requires any new cabin development

uses a ‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles.

This is to limit the ground works and excavation required

within this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots

and the natural drainage within the forest area.

Further background work in the preparation of the

Masterplan has been undertaken. This work considered

views into the study area from the NSA as well as from the

popular Drovers Road. The outcome of this additional work

has resulted in identifying areas of sensitivity where no built

development should take place, and areas for landscape

enhancement in relation to the potential cabin site; this has

then been incorporated into the Constraints and

Opportunities section of the Masterplan and carried through

into section 5 of the Masterplan.

Material Assets Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to encourage energy efficiency particularly of the potential

cabins.

Population and Human Health N/A

Soil Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to ensure that the potential cabin development respects the

topography of the site and avoids building on steep slopes.

Importantly, it also notes that the earth moving to create

platforms for building will not be acceptable.

There are currently a number of access routes available

through the study area, the additional guidance seeks that

existing routes should be used wherever possible, and new

access routes should be located on flat or gently graded

slopes and avoid excessive cut and fill.

In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from

the potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

now included requires any new cabin development uses a

‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles. This

is to limit the ground works and excavation required within

this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots and the

natural drainage within the forest area.

Water Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from the

Page 146



10

potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

requires any new cabin development uses a ‘floating’ floor

construction method supported by piles. This is to limit the

ground works and excavation required within this woodland

site, and minimise disruption to roots and the natural

drainage within the forest area.

To assess the impact of any development and to ensure that

the proposed development does not result in increased flood

risk, a Flood Risk Assessment will be required.

Page 147



11

Table 8: Measures Envisaged to Prevent, Reduce and Offset any Significant

Adverse Effects

SEA Topic Measures Envisaged to Prevent, Reduce and Offsett any

Significant Adverse Impacts

Air Design & Access Statement

Transport Assessment

Consultation with Council’s Waste Management Team

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Consultation with Council’s Ecology Officer

Biodiversity and Phase 1 Habitat Survey

Protected Species Survey

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and

Species
 EP2: National Nature Conservation and Protected

Species
 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP12: Green Networks
 EP13 Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows
 EP15: Development affecting the Water Environment

Climatic Factors The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage
 EP16: Air Quality

Page 148



12

Cultural Heritage Consultation with Council’s Archaeology Officer

Consultation with Historic Environment Scotland (Scheduled

Monuments)

Archaeological Assessment, Mitigation Strategy and

Monitoring Strategy

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology

Landscape and Townscape Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

Landscaping and Structure Planting Statement

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP4: National Scenic Areas
 EP5: Special Landscape Areas
 EP8: Archaeology
 ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure in the

Countryside
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites

Material Assets The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage
Population and Human Health The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology
 EP12: Green Networks
 ED7: Buisiness, Tourism and Leisure Development in

the Countryside
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure

Page 149



13

 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
Soil The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites
 IS8: Flooding

Water Consultation with Scottish Water

Consultation with SEPA

A requirement for a Flood Risk Assessment

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and

Protected Species
 EP2: National Nature Conservation and Protected

Species
 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP15: Development Affecting the Water Environment
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Page 150



14

1. Introduction

Purpose of this Environmental Report and Key Facts
1.1 As part of the preparation of the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan,

Scottish Borders Council carried out a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA).

The purpose of this Environmental Report was to provide information on the

Glentress Masterplan, set out the findings of an environmental assessment and

identify, describe and evaluate the likely significant effects on the environment of

implementing the Glentress Masterplan. In addition, this Environmental Report also

provided an early and effective opportunity for both the Consultation Authorities

and the public to offer views on any aspect of this Environmental Report.

1.2 The Key Facts relating to the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan are set

out in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Key Facts relating to Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan

Key Facts

Responsible Authority Scottish Borders Council
Title of PPS Supplementary Guidance (SG): Glentress Masterplan (the document is

in draft form)
Purpose of PPS The purpose of the Draft SG is to set the context and principles for the

sustainable development of the visitor destination at Glentress
What prompted the PPS Forestry Commission Scotland and Scottish Borders Council would

like to see continued sustainable development of Glentress to
consolidate it as an international quality visitor destination and, in
turn, to help develop the economy of the Tweed Valley, in terms of the
wider network of destinations and activities in the surrounding area

Subject Town and Country Planning & Land Use
Period Covered by PPS The Draft SG refers to development over 5, 10 and 15 years, with

phases in terms of different parts of the development proposed.
Frequency of updates When approved the SG would be part of the Local Development Plan

(LDP). The LDP is required to be reviewed at least every 5 years and
therefore there is potential for the SG to be reviewed as a part of the
LDP process.

Area covered by PPS The Draft SG covers the River Tweed between Peebles and
Innerleithen in the west of the Borders local authority area. Within
this area is the Glentress visitor attraction which is located 2.3 miles
to the east of Peebles.

Summary of nature/content
of PPS

The Draft SG is a Masterplan for the future sustainable development of
the Glentress visitor attraction located in the Tweed Valley between
Peebles and Innerleithen. The document presents a strategic look at
the context of this part of the valley and then presents proposals for
physical development to enhance the visitor attraction through a
Masterplan approach. The Masterplan includes indicative proposals
for a recreation hub including accommodation and parking.

Are there any proposed PPS
objectives?

Yes

Copy of objectives attached? Yes

Page 151



15

Date 10 July 2015
Contact Trish Connolly, Planning Officer, Planning Policy & Access

Council HQ
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose
TD6 OSA
tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk

SEA Activities to date
1.3 Thus far chronology of the SEA process is as follows:

 05/02/2014 Scoping Report submitted to SEA Gateway

 07/03/2014 Consultation Authorities Response to Scoping Report

1.4 Consultation timetable:

 10 August 2015 Consultative Draft Supplementary Guidance: Glentress

Masterplan published for formal public consultation

 10 August 2015 Environmental Report submitted to SEA Gateway

 02 November 2015 Consultation period closed.

1.5 The process to be undertaken for the SEA is shown in the diagram on page 16.

Page 152



16

Diagram 1: Timetable

2.

Scoping Report consultation

6 weeks

Environmental assessment

and preparation of

Environmental Report

Preparation of post-adoption

statement

Analysis of consultation

responses and revision of ER

as required

Environmental Report

consultation

6 - 12 weeks

Submission of post adoption

statement

Analysis of consultation

responses and revision of

Masterplan

Preparation of finalised

Masterplan

Consultation on Masterplan

6 – 12 weeks

Preparation of Consultative

Masterplan

Submission of finalised

Masterplan to committee for

approval

Late Summer

2015

Winter

2015/2016

Winter/

Spring 2016

SBC commitment to prepare a SG

Glentress Masterplan

Early

Autumn

2015

Preparation of Scoping Report

Responsible Authority

determination that SEA is

required under section 5(3) and

that significant effects are likely

February -

March 2014

May – June

2015

Page 153



17

Context

Outline and objectives of the Draft Supplementary Guidance:

Glentress Masterplan

2.1 The purpose of this section is to explain the nature, contents, objectives and

timescale of the Draft Supplementary Guidance (SG) : Glentress Masterplan.

2.2 The Draft SG consists of a Masterplan that has been developed to help consolidate

the Glentress visitor attraction as a successful international destination and to help

further develop the economy of the surrounding parts of the Tweed Valley. The

document sets out the main opportunities and constraints for the development of

Glentress.

2.3 The Masterplan first sets the policy and locational context of Glentress to provide the

strategic context of the surrounds of the attraction. There is then discussion of

development principles to help balance how Glentress could be diversified and

developed, whilst protecting the forest park setting; and then detailed proposals of

what development may be promoted including consideration of siting options,

materials and submission requirements.

2.4 It should be noted that the Masterplan has changed somewhat from that previously

submitted to the SEA Gateway, in that the earlier version submitted identified three

potential cabin sites whereas the latest version now only identifies a single cabin

site. In addition further guidance has been included within the Masterplan which

will require to be incorporated into any proposed cabin development in relation to

its siting and design.

2.5 The Draft SG has been informed by background studies, which are in turn influenced

by public and stakeholder consultation.

2.6 A Draft SG is attached at Appendix 1 (herein referred to as the Masterplan)

Relationship with plans, programmes and strategies (PPS)

2.7 SEA plays an essential complementary role by ensuring that implementation of the

Masterplan will mitigate negative, and develop positive, effects on the environment.

2.8 Other plans, programmes and strategies that are relevant to the Masterplan are

listed in Appendix 2. Commentary on each relevant PPS is also included within that

Appendix.

2.9 The Masterplan will have an influence on future strategic planning, including

revision of the Strategic Development Plan and the Local Development Plan.

Page 154



18

Environmental Perspectives and SEA Objectives

2.10 A Scoping Report was submitted to the SEA Gateway on 5 February 2014 and

considered by the three Consultation Authorities. A copy of the responses from each

of the Consultation Authorities can be found in Appendix 3. The Scoping Report set

out the proposed method by which to examine the Masterplan and assess its impacts

on a range of environmental issues. This process confirmed that the final report

would focus on each of the nine identified perspectives:

 Air

 Biodiversity, flora and fauna

 Climatic factors

 Cultural heritage

 Landscape and townscape

 Material assets

 Population and human health

 Soil

 Water

2.11 The key SEA Objectives have been identified from the Local Development Plan

SEA, and attributed to the environmental perspectives in which the Masterplan is

likely to have a significant role (refer to Table 2).

Table 2: Objectives

SEA topic SEA objective

Air To protect current air quality and provide opportunities

for public transport.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna To protect and enhance biodiversity and habitats in the

Borders.

Climatic factors To reduce CO² emissions, reduce energy consumption

and promote climate change adaptation.

Cultural Heritage To protect and where appropriate, enhance the historic

environment.

Landscape and townscape To protect and enhance the landscape and townscape in

the Borders.

Page 155



19

Material assets To promote the sustainable use of natural resources,

increase waste recycling, and increase access to public

transport.

Population and human health To improve the quality of life and human health for

communities in the Borders.

Soil To protect the quality of soil in the Borders.

Water To protect and enhance the status of the water

environment.

Current state of the environment

2.12 A clear understanding of the current state of the environment is necessary to

assist the identification of environmental problems, support the process of assessing

the environmental effects and provide a baseline against which monitoring data can

be compared. The prime information sources for this are set out in Table 3 and

baseline environmental information in full appears in Appendix 4.

Table 3: Environmental Baseline Information

SEA topic Corresponding spatial information

Air Greenhouse gas emissions, daily average traffic flow

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Sites of Special Scientific Interest, Special Areas of

Conservation, Special Protection Areas, Ramsar, Phase 1

Habitat, Ancient Woodland Inventory and Key

Greenspace

Climatic factors Location of wind turbines, (*Other topics include relevant

data that is considered for the Climatic Factors topic)

Cultural Heritage Listed buildings, Conservation Areas, Scheduled

Monuments, Historic Environment Records, Gardens and

Designed Landscapes

Page 156



20

Landscape and townscape National Scenic Areas, Special Landscape Areas, Borders

Landscape Character Assessment

Material assets Strategic Road Network, Rail Network, National Cycle

Routes, Innerleithen to Peebles Multi Use Path, Waste

Treatment Facilities (Recycling centres)

Population and human health Core Paths, Scottish Borders Strategic Green Network,

Key Greenspace

Soil Soil Type

Water SEPA Flooding map (river and surface water)

Environmental Factors

2.13 The baseline information sets out the relevant environmental information for

the area. This is addressed in detail by the baseline report in Appendix 4. However, it

is useful to set out the key local environmental factors that provide the context for

the area. These have been identified through analysis of the baseline data and are set

out in Table 4 below:

Table 4: Key Local Environmental Factors

Issue Supporting Data Implications for

Masterplan

The River Tweed
incorporating the Soonhope
Burn is designated a Site of
Special Scientific Interest.

SSSI Although not located
immediately within the
Glentress study area, the
Masterplan will require to
consider impacts on the SSSI
designation. It is also noted
however, that the Glentress
Burn, Cramb Burn and
Eshiels Burn all flow into the
River Tweed SSSI.

The Masterplan will require
to consider and mitigate any
impacts on the SSSI
designation.

The River Tweed and Nut
Wood (located in the south

SAC The Glentress Burn, Cramb
Burn and Eshiels Burn all

Page 157



21

east) are both designated
Special Areas of
Conservation.

flow to the River Tweed SAC.
In addition and although not
located within the Glentress
study area, the Soonhope
Burn also flows to the River
Tweed SAC.

The Nut Wood is also
designated a SAC.

The Masterplan will require
to consider and mitigate any
impacts on the SAC
designations.

The findings of the HRA to be
taken on board in taking the
Masterplan forward.

Diversity of Habitats and
Species

SAC, SSSI, SLA Local biodiversity is
significant. The study area
contains a wide range of
species and habitats related
to the environment. The
Masterplan should seek to
minimise any loss.

Adhere to the HRA findings.

Castle Hill, Horsburgh Castle
Farm (located within the
Glentress study area)

Eshiels Roman Camp
(located outwith the
Glentress study area)

Scheduled Monuments The Masterplan will require
to ensure that the
appearance, fabric and
setting of the Scheduled
Monuments are safeguarded.

Various archaeological
features on and off site e.g.
Cardie Hill Fort (onsite)

Archaeological features
(Historic Environment
Record)

The Masterplan will require
to safeguard and protect
archaeological features
onsite.

The Glentress Study Area
sits adjacent to the Upper
Tweeddale National Scenic
Area (NSA)

NSA special qualities The Masterplan should seek
to effectively mitigate the
visual effects of future
development in the study
area.

The Glentress Study Area
sits within the Tweed Valley
Special Landscape Area
(SLA)

Tweed Valley SLA
Designation Statement

The Masterplan should seek
to effectively mitigate the
landscape and visual effects
of future development
within the study area.

Scottish Borders Strategic Strategic Green Network The Masterplan proposals
should seek to protect,

Page 158



22

Green Network (SBC) promote and enhance the
Green Network.

Parts of the Glentress Burn,
Cramb Burn and the Eshiels
Burn are at risk of flooding

SEPA Floodrisk Mapping The Masterplan should
highlight the need to avoid
areas that are at risk of
flooding

Core Paths Core Path Plan The Masterplan should seek
to ensure public access to
the core path.

Likely Evolution of the Environment without the Glentress

Masterplan

2.14 Without the Glentress Masterplan it is considered that the likely future changes

to the Glentress area will be:

 Undertaken in a piecemeal manner without due consideration of the likely

effects on the landscape and other environmental receptors

 A decline in the quality of the Glentress Forest Area

 A lack of opportunity for the public to influence the way Glentress will be

developed

 A lack of correlation between stakeholders involved in the future development

of Glentress.

3. Assessment of Environmental Effects and Measures for

Mitigation

Alternatives considered

3.1 The Masterplan for Glentress Peel proposes a number of indicative proposals for

development which are a result of public and stakeholder consultation that has been

undertaken in the preparation of background studies. These are detailed in page 11

onward in the Glentress Masterplan and include “Development Blocks” consisting of

Glentress Peel, Car Park (consolidated parking); and Potential Car Park Extension.

3.2 The Glentress Peel development is expanded upon in the Masterplan through three

Activity Areas hosting an area for short, circular informal walks, an area for stand

alone mountain bike skills area and pump park for novice bikers, and a stand alone

free ride mountain bike skills area for more advanced mountain bikers. Buildings to

support the Glentress Peel would include an arrival building, a main building and an

activity building.

Page 159



23

3.3 In addition to Development Block A and the car parking options, there is further

indicative proposals associated with new mountain bike and walking trails; roads

and safety; and potential of visitor accommodation. The accommodation is

presented through a potential site at Kittlegairy, this is located to the north west of

the current Glentress Peel development.

Assessment Methods

3.4 In accordance with Schedule 2 of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act

2005, Scottish Borders Council has considered the effects (positive and negative) of

the Glentress Masterplan on the range of SEA perspectives identified at the Scoping

Stage.

3.5 The SEA perspectives form the basis on which the Glentress Masterplan is assessed.

The method of assessment undertaken is a combination of a spatial and a matrix

approach; this is due to the different components contained within the Masterplan –

the policy guidance element and the landuse element.

Spatial Assessment

3.6 The spatial assessment approach applies to the development site identified within

the Glentress Masterplan. Whilst some of the potential proposals relate to the

creation of new paths, car parking and biking areas, the site also includes two key

areas for built development, these are the potential cabin site at Kittlegairy and the

Glentress Peel.

3.7 The spatial assessment is broadly based on the approach used within the Local

Development Plan process and Table 5 below shows the spatial assessment criteria

of the full range of the SEA topic.

Table 5: SEA Topics and Spatial Assessment Criteria

SEA Topic Corresponding Spatial Assessment Criteria

Air Access to public transport, access to services

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Special Areas of Conservation, Special

Protection Areas, Ramsar sites, Sites of Special

Scientific Interest, International / national

designation constraints, National Nature

Reserves, Ancient Woodland Inventory, Tree

Preservation Order, Proximity to River Tweed

Climatic Factors Site Aspect

Page 160



24

Cultural Heritage Scheduled Monuments, Listed Buildings,

Conservation Areas, Gardens and Designed

Landscapes

Landscape and Townscape Special Landscape Areas, National Scenic

Areas, Landscape Features

Material Assets Key Greenspace

Population and Human Health Access to public transport, access to services /

facilities, Scottish Borders Strategic Green

Network, Key Greenspace

Soil Prime Quality Agricultural Land

Water Sewage, Water Supply, Flood Risk

Matrix Assessment

3.8 The matrix assessment approach applies to the policy guidance element of the

Masterplan. This approach allows to provide a transparent means of recording the

potential environmental impacts, provides a basis of recording any mitigation which

would be required, and provides the basis for consideration of the potential

cumulative and interrelated impacts of the Masterplan.

Assessment Results of Glentress Masterplan

3.9 The full assessment findings are contained in Appendix 5. Table 6 provides an

overview of the assessment findings. Table 5 provides an overview of the

assessment findings:

Table 6: Assessment Findings

Impact on SEA Topic

A
ir

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

,F
lo

ra

a
n

d
F

a
u

n
a

C
li

m
a

ti
c

F
a

ct
o

rs

C
u

lt
u

ra
l

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

a
n

d

T
o

w
n

sc
a

p
e

M
a

te
ri

a
l

A
ss

e
ts

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

a
n

d

H
u

m
a

n
H

e
a

lt
h

S
o

il

W
a

te
r

Glentress

Masterplan

0 √ 0 √ 0 √ √√ 0 x

Page 161



25

Glentress Study

Area

Refer to Spatial Assessment within Appendix 5

xx x 0 √ √√ 

Significantly

Negative

Negative Neutral Positive Significantly

Positive

Summary of Findings

Air

3.10 The potential proposals identified within the Masterplan have not identified a

negative or significantly negative impact on air quality. This is because there are a

number of measures present within the vicinity of the study area that will help

reduce the number of car journeys required. The location of the Masterplan study

area means that services and facilities are located nearby primarily within the

settlements of Peebles, Cardrona and Innerleithen. In addition, the study area is

immediately accessible via public transport with a bus stop conveniently located

adjacent to the entrance into Glentress, furthermore the popular Peebles to

Innerleithen multi use path is also located adjacent to the entrance. All of this

provides alternatives to using the private car and in turn they will help to lower

emissions. The Masterplan also promotes that any development that does take place

is constructed to a high standard and incorporates measure to promote energy

efficiency.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna

3.11 The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna. This is because it is considered that some elements of

the Masterplan will assist in enhancing the Scottish Borders Strategic Green

Network in which the Masterplan study area is located within; this is by way of

landscape improvements in the form of additional planting. In addition, it is

considered that positive effects to biodiversity can also be delivered through the on-

going protection of the forest environment and its Continued Forest Cover. It is also

considered that the creation of new active travel/recreation routes would also

provide the potential for natural heritage improvements such as habitat creation.

Climatic Factors

3.12 The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for Climatic

Factors. Whilst it is acknowledged that development can result in emissions, the

potential proposals identified within the Masterplan provide measures to lessen or

eliminate adverse impacts. In addition, there are a number of measures present

within the vicinity that will assist in reducing the volume of car journeys and the

level of emissions they generate as discussed within the Air section above. In

addition, with increased planting proposed, this would have an effect on absorbing

Page 162



26

CO2. In addition, the southerly aspect of the site provides excellent opportunity for

solar gain benefits.

Cultural Heritage

3.13 The potential proposals have not identified any negative impacts for Cultural

Heritage. It is considered that positive elements however will result from the

potential proposals, these relate to the introduction of interpretation on the site

which should result in an increased awareness, understanding and appreciation of

the cultural heritage. In addition, the Masterplan also seeks the additional

safeguarding of some of the historic features on site such as the Castle Hill Scheduled

Monument. Furthermore, it is considered that the promotion of environmental

improvements of the Glentress study area would in turn also bring potential

improvements to the cultural heritage resource.

Landscape and Townscape

3.14 It is considered that the potential proposals will bring a neutral impact for

Landscape and Townscape. However, it is also considered that some of the potential

proposals may help to improve the landscape. Areas of enhanced planting, as well as

areas noted for their sensitivity have been identified within Masterplan. Linked to

these would be the continued protection of the Glentress Forest and its Continued

Forest Cover.

Material Assets

3.15 The potential proposals are considered to have a positive impact on Material

Assets. The assessment finds that there would be positive effects from the

promotion and extension of the cycle/path network. In addition, a positive effect

would also result in the encouragement of the use of sustainable transport. The

Masterplan also notes the importance of early discussion with the Council’s Waste

Management Team so as to encourage recycling of waste within the development

and to ensure appropriate waste collection locations.

Population and Human Health

3.16 The assessment finds that there are significant positive impacts on Population

and Human Health. The Glentress study area is located within the Scottish Borders

Strategic Green Network, and the potential proposals contained within the

Masterplan generally assist in enhancing the Green Network asset. The potential

proposals will bring positive impacts because they give rise to the potential for

positive quality of life changes through easier access to the Green Network, in

addition the potential proposals at Glentress could result in significant positive

environmental effect because there is promotion of an area were the population can

enjoy recreation, relaxation and physical exercise.

Soil

3.17 The assessment finds that there are no significant impacts on Soil. It is

considered that the additional guidance included within the Masterplan will assist in

minimising soil disturbance during construction phase, as well as minimising the

Page 163



27

disruption to the tree roots within the areas identified for potential development,

this will then assist in protecting the natural drainage within the study area.

Water

3.18 It is considered that as with soil, the minimisation of disturbance of soil and the

use of porous materials where possible will assist in protecting the natural drainage

of the site. In addition, it is also considered that the promotion of the green network

at Glentress could assist in mitigating the current and future flood risk within the

area, as well as being linked to the enhancement of the green network and the

creation of linked habitats. However, it is acknowledged that there is potential for

adverse impacts on the River Tweed SAC and on the water quality of the River

Tweed. In addition, there is also the potential for increased flood risk.

Assessment Findings

3.19 The assessment found that the Masterplan has addressed the relevant

environmental issues, resulting in broadly neutral or positive effects. It is considered

that if there are any adverse effects either alone or cumulative then they can be

mitigated in a straight forward manner through Local Development Plan Policy,

through HRA which will be completed before adoption of the Masterplan, and

through subsequent Flood Risk Assessment and/or Drainage Impact Assessment

required at planning application stage.

3.20 It is also considered that there is the potential for significant positive cumulative

effects as a result of the Glentress Masterplan, and these relate to Population and

Human Health. The combination of the Glentress study area being located within the

Scottish Borders Strategic Green Network, and the potential for the creation of new

paths and with them subsequent enhanced biodiversity, the introduction of

interpretation on the site to assist in the awareness, understanding and appreciation

of the sites cultural assets; it is considered that there is a positive cumulative effect

on Population and Human Health due to the benefits to quality of life for residents

and visitors to the area.

Mitigation

3.21 A number of mitigation measures were identified by the assessment process and

these are set out in Table 7. Table 8 also sets out the measures envisaged to prevent,

reduce and as fully as possible offset any significant adverse effects on the

environment of implementing the Masterplan.

Page 164



28

Table 7: Mitigation Measures identified by the SEA and Implemented into the

Masterplan

SEA Topic Mitigation Measure

Air The Masterplan confirms the need for bus/coach parking, bus

turning and passenger drop-off point.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Additional Guidance has been incorporated in to the

Masterplan, this guidance includes requirements on

proposed landscape design which will be necessary to be

taken on board in any subsequent application.

In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from

the potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

now included requires any new cabin development uses a

‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles. This

is to limit the ground works and excavation required within

this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots and the

natural drainage within the forest area.

Climatic Factors Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to encourage energy efficiency particularly of the potential

cabins.

Cultural Heritage The Masterplan (refer to Figure 7) identifies the Scheduled

Monument on the site. To assist in protecting and

safeguarding the Monument the Council’s Archaeologist has

sought for the Masterplan to include a buffer area around the

monument.

Figure 6 of the Masterplan also identifies areas where

information and interpretation are proposed to assist in

improving the visitor experience.

The Masterplan now seeks that any application on the site

includes a detailed archaeological assessment with a

mitigation strategy. The Masterplan also notes that a

monitoring strategy may also be necessary. As the study area

of Glentress is already a recreation area which is already well

visited, the potential requirement for a monitoring strategy

will assist in the protection of the historic environment of

Glentress.

Landscape and Townscape Additional Guidance has been incorporated in to the

Masterplan, this guidance includes requirements on

proposed landscape design which will be necessary to take

Page 165



29

on board in any subsequent application.

In addition, to assist in the minimisation of soil disturbance

from the potential new cabin development, the additional

guidance now included requires any new cabin development

uses a ‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles.

This is to limit the ground works and excavation required

within this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots

and the natural drainage within the forest area.

Further background work in the preparation of the

Masterplan has been undertaken. This work considered

views into the study area from the NSA as well as from the

popular Drovers Road. The outcome of this additional work

has resulted in identifying areas of sensitivity where no built

development should take place, and areas for landscape

enhancement in relation to the potential cabin site; this has

then been incorporated into the Constraints and

Opportunities section of the Masterplan and carried through

into section 5 of the Masterplan.

Material Assets Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to encourage energy efficiency particularly of the potential

cabins.

Population and Human Health N/A

Soil Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to ensure that the potential cabin development respects the

topography of the site and avoids building on steep slopes.

Importantly, it also notes that the earth moving to create

platforms for building will not be acceptable.

There are currently a number of access routes available

through the study area, the additional guidance seeks that

existing routes should be used wherever possible, and new

access routes should be located on flat or gently graded

slopes and avoid excessive cut and fill.

In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from

the potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

now included requires any new cabin development uses a

‘floating’ floor construction method supported by piles. This

is to limit the ground works and excavation required within

this woodland site, and minimise disruption to roots and the

natural drainage within the forest area.

Water Additional guidance has been included within the Masterplan

to assist in minimisation of soil disturbance from the

Page 166



30

potential new cabin development, the additional guidance

requires any new cabin development uses a ‘floating’ floor

construction method supported by piles. This is to limit the

ground works and excavation required within this woodland

site, and minimise disruption to roots and the natural

drainage within the forest area.

To assess the impact of any development and to ensure that

the proposed development does not result in increased flood

risk, a Flood Risk Assessment will be required.

Page 167



31

Table 8: Measures Envisaged to Prevent, Reduce and Offset any Significant

Adverse Effects

SEA Topic Measures Envisaged to Prevent, Reduce and Offsett any

Significant Adverse Impacts

Air Design & Access Statement

Transport Assessment

Consultation with Council’s Waste Management Team

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna Consultation with Council’s Ecology Officer

Biodiversity and Phase 1 Habitat Survey

Protected Species Survey

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and

Species
 EP2: National Nature Conservation and Protected

Species
 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP12: Green Networks
 EP13 Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows
 EP15: Development affecting the Water Environment

Climatic Factors The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage
 EP16: Air Quality

Page 168



32

Cultural Heritage Consultation with Council’s Archaeology Officer

Consultation with Historic Scotland (Scheduled Monuments)

Archaeological Assessment, Mitigation Strategy and

Monitoring Strategy

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology

Landscape and Townscape Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

Landscaping and Structure Planting Statement

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP4: National Scenic Areas
 EP5: Special Landscape Areas
 EP8: Archaeology
 ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure in the

Countryside
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites

Material Assets The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage
Population and Human Health The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology
 EP12: Green Networks
 ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in

the Countryside
 IS4: Transport Development and Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes

Page 169



33

Soil The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites
 IS8: Flooding

Water Consultation with Scottish Water

Consultation with SEPA

A requirement for a Flood Risk Assessment

The key Local Development Plan Policies which would apply

to any planning application submitted relating to the

Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and

Protected Species
 EP2: National Nature Conservation and Protected

Species
 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP15: Development Affecting the Water Environment
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Monitoring

3.22 The majority of the monitoring for the SEA objectives is already undertaken by

the Council or by other Government bodies or agencies. This allows SEA monitoring

to be incorporated into the existing performance monitoring.

3.23 A Monitoring Report is undertaken periodically for the Scottish Borders Local

Development Plan. That Report will incorporate many of the monitoring needs

identified within this SEA. This will be a valuable baseline document to support the

monitoring process. The monitoring requirements and mitigation measures

identified during this Masterplan SEA process will feed into the next forth-coming

Monitoring Report.

3.24 Further monitoring is also undertaken for the Local Biodiversity Action Plans

and Local Habitat Action Plans. This monitoring will also incorporate many of the

monitoring needs also identified within this SEA.

Page 170



34

4 Next Steps

4.1 Once adopted, the Glentress Masterplan will be published on the Council’s website; a copy of

the Masterplan, and the post-adoption SEA Statement will then be sent to the SEA Gateway.

Page 171



APPENDIX 2:UPDATED RELEVANT PLANS,PRO GRAM M ES AND STRATEGIES

TopicArea RelevantPPS ( and SEA Topics) Com m entary

Planning Policies NationalPlanning Fram ew ork 3

( AllSEA Topics relevant)

The NPF3 identifies thatthere are opportunities to increase footfallto Borders tow n
centres,in the case ofthe DraftSG the docum entw ould supportthis aim forPeebles,
Innerleithen and Cardrona. The docum entalso m entions the potentialforbenefits of
w ell-planned renew able energy developm ent, in the case ofthe cabin accom m odation
in the DraftSG; sm all-scale generation m ightbe appropriate and could bring benefits to
the running costs ofthe business operation. Relevantpoints are raised in the Natural
Heritage section, including a nationallong distance w alking and cycling netw ork w hich
w illlink key outdoortourism locations, and increasing the rate ofw oodland creation for
land use and em ission reduction targets.

Scottish Planning Policy 2

( AllSEA Topics relevant)

Scottish Planning Policy w as published forconsultation in June 20 1 4. The docum entsets
outnationalplanning policy direction,there are three nationaloutcom es,allofw hich
are relevantto the aim s ofthe SG; O utcom e 1 looks atim proving quality oflife by
helping to create w ell-designed sustainable places; O utcom e 2 seeks to protectand
enhance Scotland’s builtand naturalenvironm ents; and O utcom e 3 looks atsupporting
sustainable econom ic grow th and the transition to a low carbon econom y. The SPP also
has a num berofnationalpolicies covering a w ide range ofpolicy m atters including
prom oting ruraldevelopm ent, supporting business and em ploym ent,valuing the historic
environm ent,valuing the naturalenvironm ent,m axim ising the benefits ofgreen
infrastructure, prom oting sustainable transportand active travel, delivering heatand
electricity,and reducing w aste. Generally the SG is broadly com plim entary to these aim s
although there m ay be areas w here linkages could be strengthened.

SESplan Strategic Developm ent
Plan ( SDP)

( AllSEA Topics relevant)

SESplan is the SDP forthe South EastScotland city-region, itsets the strategic vision for
the developm entofthe city-region and itsits below nationalplanning policy butabove
localplanning policy in a nationalhierarchy ofpolicy. SESplan w as approved in July 20 1 3.
SESplan has the relevantaim s ofsupporting localand ruraldevelopm ent; integrating
land use and sustainable m odes oftransport; conserving and enhancing the naturaland
builtenvironm ent; prom oting green netw orks including through increasing w oodland

P
age 172



planting, enhancing biodiversity; and contributing to the response to clim ate change
through m itigation and adaptation and prom otion ofhigh quality design/ developm ent.
The Glentress area is located w ithin the W estern Borders Strategic Developm entArea
( SDA) . Discussion ofthe currentchallenges and opportunities in this area identifies the
need to im prove connectivity butalso states thatthere is a “ superiorenvironm ental
quality” w hich is an opportunity. The W estern SDA is also stated to be w ithin com m uting
distance to Edinburgh and thatthere are pressures forhousing developm entas a result.

Planning Policies Proposed LocalDevelopm ent
Plan ( LDP)

( AllSEA Topics relevant)

LDP Policies
• Policy PMD1 : Sustainability

• Policy PMD2: Q uality Standards

• Policy ED3: Tow n Centres and
Shopping Developm ent

• Policy ED5: Regeneration

• Policy ED7: Business, Tourism
and Leisure Developm entin the
Countryside

• Policy ED8: Caravan and
Cam ping Sites

• Policy HD3: Protection of
ResidentialAm enity

• Policy EP1 : International
Nature Conservation and
Protected Species

• Policy EP2: NationalNature
Conservation and Protected
Species

• Policy EP3: LocalBiodiversity

Vision/ aim s etc

The Proposed LocalDevelopm entPlan is currently atExam ination, form aladoption is
anticipated to take place Autum n/ W inter20 1 5; the LDP is therefore going to be the
relevantPlan forthe m ajority ofthe life tim e ofthe docum ent. There are a num berof
policies w hich are directly relevantto the DraftSG and the SEA topics. Many ofthe
policies are ofconservation nature, such as the Environm entalProtection policies listed
( EP1 , EP2, EP3,EP5,EP8 and EP1 2) w hich protectthe naturalheritage,culturalheritage
and the landscape. EP1 2 Green Netw orks is a new policy w hich seeks to protect,
prom ote and enhance the existing Green Netw ork ofthe Borders. The area surrounding
Glentress is a crucialpartofthe existing green netw ork and the DraftSG strongly fits the
policy aim . The landscape is also a key consideration ofthe DraftSG, the entire Glentress
area is located w ithin the Tw eed Valley SLA, and as a resultpolicy EP5SpecialLandscape
Areas states thatthe Councilw illseek to safeguard the landscape quality and w illhave
particularregard to the landscape im pactofproposals.

P
age 173



• Policy EP5: SpecialLandscape
Areas

• Policy EP8: Archaeology

• Policy EP1 2: Green Netw orks

• Policy IS1 : Public Infrastructure
and LocalService Provision

• Policy IS7: Parking Provision
and Standards

• Policy IS9: W aste W ater
Treatm entStandards and
Sustainable Urban Drainage.

Planning Policies Consolidated LocalPlan 20 1 1

( AllSEA Topics relevant)

Supplem entary Planning
Guidance

• Biodiversity

• Designing outCrim e in the
Scottish Borders

• Green Space

• Landscape and Developm ent

• LocalLandscape Designations

• Placem aking and Design

• Trees and Developm ent

• Use ofTim berin Sustainable
Construction

The currentConsolidated LocalPlan is relevantuntilthe form aladoption ofthe LDP. As
w ith the LDP the LocalPlan has a num berofrelevantconservation and enhancem ent
policies thatare relevantto the DraftSG. These are largely sim ilarto those discussed for
the LDP above.

There are also a num berofSPGs thatare relevantand in generalthese are also ofa
protective and enhancem entnature. The guidance to do w ith landscape w illbe
particularly im portant, as w illadherence to the Council’s Placem aking and Design SPG,
w hich discusses a num berofconsiderations to achieve high quality design.

Design Guidance Creating Places- A Policy
Statem enton Architecture and

Policy statem enton architecture and place w hich looks to consolidate and develop the
value ofarchitecture and place in Scotland. The policies contained w ithin the docum ent

P
age 174



Place

( Landscape and Tow nscape,
CulturalHeritage, Clim atic
Factors & Population and
Hum an Health)

prom ote good design and are m aterialconsiderations in determ ining applications. The
quality and the setting ofthe builtdevelopm entproposed in the DraftSG w illbe critical
to avoiding adverse im pacts on the designated landscape and culturalheritage features
in the area. Creating a successfulplace can also help to ensure buildings are w elcom ing,
safe and pleasantand easy to m ove around, w hich is beneficialforresidents and visitors
w illuse the buildings and the restofthe site. In addition, design should consideruse of
resources both in term s ofadaption and m itigation to clim ate change.

Nature Conservation Convention on W etlands of
InternationalIm portance 1 971
( am ended 1 982 and 1 987)
( Ram sarConvention)

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

Setoutthe legalprotection ofdesignated sites thatare found in the Borders,specifically
Ram sarsites, SpecialAreas ofConservation and SpecialProtection Areas. The area in
question contains the RiverTw eed SpecialArea ofConservation and Site ofSpecial
Scientific Interest ( SSSI) and the DraftSG w illhave to avoid adverse likely significant
effects on the conservation objectives ofthis designation.

Directive 92/ 43/ EEC on the
conservation ofnaturalhabitats
and ofw ild fauna and flora

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

Directive 79/ 40 9/ EEC on the
conservation ofw ild birds

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

Nature Conservation Nature Conservation ( Scotland)
Act20 0 4

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

The Actplaces a duty on localauthorities to furtherthe conservation ofbiodiversity; it
also provides m easures forthe protection ofSSSIs. As stated above the RiverTw eed SSSI
is located w ithin the site.

P
age 175



Scottish Borders Local
Biodiversity Action Plan

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
MaterialAssets)

The docum entprovides detailed action plans forspecies and habitats. The DraftSG
should avoid adversely im pacting upon these plans forrelevanthabitats and species that
are found w ithin the area in question.

Scotland’s Biodiversity: It’s in
yourhands 20 0 4&20 20
Challenge forScotland’s
Biodiversity 20 1 3

The docum ents have the aim s ofprotecting and restoring biodiversity and supporting
healthierecosystem s; connecting people w ith the naturalw orld forhealth and
w ellbeing; and m axim ising benefits ofa diverse naturalenvironm entand the services it
provides.

Forestry/ W oodlands The Scottish Forestry Strategy
( 20 0 6) ( and associated SEA)

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
Landscape and Tow nscape,
CulturalHeritage, Population and
Hum an Health, Clim atic Factors,
MaterialAssets)

The docum entsets outa vision ofa forestry sectorthatis diverse and strong; in tune
w ith the environm ent; em ploying m any people in a w ide range ofenterprises; and
providing the m any otherservices and benefits thatpeople need, now and forthe
future. Itis considered thatthe DraftSG fits in w ith the vision ofthis strategy.

Scottish Borders W oodland
Strategy ( 20 0 5)

( Landscape and Tow nscape;
MaterialAssets)

The Strategy is designed to articulate the Scottish Forestry Strategy ata regionallevel. In
addition, the Strategy provides a planning tooland policy guidance to assistw ith
achieving strategic policy objectives and to help achieve grantassistance forthe planting
and m anagem entofw oodlands

Access Scottish Borders Core Path Plan
( 20 0 8)

( Population and hum an health)

The core paths ofthe Borders are essentialto health,sense ofplace and vitality of
Borders residents and visitors. The DraftSG should take cognisance ofthese.

Let’s GetScotland W alking: The
NationalW alking Strategy

( Population and hum an health)

The Vision ofthis docum entis for“ A Scotland w here everyone benefits from w alking as
partoftheireveryday journeys,enjoys w alking in the outdoors and w here places are
w elldesigned to encourage w alking” .

A Long-Term Vision forActive This docum entsets outhow itis hoped Scotland w illlook in 20 30 ifm ore people are

P
age 176



Travelin Scotland 20 30

( Population and hum an health)

w alking and cycling forshort, everyday journeys allow ing us to reap the benefits of
active travel.

W ater
environm ent/ Flooding/ River
Tw eed

W aterEnvironm entand W ater
Services ( Scotland) Act20 0 3
( Designation ofScotland River
Basin District) O rder20 0 3

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

The docum ents are the Scottish distillation ofthe European W aterFram ew ork Directive.
They give Ministers regulatory pow ers overw ateractivities in orderto protect, im prove
and prom ote sustainable use ofScotland’s w aterenvironm ent.

The W aterEnvironm ent
( Controlled Activities) ( Scotland)
Regulations 20 0 5

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

Scotland RiverBasin
Managem entPlan and Solw ay
Tw eed RiverBasin Managem ent
Plan ( RBMP)

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

The tw o RBMPs are the docum ents thatstate the targets and aim s forthe protection
and im provem entofScotland’s w aterenvironm ent. The key targetis to im prove the
proportion ofw atercourses in good condition. In the Borders the Tw eed is subjectto a
separate RBMP to the restofScotland and thus the PilotLUS m usttake accountofthe
objectives ofboth docum ents.

Flood Risk Managem ent
( Scotland) Act20 0 9

( W ater)

Sets nationalpolicy - requirem entto take flood risk into account.

Tw eed Catchm entManagem ent
Plan

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

The Plan has a series ofstrategic aim s w ith regards to w aterquality,w aterresources,
habitats and species, riverw orks and flood m anagem ent. The DraftSG should not
adversely im pacton the aim s ofthis docum ent.

Tw eed O rderAct The RiverTw eed Com m ission is charged underthe RiverTw eed O rder20 0 6w ith the

P
age 177



( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
W ater)

generalpreservation and increase ofsalm on, sea trout, troutand otherfreshw aterfish
in the Tw eed and its tributaries.

W ater
environm ent/ Flooding/ River
Tw eed

Tw eed W etland Strategy 20 1 0 The strategy has broad aim s related to protection,enhancem entofw etland habitats;
prom otion ofhabitatconnectivity; identification ofthreats; and supporting sustainable
land use.

Clim ate Change
Clim ate Change

- Scottish Clim ate Change
Adaptation Program m e

- Clim ate Change ( Scotland) Act
20 0 9

( Clim atic Factors)

The docum enthas the vision: “ To increase the resilience ofScotland’s people,
environm entand econom y to the im pacts ofa changing clim ate” . W ithin this there are
objectives to supporta healthy and diverse naturalenvironm entw ith capacity to adapt
and to sustain and enhance the benefits,goods and services thatthe natural
environm entprovides” . The plans w ithin the DraftSG should be aw are ofadaptation
m easures thatm ay be required in the face ofa changing clim ate.

The Clim ate Change Act20 0 9 is legislation requiring a reduction in Scotland’s em issions
ofthe basketof6Kyoto Protocolgreenhouse gases ( GHG) by 42% by 20 20 and 80 % by
20 50 com pared to 1 990 / 95baseline. The targets are setannually forem issions atleast
1 2 years in advance. The Scottish Clim ate Change Adaptation Program m e details the
Scottish Minister’s objectives, policies and proposals to tackle the clim ate change
im pacts to Scotland from the UK Clim ate Change Risk Assessm entas required by Section
53 ofthe Clim ate Change ( Scotland) Act20 0 9. This includes an overarching aim “ To
increase the resilience ofScotland’s people, environm ent, and econom y to the im pacts
ofa changing clim ate” and related outcom es w hich look atthe naturalenvironm ent,
resilientinfrastructure and buildings and resilientcom m unities.

Biom ass Action Plan forScotland
( 20 0 7)

( Biodiversity, flora and fauna;
Landscape and Tow nscape;
MaterialAssets; Soil; Clim atic
Factors)

The aim ofthe Plan is to setouta coordinated program m e fordevelopm entofthe
biom ass sectorin Scotland. Itprovides actions to supplem enta fram ew ork to assist
furtherproduction. There is operationalforestw orking w ithin the DraftSG site and
increased planting m ay be a factorin the longerterm ,the DraftSG should therefore be
aw are ofthis.

- A Low Carbon Econom ic
Strategy forScotland

The docum ents have relevantobjectives on reducing the need fortravel,w idening travel
choices, developm entand uptake ofem erging technologies and setting a policy and

P
age 178



- Low Carbon Scotland:
Meeting the Em issions
Reductions Targets 20 1 0 -
20 22 Reporton Policies and
Proposals

regulatory fram ew ork.

CulturalHeritage Scottish Historic Environm ent
Policy ( SHEP) ( July 20 1 1 )

( CulturalHeritage)

SHEP is the overarching policy statem entforthe historic environm ent. Itprovides a
fram ew ork form ore detailed strategic policies and operationalpolicies thatinform the
day-to-day w ork ofa range oforganisations thathave a role and interestin m anaging
the historic environm ent.

Soil Scottish SoilFram ew ork ( 20 0 9)

( Soil)

The m ain aim ofthe Fram ew ork is to prom ote the sustainable m anagem entand
protection ofsoils consistentw ith the econom ic, socialand environm entalneeds of
Scotland. Activities identified forfocus include:

 soilorganic m atterstock protected

 soilerosion reduced

 greenhouse gas em ission from soils reduced

 soil’s capacity to adaptto changing clim ate enhanced

 soilbiodiversity as w ellas above ground biodiversity

 protected soils m aking a positive contribution to sustainable flood m anagem ent

The DraftSG should be aw are ofthe im pacton the soilresource from the proposals for
developm ent.

The State ofScotland’s Soils
Report ( 20 1 1 )

The docum entexam ines actions arising from the Scottish Soils Fram ew ork ( 20 0 9) . It
aim s to contribute w iderunderstanding thatsoils are a vitalpartofoureconom y,
environm entand heritage,to be safeguarded forexisting &future generations. Also
considers threats to soilfunction, loss oforganic m atter, sealing,contam ination,change
in soilbiodiversity,erosion and landslides, com paction and em erging issues. Considered
thatthe w ork w illhelp to dealw ith issues in term s ofpolicy integration, tackling lack of
system atic Scottish soils data and understanding soilm anagem ent.

Land Use Land Use Strategy ( LUS) Scotland
( 20 1 1 )

The objectives ofthe NationalLUS are: “ Land based businesses w orking w ith nature to
contribute m ore to Scotland’s prosperity; Responsible stew ardship ofScotland’s natural
resources delivering m ore benefits to Scotland’s people; and Urban and rural
com m unities betterconnected to the land,w ith m ore people enjoying the land and
positively influencing land use. The objectives are to be achieved through 1 0 principles

P
age 179



forsustainable land use and 1 3 proposals to focus action. The principles centre on
achieving m ultiple benefits forland, land use decisions inform ed by an understanding of
ecosystem s, sym pathetic landscape m anagem entand people contributing to land use
decisions.

P
age 180



APPENDIX 3: CONSULTATION AUTHORITIES SCOPING RESPONSES

Page 181



 
 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
Philip Graham 
Planning Officer, Forward Planning 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newton St Boswells 
Melrose TD6 0SA 

Longmore House 
Salisbury Place 
Edinburgh 
EH9 1SH 
Direct Line: 0131 668 9824 
Switchboard: 0131 668 8600 
alasdair.mckenzie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk 
 
Our ref: AMN/23/645 
Our case ID: 201306707 
 
6 March 2014 

Dear Philip 
 
Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 
Scottish Borders Council – Glentress Masterplan SEA Scoping Report 
 
Thank you for consulting Historic Scotland on the Scoping Report for the Glentress 
masterplan. This was received by the SEA Gateway on 5 February 2014.  I have 
reviewed the Scoping Report in relation to section 15(2) of the above legislation on 
behalf of Historic Scotland.  As such, this letter contains our views on the scope and 
level of detail of the information to be included in the Environmental Assessment (part 
1), and the duration of the proposed consultation period (part 2).   
 
1.  Scope of assessment and level of detail 
Overall, the Scoping Report provides a clear and succinct overview of the approach to 
your assessment.  As you have highlighted, there are some archaeological sites within 
the masterplan area and I welcome that effects upon these and other historic 
environment assets in the vicinity will be considered as part of your assessment.  
Given the nature of the proposals and the relatively small area involved, I support the 
spatial approach outlined in section 5.3. 
 
2.  Consultation period for the Environmental Report 
I am content with the next steps set out within section 6 of the report and the proposed 
consultation period of 12 weeks. 
 
I hope you have found this helpful.  As you are aware, none of the comments 
contained in this letter should be construed as constituting a legal interpretation of the 
requirements of the SEA legislation.  They are intended rather as helpful advice, as 
part of Historic Scotland’s commitment to capacity-building in SEA.  Should you wish 
to discuss this response, please contact me on 0131 668 8924. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Alasdair McKenzie 
Heritage Management Team Leader (SEA) 

Page 182



Our ref: PCS/131556
SG ref: SEA00913/sco

Philip Graham
Scottish Borders Council
Planning & Economic Development
Council Headquaters
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose
TD6 0SA

By email only to: sea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

If telephoning ask for:

Silvia Cagnoni-Watt

7 March 2014

Dear Philip Graham

Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005
Glentress Masterplan Supplementary Guidance - Scoping consultation

Thank you for your Scoping consultation submitted under the above Act in respect of the Scoping -
Glentress Masterplan Supplementary Guidance. This was received by SEPA via the Scottish
Government SEA Gateway on 5 February 2014.

As required under Section 15(2) of the Act, we have considered the document submitted and
comments as follows in respect of the scope and level of detail to be included in the Environmental
Report (ER).

The Scottish Government SEA Guidance (www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2013/08/3355)
provides guidance to Responsible Authorities about the type of information that is expected to be
provided at each SEA stage. We have used the guidance to inform our detailed scoping response
which is attached as Annex 1.

On completion, the Environmental Report and the Glentress Masterplan Supplementary Guidance
to which it relates should be submitted to the Scottish Government SEA Gateway
(sea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk) which will forward it to the Consultation Authorities.

Should you wish to discuss this scoping consultation, please do not hesitate to contact me on
01786 452430 or via our SEA Gateway at sea.gateway@sepa.org.uk

Yours sincerely

Silvia Cagnoni-Watt
Senior Planning Officer
Planning Service

Ecopy: hssea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk ; sea_gateway@snh.gov.uk

Page 183



2

Appendix 1: Comments on the Scoping Consultation

General Comments

The scoping report provides a brief overview of the purpose of the plan, the environmental issues
scoped in and out of the assessment and the consideration of alternatives. We consider the
information provided sufficient and proportionate to the Glentress Masterplan Supplementary
Guidance (SG), however we would have welcomed more details being available at this scoping
stage in relation to the relevant plans, programmes and strategies (PPS) and baseline information.

We understand that the Supplementary Guidance is a working draft and, unless some attachments
were missed in the consultation email, the appendices to which the scoping report refers to have
not been included and therefore we are unable to comments on them. This includes Appendix 2 list
of relevant PPS.

Please do not hesitate to contact us on an informal basis in order to gather further information for
the preparation of the Environmental report (ER) and for discussing any other issue in relation to
this response.

Detailed Comments

1. Introduction

1.1 We understand that the purpose of the Glentress Masterplan Supplementary Guidance
(SG) is to set the context and principles for the sustainable development of the visitor
destination at Glentress. When approved the SG would be part of the Scottish Borders
Local Development Plan (LDP).

We welcome the inclusion of the Working Draft SG with the scoping report at this stage.

2. Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies

2.1 This section refers to Appendix 2, however no appendices are available in the document
that was sent to us by the Scottish Government SEA Gateway on the 5 February 2014. We
are therefore unable to comment on the list of PPS relative to this consultation.

2.2 Please note that in the website www.seaguidance.org.uk provides excellent baseline
information on Air, Soil and Water including an up-to-date list of PPS. Other information is
available at the Scottish Government SEA webpages
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Environment/environmental-assessment/sea

3. Summary of the Environmental Characteristics and Consideration of SEA
Topics Scoping

3.1 We note that all the SEA Topics within our remit have been scoped in. We are content with
this decision and agree with the reasons provided for including the SEA Topics in the
environmental assessment. Please note the detailed comments below.

Page 184



3

Flood Risk

3.2 We welcome the reference to the new flood risk maps. The new maps are the most
comprehensive national source of data on flood hazard and risk. They will support the
development of Flood Risk Management Strategies and are replacing the Indicative River
and Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) (IRCFM(S)).

3.3 The SEPA Flood Maps have been produced following a consistent, nationally-applied
methodology for catchment areas equal to or greater than 3km2 using a Digital Terrain
Model (DTM) to define river corridors and low-lying coastal land. The maps are indicative
and designed to be used as a strategic tool to assess, flood risk at the community level and
to support planning policy and flood risk management in Scotland. For further information
please visit http://www.sepa.org.uk/flooding/flood_maps.aspx.

Water

3.4 We welcome the reference to the Solway Tweed River Basin District Plan and also note the
intention to use the SEPA 2008 River Classification Status. Please note more decent data
is available at:
http://www.sepa.org.uk/water/monitoring_and_classification/classification/classification_res
ults.aspx

3.5 In the scoping report there is reference to water quality rather than to the quality of the
water environment. In addition to information on water quality and the traditional water
chemistry measurements, the Water Framework Directive requires the use of tools which
assess the impact of other aspects of the environment’s quality, including water quantity
(changes to levels and flows), the forms and processes which affect the structure/shape of
our waters (morphology) and the impact of non-native species.

Soil

3.6 Please also note that a new source of information is the Scotland’s soils website
http://www.soils-scotland.gov.uk/, which is part of the Scotland’s environment website.
http://www.environment.scotland.gov.uk/.

4. Alternatives

4.1 We understand that three alternatives are proposed for the development and these are
available in the Working Draft SG.

5. Intended Approach to the Assessment

5.1 We welcome the intention to carry out a spatial and a matrix assessment for different SEA
Topics. In particular the spatial assessment will consider flood risk, international and
national nature designation impacts, water quality impacts and cultural heritage impacts.
We agree that a spatial analysis is not appropriate for all aspects of the environmental
assessment and therefore support the use of the matrix assessment. We suggest to report
in the matrix assessment the results from the spatial assessment in order to ensure that all
the SEA Topics are evaluated and that the interaction between the SEA Topics and the
secondary, synergistic and cumulative effects are also considered.

Page 185



4

5.2 We are content with the suggested assessment matrix in Table 1 and note that the table
will include mitigation measures. We would recommend extending the measures to
enhancements too, where applicable, and suggest adding reference to the timescales for
delivering such measures.

5.3 We consider that mitigation is a crucial part of SEA in that it offers an opportunity to not
only address potential adverse effects of a plan, but also to make a plan even more positive
than it already may be.

5.4 One of the most important ways to mitigate significant environmental effects identified
through the assessment is to make changes to the plan itself so that significant effects are
avoided. The ER should therefore identify any changes made to the plan as a result of the
environmental assessment.

6. Consultation Dates

6.1 We are content with the proposed 12 weeks consultation period for the ER to match the
consultation period on the Draft SG.

Page 186



 

 
 

 

Scottish Natural Heritage, Greystone Park, 55/57 Moffat Road, Dumfries, DG1 1NP 
Email Southern_scotland@snh.gov.uk  Tel 01387 272440  Fax 01387 259247  www.snh.org.uk  

 

Mr Philip Graham 
Scottish Borders Council 
Council Headquarters 
Melrose 
Roxburghshire 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
07 March 2014 
 
Our ref: CEA129040 
SEA Ref: 00913 Scoping 
 
By email 
 
Dear Mr Graham 
 
Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005:  
Draft Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan Working Draft  
Strategic Environmental Assessment: Scoping Report 
February 2014 
 
I refer to your scoping report, sent to the Scottish Government SEA Gateway on 5 February 
2014.  In our role as a Consultation Authority, in accordance with Section 15(2) of the 
Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005, we have reviewed the above report.  Our 
comments on the scope and level of detail to be included in the Environmental Report and on 
the duration of the proposed consultation period are set out below.  Detailed comments are 
provided in the annex to this letter.  

Scope of assessment and level of detail 

 
Subject to the specific comments set out below and in the annex to this letter, SNH is content 
with the scope and level of detail proposed for the environmental report. 

The scoping report had omitted some national designations which occur within the wider study 
area covered by the masterplan. 

 
The possible effect of the proposals on the nearby Natura site will need to be considered. 
 
Consultation period for the environmental report 

 
SNH notes that a period of 12 weeks is proposed for consultation on the Environmental 
Report and is content with this proposed period. 
 
Concluding remarks 
 
I hope that these points are of assistance to you.  Please note that this response is in the 
context of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 and our role as a Consultation 

Page 187



2 A1225751 

 

Authority.  We understand that we will be separately consulted on our views regarding the 
Environmental Report and on the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan. 
 
Should you wish to discuss this screening determination, please contact Stuart Graham 
stuart.graham@snh.gov.uk or SNH’s SEA Gateway at sea.gateway@snh.gov.uk 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
by email 
 
 
Andrew Panter 
Operations Manager 
Southern Scotland 
andrew.panter@snh.gov.uk 
 
cc. sea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk 
       sea_gateway@snh.gov.uk 
       sea.gateway@sepa.org.uk 
       hssea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Page 188

mailto:stuart.graham@snh.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.panter@snh.gov.uk
mailto:sea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:sea_gateway@snh.gov.uk
mailto:sea.gateway@sepa.org.uk
mailto:hssea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk


3 A1225751 

 

 
Annex to letter 
 

 

 Baseline information 
 

There are some omissions in the baseline information that is currently available 
but not referenced in the plan.  Section 3.2 does not reference the close proximity 
of the Upper Tweeddale National Scenic Area to the study area.  Section 3.8 of 
the Scoping Reports states that the River Tweed SAC and SSSI are located 600m 
away from the proposal in the Masterplan.   The Environmental Report will need to 
acknowledge that the River Tweed SAC does indeed lie within the study area 
covered by the Glentress Masterplan Working Draft and that parts of the River 
Tweed SSSI are adjacent to the wider study area.  In addition, the Environmental 
Report should acknowledge that Nut Wood SSSI also lies within the wider 
Glentress Study area identified in Figure 2 of the Glentress Masterplan Working 
Draft.   

 

 Significant issues 
 

Attention should be given to: protected species (which are not currently referenced in 
the scoping document), and the suite of designated sites and nationally and 
internationally protected areas as detailed above. The Environmental Report will need 
to consider the possible impacts both on site and off site on the River Tweed SAC. 

 

 Effects on Natura site of Masterplan  
 

Plans of public bodies that require appraisal under the Habitats Directive are also likely 
to fall within the scope of section 5(3) of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 
2005.  Further advice on considering the Habitats Regulations in the consideration of 
Development Plans can be found at: http://www.snh.gov.uk/docs/B698695.pdf 

 
This guidance notes that plan-making bodies can consider opportunities to combine 
the earlier stages of SEA and Habitats Regulations Appraisal, where appropriate, even 
though the differing requirements mean that the two assessments cannot be fully 
integrated. One option is to conduct the earlier stages in parallel, such as 
environmental information gathering, prediction of plan effects, and some early 
consultation stages.  

 
If the Habitats Regulations Appraisal is undertaken in parallel with SEA, it is important 
that the findings of both appraisals are separately and clearly documented and that the 
record of the Habitats Regulations Appraisal uses the correct terminology, applying 
them appropriately. In practice, it is easier to set out the Habitats Regulations 
Appraisal in a separate record, and where appropriate provide a cross-reference to it 
in the Environmental Report.  

 

 Assessment Methodology 
 

We are supportive of the proposal in the scoping report to use a spatial analysis of 
the effects by using GIS.  In due course the Environmental Report should make it 
clear the various reasons for this method being proposed and the possible 
significant effects that it aims to highlight.   

 
 

Page 189

http://www.snh.gov.uk/docs/B698695.pdf


APPENDIX 4: UPDATED SEA BASELINE DATA – GLENTRESS MASTERPLAN

P
age 190



1

Contents Page
Number

Introduction …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 3

Part 1: Air………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Table 1: Scottish Borders Greenhouse Gas Emissions………………………………..…...…………………………………………………………….
Table 2: Method of Travel to work or study ………………….………………………………..…...…………………………………………………………….
Map 1: Day Traffic Flow At Selected Monitoring Sites ………………………………………………………………………………………………….

4
5
6
7

Part 2: Biodiversity, Flora & Fauna ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..
Table 3: Land Cover of the Scottish Borders …...…………………………………………………………….
Map 2: Sites of Special Scientific Interest ……………………………..…………………………………………………………………….
Map 3a: Special Areas of Conservation ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 3b: Special Protection Areas……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 4: RAMSAR Sites …………………………………………………………………………......................................................................
Map 5: Phase 1 Habitat …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..
Map 6: Ancient Woodland Inventory ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Part 3: Climatic Factors ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Map 7: Operational and Consented Windfarms ……………………………………………………………………………………………………..

16
17

Part 4: Cultural Heritage ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...
Table 4: Listed Buildings in the Scottish Borders by Category………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 8: Listed Buildings by Category……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 9: Conservation Areas ……………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Map 10: Scheduled Monuments ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 11: Historic Environment Records ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Map 12: Gardens and Designed Landscapes……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

18
18
19
20
21
22
23

Part 5: Landscape and Townscape ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Table 5: National Scenic Areas and Special Landscape Areas in the Scottish Borders………………………………………..
Map 13: National Scenic Areas and Special Landscape Areas …………………………….………………………………..……………………
Map 14: Borders Landscape Character Assessment ……………………………………………………………………………………..

24
25
26
27

Part 6: Material Assets…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..
Map 15: Strategic Road Network …………………………….………………………………..……………………
Map 16: Rail Network ………………………………………………………………………………………………………..
Map 17: National Cycle Network …………………………….………………………………..……………………
Map 18: Innerleithen to Peebles Multi Use Path ……………………………………………………………………………………..
Table 6: Municipal Waste Collected Within the Borders 2009 …………………………….………………………………..……………………

28
29
30
31
32
33

P
age 191



2

Table 7: Water and Waste Water Asset Capacity …………………………….………………………………..……………………
Map 19: Waste Recycling Centres ……………………………………………………………………………………..
Table 8: Consented Mineral Operations in the Borders ……………………………………………………………………………………..

33
35
36

Part 7: Population and Human Health…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Table 9: Scottish Borders Population Breakdown ………………..……………………………………………………………..
Figure 1: Drive Times for Petrol Stations …………………………………………………………………………………..…………………….
Figure 2: Drive Times for Convenience / General Stores …………………………….………………………………..……………………
Map 20: Core Paths …………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………..
Map 21: Scottish Borders Strategic Green Network (Proposed Local Development Plan) ……………………………..……………………
Map 22: Key Greenspace (Proposed Local Development Plan) ……………………………………………………………………………………..

37
37
38
38
40
41
42

Part 8: Soil ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Table 10: Scottish Borders Derelict Land and Urban Vacant Land ………………………………………………………………………………………
Table 11: Scottish Borders Urban Capacity Results …………………………………………………………………………………………...
Map 23: Scottish Borders Soil Types ……………………………………………………………………………………………………..

43
43
43
45

Part 9: Water ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..
Table 12: Overall Status of Surface Waters in the Solway River Tweed ………………………………………………………………………………………
Table 13: Overall Environmental Objectives (River Basin Management Planning Cycles) …………………………………………………………...
Map 24: River Flood Risk …………………………………..…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
Map 25: Surface Flood Risk ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

46
46
46
48
49

P
age 192



3

BASELINE INFORMATION

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Environment Report describes the current state of the environment in the Glentress study area and how this might change in
the future in the absence of the Masterplan, and the environmental characteristics of the area likely to be significantly affected by the Masterplan.

Glentress Forest is one of eight forests in the Tweed Valley Forest Park and is recognised as a high quality environment for outdoor activities.
Glentress itself, currently attracts over 300,000 visitors per year who come to take part in the many activities on offer that includes walking,
mountain biking, as well as enjoyment of the landscape, wildlife and habitat conservation. The study area is also located a short distance from the
popular conservation town of Peebles.

This baseline will seek to give an overview of the study area as well as national statistics. The aim is to use this information to assess the
Masterplan proposals. The baseline will be presented under the broad headings of:

 Air

 Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna

 Climatic Factors

 Cultural Heritage

 Landscape and Townscape

 Material Assets

 Population and Human Health

 Soil

 Water.

P
age 193



4

1.0 AIR

Detailed objective: To protect current air quality and provide opportunities for public transport.

Air Quality

Local Authorities have a responsibility under the Environment Act 1995 and Air Quality (Scotland) Amendments Regulations (2002) to improve
air quality, not merely minimise pollution. The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland (2000) and Addendum
(2003) set health based objectives for nine air pollutants and two for the protection of vegetation and ecosystems. Where it is found that these
objectives are unlikely to be met by the due date, then an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) must be declared and an action plan setting out
proposals for addressing the problems prepared. In the Scottish Borders there are no AQMAs, nor areas close to designation.

The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 include emissions reduction targets covering greenhouse gases (GHG), the list is as follows: Carbon
dioxide (C02), Methane (CH4), Nitrus oxide (N20), Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) and Sulphur hexafluoride (SF6). The
amount to which these gases are emitted due to human processes varies; far much more CO2 is emitted than the other five gases, however the five
other gases are more powerful in their greenhouse effect (known as Global Warming Potential)1. Table 1 below shows the most recent Scottish
Borders greenhouse gas emissions data.

Another area that affects air quality is emissions from transport; the Census data from 2001 provides information on the method of travel to work
or study by ‘day time’ population in the Scottish Borders. This information is provided below in Table 2. It is also possible to show daily average
traffic flows for certain key routes in the Borders, this is shown below in Map 1.

P
age 194



5

Table 1: Scottish Borders Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Scottish Borders Population 112,000

PER CAPITA FOOTPRINT TOTAL FOOTPRINT

Ecological
Footprint
(gha/capita)

Carbon Footprint
(tonnes
CO2/capita)

GHG Footprint
(tonnes
CO2eq/capita)

Total Ecological
Footprint (gha)

Total Carbon
Footprint
(Tonnes CO2)

Total GHG
Footprint
(Tonnes CO2 eq)

TOTAL 5.52 12.59 17.02 611,216 1,392,837 1,882,729

Housing 1.44 4.10 4.59 159,741 454,143 507,433

Transport 0.94 3.09 3.58 103,548 341,616 396,351

Food 1.40 1.23 3.05 155,110 135,697 337,371

Consumer Items 0.73 1.44 2.09 80,764 158,856 231,677

Private Services 0.29 0.74 1.05 31,839 81,415 116,578

Public Services 0.59 1.58 2.13 65,637 174,520 236,014

Capital Investment 0.12 0.36 0.46 13,756 39,298 51,049

Other 0.01 0.07 0.06 821 7,293 6,257

P
age 195



6

Table 2: Method of Travel to work or study

Method of Travel to Work or Study Number of People

Total ‘day time’ population 100495

‘Day time’ population not currently working or studying 36997

‘Day time’ population that works or studies mainly at or from home 6006

Train 77

Bus, minibus or coach 6318

Taxi or minicab 389

Driving a car or van 24375

Passenger in a car or van 6489

Motorcycle, scooter or moped 187

Bicycle 849

On foot 18401

Other 407

P
age 196



7

P
age 197



8

2.0 BIODIVERSITY, FLORA AND FAUNA

Detailed objective: To protect and enhance biodiversity and habitats in the Borders.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna

A principal asset of the Scottish Borders area is its high quality natural environment and diverse range of species and habitats which are protected
and conserved by a range of designations on an international and national scale.

The Land Cover map (2000) classifies the type of land throughout the Scottish Borders using satellite remote sensing. The outputs of the land
cover map are shown below in Table 3.

The maps that follow Table 3 show the various international and national designations which the Borders has; this is evidence to the quality of the
Scottish Borders natural environment.

Open space provides opportunities for a variety of outdoor activities, some relatively static and some essentially mobile. The Greenspace map
(Map 22 within the Population and Human Health section) shows the Key Greenspace as it is identified in the Scottish Borders Proposed Local
Development Plan. This greenspace resource includes a range of different types of greenspace located within Development Boundaries of the
Border’s settlements including some woodland, sports pitches, play areas, maintained grassed areas, as well as parks and gardens.P

age 198



9

Table 3: Land cover of the Scottish Borders

Type of Land Cover Area (Ha)

Acid 63,438

Arable & Horticulture 103,641

Bog 8,020

Bracken 9,318

Broad-leafwood 19,799

Built-up areas and gardens 3,663

Calcareous 8,201

Coniferous woodland 57,004

Continuous urban 1,118

Dwarf shrub heath 13,543

Improved grassland 97,562

Inland rock 463

Littoral rock 168

Littoral sediment 75

Neutral 35,927

Open dwarf shrub heath 51,813

Standing Water 1,744

Supra-littoral sediment 11

P
age 199



10

P
age 200



11

P
age 201



12

P
age 202



13

P
age 203



14

P
age 204



15

P
age 205



16

3.0 CLIMATIC FACTORS

Detailed objective: To reduce CO² emissions, reduce energy consumption and promote climate change adaptation.

Climatic Factors

The climate change Act 2009 sets out ambitious targets for Scotland to reduce carbon emissions which are 42% reduction by 2020 and 80% by
2050. It is possible to show a comparison for ecological and greenhouse gas footprints for the Scottish Borders Local Authority area:

 Ecological Footprint (g/ha/capita): 5.52

 GHG Footprint (tCO2eq/capita): 17.02

To put these figures into context the UK ecological footprint average is 5.3 and the world average GHG footprint is 16.34. An assumption that can
be drawn from these figures is that the Scottish Borders consumes resources at an unsustainable rate.

The development of renewable energy sources has been identified as a key strand in the Scottish Government’s plans to help tackle the issue of
climate change. This is demonstrated by the framework for renewables in ‘Scotland’s Renewables Action Plan’ (The Scottish Government (2009)
Renewables Action Plan).

The estimated capacity of renewable energy generation is Scotland has been estimated at 60 GW (The Scottish Government (2002) Scotland’s
Renewable Energy Potential – Beyond 2010). The Scottish Borders has, and continues to play a key role in the development of sustainable energy
sources with several existing and proposed windfarms, the number of windfarms (5MW or above generation) is shown in Map 7 (please note this
figure is indicative of the status at the time of writing). The Borders also has the potential of wood fuel and heat recovery systems associated with
forestry and recently there has been a growing interest in solar farms.

P
age 206



17

P
age 207



18

4.0 CULTURAL HERITAGE

Detailed objective: To protect and where appropriate, enhance the historic environment.

Cultural Heritage
The Scottish Borders has a rich cultural and historical heritage and this is shown through the number of related designations and initiatives
undertaken in the area. For example the Council has completed a Townscape Heritage Initiative (THI) in Hawick, called ‘Heart of Hawick’ which was
launched in March 2003 with the aim to culturally, socially and economically regenerate the town. There is also a THI currently being undertaken in
Kelso. In addition there are a number of individual Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) reports including an approved Planning Brief for the
listed Caerlee Mill, Innerleithen; and another Planning Brief is underway for the listed Kelso High School.

The ‘Buildings at Risk’ register is maintained by the Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland (RCAHMS) on behalf of
Historic Scotland, the Register identifies buildings which are of special architectural or historic merit, the register includes listed and unlisted
properties. Currently the register identifies that there are 175 buildings within the Scottish Borders, 165 are categorised as ‘At Risk’ whilst the
remaining 10 are categorised at ‘Restoration in Progress’ (as at 01/06/2015).

The Scottish Borders has 3021 listed buildings, shown in Map 8; the categories of listed buildings and the description are listed below in Table 4.
There are also 43 conservation Areas in the Scottish Borders these have been designated by the Council between 1968 and 2012 to ensure the
character of the area is protected. The largest Conservation Areas in the Borders are Peebles (117ha) and Dryburgh (71ha) in total the Conservation
Areas cover almost 900ha, as shown in Map 9. There are 752 Scheduled Monuments within the Scottish Borders and locations of these are provided
in Map 10. In addition sites contained on the Council’s Historic Environment Record are shown in Map 11, and the Gardens and Designed
Landscapes are shown in Map 12.

Table 4: Listed Buildings in the Scottish Borders by Category
Category Category Description Total

number
A Listed Buildings of national or international importance, either architectural or historic, or fine little-altered examples of some

particular period, style or building type.
188

B Listed Buildings of regional or more than local importance, or major examples of some particular period, style or building type
which may have been altered.

1235

C Listed Buildings of local importance, lesser examples of any period, style, or building type, as originally constructed or
moderately altered; and simple traditional buildings which group well with others in categories A and B.

1598

3021
Source: Historic Scotland Website

P
age 208



19

P
age 209



20

P
age 210



21

P
age 211



22

P
age 212



23

P
age 213



24

5.0 LANDSCAPE AND TOWNSCAPE

Detailed objective: To protect and enhance the landscape and townscape in the Borders.

Landscape and Townscape
The Scottish Borders is considered to have a special and diverse landscape which includes differing variations of upland, lowland, valley and coastal
landscapes. The most special landscapes in the Borders are protected by national and local landscape designations, there are two National Scenic
Area (NSAs) and nine Special Landscape Areas (SLAs). The landscape designations are listed with their area size in Table 5 below.

National Scenic Areas were introduced by the Countryside Commission in 1980. NSAs are nationally important areas of outstanding beauty,
representing some of Scotland’s grandest landscapes, the purpose of their designation is to preserve and enhance their character or appearance
(Scottish Natural Heritage (1995) The Natural Heritage of Scotland: an overview). Special Landscape Areas are defined by local authorities in
development plans with a view to safeguarding areas of regional or local landscape importance from inappropriate development. The National
Scenic Areas and Special Landscape Areas are shown in Map 13 below.

The Borders Landscape Character Assessment notes that Study Area of Glentress is located within a mix of Plateau Moorland and Upland Valley with
Woodland. The Borders Landscape Assessment is shown in Map 14 below.

P
age 214



25

Table 5: National Scenic Areas (NSA) and Special Landscape Areas (SLA) in the Scottish Borders
Landscape Designation Area (Ha)
Eildon and Leaderfoot NSA 3880
Upper Tweeddale NSA 12770
Berwickshire Coast SLA 4469
Cheviot Foothills SLA 18602
Lammermuir Hills SLA 25057
Pentland Hills SLA 5949
Teviot Valleys SLA 15693
Tweed, Ettrick and Yarrow Confluences SLA 11994
Tweed Lowlands SLA 6819
Tweedsmuir Uplands SLA 53569
Tweed Valley SLA 10959

P
age 215



26

P
age 216



27

P
age 217



28

6.0 MATERIAL ASSETS

Detailed objective: To promote the sustainable use of natural resources, increase waste recycling, and increase access to public transport.

Material Assets
For the purposes of this SEA ‘Material Assets’ has been taken to include infrastructure covering transport, waste and water facilities.

Transport:
The Scottish Government defines just over two thirds of the Scottish Borders as being “accessible” with the remainder being “remote”, this means
that there is a significant reliance on private car for use in daily life. This has been shown above in the daily average traffic flows (Map 1). Map 15
below shows the Strategic Road Network and Map 16 shows the rail network.

Access to Cycle Routes:
Sustrans develops and maintains the National Cycle Network which provides sustainable transport routes across the country. Map 17 below shows
National Routes 1 and 76, which have sections in the Scottish Borders.

 National Route 1 goes all the way from Dover to London and then up to the east coast of the UK to Edinburgh and on to John o’Groats, the
Orkneys and the Shetlands. The route passes inland from Berwick-upon-Tweed to Melrose and onto Edinburgh. It then crosses the Firth of
Forth and travels through Fife northwards up to the east coast.

 National Route 76 runs from Berwick-upon-Tweed to Edinburgh, Stirling and St Andrews with the route on both sides of the Forth. It passes
through the Scottish Borders.

Each of the routes also has various linkages associated with other routes in the Borders.

Innerleithen to Peebles Multi Use Path:
The Innerleithen to Peebles Multi Use Path links the settlements of Innerleithen, Cardrona and Peebles. The path passes through the village of
Cardrona on quiet roads. The path follows the picturesque River Tweed for much of the route and also links to the popular mountain biking facilities
at Innerleithen and at Glentress. The route also links up National Cycle Network (NCN 1). The Multi Use Path is shown in Map 18.

P
age 218



29

P
age 219



30

P
age 220



31

P
age 221



32

P
age 222



33

Waste:
The Scottish Government introduced the Zero Waste Plan in 2010, the vision of the document is to reach 70% recycling and maximum 5% to landfill
of Scotland’s waste by 2025; in addition there will also be landfill bans for specific waste types, source segregation and separate collection of specific
waste types; and restrictions on inputs to energy from waste facilities.

Table 6 below shows the waste generated in the Scottish Borders:

Table 6: Waste Data

Scottish Borders 2014 Household Waste Management (tonnes) Waste Generated 2013 (tonnes)
Generated Recycled Landfilled Other Diversion Scotland Scottish Borders
49,952 18,345 30,666 940 3,662,432 51,494
Source: SEPA Waste Data for Scotland

It is also possible to show the current water and wastewater asset capacity in the Borders, this is shown in Table 7 below:

Table 7: Water and Wastewater Asset Capacity
Area Wastewater Asset Status Drinking Water Asset Status
Stow Current capacity is sufficient for identified development

needs
Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Lauder Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Galashiels Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

There is currently limited capacity at Manse Street WTW,
supply may be supported by another WTW.

Peebles A growth project has been raised to enable development in
this area

There is currently sufficient capacity for identified
development needs. However, any further development a
growth project may be required where the developer will
need to meet 5 growth criteria.

Innerleithen There is currently limited capacity at the treatment works. A
growth project may be required where the developer will
need to meet 5 growth criteria.

There is currently sufficient capacity for identified
development needs. However, any further development a
growth project may be required where the developer will
need to meet 5 growth criteria.
It is noted that there are Scottish Water borehole assets
located near to Innerleithen, downstream from the
proposed development.

Selkirk Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Hawick Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

P
age 223



34

Newtown St Boswells A growth project has been raised to enable development in
this area.

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Jedburgh Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Melrose Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Duns Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Reston There is currently sufficient capacity at the treatment works.
However, if development exceeds current capacity a growth
project would be required.

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Kelso Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Earlston A growth project has been raised but developer has not yet
met the 5 criteria.

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Coldstream Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Eyemouth Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

Howden WWTW Current capacity is sufficient for identified development
needs

N/A

Map 19 below shows the Borders Waste Treatment Facilities.

P
age 224



35

P
age 225



36

Mineral resources are finite and they can only be worked where they occur, so it is essential that they are worked in the most efficient and
sustainable manner. The use of alternatives or recycling of minerals only partially contributes to meeting demand. Transport of minerals over long
distances is not always viable as it is costly not only to the consumer, but also to the environment. Securing local supplies can make an important
contribution to sustainable development.

It is possible to show the consented mineral operations in the Borders and this is shown in Table 11 below:

Table 8: Consented Mineral Operations in the Borders
Hard rock mineral extraction Sand and gravel mineral extraction Other mineral extraction

 Cowieslinn
 Craighouse
 Greena
 Soutra Hill
 Trowknowes
 Edston
 Glenfin
 Hazelbank
 Swinton

 Kinegar
 Reston

 Whim Moss

P
age 226



37

7.0 POPULATION AND HUMAN HEALTH

Detailed objective: To improve the quality of life and human health for communities in the Borders.

Population and Human Health
In 2014 the estimated population of the Borders was 114,030. The majority of the population is located in a ‘central hub’ of settlements; these
include Hawick, Galashiels, Melrose, Selkirk and Jedburgh. The National Records of Scotland provides an estimated population of Scottish Borders
2014; this is shown in Table 9 below:

Table 9: Scottish Borders Population Breakdown
Age Group Male Population

Scottish Borders
Female Population
Scottish Borders

Total Population of
Scottish Borders

% of total population
of Scottish Borders

0 - 14 9,070 8,771 17,841 15.7
15 - 29 8,304 8,276 16,580 14.5
30 - 44 8,704 9,653 18,357 16.1
45 - 59 13,202 13,632 26,834 23.5
60 - 74 11,146 11,707 22,853 20.1
75+ 4,890 6,675 11,565 10.1

The number of residents in the Scottish Borders claiming jobseeker’s allowance in April 2015 was 1,138, this figure represents a rate of 1.6%
(Source: Office for National Statistics).

Access to Services:
Access to Services includes a diverse range of issues including: retail, education, policing, leisure facilities and cultural activities.

The Scottish Government is committed to ensuring that people have access to essential services essential to their life and work. In 2002, they
published a report ‘Availability of Services in Rural Scotland’. This looked at local amenities using drive times as the key factor. Categories included
post offices, banks, petrol stations and convenience stores. The report highlighted the lack of service provision for people within certain rural areas
within Scotland. Two examples from the report are shown in Figures 1 and 2 below, drive times to petrol stations and access to
general/convenience stores:

P
age 227



38

Figure 1 Figure 2

P
age 228



39

Access to Recreation:

Core Paths:
Core paths are described in the Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003 as "a system of paths sufficient for the purpose of giving the public reasonable
access throughout their area”. These paths include Rights of Way, Council managed routes and any other route that provides reasonable
countryside access. The majority are off-road, though some may be pavements or reached by quiet roads. These paths vary in type and quality. The
Core Paths within the Scottish Borders are shown in Map 20 below.

Strategic Green Network:
The proposed Local Development Plan 2013 identified a series of Green Networks. The study area of Glentress is located within the Strategic Green
Network as shown in Map 21. The purpose of the Strategic Green Network is to assist in supporting sustainable economic growth, tourism,
recreation, the creation of an environment that promotes a healthier-living lifestyle, and the protection and enhancement of biodiversity, and to
improve the quality of the water environment, promote flood protection and reduce pollution.

Key Greenspace:
The proposed Local Development Plan 2013 identifies Key Greenspaces within the Development Boundaries of settlements. The spaces identified
within the Plan are those spaces which are considered to be of the greatest value to the community and are therefore worthy of protection. It is
intended that within Key Greenspaces only proposals that will enhance the space will be supported by the Council. The Key Greenspaces are shown
in Map 22 below.

P
age 229



40

P
age 230



41

P
age 231



42

P
age 232



43

8.0 SOIL

Detailed objective: To protect the quality of soil in the Borders.

Soil

Brownfield Land:
There are two sources that indicate the availability of brownfield land in the Scottish Borders. These are:

Va c a nta nd De re lic tLa nd
 Vacant and derelict land presents an opportunity for development to take place on previously developed area (thereby reducing

development pressure on rural or more sensitive areas) but also presents potential issues surrounding contaminated land and the need for
remediation and appropriate development. Table 10 below shows the Derelict and urban vacant land in the Scottish Borders as of 2014:

Table 10: Scottish Borders Derelict Land and Urban Vacant Land

Derelict Land Urban Vacant Land Total Derelict and Urban Vacant Land

Area (Ha) % of
Derelict
Land (by
area)²

No. of Sites Area (Ha) % of Urban
Vacant
Land (by
area)²

No. of Sites Area (Ha) % of Total
V&D Land
(by area) ²

No. of Sites

49 1 61 28 1 21 78 1 82

Urb a nCa pa c itySurve y
 As part of the production of the Strategic Development Plan (SESplan) an Urban Capacity Study was undertaken, the results for the Borders

are shown in Table 10 below:

Table 11: Scottish Borders Urban Capacity Results
No. of Sites Gross Area Gross Units Discounted Annual Average
282 445 5167 2817 402

Soil Quality:
Soils are of key importance in water quality, flood prevention, biodiversity and other soil related functions for natural heritage. The protection of
soils is key to maintaining natural processes and in turn maintaining the quality of our environment as a whole. Map 23 below provides a broad
indication of the soil types in the Scottish Borders.

It is noted that the Glentress Study Areas is not located within an area identified as prime agricultural land.

P
age 233



44

Contaminated land can cause severe adverse conditions on ecosystems, human health and water systems. Part 11A of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 came into force in Scotland in July 2000. It places responsibilities on local authorities to deal with contaminated land in accordance with a
published Contaminated Land Strategy. The Scottish Borders Council adopted a Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy in 2001 and allows the
council to adopt a strategic approach to identify land that could be potentially contaminated within the local authority area. The Council provided
contaminated land performance indicators (2006/2007) to the Scottish Executive. This shows the sites by the local authority as warranting
inspection under the Contaminated Land Regime at 31.3.07. In the Scottish Borders there were 790 sites covering a total area of 302.6ha.

Map 23 show the soil types of the Scottish Borders.

P
age 234



45

P
age 235



46

9.0 WATER

Detailed objective: To protect and enhance the status of the water environment.

WATER

Quality of the Water Environment:

The quality of the water environment is monitored by SEPA using a wide range of parameters, Table 12 below shows the Overall Status of surface
waters in the Solway Tweed river basin management district, 2008 (SEPA (2009) The river basin management plan for the Solway Tweed river
basin district).

Table 12: Overall Status of Surface Waters in the Solway River Tweed
Rivers Lochs/Lakes Estuaries Coastal Waters

Status Number of
water bodies

Length (km) Number of
water bodies

Area (km²) Number of
water bodies

Area (km²) Number of
water bodies

Area (km²)

High/Maximum 5 39 0 0 5 57 0 0
Good 230 2487 7 5 5 27 7 1871
Moderate 203 2583 20 32 1 306 1 42
Poor 65 777 4 5 0 0 0 0
Bad 23 296 4 3 0 0 0 0
Total 526 6182 35 45 11 390 8 1913

The interactive maps on the Environment Scoland Website provides the most up to date information on the current status of the River Tweed (Data
from 2013). As at June 2015, SEPA have classified this water body as having an overall status of Moderate with High confidence in 2013 with the
overall ecological status of Moderate and overall chemical status of Pass.

SEPA has also set environmental objectives for this water body over future river basin planning cycles in order that sustainable improvement to its
status can be made over time, or alternatively that no deterioration in status occurs, unless caused by new activity providing significant specified
benefits to society or the wider environment.

For this water body, SEPA have set out the overall environmental objectives for the first, second and third River Basin Management Planning
(RBMP) cycles as:

Table 13: Overall Environmental Objectives (River Basin Management Planning Cycles)
Year 2013 2015 2021 2027
Status Moderate Good Good Good
Year 2013 2015 2021 2027
Status Moderate Pass Pass Pass

P
age 236



47

Flooding:

Flooding is a natural phenomenon that plays an important role in shaping the environment. However, climate change may mean that flooding
becomes more severe and more frequent in certain areas. Flood risk comes from a variety of sources including fluvial, coastal, groundwater, surface
water and/or sewer flooding. It should be managed rather than prevented and needs to be taken into account in decisions about locating
development. This management takes the forms of mitigation against the impacts of flooding including sustainable flood management projects; and
adaptation to the changing flood risk in the future.

Maps 24 and 25 below shows the fluvial and surface flood risk for the Scottish Borders area:

P
age 237



48

P
age 238



49

P
age 239



APPENDIX 5:UPDATED ENVIRO NM ENTALASSESSM ENT

Page 240



Spa tia lAsse ssm e nt:

Initial Assessment

The River Tweed is SSSI and SAC is located adjacent to the Glentress study area. The Soonhope
Burn that runs through part of the study area is also part of the SAC designation. There are also
a number of small watercourses within the study area that flow into the River Tweed. The Nut
Wood SSSI is also located within the study area, however it should be noted that the Masterplan
does not bring forward any new proposals within that area.

It is acknowledged that there is potential for adverse impacts on the River Tweed SAC and on
the water quality of the River Tweed however, the Masterplan notes that any subsequent
planning application will require to ensure that adverse effect on the integrity of the River
Tweed SAC/SSSI will be avoided

There are no RAMSAR sites located within or adjacent to the study area.

SEPA flood risk maps identify a number of areas at flood risk within the study area, whilst it is
not intended that built development will take place within areas at risk of flooding, the
Masterplan is a strategic document and the exact location of potential development will be dealt
with through the Planning Application Process. The Masterplan sets out a requirement for a
flood risk assessment and a drainage impact assessment to be undertaken.

Background Information:

There are no National Nature Reserves located on or within the vicinity of the study area.

The study area is not located within an area of Prime Quality Agricultural Land.

Accessibility and Sustainability:

The study area is easily accessible to the settlements of Peebles and Cardrona and the services
and facilities that they benefit from. The study area is located off the A72 and a bus stop is
located adjacent to the main entrance into Glentress. In addition the study area is also easily
accessible from the popular active travel route – the Peebles to Innerleithen Multi Use Path.

The study area has generally a southern aspect resulting in a good opportunity for solar gain.

It is noted that the study area has significant potential for biodiversity to be present on site.
Therefore, the Masterplan sets out a requirement for a Phase 1 Habitat Survey, the Masterplan
also notes that an Environmentally Protected Species survey may also be required and it is also
noted that any site clearance should only be untaken outside bird breeding season.

Local Impact and Integration:

There are no Listed Buildings within the study area nor are there any designated Conservation
Areas.

There are four Scheduled Monuments located within the study area as well as another
immediately outwith – the Eshiels Roman camp. In addition there are several archaeology
points. It is not intended that built development will take place within these areas. The
Masterplan sets out a requirement for archaeological assessment and a mitigation strategy for

Page 241



the proposed development, in addition this may also include a requirement for a monitoring
strategy.

An element of Ancient Woodland falls within the south western part of the study area and
within the south eastern part in the vicinity of Janet’s Brae and Nut Wood. The Masterplan does
not propose the removal of these woodlands nor does it propose any development in these
areas.

Landscape Capacity:

There are no Inventory listed Garden and Designed Landscapes within the study area, however
there is the locally recognised Eshiels designed landscape. The Masterplan proposes areas of
landscape enhancement as well as areas that are sensitive to development. The Masterplan set
out the requirement for a Landscape Assessment to be undertaken and submitted as part of any
planning application for development.

The study area does not site within an area of Wildland, nor within an area identified as
landscape constraint as set out within the Scottish Borders Development and Landscape Study.

Much of the study area is located within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area, whilst the
Upper Tweeddale National Scenic Area is located in the west, beyond the settlement of Peebles.
The Masterplan notes that further background work has been undertaken. This work
considered views into the study area from the NSA as well as from the popular Drovers Road.
The outcome of this additional work has resulted in identifying areas of sensitivity where no
built development should take place, and areas for landscape enhancement in relation to the
potential cabin site; this has then been incorporated into the Constraints and Opportunities
section of the Masterplan and carried through into section 5 of the Masterplan.

Planning and Infrastructure:

There are a number of access routes within the study area, the masterplan proposes to expand
on these routes. The Masterplan requires any application on the site to include a Transport
Assessment (TA), it also notes that the TA will require to demonstrate how the development
will function in transport terms with emphasis on sustainable travel patterns.

There are no Tree Preservation Orders within the study area.

Waste Water Treatment Works – A growth project has been raised to enable development in
this area.

Water Treatment Works – There is currently sufficient capacity for identified development
needs. However, any further development a growth project may be required where the
developer will need to meet 5 growth criteria.

Page 242



P
age 243



M a trixAsse ssm e nt:

Matrix
Assessment
Table

xx x 0 √  √ √  

Significantly
Negative

Negative Neutral Positive Significantly
Positive

SEA Topic:
Air

Objectives:

 To protect current air quality and provide opportunities for public
transport.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The study area is located
adjacent to a bus stop on the
A72. In addition, the
proposals (refer to Figures 7
and 8 within Masterplan)
allow for buses to enter the
site, park as well as turn and
drop off passengers close to
the Arrival Building. The
study area is also located
close to the Peebles to
Innerleithen Multi Use Path.
It is considered that this will
assist in providing positive
impact on air assessment as it
could mean less motorised
and private transport and in
turn less emissions.
The Masterplan highlights the
need for details of a waste
management scheme to be
discussed at an early stage
with the Council’s Waste
Management team.
The Masterplan sets out that
the potential cabin
accommodation should be
designed and constructed to a
high standard which
incorporates measures to
promote energy efficiency and
also notes that the choice of
materials of any proposal can
also assist in promoting
energy efficiency.

0 Include text within the Masterplan to confirm
the need for bus/coach parking, bus turning
and passenger drop-off point.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 IS4: Transport Development and

Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes

SEA Topic:
Biodiversity,
Flora and
Fauna

Objectives:

 To protect and enhance biodiversity and habitats in the Borders.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan study area is √  Additional Guidance has been incorporated in

Page 244



largely located within the
Scottish Borders Strategic
Green Network as shown
within the Scottish Borders
Proposed Local Development
Plan. It is acknowledged that
the Strategic Green Network
identified assists in the
protection and enhancement
of biodiversity. The
Masterplan notes that there is
the potential for biodiversity
on the site, it also notes that
there is the opportunity to
conserve and enhance
existing Continuous Forest
Cover. In addition, the
Masterplan highlights within
the Design and Development
Guidance section that
additional planting will be
required.
The Masterplan also notes
that any application
submitted will require to also
include a Phase 1 Habitat
Survey.
The creation of additional
active travel/recreation
routes would provide the
potential for natural heritage
improvements such as habitat
creation.

It is considered that the above
will have a positive outcome
on Biodiversity, Flora and
Fauna as this gives scope for
improvement of existing
habitat and water quality.

to the Masterplan, this guidance includes
requirements on proposed landscape design
which will be necessary to be taken on board
in any subsequent application.
In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil
disturbance from the potential new cabin
development, the additional guidance now
included requires any new cabin development
uses a ‘floating’ floor construction method
supported by piles. This is to limit the ground
works and excavation required within this
woodland site, and minimise disruption to
roots and the natural drainage within the
forest area.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature

Conservation Sites and Species
 EP2: National Nature Conservation and

Protected Species
 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP12: Green Networks
 EP13 Trees, Woodlands, and

Hedgerows
 EP15: Development affecting the

Water Environment

SEA Topic:
Climatic
Factors

Objectives:

 To reduce CO² emissions, reduce energy consumption and promote
climate change adaptation.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
Development can result in
emissions. However the
Masterplan provides for
measures that lessen adverse
impacts.
The document notes that
there are a number of small

0 Additional guidance has been included within
the Masterplan to encourage energy efficiency
particularly of the potential cabins.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

Page 245



watercourses on site and as a
result any application on the
site may be required to
include a Flood Risk
Assessment. In addition, a
Drainage Impact Assessment
would also be required and
this too is noted within the
Masterplan.
In relation to ground
materials the Masterplan
requires that where possible
porous materials should be
used, and in areas of
carparking, grassed
reinforced mesh will be
required.
The Masterplan aims to
protect and enhance the
landscape environment of the
Glentress study areas, as well
as creating areas of new
habitats, and improvement of
existing habitat for example
through the potential for new
planting.

It is considered that in taking
the positive steps above, any
proposal on the site will be
taking a positive step in
assisting to combat future
climate change by increasing
the potential for carbon
absorption, reducing
emissions and help to tackle
future flooding.

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards

and Sustainable Urban Drainage
 EP16: Air Quality

SEA Topic:
Cultural
Heritage

Objectives:

 To protect and where appropriate, enhance the historic environment.
Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan acknowledges
that there are a number of
historic features / assets on
site, in additional the
Constraints section of the
Masterplan notes that there is
the potential for non-
designated archaeology on the
site.
The Masterplan notes that the
“promotion of the assets on

√ The Masterplan (refer to Figure 6) identifies
the Scheduled Monument on the site. To assist
in protecting and safeguarding the Monument
the Council’s Archaeologist has sought for the
Masterplan to include a buffer area around the
monument.
Figure 6 of the Masterplan also identifies areas
where information and interpretation are
proposed to assist in improving the visitor
experience.

Page 246



the site as well as those
located within the Tweed
Valley will be key to the future
success of Glentress”.

The Masterplan seeks that any
application includes an
archaeological assessment.

Through discussion with the Council’s
Archaeologist, the Masterplan now seeks that
an application on the site includes a detailed
archaeological assessment with a mitigation
strategy. The Masterplan also notes that a
monitoring strategy may also be necessary. As
the study area of Glentress is already a
recreation area which is already well visited,
the potential requirement for a monitoring
strategy will assist in the protection of the
historic environment of Glentress.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology

SEA Topic:
Landscape
and
Townscape

Objectives:

 To protect and enhance the landscape and townscape in the Borders.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan notes that the
study area is located within a
high amenity area with almost
all of the Glentress Forest
located within the Tweed
Valley Special Landscape
Area.
An outcome from the SEA
Scoping was that Scottish
Natural Heritage (SNH) stated
that there was an omission
from the baseline data in that
there was no reference to the
close proximity of the Upper
Tweeddale National Scenic
Area (NSA). This has been
subsequently noted within the
Masterplan.

0 Additional Guidance has been incorporated in
to the Masterplan, this guidance includes
requirements on proposed landscape design
which will be necessary to take on board in
any subsequent application.
In addition, to assist in the minimisation of soil
disturbance from the potential new cabin
development, the additional guidance now
included requires any new cabin development
uses a ‘floating’ floor construction method
supported by piles. This is to limit the ground
works and excavation required within this
woodland site, and minimise disruption to
roots and the natural drainage within the
forest area.
Further background work in the preparation
of the Masterplan has been undertaken. This
work considered views into the study area
from the NSA as well as from the popular
Drovers Road. The outcome of this additional
work has resulted in identifying areas of
sensitivity where no built development should
take place, and areas for landscape
enhancement in relation to the potential cabin
site; this has then been incorporated into the

Page 247



Constraints and Opportunities section of the
Masterplan and carried through into section 5
of the Masterplan.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP4: National Scenic Areas
 EP5: Special Landscape Areas
 EP8: Archaeology
 ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure in

the Countryside
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites

SEA Topic:
Material
Assets

Objectives:

 To promote the sustainable use of natural resources, increase waste
recycling, and increase access to public transport.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan has the
potential to expand on the
Material asset of cycle
routes/paths. In addition any
development that takes place
as a result of this Masterplan
will assist in promoting the
existing resource.
The study area is located
adjacent the Peebles to
Innerleithen Multi Use Path as
well as a bus stop on the A72
and the Masterplan also
allows for a bus turning area
and drop off zone. The
intention of this is to
encourage greater use of
sustainable transport
including active travel.
The Masterplan also
encourages the use of timber
as a sustainable building
material which will fit well
within the context of the site.
The Masterplan highlights the
need for details of a waste
management scheme to be
discussed at an early stage
with the Council’s Waste
Management Team, this is to
encourage recycling of waste
within the development and
appropriate waste collection

√ Additional guidance has been included within
the Masterplan to encourage energy efficiency
particularly of the potential cabins.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 IS4: Transport Development and

Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards

and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Page 248



locations.
SEA Topic:
Population
and Human
Health

Objectives:

 To improve the quality of life and human health for communities in the
Borders.

Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan study area is
largely located within the
Scottish Borders Strategic
Green Network as shown
within the Scottish Borders
Proposed Local Development
Plan. The Strategic Green
Network connects the Central
Borders Strategic
Development Area and the
Western Borders Strategic
Development Area. This
therefore allows easy access
for a large part of the growing
population of the Scottish
Borders to access Glentress in
relative ease. It is already
acknowledged that the
Strategic Green Network
identified assists in
supporting sustainable
economic growth, tourism,
recreation and the creation of
an environment that
promotes a healthier-living
lifestyle. Many of the potential
developments included within
the Masterplan will assist in
promoting, encouraging as
well as improving the quality
of life and human health for
communities in the Borders
including visitors in to the
area.
The Masterplan identifies
three potential activity areas
which would include space for
short circular walks, a bike
skills area, pump park, as well
as a free ride area.
It is also noted that the study
area is located beside the
popular Peebles to
Innerleithen Multi Use Path.

It is considered that the

√ √  The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP8: Archaeology
 EP12: Green Networks
 ED7: Buisiness, Tourism and Leisure

Development in the Countryside
 IS4: Transport Development and

Infrastructure
 IS5: Protection of Access Routes

Page 249



Masterplan allows for the
recreation and potential
health benefits of the
Glentress study area to be
protected and enhanced.
SEA Topic:
Soil

Objectives:

 To protect the quality of soil in the Borders.
Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan notes that
there are a number of small
watercourses on site and as a
result any application on the
site may be required to
include a Flood Risk
Assessment. In addition, a
Drainage Impact Assessment
would also be required and
this too is noted within the
Masterplan.
The Masterplan notes that
where possible, ground
materials should be porous,
and areas for parking should
be grassed reinforced mesh.

0 Additional guidance has been included within
the Masterplan to ensure that the potential
cabin development respects the topography of
the site and avoids building on steep slopes.
Importantly, it also notes that the earth
moving to create platforms for building will
not be acceptable.
There are currently a number of access routes
available through the study area, the
additional guidance seeks that existing routes
should be used wherever possible, and new
access routes should be located on flat or
gently graded slopes and avoid excessive cut
and fill.
In addition, to assist in minimisation of soil
disturbance from the potential new cabin
development, the additional guidance now
included requires any new cabin development
uses a ‘floating’ floor construction method
supported by piles. This is to limit the ground
works and excavation required within this
woodland site, and minimise disruption to
roots and the natural drainage within the
forest area.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 ED8: Caravan and Camping Sites
 IS8: Flooding

SEA Topic:
Water

Objectives:

 To protect and enhance the status of the water environment.
Commentary Ranking Mitigation
The Masterplan notes that
there are a number of small
watercourses on site and as a
result any application on the
site may be required to
include a Flood Risk
Assessment. In addition, a
Drainage Impact Assessment

x Additional guidance has been included within
the Masterplan to assist in minimisation of soil
disturbance from the potential new cabin
development, the additional guidance requires
any new cabin development uses a ‘floating’
floor construction method supported by piles.
This is to limit the ground works and
excavation required within this woodland site,

Page 250



would also be required and
this too is noted within the
Masterplan.
In relation to ground
materials the Masterplan
requires that where possible
porous materials should be
used, and in areas of
carparking, grassed
reinforced mesh will be
required.
In addition, the Masterplan
notes that the study area is
situated to the north of the
River Tweed which is
designated a Site of Special
Scientific Interest as well as a
Special Area of Conservation.

and minimise disruption to roots and the
natural drainage within the forest area.

The key Local Development Plan Policies
which would apply to any planning application
submitted relating to the Masterplan are:

 PMD1: Sustainability
 PMD2: Quality Standards
 EP1: International Nature

Conservation Sites and Protected
Species

 EP2: National Nature Conservation and
Protected Species

 EP3: Local Biodiversity
 EP15: Development Affecting the

Water Environment
 IS8: Flooding
 IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards

and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Page 251



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E Updated Habitats Regulations Appraisal

Page 253



1

Updated Habitat Regulations Appraisal Record

Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan

February 2016

Page 254



2

Contents

1 Introduction 3

2 Is the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan Subject to

Habitats Regulations Assessment? 5

3 Natura Sites Screened for Likely Significant Effects 5

4 Screening for Likely Significant Effects on Natura Sites 6

5 Conclusions 6

Appendix 1: Natura Sites within and outwith the Glentress Masterplan Study Area

Appendix 2: Details of Natura Site that were screened in

Appendix 3: Natura Site not considered in the ‘baseline’ for likely significant effects

Appendix 4: Screening of Glentress Masterplan Study Area

Page 255



3

1. Introduction
1.1 The purpose of this Habitats Regulations Appraisal (HRA) is to establish if the

Supplementary Guidance (SG): Glentress Masterplan could cause ‘likely significant

effects’ (LSE) which could affect specific sites within and outwith the Glentress

Masterplan Study Area. The sites in question are part of the Natura 2000 network

with their function being to protect birds, other species, and habitats for which the

site is designated; they are collectively known at Natura Sites. In particular the HRA

assesses whether there will be LSE on the conservation objectives for respective

Natura Sites. If a LSE is identified on the conservation objectives then an appropriate

assessment is required to be undertaken which ascertains that there are no adverse

effects on Natura 2000 site integrity or otherwise. This is to establish whether the

LSE(s) identified could affect “the coherence of its ecological structure and function,

across its whole area, which enables it to sustain the habitat, complex of habitats

and/or the levels of populations of the species for which it was classified” (Tyldesley

and Associates, 2015, Habitats Regulations Appraisal of Plans Guidance for Plan-

Making Bodies in Scotland Version 3).

1.2 For the approval of the SG: Glentress Masterplan it must be shown that the SG will

not have any significant effects on the site integrity of any Natura Site. It should

therefore be made explicit that this HRA is for the SG: Glentress Masterplan only and

if there are subsequent changes then re-assessment will need to take place.

1.3 This HRA has been directed by revised advice in the form of the Habitats Regulations

Appraisal of Plans Guidance for Plan-Making Bodies in Scotland Version 3 which has

been produced by Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) and David Tyldesley and

Associates.

Legislative and Policy Background
1.4 In 1992 the European Union adopted legislation known as the Habitats Directive to

help conserve the most seriously threatened habitats and species across Europe. The

Habitats Directive complements the Birds Directive (1979) and the core of both

directives is the creation of a network of sites called Natura 2000. The Natura 2000

network is made up of Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) and Special Protection

Areas (SPA). It is also the case that Ramsar wetland sites should be considered as

part of the Natura 2000 network and protected under the relevant statutory

regimes. In the Scottish Borders area all Ramsar sites are covered by SPAs and are

considered as part of these designations.

1.5 In October 2005 the European Court of Justice ruled that Development Plans in the

United Kingdom should be subject to assessment, in the same way projects require

assessment under Articles 6(3) and (4) of the Habitats Directive. These articles

require that:

“a nypla norproje c t,which isnotd ire c tlyc onne c te d with orne c e ssa rytothe

m a na g e m e ntofa Europe a nSite ,b utwould b e like lytoha ve a sig nific a nte ffe c ton

suc h a site ,e ithe rind ivid ua llyorinc om b ina tionwith othe rpla nsorproje c ts,sha llb e

sub je c ttoa n‘a ppropria te a sse ssm e nt”( Habitats Regulations Appraisal of Plans

Guidance for Plan-Making Bodies in Scotland Version 3).

Page 256



4

1.6 The above Directives are transposed into Scottish legislation by the Conservation

(Natural Habitats etc.) Regulations 1994, (as amended).

1.7 In translating the above legislation into policy the Scottish Planning Policy (2014)

states:

“Site sd e sig na te d a sSpe c ia lAre a sofConse rva tion(SACs) a nd Spe c ia lProte ctionAre a s

(SPAs) m a ke upthe Na tura 2000 ne twork ofprote c te d a re a s.Anyd e ve lopm e ntpla nor

proposa llike lytoha ve a sig nific a nte ffe c tonthe se site swhic h isnotd ire c tlyc onne c te d

with orne c e ssa rytothe irc onse rva tionm a na g e m e ntm ustb e sub je c ttoa n

“a ppropria te a sse ssm e nt” ofthe im plic a tionsforthe c onse rva tionob je c tive s.Suc h

pla nsorproposa lsm a yonlyb e a pprove d ifthe c om pe te nta uthorityha sa sc e rta ine d b y

m e a nsofa n“a ppropria te a sse ssm e nt” tha tthe re willb e noa d ve rse e ffe c tonthe

inte g rityofthe site ”.

Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan
1.8 The purpose of the SG: Glentress Masterplan is to set the context and principles for

the sustainable development of the visitor destination at Glentress. Once approved

the SG will form part of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP). The LDP

sits within a planning policy hierarchy, with both the National Planning Framework

3 and SESplan providing strategic planning policy that is then distilled through the

LDP. In respect of the Glentress Masterplan, it is noted that it is not intended to

develop the entire study area (as shown in map contained within Appendix 1), but

rather built development will be focused on an enhanced Glentress Centre and a

potential cabin site.

1.9 It should be noted that the Scottish Borders Proposed Local Development Plan has

been subject to HRA. In addition, the Proposed Plan set out that the Council would

produce the SG: Glentress Masterplan (refer to pages 164, 225 and 456). It is

therefore the case that the SG: Glentress Masterplan was captured by the in-

combination assessment in the HRA Appraisal Record.

1.10 The SG: Glentress Masterplan HRA has a number of important steps which are

detailed in the bullets below:

 determination of whether HRA is required

 identification of the European sites to be considered

 information gathering about the European sites

 discretionary consultation with Scottish Natural Heritage

 screening of the SG: Glentress Masterplan for LSE

 applying mitigation measures at screening to avoid LSE

 re-screening the SG: Glentress Masterplan after mitigation measures have

been applied

Page 257



5

 if necessary, appropriate assessment to provide detailed assessment and

mitigation to prevent LSE .

1.11 A number of appendices are included:

 Appendix 1 is a map showing the Natura sites within and outwith the

Glentress Study Area

 Appendix 2 is the details of the Natura sites that were screened in

 Appendix 3 is a table of the Natura sites that were not considered in the

‘baseline’ for likely significant effects and the reason for this, and

 Appendix 4 is a table that was used to determine if the SG: Glentress

Masterplan should be screened out or screened in for appropriate

assessment.

2. Is the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan subject to

Habitats Regulations Appraisal?

2.1 The Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan is subject to HRA because it is

not directly connected with or necessary to site management for nature

conservation. It is also a ‘Supplementary Guidance’ and as such a ‘land use plan’.

Therefore appraisal of the effects of the Supplementary Guidance: Glentress

Masterplan is required under Part IVA (regulations 85A-85E) of The Conservation

(Natural Habtats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as amended.

3. Natura Sites Screened for Likely Significant Effects

3.1 Within the Borders there are a range of different types of the natural environment

which have been designated Natura Sites; within the boundaries of the local

authority there are 9 SAC and 5 SPA (which incorporate 3 Ramsar). There are no

proposed SPA (or Ramsar) in the Scottish Borders. There is a Marine SAC at the

Berwickshire and North Northhumberland Coast. However for the purpose of this

HRA, a proportionate approach has been undertaken.

3.2 Appendix 1 shows a map of the Natura sites that were identified which could have

been subject to possible LSEs from the Supplementary Guidance (SG): Glentress

Masterplan proposals. These were the River Tweed SAC and the Moorfoot Hills SAC.

3.3 The Natura site below forms the ‘baseline’ for assessment because a link/pathway

could be identified between the SG: Glentress Masterplan and the qualifying

interests of the designated site and therefore a LSE on its conservation objectives:

 River Tweed Special Area of Conservation.

Page 258



6

3.4 The details of the Natura site including its qualifying interests, site condition,

conservation objectives, factors influencing the site and any known vulnerabilities

are included in Appendix 2.

3.5 Appendix 3 identifies the Natura site – the Moorfoot Hills SAC that is not included in

the ‘baseline’ along with the justification why there was no link/pathway from the

SG: Glentress Masterplan that could result in a LSE on its conservation objectives.

The exclusion of the Moorfoot Hills SAC has been confirmed during the process of

this HRA by Scottish Natural Heritage (correspondence 14/08/15).

4. Screening for Likely Significant Effects on a Natura Site

4.1 In screening the SG: Glentress Masterplan for LSE, it is necessary to look closely at

the conservation objectives and the vulnerabilities that are known for the River

Tweed SAC. This has been done by referencing JNCC Data Sheets.

4.2 The table in Appendix 4 contains the workings of the screening of the SG: Glentress

Masterplan. The table shows the Glentress site, a screening decision with reason;

and whether the site has been subject to HRA before.

4.3 Whilst it is considered there would be the possibility of a LSE from development of

Glentress due to its proximity to the River Tweed SAC, it is judged that the text

within the Proposed Local Development Plan policies EP1 International Nature

Conservation Sites and Protected Species, EP15 Development Affecting the Water

Environment are sufficient to prevent LSE on the conservation objectives of the

River Tweed SAC. It is also realistic to assume that taking account of SNH and

SEPA’s advice in the design and construction methods, should adequately avoid

adverse impacts affecting drainage and watercourses entering the Tweed. Given

that the development would be on the other side of the road from the Tweed, there

would be no direct discharges into the river, or impacts on the morphology of the

river on which some of the qualifying features depend. It should be noted that

although there is a pathway to the SAC via the Eshiels Burn which runs through the

site and issues into the Tweed, appropriate design and construction methods

agreed with SNH and SEPA, as detailed in Appendix 4 of this HRA Record will avoid

LSE.

5. Conclusions

5.1 The screening process for the SG: Glentress Masterplan as set out in Appendix 4 has

concluded that with the with application of policy and site specific caveats as

detailed in section 4 above, that any LSE can be avoided. It can therefore be

concluded that, the adoption of the SG: Glentress Masterplan will result in no

adverse impacts upon the integrity of any Natura site.

Page 259



7

Appendix 1: Map of Natura Sites within and outwith the Glentress

Study Area

Page 260



8
Page 261



9

Appendix 2: Details of European Site Screened in

Site and

Designation

(Designation

Date)

(Location)

Qualifying

Interests and

Site Condition

Conservation

Objectives

Factors

Currently

Influencing the

Site

Vulnerabilities

to Change

River Tweed SAC

(17 March 2005)

(All Borders)

International

Feature:

River lamprey

(Unfavourable -

No Change)

Brook lamprey

(Unfavourable -

No Change)

Otter

(Favourable -

Maintained)

Sea lamprey

(Unfavourable -

No Change)

Atlantic salmon

(Unfavourable -

Recovering)

Rivers with

floating

vegetation often

dominated by

water-crowfoot

(Unfavourable -

No Change)

 Extent of the
habitat on site

 Distribution
of the habitat
within site

 Structure and
function of
the habitat

 Processes
supporting
the habitat

 Distribution
of typical
species of the
habitat

 Viability of
typical
species as
components
of the habitat

 No significant
disturbance of
typical
species of the
habitat.

The River Tweed

Catchment

Management

Plan, SSSI

consents and

Habitats

Directive

regulation will

combine to effect

long-term

protection of the

site and its

features.

Controlled

Activities

Regulations

(CAR) General

Binding Rules on

Diffuse Pollution

also apply and

include activities

such as

engineering and

will also protect

qualifying

interests of site.

 Changes to

hydrological

units

 Water course

pollution

diffuse and

point source

 River

engineering,

including

bridges,

pipelines and

flood defences

 Sediment

management

 Abstraction

 Hydro-electric

schemes

Page 262



10

Appendix 3: European Site not Included in Baseline

European Site Not Included in Baseline

European Site Justification for Non-Inclusion

Moorfoot Hills SAC The Moorfoot Hils are on land remote from the

Glentress site. Watercourses are considered to be a

non-issue as a link is not possible as the water will

travel downhill. Any recreational disturbance as a

result of development or as a knock on effect

cannot be reasonably predicted nor seen as

significant.

Page 263



11

Appendix 4: Screening of Glentress Masterplan Study Area

Initial Screening Assessment Detailed screening and decision on straightforward mitigation / appropriate

assessment

Site Screened

In/Out

Reasoning Has site

been

subject to

HRA/AA

before?

Included

in

previous

HRA AA

Reason for

Screening

In

Commentary Mitigation

Glentress In Glentress is

located in

close

proximity

to River

Tweed SAC

Yes Proximity

to River

Tweed SAC

It is

considered

there would

be the

possibility of

a LSE from

development

of this site

due to its

proximity to

the River

Tweed SAC,

in addition

there are also

a minor

It is judged that the text within the Proposed Local

Development Plan policies EP1 International Nature

Conservation Sites and Protected Species, EP15

Development Affecting the Water Environment are

sufficient to prevent LSE on the conservation objectives of

the River Tweed SAC.

It is also realistic to assume that taking account of SNH and

SEPA’s advice in the design and construction methods,

should adequately avoid adverse impacts affecting drainage

and watercourses entering the Tweed. Given that the

development would be on the other side of the road from

the Tweed, there would be no direct discharges into the

river, or impacts on the morphology of the river on which

some of the qualifying features depend. It should be noted

P
age 264



12

burns onsite

that flow into

the River

Tweed SAC.

that although watercourses such as the Eshiels Burns run

through the proposed site and issue into the Tweed, none

are included within the SAC designation. Mitigation could

include measures to protect waterbodies following SEPA

Guidelines PPG5 Works and maintenance in or near water,

PPG6 Working at construction and demolition sites and

other relevant guidance e.g. CIRIA guidance Controlofwa te r

pollutionfrom c onstruc tionsite s.Te c hnic a lGuid a nc e (C648)

As advised by Scottish Natural Heritage.

P
age 265



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: 
HENDERSYDE, KELSO PLANNING BRIEF

Report by Service Director Regulatory Services

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29 FEBRUARY 2016

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report seeks approval of the Supplementary Guidance in 
the form of a draft Planning Brief for Hendersyde, Kelso 
(Appendix A) to be used as a basis for public consultation for a 
12 week period. 

1.2 The site is allocated for housing within the Proposed Local Development 
Plan.  The site requirements contained within the Plan state a planning 
brief in the form of Supplementary Guidance will be prepared for the 
site.  The Council has prepared this draft brief in order to lay down how 
the site could be developed, creating a development vision, identifying 
opportunities the site offers, addressing potential constraints, 
identifying required development contributions and encouraging good 
quality new development.  The brief will provide guidance to any 
developer or any other interested party and will be a material 
consideration when determining planning applications.

1.3 A new Local Development Plan is in the process of being adopted; as a 
result the Hendersyde Planning Brief will initially be Supplementary 
Planning Guidance.  Once the Local Development Plan is adopted the 
Planning Brief will be formal Supplementary Guidance and part of the 
Local Development Plan.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Planning and Building Standards 
Committee:
(a) Approves the Planning Brief as a basis for public 

consultation for a 12 week period, and that if there are 
any substantive comments then they should be reported 
back to this committee;

(b) Agrees that if there are no substantive comments arising 
from consultation that the brief should be delegated for 
approval to the Service Director of Regulatory Services as 
Supplementary Guidance as a part of the Local 
Development Plan, once the Local Development Plan has 
been adopted.

3 BACKGROUND OF THE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
Page 267

Agenda Item 7



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

3.1 The site at Hendersyde is located to the north east of Kelso within the 
settlement boundary adjacent to Hendersyde Park.  The site was 
originally identified as part of a longer term housing site within the 
adopted Local Plan 2011 (SKELS002).  Within the Proposed Local 
Development Plan 2013, the western part of this site which is the 
subject of this brief has been brought forward and allocated for housing 
as Hendersyde - Phase 1 (AKELS022).

3.2 The site is a greenfield site and is currently used as arable agricultural 
land.  The site area is 5.4ha and has an indicative capacity of 120 units. 
It is intended that access to the site would be taken from the B6461 
and the site will have a pedestrian link to Broomlands Primary School 
and Kelso town centre.

3.3 The site is subject to a planning application (13/00259/PPP) for 
residential development.  The application was agreed by the Planning 
and Building Standards Committee but there are still legal requirements 
to be concluded in relation to development contributions.  This brief will 
give guidance for the subsequent reserved matters application when it 
is submitted. 

3.4 Any responses received during the 12 week public consultation will be 
considered in the finalisation of the brief.  The public consultation will 
include the local community council and national stakeholders including 
Scottish Water, the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, and 
Historic Scotland.

4 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial
There are no substantive cost implications arising for the Council from 
the recommendations included in this report.  

4.2 Risk and Mitigations

The key risks are considered to be:

Risk of not providing guidance

(i)    The lack of guidance would cause uncertainty to the developers 
and the public and be a barrier to effective decision making by the 
Council.  This could result in an ad hoc and inconsistent decision 
making with the policies in the Local Plan not being taken fully 
into account. 

(ii)    Failure to produce the planning brief would reflect badly on the 
Council’s commitment to improve the design of new development.

(iii)   It is considered that the failure to approve the planning brief for 
Hendersyde, Kelso would have resource impacts in the 
Development Management Section, potentially resulting in delays 
processing planning applications.  In addition, it may ultimately 
impact on the quality of development and the thorough 
assessment of the environmental impact of development. 

 

Page 268



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

Risk of providing guidance

There are no perceived risks related to the adoption of the guidance by 
the Council.

4.3 Equalities
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this proposal 
and it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications.

4.4 Acting Sustainably
(a) Economic Growth

The proposed development will assist in promoting building a 
strong, stable and sustainable economy which provides 
prosperity and opportunities for all.

(b) Social Cohesion
The proposed development will help to meet the diverse needs of 
people in the local communities.

(c) Protection of the environment
In accordance with the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 
2005 a screening assessment of the Supplementary Guidance 
has been undertaken in order to identify whether there will be 
potentially significant environmental effects.  The screening 
exercise was undertaken using the criteria specified in Schedule 
2 of the Act and no significant environmental issues were found.  

4.5 Carbon Management – Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009
The draft brief promotes measures to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and 
resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques.

4.6 Rural Proofing
It is anticipated there will be a positive impact on the rural area from 
the proposals contained in this mini planning brief.

4.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes to be made.

5 CONSULTATION

5.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal 
Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Chief Officer Human 
Resources and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted and any 
comments received have been incorporated in the final report where 
appropriate.

Approved by

Brian Frater 
Service Director Regulatory Services   Signature ………………………………….

Page 269



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Laura Hill Planning Officer (Forward Planning)

Background Papers:  None

Previous Minute Reference: N/A

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below. Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Environment and Infrastructure, Scottish Borders 
Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 
825431, Fax 01835 825071, email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 270



Scottish Borders
Local Development Plan

Draft Planning Brief

Hendersyde, Kelso
February 2016

Page 271



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

SITE CONTEXT & DESCRIPTION

INTRODUCTION: This planning brief sets out the main opportuni� es and

constraints of the housing land alloca� on at Hendersyde, Kelso. It

provides a framework vision for the future development of the site which is

allocated within the Local Development Plan. The planning brief should be

read in conjunc� on with the developer guidance in Annex A.

SITE LOCATION: The site at Hendersyde is located to the north east of Kelso

within the se� lement boundary adjacent to Hendersyde Park. The site is a 

greenfield site and is currently used as arable agricultural land.  The site is 

allocated for housing within the Proposed Local Development Plan (site

reference AKELS022) and has a total site area of 5.4ha. It has an indica� ve 

housing capacity of 120 units. To the west of the site is Kelso Racecourse with

residen� al developments located to the south and the Garden and Designed 

Landscape at Hendersyde Park located to the east. There is further agricultural

land to the north of the site.

SITE DESCRIPTION: The site subject to this Planning Brief at Hendersyde is for

phase one of a poten� ally larger housing site with future phases of 

development iden� fied to the east of the site, beyond the exis� ng se� lement 

boundary (site reference SKELS005). Considera� on must therefore be given to 

the poten� al for further se� lement growth at this loca� on and it is important 

that this Planning Brief allows for future phases in rela� on to access, 

connec� vity and landscaping, so as not to restrict future growth. 

SITE ANALYSIS: The site is rela� vely flat and is bounded by stone walls along 

the north-western and southern site boundaries. The remaining boundaries

consist of established woodland and plan� ng. Vehicular access to the site is 

achievable from the B6461 Kelso to Ednam Road to the north-west. The site is

visible from the north however the stone boundary wall and exis� ng 

residen� al buildings to the west can help minimise impact. 

P
age 272



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

CURRENT PLANNING POLICY & GUIDANCE

 SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY (SPP)

Sco� sh Planning Policy encourages the provision of a range of a� rac� ve, well-designed, energy efficient, good quality 

housing, contribu� ng to the crea� on of successful and sustainable places. 

 STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN (SESplan)

SESplan is the Strategic Development Plan for south-east Scotland, including the Sco� sh Borders, and it provides the 

strategic direc� on for regional land use policy for the period to 2032. The SESplan iden� fies a number of Strategic 

Development Areas (SDA), one of which is the Central Borders SDA, which includes Kelso. SESplan states growth will be

focused within the Central SDA which is the primary centre of popula� on within the Borders. 

 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (LDP)

The Local Development Plan includes various land alloca� ons in Kelso including housing sites, redevelopment opportuni� es, 

and key greenspaces. The LDP also iden� fies strategic business and industrial opportuni� es within the town. 

A number of policies included in the Local Development Plan will be applicable to this site including: Policy PMD1

Sustainability, Policy PMD2 Quality Standards, Policy HD1 Affordable and Special Needs Housing and IS2 Developer 

Contribu� ons.

 DESIGNING STREETS

Designing Streets changes the emphasis of guidance on street design towards place-making and away from a focus on the

dominance of motor vehicles. The policy states that street design must consider place before movement and puts an

emphasis on the crea� on of successful places through the crea� on of good street design.

 PLACE MAKING & DESIGN SPG

The aim of the SPG is to ensure that the Sco� sh Borders will be a quality place in which to live, providing a� rac� ve, 

sustainable towns and villages that are dis� nct and diverse. The SPG provides guidance in rela� on to successful placemaking

and design principles and the impact this can have  on the social and economic wellbeing of communi� es and the 

environment at large.

P
age 273



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

SITE OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS

CONSTRAINTS

 High pressure and low pressure gas main through the site

 Gas pumping sta� on located on the eastern site boundary – this will require
a buffer with no development within 14m of fence 

 Overhead and underground electricity cables within the site

 The exis� ng stone boundary walls should be conserved and enhanced 
wherever possible

 There should be no nega� ve impact on the neighbouring Hendersyde Park 
Gardens and Designed Landscape

 The site should not feel disconnected from Kelso and pedestrian links
should be created to the Primary School, new High School and town centre

 Considera� on must be given to the lodge to the south west of the site 
which includes an archaeological record.

OPPORTUNITIES

 The integra� on of new housing into the se� lement – providing a range and
mix of housing to meet the needs of the local community

 Sustainable development by incorpora� ng carbon reduc� on technologies into 
the site design and op� mising solar gain and making best use of the 
microclimate and reducing energy usage

 Opportunity to encourage walking and cycling to Broomlands Primary School,
new Kelso High School and Kelso town centre with increased permeability of
movement throughout the development by pedestrians and cyclists

 The site benefits from good vehicular access directly onto the B6461 

 Opportunity for innova� ve high quality design using appropriate local 
materials sensi� ve to the townscape and landscape se� ng - which includes
established woodland and natural stone wall boundaries

 Promote biodiversity by establishing new habitats and enhancing exis� ng 
environments by incorpora� ng open space, landscaping and a SUDS scheme

 The site layout should be in accordance with Placemaking and Design
principles

IMAGES FROM WITHIN AND AROUND THE SITE

P
age 274



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

SITE CONSIDERATIONS

LDP SITE REQUIREMENTS

 The site is to be masterplanned together with
future development phases to the north east of
the site

 The effect of pipelines through the site must be 
considered, including consulta� on with the 
Health and Safety Execu� ve and Sco� sh Gas 
Networks

 Strategic improvements to the foul drainage
system will be required.

 Archaeological evalua� on/mi� ga� on required

 Ecological assessment required

 Assessment of the impact on the River Tweed
Special Area of Conserva� on and any 
consequent mi� ga� on measures

 Links required to the se� lement including the 
adjacent Eildon housing site and Broomlands
Primary School

 Structure plan� ng is required to provide se� ng 
for development and reinforce the se� lement 
edge. Structure plan� ng is to integrate with 
exis� ng woodland and walled area, a 
management scheme for plan� ng is required

 Reten� on and improvement of stone walls, 
subject to crea� on of a new access

 A Transport Assessment will be required

 A Water Impact Assessment would be required

 Any nega� ve impact on the Garden and 
Designed Landscape at Hendersyde Park should
be avoided.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS

 The site will effec� vely extend the urban edge of 
Kelso out into the countryside on the north east
side of the town. The area already has a strong
established character created by the exis� ng 
designed landscape features associated with
Hendersyde Park Garden and Designed
Landscape (GDL), especially the gatehouse and
wooded access road to Hendersyde House that
form the southern boundary of this site.
Although it is not included within the designated
area, the Designed Landscape includes the two
metre high stone wall that runs along the
roadside from the Hendersyde Gatehouse up to
the co� ages that form the north west corner of 
the site and forms the western boundary of the
site

 Protec� on of the established policy woodland in 
the Designed Landscape along the southern
boundary and the roadside wall are both key
requirements for conserving exis� ng landscape 
character. To protect the woodland, a generous
allowance needs to be made for both shading
and falling distance of the trees

 Landscaping within the site should reflect the 
surrounding area of wooded and walled areas

 Structure plan� ng is to be provided to the north 
of the site to protect the residen� al amenity of 
the neighbouring proper� es at Co� erlee

 The landscape framework should be enhanced
by the reten� on and improvement of the 
exis� ng stone boundary walls.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

 It is considered that a high standard single point
of access possibly incorpora� ng a right turn lane, 
from the B6461 would be acceptable for serving
this site

 A well connected street layout would be required
and must be designed to provide natural traffic 
calming

 Road and footpath connec� ons to the adjacent 
private road to the south of the site, and
residen� al street network beyond, need to be 
explored in order to achieve full integra� on, 
allow dispersion of traffic and to afford the 
opportunity of a secondary vehicular access into
the development

 The road and street layout of the proposed
development must embrace the principles of the
current ‘Designing Streets’ policy and the
Councils’ Placemaking and Design Supplementary
Planning Guidance

 Due to the reten� on and enhancement of the 
stone walls appropriate visibility and access must
s� ll be considered alongside this. Considera� on 
must be given to the road geometry within the
proposed site layout in agreement with the
Council’s Roads Planning Team.

P
age 275



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

EXISTING SITE FEATURES & CONSIDERATIONS

Exis� ng stone wall to be 

retained and realigned to

create an a� rac� ve street 

frontage. Road visibility

requirements must also

be considered in rela� on 

to the site access

Archaeological records
recorded at Hendersyde
North Lodge

Hendersyde Gardens &
Designed Landscape - to
be protected and
enhanced wherever
possible

Vehicular access to be

taken from the B6461. A

pedestrian footway would

be required along the

B6461 along the frontage

of the site

Pedestrian links to be
created including a
poten� al woodland link 
to the adjacent
residen� al development 
and Broomlands Primary
School

Buffer area required due 
to pipelines and
pumping sta� on within 
and adjacent to the site

Development of phase 1

must not compromise

the development of

future phases

Exis� ng stone walls to 

be retained and

enhanced wherever

possibleP
age 276



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

DEVELOPMENT VISION FOR HENDERSYDE

The aspira� on is to develop a high quality housing development that is 

responsive to the local context. Careful considera� on is to be given to 

the rela� onship between the proposed new development, the 

designated Garden and Designed Landscape at Hendersyde and adjacent

housing development whilst crea� ng an appropriate edge to the 

se� lement. The following points are to be considered: 

 The design (scale, massing, form and materials) must reflect the 

character and scale of exis� ng houses within the area. The design 

should take advantage wherever possible of the southern aspect of

the site

 Access to be taken from the B6461, considera� on must be given to 

the rela� onship of housing to the B6461 and the boundary walling in 

this area, including reten� on and realignment of walling to 

accommodate site access

 In terms of layout, orienta� on, construc� on and energy supply,

appropriate measures must be taken to maximise the efficient use of 

energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and

resources and the incorpora� on of sustainable construc� on 

techniques

 The use of perimeter blocks and ac� ve frontage addressing the key 

site features such as the boundary wall, landscape of Hendersyde

Park and street frontage are all posi� ve features which must be 

incorporated into the site design

 Car parking should be accommodated by a variety of means to

provide flexibility and lessen visual impact. 

INTEGRATION OF SITE WITH EXISTING SETTLEMENTCONNECTIVITY WITHIN THE SETTLEMENT

P
age 277



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

DEVELOPMENT VISION FOR HENDERSYDE (CONTINUED)

 Due to pipelines throughout the site careful

considera� on must be given to the design of a 

‘wayleave’ in consulta� on with the Health and 

Safety Execu� ve. Any buffer area for cabling/pipeline 

safeguarding should be an a� rac� ve feature of the 

site. Addi� onal open space with a clear overall 

purpose and func� on should also be incorporated 

throughout the site.

 Given the Designed Landscape adjacent to the site,

the use of so�  landscaping to anchor the site into its 

surroundings should be fully considered

 There must be use of appropriate styles of high

quality boundary treatment within the site to help

frame spaces and improve landscape amenity within

the site yet not restric� ng the development of 

further phases

 Considera� on must be given as to how to connect 

the site with future phases of development at

Hendersyde as well as the overall approach on how

to integrate the new development with the exis� ng 

se� lement

 Surface water run-off is to be treated by a 

Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) within the site

 The exis� ng street ligh� ng will require to be extended to the site entrance as will the exis� ng 30 mph speed limit, this will be at the expense of the developer

 Waste Management Facili� es to be provided on site in consulta� on with the Council’s Waste Management Team and Waste Management SPG

 A pedestrian footway is required along the B6461 along the frontage of the site and further pedestrian links would need to be incorporated into the site design

including a poten� al woodland link to the Eildon residen� al development and Broomlands Primary School.

DEVELOPMENT VISION—FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES KEY

1. SITE ACCESS

2. STREET LAYOUT WITH AVENUE

PLANTING

3. NODE

4. SUDS BASIN

5. COURTYARD

6. PLANTING TO PROTECT RESIDENTIAL

AMENITY OF EXISTING PROPERTIES

7. POTENTIAL FOOTPATH CONNECTIONS

7

4

1
2

3

3

3

4
3

5

5

2

6

2

P
age 278



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICY IS2 THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS WOULD BE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS DEVELOPMENT:

 Affordable Housing - there will be a requirement for 25% on site provision of affordable housing in compliance with the Local Development Plan Policy HD1 

Affordable Housing and Special Needs Housing

 Educa� on and Lifelong Learning - a contribu� on will be required for Broomlands Primary School and Kelso High School

 Play Area - on-site provision of an equipped play area may be required or alterna� vely a contribu� on towards an off-site play facility may be required

 Please note this list is not exhaus� ve and addi� onal contribu� ons may be required, further to those detailed above. More informa� on is available from the Council’s 

Development Nego� ator. Early discussion is advised. 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ALONGSIDE ANY DETAILED PLANNING APPLICATION:

 Context study demonstra� ng an understanding of the local context

 Site photos: highligh� ng key views and how the design will respond to these

 3D visualisa� on material: sketches or computer generated visualisa� ons showing the development in context

 Processing Agreement

 Design statement

 Energy statement

 Landscape plan

 Plan� ng and landscape management scheme

 Drainage Impact Assessment - looking at impact on the catchment area and waste and surface water drainage solu� ons

 SUDS scheme for treatment of surface water run-off 

 Transport assessment

 Ecology assessment

 Archaeological evalua� on and appropriate mi� ga� on measures where necessary.

P
age 279



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

KEY CONTACTS WITHIN SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE

NAME & JOB TITLE TELEPHONE EMAIL ADDRESS

JOHN HAYWARD, DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANAGER 01835 825068 JHayward1@scotborders.gov.uk

BARRY FOTHERINGHAM, LEAD PLANNING OFFICER (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT) 01835 826745 bfotheringham@scotborders.gov.uk

MARTIN WANLESS, PLANNING POLICY & ACCESS MANAGER 01835 825063 mwanless@scotborders.gov.uk

LAURA HILL, PLANNING OFFICER (PLANNING POLICY & ACCESS TEAM) 01835 825064 LHill@scotborders.gov.uk

JON BOWIE, DEVELOPMENT NEGOTIATOR 01835 825583 JBowie@scotborders.gov.uk

KEITH PATTERSON, ROADS PLANNING OFFICER 01835 826637 KPa� erson@scotborders.gov.uk

JIM KNIGHT, LEAD OFFICER (LANDSCAPE) 01835 825148 JKnight@scotborders.gov.uk

ANDY THARME, ECOLOGY OFFICER 01835 826514 ATharme@scotborders.gov.uk

P
age 280



PLANNING BRIEF: HENDERSYDE - KELSO

ALTERNATIVE FORMAT/LANGUAGE

You can get this document on tape, in large print, and various other formats by contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for information
on language translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to meet with you to explain any areas of the publication that you would like clarified.

其他格式／外文譯本 

這份資料冊另備有錄音帶、大字體版本以及多種其他格式。你可以透過以下地 

址與我們聯絡，索取不同版本。此外，你也可以聯絡以下地址索取本資料的中 

文和其他外文譯本或索取更多拷貝。亦可要求我們做出安排，由我們的工作人 

員當面為你解釋你對這份出版物中的不明確之處。 

[Alternatywny format/język] 
Aby uzyskać kopię niniejszego dokumentu w formacie audio, dużą czcionką, oraz innych formatach prosimy o kontakt na poniższy adres. Uzykać tam można również 
informacje o tłumaczeniach na języki obce, otrzymaniu dodatkowych kopii oraz  zaaranżowaniu spotkania z urzędnikiem, który wyjaśni wątpliwości i zapytania związane 
z  treścią niniejszej publikacji. 

Parágrafo de formato/língua alterna� vos
Pode obter este documento em cassete audio, impressão aumentada e vários outros formatos contactando a morada indicada em baixo. Pode ainda contactar a morada
indicada em baixo para obter informações sobre traduções noutras línguas, cópias adicionais ou para solicitar uma reunião com um funcionário para lhe explicar quais-
quer áreas desta publicação que deseje ver esclarecidas.

Параграф об альтернативном формате/языковой версии 
Чтобы получить данный документ в записи на пленке, в крупношрифтовой распечатке и в других различных форматах, вы можете обратиться к нам по 
приведенному ниже адресу. Кроме того, по данному адресу можно обращаться за информацией о переводе на различные языки, получении дополнительных 
копий а также с тем, чтобы организовать встречу с сотрудником, который сможет редставить объяснения по тем разделам публикации, которые вам хотелось 
бы прояснить.   

CONTACT:
Planning Policy & Access Team
Environment & Infrastructure,
Sco� sh Borders Council,
Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells,
TD6 0SA.
Telephone: 0300 100 1800.
E-mail: localplan@scotborders.gov.uk

P
age 281



1

Annex A – Developer Guidance

Introduction

The main aim and principle of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) is to support and encourage sustainable and high quality
development. The Council produce planning briefs that set out the development vision and the main strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and
constraints on sites allocated in the LDP to achieve this.

The Council has also produced detailed guidance in the form of Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)/ Supplementary Guidance (SG) on a
number of topics. The Council is continually adding to the list of SPGs/SGs that needs to be considered when developing development
proposals. The full list of SPGs/SGs and draft SGs is available on the Council’s website.

The aim of this supporting document to planning briefs is to set out guidance to developers that apply to all or most allocated housing sites. As
all sites are different in character and landform they also have different strengths and potential constraints to address to be able to achieve a
sustainable place through the use of energy efficient design, creation of sustainable buildings, landscape enhancements and creation of
streets and spaces. Consideration should be given to ‘Designing out Crime’, ‘Trees and Development’ and ‘Landscape and Development’.

This document will direct developers to existing SPGs/SGs and the main Strategic Development Plan (SESplan) and the LDP policies and
other policy documents which need to be considered when working up development proposals. The list of policies is not exhaustive and the
document will evolve over time and be amended to include up to date policies and recommendations. Council departments and sections
referred to in this document can be contacted on 0300 100 1800 or see detailed contact list in planning briefs.

Energy Efficient Design

Sustainable design
The Council is committed to improving the sustainability of the built environment of the Borders. The Building Research Establishment’s
Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) is a sustainability rating scheme for the built environment. It evaluates the procurement, design,
construction and operation of development against targets and benchmarks. Assessments are carried out by independent, licensed assessors
and developments rated and certified on a scale of Pass, Good, Very Good, Excellent and Outstanding.

The categories covered are:

P
age 282



2

 Management
 Health and wellbeing
 Energy
 Transport
 Water
 Materials
 Waste
 Land use
 Pollution
 Innovation

Developments will be expected to achieve the rating of “Excellent”. The Excellent standard can be achieved through creative design such as
making best use of natural daylight and choosing construction materials that are appropriate to the climate conditions of the development site.
This means that even starter homes which are very price sensitive can be built to these standards (where the incorporation of technologies
such as solar panels and wind turbines may not be financially viable).

The standard includes making full use of energy conservation techniques, including:

 Reduction of primary energy use and reduction of CO² emissions through, for example, the siting, form, orientation and layout of
buildings which maximise the benefits of heat recycling, solar energy, passive solar gain and the efficient use of natural light; and the
use of planting to optimise the balance between summer shading and winter heat daylight gain

 Reduction of water consumption through for example use of water butts for garden use, low-water consumption white goods, showers
and WC’s, grey water recycling for internal use

 Green specification of materials including those for basic building elements and finishing elements
 Reduction of construction waste through for example sorting and recycling construction waste on-site
 Designing for life-cycle adaptability.

Advice should be sought from a licensed assessor at an early stage in the project to ensure that the estimated rating will be obtained. A full list
of licensed assessors can be found by contacting the BREEAM office. http://www.breeam.com/

P
age 283



3

Construction methods should allow for building deconstruction which enables fittings and materials to be re-used and / or recycled at the end of
the building’s life.

Renewable energy & energy efficiency

Development proposals should comply with all relevant national policy to reduce carbon emissions from development, to achieve high
standards of energy conservation and to provide on-site renewable energy production where appropriate. These provisions are highlighted in
LDP Policy PMD2: ‘Quality Standards’ and in the SPG/SG on Renewable Energy. Developers must comply with these policies and provide
evidence of how they have addressed them. Onsite energy generation should be incorporated into the development wherever possible as well
as sustainable building construction and design.

The LDP Policy ED9: ‘Renewable Energy Development’ states:

“…Small scale or domestic renewable energy developments including community schemes, single turbines and micro-scale
photovoltaic/solar panels will be encouraged where they can be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings in accordance with
the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural environment. …”

LDP Policy PMD1: ‘Sustainability’ also states:

“In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have regard to the following sustainability
principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) The long term sustainable use and management of land
b) The preservation of air and water quality
c) The protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) The protection of built and cultural resources
e) The efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) The minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its sustainable management
g) The encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the private car
h) The minimisation of light pollution …”.

The LDP Policy PMD2: ‘Quality Standards’ identifies the standards which will apply to all development, including that:

P
age 284



4

“…In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has demonstrated that appropriate measures have
been taken to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, …”

The planning system supports low and zero carbon development through the use of energy efficiency, micro-generation and renewable energy
systems. The Council’s approved SPG/SG: Renewable Energy requires all future developments with a total cumulative floorspace of 500m² or
more to reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions by 15% beyond the 2007 Building Regulation CO2 emissions levels. This 15% reduction
should be considered a minimum requirement.

The SPG on Renewable Energy states:

(1) The Council now requires all future developments with a total cumulative floorspace of 500m² or more to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions (CO2) by 15% beyond the 2007 Building Regulations carbon dioxide emission levels

(2) To achieve this reduction, consideration should first be given to energy efficiency and building design measures

(3) Where the 15% reduction cannot be met through energy efficiency and design measures then on-site low or zero carbon
technologies (LZCT) including renewable energy systems should be used

(4) Developments under 500m² are also strongly encouraged to achieve an additional 15% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
through these measures

(5) All applications for planning permission will also now require a statement on how energy efficiency measures and low and zero
carbon technologies have been incorporated into the development proposal.

To achieve the required reduction in CO2 emissions the development should first give consideration to energy conservation measures and
sustainable design and construction techniques to reduce the energy demand of the development. Once energy demand has been minimised
consideration should then be given to the use of low and zero carbon technologies (LZCT) for on-site heat and / or power generation. LZCT
includes community heating schemes and combined heat and power schemes which would serve the development as whole.

P
age 285



5

Developers must submit a statement for the Council’s approval detailing how energy efficiency measures and low and zero carbon
technologies will be incorporated into the development proposal, and the level of CO2 reduction that will be achieved.

Broad guidance on the CO2 emissions reductions achievable from a range of sustainable energy technologies is provided in the table below:

(Source: Entec report for Scottish Borders Council (April 2008))

This table is for indicative purposes only. The Energy Saving Trust and specialist suppliers and contractors will be able to provide up-to-date
information and advice which may be of use to developers in formulating proposals.

Scale of technology Name of technology Potential
CO2
emissions
reduction

Site-wide / communal Biomass district heating Up to 70%
Gas combined heat and power (CHP) Up to 50%
Biomass combined heat and power (CHP) Up to 50%
Wind turbine(s) Up to 50%

Individual dwelling Biomass boiler Up to 65%
Solar photovoltaic cells / panels Up to 35%
Ground source heat pump Up to 35%
Advanced improvements to the building fabric Up to 30%
Solar thermal hot water Up to 25%
Air source heat pump Up to 20%
Intermediate improvements to the building fabric Up to 20%

Micro wind turbine Up to 5%
Micro combined heat and power Up to 5%

P
age 286



6

Water and wastewater capacity and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)

LDP Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage outlines the Council’s view of the preferred way of dealing
with waste water and SUDS. In terms of water and waste water capacity and network issues, early contact with Scottish Water is
recommended.

Provision for SUDS that effectively manage the flow of rain water runoff by treating it within the site and accords with current design principles
are required in all developments. Further guidance can be found in PAN61 ‘Planning and Sustainable Urban Drainage System’. Scottish
Water and SEPA can provide more detailed advice.

Sustainable Buildings

Design and placemaking

The Council has produced a SPG on ‘Placemaking and Design’. The document sets out the key sustainable placemaking objectives that any
new development in the Scottish Borders should strive to achieve.

Key considerations that need to be considered to achieve high quality buildings and places are summarised in the figure below:

P
age 287



7

National guidance is available in a number of documents including ‘Scottish Planning Policy’ (SPP), ‘Creating Places: A policy statement on
architecture and place for Scotland’, PAN67 ‘Housing Quality’ and PAN 77 ‘Designing Safer Places’.

Designing out crime

The Council has an approved SPG on ‘Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders’ that aims to improve awareness amongst the development
industry and householders, and includes practical guidance to ensure the following topics are considered to create an attractive and safer
environment:

P
age 288



8

 Planning of sites (including phasing)
 Layout of sites (roads and footpaths)
 Layout of development (casual surveillance)
 Landscaping (location and type of planting and maintenance)
 Lighting
 Design (site and house design)

National guidance is available in PAN 77 ‘Designing Safer Places’.

Affordable housing

The requirement for affordable housing should be met in line with LDP Policy HD1 ‘Affordable Housing and Special Needs Housing’ and the
SPG/SG on Affordable Housing. The proportion of affordable housing to be provided will be in accordance with the present policy and depends
on what housing market area a specific site is included in. Affordable housing units are likely to be required on site and should be designed to
integrate with other houses on the site.

The current levels of contributions are included in the table below.
Housing Market Area Affordable Housing Requirement (%)
Berwickshire 25
Central Borders 25
Northern 25
Southern 25

Some sites in the LDP will be located close to or in Conservation Areas or close to Listed Buildings. For new development not to have a
negative impact on the built heritage, the Council has outlined its policies in EP7 ‘Listed Buildings’ and EP9 ‘Conservation Areas’. Other
relevant policy documents are Historic Scotland’s Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) and the guidance notes series – ‘Managing
Change in the Historic Environment’.

LDP Policy EP8 ‘Archaeology’ requires detailed investigation where a development proposal impacts on a Scheduled Monuments, other
nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical asset. National guidance is available SPP and SHEP. The Council’s
Archaeology Officer can provide more detailed advice.

P
age 289



9

Landscape Enhancements

Open space, green space and play areas

LDP Policies PMD2 ‘Quality Standards’, EP11 ‘Protection of Greenspace’ and EP12 ‘Green Networks covers the provision, protection and
promotion of greenspace. The SPG on Green Space/SG on Greenspace is also required to be considered when preparing development
proposals.

The SPG on Green Space states that the Council may require developers:
 “To provide or fund additional provision where there are identified quantitative deficiencies in provision within the appropriate distance

thresholds of a proposed development, or where the development will result in quantitative deficiencies
 To contribute to the enhancement of existing provision when there is a identified qualitative deficiency in provision when there is an

identified qualitative deficiency in provision within the appropriate distance thresholds of a proposed development and one effect of the
development will be to increase the demand pressure on these spaces and facilities.”

The requirement for developments can be very different and the Council will use quantity standards set out in the SPG or proposed SG to
determine the scale of contributions required towards new off-site provision or the enhancement of existing off-site provision. Details of the
standards are included in the SPG/SG and it also encourages pre-application discussions with the Planning Officers.

Advice at national level is available in SPP and PAN65 ‘Planning and Open Space’.

Ecology, habitats and trees

LDP Policies EP3 ‘Local Biodiversity’, EP13 ‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’ and the SPGs/SGs on ‘Trees and Development’, ‘Landscape
and Development’ and ‘Biodiversity’ provide guidance on these issues and list what is required for developments.

The main principle for protection of biodiversity is to promote development that is sustainable and protect biodiversity so there is no net loss of
biodiversity. The degree of protection of a site depends on its position within the hierarchy of designations to protect species and habitats.
The key considerations in terms of landscape are:

 Landscape implications of planning applications in terms of site context, proposed layout, future use and maintenance
 Minimise impact by retaining existing trees, shrubs, boundary features etc. wherever possible.

P
age 290



10

In respect of the Ecological Impact Assessment, further guidance is available in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance for
biodiversity: http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/318/biodiversity Section 4.2 (Ecological Impact Assessment), Section 4.3.1
(Demolition or change of use etc).

In terms of trees and development, developers should:
 Ensure development schemes include measures to safeguard trees and where appropriate to supplement an area’s tree cover
 Provide detailed tree and land survey for application sites in close proximity to trees, or on site which trees are growing.

Detailed arrangements for future maintenance of landscaping on a site will be requested as part of any planning application. Early contact with
the Council to discuss biodiversity, trees and landscaping issues is recommended.

Landscape designations

A number of allocated sites are located in the proximity of landscape designations, for example Gardens and Designed Landscapes, National
Scenic Areas, Special Landscape Areas, Special Area of Conservation and Site of Special Scientific Interest. These designations are
protected against adverse impact from development through LDP Policies EP10 ‘Gardens and Designed Landscapes’, EP1 ‘International
Conservation Sites and Protected Species’, EP2 ‘National Nature Conservation and Protected Species’, EP4 ‘National Scenic Areas’ and EP5
‘Special Landscape Areas’ and national policies. Planning proposals for sites in close proximity should detail the impact on these areas and
how to mitigate the adverse impact.

Creation of Streets and Spaces

Roads and access

Road design should not be conceived in isolation, but as an element in the overall design of the development. The Council’s ‘Standards for
Development Roads’ should serve as a guide for the form of development on the site, but should be flexible enough so as not to inhibit the
design of an innovative less car dominant layout which respects the landform and character of the area.

IS5 ‘Protection of Access Routes’, IS6 ‘Road Adoption Standards’ and the Council’s Transportation Standards (LDP Appendix 3) and Scottish
Government’s ‘Designing Streets: A Policy Statement for Scotland’. The national document promotes an informal system of well connected

P
age 291



11

streets with natural traffic calming (building lines, squares, shared road surfaces etc) built in and equal priority given to all transport modes such
as passenger transport, walking and cycling. Developers are advised to contact the Council’s Roads Planning Service for further advice.

Parking

In a development where car parking spaces are allocated to individual properties the provisional requirement will be two parking spaces per
dwelling unit (discounting garages). There will be a 25% requirement for visitor parking to be provided in groups of two spaces or more. For
communal car parking the provisional requirements, which include visitor parking, is 1.5-1.75 spaces per dwelling unit. More details are
available in LDP IS7 ‘Parking Provision and Standards’ and the Council’s Transportation Standards (LDP Appendix 3). Developers are advised
to contact the Council’s Roads Planning Service for further advice.

The developer should consider a range of solutions to reduce the impact of car parking on the residential environment. These might include a
combination of:

 Avoiding front garden space being entirely given over to parking
 Using traditional front garden walls and hedges to structure the street appearance
 Designing in shared small scale semi-private courtyard parking
 Placing larger parking courtyards behind perimeter blocks
 Building shared surfaces in traditional materials rather than using coloured concrete block surfaces – for example in parking zones,

subject to adoption requirements, and domestic driveways.

P
age 292



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: EAST 
MAXTON, MAXTON MINI PLANNING BRIEF

Report by Service Director Regulatory Services

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29 FEBRUARY 2016

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report seeks approval of the Supplementary Guidance in the 
form of a draft mini planning brief for East Maxton, Maxton 
(Appendix A) to be used as a basis for public consultation for a 12 
week period. 

1.2 The site is allocated for housing within the Proposed Local Development 
Plan.  The site requirements contained within the Plan state a planning 
brief in the form of Supplementary Guidance will be prepared for the site.  
The Council has prepared this draft brief in order to lay down how the site 
could be developed, creating a development vision, identifying 
opportunities the site offers, addressing potential constraints, identifying 
required development contributions and encouraging good quality new 
development.  The brief will provide guidance to any developer or any 
other interested party and will be a material consideration when 
determining planning applications.

1.3 A new Local Development Plan is in the process of being adopted; as a 
result the East Maxton mini planning brief will initially be Supplementary 
Planning Guidance.  Once the Local Development Plan is adopted the 
Planning Brief will be formal Supplementary Guidance and part of the 
Local Development Plan.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Planning and Building Standards 
Committee:

(a) Approves the mini planning brief as a basis for public 
consultation for a 12 week period, and that if there are any 
substantive comments then they should be reported back to 
this committee;

(b) Agrees that if there are no substantive comments arising 
from consultation that the brief should be delegated for 
approval to the Service Director of Regulatory Services as 
Supplementary Guidance as a part of the Local Development 
Plan, once the Local Development Plan has been adopted.

Page 293

Agenda Item 8



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

3 BACKGROUND OF THE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
3.1 The site at East Maxton (AMAXT001) is located to the east end of the 

settlement of Maxton within the settlement boundary adjacent to East End 
Farm. The site was originally allocated for housing within the Local Plan 
Amendment and was carried forward into the Proposed Local 
Development Plan 2013.

3.2 The site is a greenfield site and is currently used as arable agricultural 
land. The site area is 0.6ha and has an indicative capacity of 10 units. It 
is intended that access to the site would be taken from the C67 side road. 
The junction of C67 with the A699 will be required to move in a north 
eastern direction to improve the gradient and the visibility.

3.3 Any responses received during the 12 week public consultation will be 
considered in the finalisation of the brief.  The public consultation will 
include the local community council and national stakeholders including 
Scottish Water, the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, and Historic 
Scotland.

4 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial
There are no substantive cost implications arising for the Council from the 
recommendations included in this report.  

4.2 Risk and Mitigations

The key risks are considered to be:

Risk of not providing guidance

(i)    The lack of guidance would cause uncertainty to the developers and 
the public and be a barrier to effective decision making by the 
Council.  This could result in an ad hoc and inconsistent decision 
making with the policies in the Local Plan not being taken fully into 
account. 

(ii)    Failure to produce the mini planning brief would reflect badly on the 
Council’s commitment to improve the design of new development.

(iii)   It is considered that the failure to approve the mini planning brief for 
East Maxton would have resource impacts in the Development 
Management Section, potentially resulting in delays processing 
planning applications.  In addition, it may ultimately impact on the 
quality of development and the thorough assessment of the 
environmental impact of development. 

 

Risk of providing guidance

There are no perceived risks related to the adoption of the guidance by 
the Council.

4.3 Equalities
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this proposal 
and it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications.

Page 294



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

4.4 Acting Sustainably
(a) Economic Growth

The proposed development will assist in promoting building a 
strong, stable and sustainable economy which provides prosperity 
and opportunities for all.

(b) Social Cohesion
The proposed development will help to meet the diverse needs of 
people in the local communities.

(c) Protection of the environment
In accordance with the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 
2005 a screening assessment of the Supplementary Guidance has 
been undertaken in order to identify whether there will be 
potentially significant environmental effects.  The screening 
exercise was undertaken using the criteria specified in Schedule 2 
of the Act and no significant environmental issues were found.  

4.5 Carbon Management – Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009
The draft brief promotes measures to maximise the efficient use of energy 
and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources and 
the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques.

4.6 Rural Proofing
It is anticipated there will be a positive impact on the rural area from the 
proposals contained in this mini planning brief.

4.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes to be made.

5 CONSULTATION

5.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, 
the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Chief Officer Human Resources and 
the Clerk to the Council have been consulted and any comments received 
have been incorporated in the final report where appropriate.

Approved by

Brian Frater 
Service Director Regulatory Services   Signature ………………………………….

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Laura Hill Planning Officer (Forward Planning)

Background Papers:  None

Previous Minute Reference: N/A

Page 295



Planning & Building Standards – 29 February 2016

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below. Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Environment and Infrastructure, Scottish Borders 
Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 
825431, Fax 01835 825071, email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 296



Scottish Borders
Local Development Plan

Draft Mini Planning Brief

East Maxton, Maxton
February 2016

Page 297



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

INTRODUCTION & SITE DESCRIPTION

INTRODUCTION: This mini planning brief sets out the main opportuni� es and 

constraints of the housing land alloca� on at East Maxton. The document 

provides a framework vision for the future development of the site which is

allocated within the Local Development Plan. It should be noted that as with

all planning briefs, this brief should be read in conjunc� on with the SESplan 

Strategic Development Plan, Local Development Plan and other relevant

published Supplementary Planning Guidance. The mini planning brief should

be read in conjunc� on with the developer guidance in Annex A.

SITE LOCATION: Maxton lies within the Central Borders Housing Market Area

and is located 1.5 miles off the A68, east of St Boswells and 9 miles west of 

Kelso. The A699 Kelso to Selkirk road runs through the village. The allocated

housing site is located on the eastern side of the village adjacent to East End

Farm. The Local Development Plan iden� fies two housing sites in Maxton, East 

Maxton (AMAXT001) which has a site area of 0.6ha and an indica� ve housing 

capacity of 10 units and Meadowbank (AMAXT002) which has a site area of

0.5ha and an indica� ve housing capacity of 5 units.  

SITE DESCRIPTION: The site subject to this mini Planning Brief is the allocated

housing site at East Maxton (AMAXT001). The site is currently used for

agricultural purposes and has a gentle slope to the north towards the village.

The site is within the village 30mph speed limit and there is a sense that the

site is included within the village. The site boundaries consist of stone walls

and post and wire fencing. As the site forms part of a large field there is no 

exis� ng boundary to the east or south of the site. Vehicular access to the site 

is achievable from the C67 to the west of the site.

P
age 298



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

CURRENT PLANNING POLICY & GUIDANCE

 SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY (SPP)

Sco� sh Planning Policy encourages the provision of a range of a� rac� ve, well-designed, energy efficient, good quality 

housing, contribu� ng to the crea� on of successful and sustainable places. 

 STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN (SESplan)

SESplan is the Strategic Development Plan for south-east Scotland, including the Sco� sh Borders, and it provides the 

strategic direc� on for regional land use policy for the period to 2032. The SESplan iden� fies a number of Strategic 

Development Areas (SDA), one of which is the Central Borders SDA, which includes Maxton. SESplan states growth will be

focused within the Central SDA which is the primary centre of popula� on within the Borders. 

 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (LDP)

The Local Development Plan includes two housing alloca� ons in Maxton at Meadowbank (5 units) and East Maxton (10 

units). The LDP also iden� fies the Village Green as a key greenspace within the se� lement. A number of policies included in

the Local Development Plan will be applicable to this site including: Policy PMD1 Sustainability, Policy PMD2 Quality

Standards, Policy HD1 Affordable and Special Needs Housing and IS2 Developer Contribu� ons.

 DESIGNING STREETS

Designing Streets changes the emphasis of guidance on street design towards place-making and away from a focus on the

dominance of motor vehicles. The policy states that street design must consider place before movement and puts an

emphasis on the crea� on of successful places through the crea� on of good street design.

 PLACE MAKING & DESIGN SPG

The aim of the SPG is to ensure that the Sco� sh Borders will be a quality place in which to live, providing a� rac� ve, 

sustainable towns and villages that are dis� nct and diverse. The SPG provides guidance in rela� on to successful placemaking

and design principles and the impact this can have  on the social and economic wellbeing of communi� es and the 

environment at large.

P
age 299



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

SITE OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS

CONSTRAINTS

 The exis� ng stone boundary wall should be conserved and 
enhanced wherever possible

 Pedestrian links to the centre of Maxton should be created

 Any development at this loca� on must not have a nega� ve impact 
on any protected species within the area

 Archaeological evalua� on along with associate mi� ga� on measures 
will be required.

OPPORTUNITIES

 The development offers the opportunity to create a new frontage on 
to the road providing a sense of arrival into the se� lement and 
crea� ng a defini� ve sense of place

 The integra� on of new housing into the se� lement – providing a
range and mix of housing to meet the needs of the local community

 Sustainable development by incorpora� ng carbon reduc� on 
technologies into the site design and op� mising solar gain and making 
best use of the microclimate and reducing energy usage

 Offers the opportunity to create a posi� ve sense of arrival into 
Maxton by developing frontages onto the approach route whilst
crea� ng and enhancing a� rac� ve boundaries

 The site benefits from a� rac� ve views to the east and the site layout 
should be in accordance with placemaking and design principles

 Opportunity for high quality design using appropriate local materials
and in keeping with the exis� ng se� lement and the  landscape se� ng 

 Structure plan� ng along the southern and eastern boundaries of the 
site is required to define the edge of the se� lement and enhance its 
se� ng

 Opportunity to promote local biodiversity by establishing new
habitats and enhancing exis� ng environments such as the 
incorpora� on of open space, SUDS pond and landscaping into the site 
design.

VIEW INTO THE SITE FROM THE SOUTH

APPROACH TO MAXTON FROM THE EAST

IMAGES FROM WITHIN AND AROUND THE SITE

STONE WALL BOUNDARY ALONG THE C67

FENCING ALONG THE NORTHERN BOUNDARY

FRONTAGE ONTO THE A699

P
age 300



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

SITE CONSIDERATIONS

SITE REQUIREMENTS IN THE LDP

 Scale and style of development needs to

be carefully considered paying heed to

the exis� ng se� lement

 Structure plan� ng is required on the 

southern and eastern boundary to

provide se� ng for development and to 

reinforce the se� lement edge. A 

management scheme for plan� ng is also 

required

 Archaeology interests have been

recorded in the surrounding area and

archaeological assessment including

archaeological evalua� on along with 

associated mi� ga� on measures is 

required

 Mi� ga� on measures are required to 

prevent any impact on the River Tweed

Special Area of Conserva� on

 The site is to be accessed via the C67 side

road. The junc� on of the C67 with the 

A699 will be required to move in a north

eastern direc� on to improve the gradient 

and the visibility

 Part of the C67 carriageway requires to

be widened and provision of a footway

into the village would also be required.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

 Careful considera� on must be given to 

the exis� ng roadside wall and hedging 

which will be directly affected by work 

at this loca� on. However this work is 

necessary to achieve suitable junc� on 

visibility splays for safe vehicular access

to the site

 Development of the site must result in

minimal impact on listed buildings in

the area including the Burgh Cross

 Structure plan� ng along the north east 

site boundary is required to be more

substan� al to provide screening from 

the road and provide some shelter

from north-easterly winds

 The residen� al amenity of exis� ng 

residen� al proper� es within the 

vicinity of the site will need to be

protected

 Considera� on must be given to 

appropriate wastewater treatment for

the site. Developers are encouraged to

contact Sco� sh Water to discuss this 

before any development commences.

 If the site design was of significantly 

high quality, an increased site capacity

may be considered appropriate

EXISTING PROPERTIES IN MAXTON

P
age 301



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

DEVELOPMENT VISION FOR EAST MAXTON
The aspira� on is to develop a high quality housing development that is responsive to the local context. Careful considera� on is to be given to the rela� onship between 

the proposed new development and the exis� ng proper� es within the vicinity whilst crea� ng an appropriate edge to the se� lement. The following points are to be

considered:

 The design (scale, massing, form and materials) should reflect the character and scale of exis� ng houses within the area. The design should take advantage wherever 
possible of the southern aspect of the site. Internal layout arrangements need careful considera� on so that the dwellings have public frontages and private rear
gardens, and that the development incorporates fully Placemaking and Design principles

 The site should con� nue the linear built form of the village and should have a key house frontages facing onto the footpath along the A699 and C67. This frontage will

provide a sense of arrival into the se� lement and assist with traffic calming. The corner plot also provides an opportunity to provide a key focal point due to its

prominent loca� on at the junc� on of the A699/C67

 In terms of layout, orienta� on, construc� on and energy supply, appropriate measures must be taken to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources, 
including the use of renewable energy and resources and the incorpora� on of sustainable construc� on techniques

 Proper� es should preferably be no higher than one and a half storeys in height to ensure minimal impact on the views and the rural aspect of the village

 Access to the site will be taken from the C67, however the junc� on with the 
A699 will required to be improve visibility and gradient and ensuring greater
road safety

 Exis� ng boundary trees along the A699 may need to be removed depending
upon visibility requirements once the exact loca� on of the relocated 
junc� on is confirmed

 Structure plan� ng is required along the eastern and southern boundaries.
The east of the site should provide an a� rac� ve se� lement edge,
incorpora� ng a hedge with individual smaller trees. This provides the 
opportunity to create na� ve thorn species hedgerows to enhance the local 
hedgerow habitat network and provide the necessary landscape framework

 Exis� ng hedgerows and trees should be retained and enhanced wherever 
possible and incorporated into the design of the development

 Use of appropriate styles of high quality boundary treatment in order to
help frame spaces and improve landscape amenity within the site

 A pedestrian footway would be required from the site to the village centre

 Surface water run-off to be treated by a Sustainable Urban Drainage System
(SUDS). Any local network issues rela� ng to the waste water network will 
need to be addressed by the developer.

 Waste management facili� es to be provided on site in consulta� on with the 
Council’s Waste Management Sec� on and Waste Management SPG

DEVELOPMENT VISION—FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSESP
age 302



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES IS2 AND IS3 THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS WOULD BE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS

DEVELOPMENT:

 Affordable Housing - there will be a requirement for 25% on site provision of affordable housing in compliance with the Local Development Plan Policy HD1 

Affordable Housing and Special Needs Housing

 Educa� on and Lifelong Learning - a contribu� on will be required for St Boswells Primary School and Earlston High School

 Borders Railway - as the site falls within the Waverley Contribu� on Area a financial contribu� on will be required towards the reinstatement of the railway line

 Please note this list is not exhaus� ve and addi� onal contribu� ons may be required, further to those detailed above. More informa� on is available from the Council’s 

Development Nego� ator. Early discussion is advised.

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ALONGSIDE ANY DETAILED PLANNING APPLICATION:

 Context study demonstra� ng an understanding of the local context

 Site photos: highligh� ng key views and how the design will respond to these

 3D visualisa� on material: sketches or computer generated visualisa� ons showing the development in context

 Processing Agreement

 Design statement

 Energy statement

 Landscape plan

 Plan� ng and landscape management scheme

 Drainage Impact Assessment - looking at impact on the catchment area and waste and surface water drainage solu� ons

 SUDS scheme for treatment of surface water run-off 

 Transport assessment

 Ecology assessment

 Archaeological evalua� on and appropriate mi� ga� on measures where necessary.

P
age 303



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

KEY CONTACTS WITHIN SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE

NAME & JOB TITLE TELEPHONE EMAIL ADDRESS

JOHN HAYWARD, DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MANAGER 01835 825068 JHayward1@scotborders.gov.uk

ANDREW EVANS, PLANNING OFFICER (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT) 01835 826745 AEvans@scotborders.gov.uk

MARTIN WANLESS, PLANNING POLICY & ACCESS MANAGER 01835 825063 mwanless@scotborders.gov.uk

LAURA HILL, PLANNING OFFICER (PLANNING POLICY & ACCESS TEAM) 01835 825064 LHill@scotborders.gov.uk

JON BOWIE, DEVELOPMENT NEGOTIATOR 01835 825583 JBowie@scotborders.gov.uk

PAUL GRIGOR, ROADS PLANNING OFFICER 01835 826637 pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk

JIM KNIGHT, LEAD OFFICER (LANDSCAPE) 01835 825148 JKnight@scotborders.gov.uk

ANDY THARME, ECOLOGY OFFICER 01835 826514 ATharme@scotborders.gov.uk

P
age 304



MINI PLANNING BRIEF: EAST MAXTON

ALTERNATIVE FORMAT/LANGUAGE

You can get this document on tape, in large print, and various other formats by contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for information
on language translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to meet with you to explain any areas of the publication that you would like clarified.

其他格式／外文譯本 

這份資料冊另備有錄音帶、大字體版本以及多種其他格式。你可以透過以下地 

址與我們聯絡，索取不同版本。此外，你也可以聯絡以下地址索取本資料的中 

文和其他外文譯本或索取更多拷貝。亦可要求我們做出安排，由我們的工作人 

員當面為你解釋你對這份出版物中的不明確之處。 

[Alternatywny format/język] 
Aby uzyskać kopię niniejszego dokumentu w formacie audio, dużą czcionką, oraz innych formatach prosimy o kontakt na poniższy adres. Uzykać tam można również 
informacje o tłumaczeniach na języki obce, otrzymaniu dodatkowych kopii oraz  zaaranżowaniu spotkania z urzędnikiem, który wyjaśni wątpliwości i zapytania związane 
z  treścią niniejszej publikacji. 

Parágrafo de formato/língua alterna� vos
Pode obter este documento em cassete audio, impressão aumentada e vários outros formatos contactando a morada indicada em baixo. Pode ainda contactar a mora-
da indicada em baixo para obter informações sobre traduções noutras línguas, cópias adicionais ou para solicitar uma reunião com um funcionário para lhe explicar
quaisquer áreas desta publicação que deseje ver esclarecidas.

Параграф об альтернативном формате/языковой версии 
Чтобы получить данный документ в записи на пленке, в крупношрифтовой распечатке и в других различных форматах, вы можете обратиться к нам по 
приведенному ниже адресу. Кроме того, по данному адресу можно обращаться за информацией о переводе на различные языки, получении дополнительных 
копий а также с тем, чтобы организовать встречу с сотрудником, который сможет редставить объяснения по тем разделам публикации, которые вам хотелось 
бы прояснить.   

CONTACT:
Planning Policy & Access Team

Environment & Infrastructure,

Sco� sh Borders Council,

Council Headquarters,

Newtown St Boswells,

TD6 0SA.

Telephone: 0300 100 1800.

E-mail: localplan@scotborders.gov.uk

P
age 305



1

Annex A – Developer Guidance

Introduction

The main aim and principle of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) is to support and encourage sustainable and high quality
development. The Council produce planning briefs that set out the development vision and the main strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and
constraints on sites allocated in the LDP to achieve this.

The Council has also produced detailed guidance in the form of Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)/ Supplementary Guidance (SG) on a
number of topics. The Council is continually adding to the list of SPGs/SGs that needs to be considered when developing development
proposals. The full list of SPGs/SGs and draft SGs is available on the Council’s website.

The aim of this supporting document to planning briefs is to set out guidance to developers that apply to all or most allocated housing sites. As
all sites are different in character and landform they also have different strengths and potential constraints to address to be able to achieve a
sustainable place through the use of energy efficient design, creation of sustainable buildings, landscape enhancements and creation of
streets and spaces. Consideration should be given to ‘Designing out Crime’, ‘Trees and Development’ and ‘Landscape and Development’.

This document will direct developers to existing SPGs/SGs and the main Strategic Development Plan (SESplan) and the LDP policies and
other policy documents which need to be considered when working up development proposals. The list of policies is not exhaustive and the
document will evolve over time and be amended to include up to date policies and recommendations. Council departments and sections
referred to in this document can be contacted on 0300 100 1800 or see detailed contact list in planning briefs.

Energy Efficient Design

Sustainable design
The Council is committed to improving the sustainability of the built environment of the Borders. The Building Research Establishment’s
Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) is a sustainability rating scheme for the built environment. It evaluates the procurement, design,
construction and operation of development against targets and benchmarks. Assessments are carried out by independent, licensed assessors
and developments rated and certified on a scale of Pass, Good, Very Good, Excellent and Outstanding.

The categories covered are:

P
age 306



2

 Management
 Health and wellbeing
 Energy
 Transport
 Water
 Materials
 Waste
 Land use
 Pollution
 Innovation

Developments will be expected to achieve the rating of “Excellent”. The Excellent standard can be achieved through creative design such as
making best use of natural daylight and choosing construction materials that are appropriate to the climate conditions of the development site.
This means that even starter homes which are very price sensitive can be built to these standards (where the incorporation of technologies
such as solar panels and wind turbines may not be financially viable).

The standard includes making full use of energy conservation techniques, including:

 Reduction of primary energy use and reduction of CO² emissions through, for example, the siting, form, orientation and layout of
buildings which maximise the benefits of heat recycling, solar energy, passive solar gain and the efficient use of natural light; and the
use of planting to optimise the balance between summer shading and winter heat daylight gain

 Reduction of water consumption through for example use of water butts for garden use, low-water consumption white goods, showers
and WC’s, grey water recycling for internal use

 Green specification of materials including those for basic building elements and finishing elements
 Reduction of construction waste through for example sorting and recycling construction waste on-site
 Designing for life-cycle adaptability.

Advice should be sought from a licensed assessor at an early stage in the project to ensure that the estimated rating will be obtained. A full list
of licensed assessors can be found by contacting the BREEAM office. http://www.breeam.com/

P
age 307



3

Construction methods should allow for building deconstruction which enables fittings and materials to be re-used and / or recycled at the end of
the building’s life.

Renewable energy & energy efficiency

Development proposals should comply with all relevant national policy to reduce carbon emissions from development, to achieve high
standards of energy conservation and to provide on-site renewable energy production where appropriate. These provisions are highlighted in
LDP Policy PMD2: ‘Quality Standards’ and in the SPG/SG on Renewable Energy. Developers must comply with these policies and provide
evidence of how they have addressed them. Onsite energy generation should be incorporated into the development wherever possible as well
as sustainable building construction and design.

The LDP Policy ED9: ‘Renewable Energy Development’ states:

“…Small scale or domestic renewable energy developments including community schemes, single turbines and micro-scale
photovoltaic/solar panels will be encouraged where they can be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings in accordance with
the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural environment. …”

LDP Policy PMD1: ‘Sustainability’ also states:

“In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have regard to the following sustainability
principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) The long term sustainable use and management of land
b) The preservation of air and water quality
c) The protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) The protection of built and cultural resources
e) The efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) The minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its sustainable management
g) The encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the private car
h) The minimisation of light pollution …”.

The LDP Policy PMD2: ‘Quality Standards’ identifies the standards which will apply to all development, including that:

P
age 308



4

“…In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has demonstrated that appropriate measures have
been taken to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.
Planning applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, …”

The planning system supports low and zero carbon development through the use of energy efficiency, micro-generation and renewable energy
systems. The Council’s approved SPG/SG: Renewable Energy requires all future developments with a total cumulative floorspace of 500m² or
more to reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions by 15% beyond the 2007 Building Regulation CO2 emissions levels. This 15% reduction
should be considered a minimum requirement.

The SPG on Renewable Energy states:

(1) The Council now requires all future developments with a total cumulative floorspace of 500m² or more to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions (CO2) by 15% beyond the 2007 Building Regulations carbon dioxide emission levels

(2) To achieve this reduction, consideration should first be given to energy efficiency and building design measures

(3) Where the 15% reduction cannot be met through energy efficiency and design measures then on-site low or zero carbon
technologies (LZCT) including renewable energy systems should be used

(4) Developments under 500m² are also strongly encouraged to achieve an additional 15% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
through these measures

(5) All applications for planning permission will also now require a statement on how energy efficiency measures and low and zero
carbon technologies have been incorporated into the development proposal.

To achieve the required reduction in CO2 emissions the development should first give consideration to energy conservation measures and
sustainable design and construction techniques to reduce the energy demand of the development. Once energy demand has been minimised
consideration should then be given to the use of low and zero carbon technologies (LZCT) for on-site heat and / or power generation. LZCT
includes community heating schemes and combined heat and power schemes which would serve the development as whole.

P
age 309



5

Developers must submit a statement for the Council’s approval detailing how energy efficiency measures and low and zero carbon
technologies will be incorporated into the development proposal, and the level of CO2 reduction that will be achieved.

Broad guidance on the CO2 emissions reductions achievable from a range of sustainable energy technologies is provided in the table below:

(Source: Entec report for Scottish Borders Council (April 2008))

This table is for indicative purposes only. The Energy Saving Trust and specialist suppliers and contractors will be able to provide up-to-date
information and advice which may be of use to developers in formulating proposals.

Scale of technology Name of technology Potential
CO2
emissions
reduction

Site-wide / communal Biomass district heating Up to 70%
Gas combined heat and power (CHP) Up to 50%
Biomass combined heat and power (CHP) Up to 50%
Wind turbine(s) Up to 50%

Individual dwelling Biomass boiler Up to 65%
Solar photovoltaic cells / panels Up to 35%
Ground source heat pump Up to 35%
Advanced improvements to the building fabric Up to 30%
Solar thermal hot water Up to 25%
Air source heat pump Up to 20%
Intermediate improvements to the building fabric Up to 20%

Micro wind turbine Up to 5%
Micro combined heat and power Up to 5%

P
age 310



6

Water and wastewater capacity and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)

LDP Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage outlines the Council’s view of the preferred way of dealing
with waste water and SUDS. In terms of water and waste water capacity and network issues, early contact with Scottish Water is
recommended.

Provision for SUDS that effectively manage the flow of rain water runoff by treating it within the site and accords with current design principles
are required in all developments. Further guidance can be found in PAN61 ‘Planning and Sustainable Urban Drainage System’. Scottish
Water and SEPA can provide more detailed advice.

Sustainable Buildings

Design and placemaking

The Council has produced a SPG on ‘Placemaking and Design’. The document sets out the key sustainable placemaking objectives that any
new development in the Scottish Borders should strive to achieve.

Key considerations that need to be considered to achieve high quality buildings and places are summarised in the figure below:

P
age 311



7

National guidance is available in a number of documents including ‘Scottish Planning Policy’ (SPP), ‘Creating Places: A policy statement on
architecture and place for Scotland’, PAN67 ‘Housing Quality’ and PAN 77 ‘Designing Safer Places’.

Designing out crime

The Council has an approved SPG on ‘Designing out Crime in the Scottish Borders’ that aims to improve awareness amongst the development
industry and householders, and includes practical guidance to ensure the following topics are considered to create an attractive and safer
environment:

P
age 312



8

 Planning of sites (including phasing)
 Layout of sites (roads and footpaths)
 Layout of development (casual surveillance)
 Landscaping (location and type of planting and maintenance)
 Lighting
 Design (site and house design)

National guidance is available in PAN 77 ‘Designing Safer Places’.

Affordable housing

The requirement for affordable housing should be met in line with LDP Policy HD1 ‘Affordable Housing and Special Needs Housing’ and the
SPG/SG on Affordable Housing. The proportion of affordable housing to be provided will be in accordance with the present policy and depends
on what housing market area a specific site is included in. Affordable housing units are likely to be required on site and should be designed to
integrate with other houses on the site.

The current levels of contributions are included in the table below.
Housing Market Area Affordable Housing Requirement (%)
Berwickshire 25
Central Borders 25
Northern 25
Southern 25

Some sites in the LDP will be located close to or in Conservation Areas or close to Listed Buildings. For new development not to have a
negative impact on the built heritage, the Council has outlined its policies in EP7 ‘Listed Buildings’ and EP9 ‘Conservation Areas’. Other
relevant policy documents are Historic Scotland’s Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) and the guidance notes series – ‘Managing
Change in the Historic Environment’.

LDP Policy EP8 ‘Archaeology’ requires detailed investigation where a development proposal impacts on a Scheduled Monuments, other
nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical asset. National guidance is available SPP and SHEP. The Council’s
Archaeology Officer can provide more detailed advice.

P
age 313



9

Landscape Enhancements

Open space, green space and play areas

LDP Policies PMD2 ‘Quality Standards’, EP11 ‘Protection of Greenspace’ and EP12 ‘Green Networks covers the provision, protection and
promotion of greenspace. The SPG on Green Space/SG on Greenspace is also required to be considered when preparing development
proposals.

The SPG on Green Space states that the Council may require developers:
 “To provide or fund additional provision where there are identified quantitative deficiencies in provision within the appropriate distance

thresholds of a proposed development, or where the development will result in quantitative deficiencies
 To contribute to the enhancement of existing provision when there is a identified qualitative deficiency in provision when there is an

identified qualitative deficiency in provision within the appropriate distance thresholds of a proposed development and one effect of the
development will be to increase the demand pressure on these spaces and facilities.”

The requirement for developments can be very different and the Council will use quantity standards set out in the SPG or proposed SG to
determine the scale of contributions required towards new off-site provision or the enhancement of existing off-site provision. Details of the
standards are included in the SPG/SG and it also encourages pre-application discussions with the Planning Officers.

Advice at national level is available in SPP and PAN65 ‘Planning and Open Space’.

Ecology, habitats and trees

LDP Policies EP3 ‘Local Biodiversity’, EP13 ‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’ and the SPGs/SGs on ‘Trees and Development’, ‘Landscape
and Development’ and ‘Biodiversity’ provide guidance on these issues and list what is required for developments.

The main principle for protection of biodiversity is to promote development that is sustainable and protect biodiversity so there is no net loss of
biodiversity. The degree of protection of a site depends on its position within the hierarchy of designations to protect species and habitats.
The key considerations in terms of landscape are:

 Landscape implications of planning applications in terms of site context, proposed layout, future use and maintenance
 Minimise impact by retaining existing trees, shrubs, boundary features etc. wherever possible.

P
age 314



10

In respect of the Ecological Impact Assessment, further guidance is available in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance for
biodiversity: http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/318/biodiversity Section 4.2 (Ecological Impact Assessment), Section 4.3.1
(Demolition or change of use etc).

In terms of trees and development, developers should:
 Ensure development schemes include measures to safeguard trees and where appropriate to supplement an area’s tree cover
 Provide detailed tree and land survey for application sites in close proximity to trees, or on site which trees are growing.

Detailed arrangements for future maintenance of landscaping on a site will be requested as part of any planning application. Early contact with
the Council to discuss biodiversity, trees and landscaping issues is recommended.

Landscape designations

A number of allocated sites are located in the proximity of landscape designations, for example Gardens and Designed Landscapes, National
Scenic Areas, Special Landscape Areas, Special Area of Conservation and Site of Special Scientific Interest. These designations are
protected against adverse impact from development through LDP Policies EP10 ‘Gardens and Designed Landscapes’, EP1 ‘International
Conservation Sites and Protected Species’, EP2 ‘National Nature Conservation and Protected Species’, EP4 ‘National Scenic Areas’ and EP5
‘Special Landscape Areas’ and national policies. Planning proposals for sites in close proximity should detail the impact on these areas and
how to mitigate the adverse impact.

Creation of Streets and Spaces

Roads and access

Road design should not be conceived in isolation, but as an element in the overall design of the development. The Council’s ‘Standards for
Development Roads’ should serve as a guide for the form of development on the site, but should be flexible enough so as not to inhibit the
design of an innovative less car dominant layout which respects the landform and character of the area.

IS5 ‘Protection of Access Routes’, IS6 ‘Road Adoption Standards’ and the Council’s Transportation Standards (LDP Appendix 3) and Scottish
Government’s ‘Designing Streets: A Policy Statement for Scotland’. The national document promotes an informal system of well connected

P
age 315



11

streets with natural traffic calming (building lines, squares, shared road surfaces etc) built in and equal priority given to all transport modes such
as passenger transport, walking and cycling. Developers are advised to contact the Council’s Roads Planning Service for further advice.

Parking

In a development where car parking spaces are allocated to individual properties the provisional requirement will be two parking spaces per
dwelling unit (discounting garages). There will be a 25% requirement for visitor parking to be provided in groups of two spaces or more. For
communal car parking the provisional requirements, which include visitor parking, is 1.5-1.75 spaces per dwelling unit. More details are
available in LDP IS7 ‘Parking Provision and Standards’ and the Council’s Transportation Standards (LDP Appendix 3). Developers are advised
to contact the Council’s Roads Planning Service for further advice.

The developer should consider a range of solutions to reduce the impact of car parking on the residential environment. These might include a
combination of:

 Avoiding front garden space being entirely given over to parking
 Using traditional front garden walls and hedges to structure the street appearance
 Designing in shared small scale semi-private courtyard parking
 Placing larger parking courtyards behind perimeter blocks
 Building shared surfaces in traditional materials rather than using coloured concrete block surfaces – for example in parking zones,

subject to adoption requirements, and domestic driveways.

P
age 316



Planning & Building Standards Committee 29th February 2016 1

PLANNING APPEALS & REVIEWS

Briefing Note by Chief Planning Officer

PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29th February 2016

1 PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this briefing note is to give details of Appeals and Local 
Reviews which have been received and determined during the last 
month.

2 APPEALS RECEIVED

2.1 Planning Applications

Nil

2.2 Enforcements

Nil

3 APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED

Nil

3.2 Enforcements

Nil

4 APPEALS OUTSTANDING

4.1 There remained 3 appeals previously reported on which decisions were still 
awaited when this report was prepared on 18th February 2016.  This 
relates to sites at:

 Land South East of Halmyre Mains 
Farmhouse (Hag Law), Romanno 
Bridge

 Land North East and North West 
of Farmhouse Braidlie (Windy 
Edge), Hawick

 Land North of Upper Stewarton, 
(Kilrubie Wind Farm 
Development), Eddleston, Peebles



Page 317

Agenda Item 9



Planning & Building Standards Committee 29th February 2016 2

4.2 Section 36 Appeals Outstanding:

 Land North of Nether Monynut 
Cottage (Aikengall IIa), 
Cockburnspath

 Cloich Forest Wind Farm, Land 
West of Whitelaw Burn, Eddleston

 (Whitelaw Brae Wind Farm), Land 
South East of Glenbreck House, 
Tweedsmuir



5 REVIEW REQUESTS RECEIVED

5.1 Reference: 15/00769/FUL
Proposal: Siting of caravan for permanent residence 

(retrospective)
Site: Land South of Camphouse Farmhouse, Camptown, 

Jedburgh
Appellant: Kerr Renwick

Reasons for Refusal: 1. The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of 
the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan Adopted 2011 and the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders 
Countryside 2008 as the caravan is not located within any settlement or an 
established building group of three of more dwellinghouses or building(s) 
capable of conversion to residential use and the agricultural and 
operational requirement for the use of the caravan for permanent 
residential occupation has not been adequately demonstrated.  The 
retention of the caravan on this site would lead to an unacceptable and 
unjustified sporadic development in the countryside.  2. The proposal 
would result in an unacceptable form of development that would not be in 
accordance with the criteria contained within Policy G1 of the Scottish 
Borders Consolidated Local Plan Adopted 2011 and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Placemaking and Design 2010.   The unit is not 
physically suited for permanent retention for residential use, due to its 
size, design and construction. The development is not in keeping with the 
scale or architectural character of the existing buildings at Camptown to 
the detriment of the visual amenities of the area.

6 REVIEWS DETERMINED

6.1 Reference: 15/01034/FUL
Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse
Site: Land West of Craigerne Coachhouse, Edderston 

Road, Peebles
Appellant: Mrs Patricia Crippin

Reason for Refusal: The application is contrary to Policies G1, G7 and 
NE4 of the Scottish Borders Consolidated Local Plan 2011 in that the 
proposed development would represent a cramped form of development, 
out of character with this part of Edderston Road. The proposed house 
would result in an overdevelopment and significant reduction, of an area of 
ground which is required for landscaped and wooded setting for the 
approved Craigerne Coach House development, resulting in an 
inappropriate congested appearance between the development and 
Edderston Road, providing insufficient space for new and replacement 
planting, undermining the retention of preserved trees and being out of 

Page 318



Planning & Building Standards Committee 29th February 2016 3

character with the design of the Coach House development and the 
traditional houses in the area.

Method of Review: Review of Papers 

Review Decision: Decision of Appointed Officer Upheld

7 REVIEWS OUTSTANDING

7.1 There remained no reviews previously reported on which decisions were 
still awaited when this report was prepared on 18th February 2016.

Approved by

Ian Aikman
Chief Planning Officer

Signature ……………………………………

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Laura Wemyss Administrative Assistant  01835 824000 Ext 5409

Background Papers:  None.
Previous Minute Reference:  None.

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Place, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel. No. 01835 825431 Fax No. 01835 825071
Email: PLACEtransrequest@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 319



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 321

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 323

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	5a 15/01155/FUL and 15/01156/FUL - Land North of 24 Sergeants Park, Newtown St Boswells
	6 Supplementary Guidance: Glentress Masterplan
	Item No. 6 - Glentress Appendix A Masterplan 5 2 16
	Item No. 6 - Appendix B Consultation Responses
	Item No. 6 - Appendix C SEA HRA Consultation Responses
	Item No. 6 - Appendix D Updated ER Feb 2016
	Appendix 3 Consultation Authorities Scoping Responses.pdf
	titles App 3.pdf


	Item No. 6 - Appendix E Updated HRA

	7 Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance: Hendersyde, Kelso
	Item No. 7 - Appendix A - Hendersyde Kelso

	8 Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance: East Maxton, Maxton Mini Planning Brief
	Item No. 8 - Appendix A - East Maxton Maxton Mini Planning Brief

	9 Appeals and Reviews.
	13 Minute
	14 Dangerous Chimney and Masonry and Defective Roof covering, Rainwater Goods and Dry Rot at 2 High Street and 12 Market Place, Jedburgh

